
LOCATION: 

WASHOE COUNTY COMMISSION CHAMBERS DATE Sept. 20, 2019 
1001 E. 9th Street, Bldg. A, Reno TIME 9:00 a.m. 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 

I. The Washoe County Commission Chamber is accessible to individuals with disabilities. Requests for auxiliary aids to assist individuals 
with disabilities should be made with as much advance notice as possible. For those requiring hearing or speech assistance, contact Relay Nevada 
at 1-800-326-6868 (TTY, VCO or HCO). Requests for supporting documents and all other requests should be directed to Denise Thompson at 775-
348-0400 and you will receive a response within five business days. Supporting documents may also be found on the RTC website: 
www.rtcwashoe.com . 

II. The RTC has a standing item for accepting public input on topics relevant to the jurisdiction of the RTC. Because specific items may 
be taken out of order to accommodate the public and/or the Commission, public input on all items will be received under Item 2. The RTC Chairman 
may permit public input to be taken at the time a specific agendized item is discussed. Individuals providing public input will be limited to three 
minutes. Individuals acting as a spokesperson for a group may request additional time. Individuals will be expected to provide public input in a 
professional and constructive manner. Attempts to present public input in a disruptive manner will not be allowed . Remarks will be addressed to the 
Board as a whole and not to individual commissioners. 

Ill. The Commission may combine two or more agenda items for consideration and/or may remove an item from the agenda or delay 
discussion relating to an item on the agenda at any time. 

**ROLL CALL** 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA (For Possible Action) 

2. PUBLIC INPUT 
2.1 Public Input - please read paragraph II near the top of this page 
2.2 Accept the monthly Summary Report for the Technical, Citizens Multimodal and Regional Road 

Impact Fee Advisory Committees (For Possible Action) 

3. CONSENT ITEMS 
Minutes 

3.1 Approve the minutes of the August 16, 2019, meeting (For Possible Action) 

Engineering 
3.2 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Engineering Activity Report (For Possible Action) 

Public Transportation/Operations 
3.3 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Public Transportation/Operations Report (For Possible Action) 

Planning 
3.4 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Planning Activity Report (For Possible Action) 
3.5 Approve the recommended appointment and alternate appointments to the Citizens Multimodal 

Advisory Committee (CMAC): 

• Jillian Keller (Term through June 2022) 

• Mike Soszynski (Alternate) 

• Mauricio Urias (Alternate) 

http:www.rtcwashoe.com


Administration 
3.6 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Procurement Activity Report (For Possible Action) 

3.7 Approve amendments to RTC Management Policy P-13 - Procurement, Contracting and Contract 

Administration, effective October 1, 2019 (For Possible Action) 

Procurement and Contracts 

3.8 Approve an amendment to the existing Task Order #1 under the Master Services Agreement with 

CA Group, Inc. for design services related to the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program 

19-01 Project in the amount of $76,440 for a new not-to-exceed amount for $518,145, and an 

amendment to the Master services Agreement to reflect the increased not-to-exceed amount; 

authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the amendments (For Possible Action) 

3.9 Approve Task Order #2 under the Master Services Agreement with CA Group, Inc. for design 

services and optional engineering during construction for the Bus Stop Improvement and 

Connectivity Program for the 2020 construction season in an amount not-to-exceed $580,865 and 

an amendment to the Master Services Agreement to reflect the increased not-to-exceed amount; 

authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the task order and amendment (For Possible 

Action) 

3.10 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Headway Transportation, LLC, to provide 

preliminary traffic operations analysis for the Center Street Cycle Track Project in an amount not-to

exceed $95,950; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement (For Possible 

Action) 

3.11 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. ("Jacobs") 

as the selected firm to provide Engineering Professional Services for the Lemmon Drive Capacity 

Project in an amount not to exceed $2,661,932; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the 

agreement (For Pos~ible Action) 

3.12 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Nichols Consulting Engineers, CHTD 

("NCE") to provide design services and optional engineering during construction for the Reno 

Consolidated 20-01 - Mayberry Drive, California Avenue, and First Street Project in an amount not 

to exceed $913,830; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement (For Possible 

Action) 

3.13 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Westwood Professional Services, Inc. 

("WPS") to provide design services and optional engineering during construction for the TE Spot 9 -

Package 1 Project in an amount not to exceed $250,102; authorize the RTC Executive Director to 

execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.14 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Kimley-Horn & Associates to provide design 

services and engineering during construction for the TE Spot 9 - Package 2 Project in an amount 

not to exceed $273,718, authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement (For 

Possible Action) 

3.15 Approve the award and agreement with Trane US Inc. to provide heating, ventilation, and air 

conditioning (HVAC) preventive maintenance services, for a term of two years with three, one-year 

renewal options; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement (For Possible 

Action) 

Inter-Agency Agreements 

3.16 Approve a Cooperative Highway Agreement with the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) 

for the final plans, specifications and costs estimates for Phase 1 of the Pyramid Highway/US 395 

Connector Project (Phase 1) in the amount of $1,500,000; authorize the RTC Executive Director to 

execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 



Resolutions of Condemnation 

3.17 Approve a Resolution of Condemnation authorizing RTC's legal counsel to commence 

condemnation proceedings to acquire the full fee acquisition of the parcel known as APN 007-183-

13 from JRK Investments, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, necessary to construct the 

Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit Extension Project (For Possible Action) 

~END OF CONSENT AGENDA~ 

4. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
4.1 Public hearing - no earlier than 9:05 a.m. Time Certain: 

Discussion and recommendation to approve the resolution adopting the Federal Fiscal Year 

(FFY) 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) and the Self 

Certification for the metropolitan transportation planning process 

1. Staff presentation 

2. Public input 

3. Approve the resolution adopting the Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2020-2024 Regional 

Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) and the Self Certification for the 

metropolitan transportation planning process (For Possible Action) 

5. DIRECTOR REPORTS 
5.1 RTC EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT - verbal report- no action required 

5.2 FEDERAL REPORT - no action required 

5.3 NDOT Monthly updates/messages from NDOT Director Kristina Swallow - no action required 

6. PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION AND OPERATIONS 
6.1 Acknowledge receipt of the report on RTC RIDE Service Expansion Discussions; direct Staff 

accordingly (For Possible Action) 

7. ENGINEERING 
7 .1 Acknowledge receipt of the Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) Extension monthly progress 

report (For Possible Action) 

8. METROPOLITAN PLANNING ORGANIZATION (MPO) 
8.1 Acknowledge receipt of the NDOT Spaghetti Bowl Project monthly progress report and provide input 

accordingly (For Possible Action) 

9. GENERAL ADMINISTRATION (For Possible Action) 
9.1 Legal Issues - Report, discussion and possible action and/or direction to legal counsel and staff following receipt of 

information on legal issues, The RTC may, consistent with Chapter 241 of NRS, decide to interrupt the public 
meeting at any time to conduct a closed session to confer with legal counsel and possibly deliberate on legal 
issues. Any action on pending legal matters will be made when the public meeting is reconvened. 

10. PUBLIC INPUT - please read paragraph II near the top of this page 

11. MEMBER ITEMS 

12. ADJOURNMENT(For Possible Action) 

Posting locations: Washoe Co. Admin. Bldg., 1001 E. 9th St. , Reno, NV; RTC, 1105 Terminal Way, Reno , NV; 41h STREET STATION, 200 E 4th 
St. , Reno, NV; CENTENNIAL PLAZA, Victorian Square, Sparks, NV; Sparks City Hall , 431 Prater Way, Sparks , NV; Reno City Hall, 1 E. First St., 
Reno , NV; Incline Village General Imp.Dist. , 893 Southwood Blvd ., Incline Village, NV; area press & media via fax; RTC website : 
www.rtcwashoe.com , State website: https://notice.nv.gov/ 

http:https://notice.nv.gov
http:www.rtcwashoe.com


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 2.1 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

for Lee G. Gibson AI CP 
FROM: 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Public Input 

This agenda item allows the public the opportunity to provide information on topics within 
the jurisdiction of the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC). Any person wishing to 
wait to provide public comment on a specific agenda item should indicate that item number 
on the "comment" card. The R TC Chair reserves the right to take all public comment during 
Public Input. Individuals addressing the Board during the Public Input portion of the 
meeting will be limited to three minutes total. However, an individual acting as a 
spokesperson for a group of individuals may request additional time. Individuals are 
expected to provide public input in a professional and ·constructive manner. 

LGG/dt 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 2.2 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Amy Cummings, AICP/LEED AP c~ !212-i -uz___ 
Director of Planning for Lee G. Gibson, AICP 

Executive Director 
Mark Maloney 
Director of Public Transportation 

Brian Stewart, P .E. 
Engineering Director 

SUBJECT: September 2019 Advisory Committees Summary Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

Accept the monthly Summary Report for the Technical, Citizens Multimodal, and Regional Road 
Impact Fee Advisory Committees. 

SUMMARY 

The RTC has three advisory committees that provide input on a wide range of policy and planning 
issues as well as key planning documents and the RTC Budget. The committees include: 

• The Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC) and is comprised of three 
individuals who use RTC RIDE, two individuals who use RTC ACCESS, five individuals 
who represent bicyclists/pedestrians, and five individuals who represent general multimodal 
transportation. The RTC Board approves appointments to this advisory committee. 

• The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) that includes local public works directors, 
community development directors, and staff from other key agencies. 

• The Regional Road Impact Fee Technical Advisory Committee (RRIF TAC) which was 
created to oversee and advise the local governments regarding land use classification 
assumptions and the Capital Improvements Plan (CIP) used in the impact fee program. The 
RRIF TAC consists of three representatives from each local entity, two RTC 
representatives and four private sector members who are appointed by the RTC Board. 

The agenda and minutes of each advisory committee are provided to the RTC Board. 

This staff report summarizes comments along with any action taken by the RTC advisory 
committees. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno , NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Advisory Committees Summary Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact associated with this agenda item. 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

The following describes key actions and comments received from the RTC advisory committees. 

Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC) 

The CMAC met on September 4, 2019, and recommended approval of the FFY 2020-2024 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP). The CMAC also received reports on an 
update to the RTC Project Prioritization Framework, which is being developed to establish a data
driven process for prioritizing the implementation of projects in the Regional Transportation Plan 
(RTP), as well as the RTC Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Transition Plan update. 

Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) 

The TAC met on September 4, 2019, and recommended approval of the FFY 2020-2024 RTIP. 
The TAC also received reports on an update to the RTC Project Prioritization Framework, which is 
being developed to establish a data-driven process for prioritizing the implementation of projects 
in the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), as well as the RTC ADA Transition Plan update. 

Regional Road Impact Fee Technical Advisory Committee (RRIF TAC) 

The RRIF TAC did not meet in August or September. 



AGENDA ITEM 3.1 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA 

FRIDAY 9:01 A.M. August 16, 2019 

PRESENT: 
Bob Lucey, Washoe County Commissioner, Chairman 

Neoma Jardon, Reno City Council Member, Vice Chair 
Vaughn Hartung, Washoe County Commissioner 

Bonnie Weber, Reno City Council Member (Alternate, arrived 9:04) 
Ron Smith, Sparks City Council Me111ber (departed 10:13) 

Lee G. Gibson, RTC,E~ecutive Director 
Dale Ferguson, Legal Counsel 

Kristina Swallow, Director of NDOT 
NOT PRESENT: 

Oscar Delgad~, Reno City Council Member 

The regular monthly meeting, held in the .Chambers of the Washoe County Commission, 1001 E. 
9th Street, Reno, Nevada, W:a§ _calJed to order by Chairman Lucey. , Following the roll call and the 
Pledge of Allegiance to_the Flag:bf qur country;-,the Bqard conducted the following business: 

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS, RECOGNITIONS, OTHER 

RECOGNITION O,F THE RTC BY THE HOT AUGUST NIGHTS (HAN) 
ORGANiZATION FOR SUPPORT AND , PARTNERSHIP TO PROVIDE THE 
COMMUNITY TRANSIT S;ERVICE TO THE HAN EVENTS - Item pulled 

RECOGNITION OF THE RTC BY RENO FOOD SYSTEMS FOR SUPPORT AND 
PARTNERSHIP TO PROVIDE THE COMMUNITY TRANSIT SERVICE TO THE RENO 
GARLIC FEST 

Mr. Michael Moreno, RTC Public Affairs Manager, introduced Rebekah Stetson who represents 
the organization. 

3rd Ms. Stetson said this was the year for the Reno Garlic Festival and there were 4,000 
participants this year. In order to hold the event in Pat Baker Park, it was vital to use an RTC park 
and ride program. 

She then said it is always amazing to work with the RTC and Michael Moreno and things always 
flow very easily. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 1 



Item] APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

On motion of Vice Chair Jardon, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, which motion unanimously 
carried, Chairman Lucey ordered that the agenda for this meeting be approved. 

Item 2 .J PUBLIC INPUT 

Chairman Lucey opened the meeting to public input and called on anyone wishing to speak on 
topics relevant to the Regional Transportation Commission (R TC) that are not included in the 
current agenda. 

Ms. Amy Dewitt-Smith, representing Neighbor Network of Northern Nevada (N4), addressed the 
Board to discuss an inclusive transportation planning project funded by the Administration for 
Community Living. This project engages people with disabilities, older adults and their care 
partners and other stakeholders. Their purpose is to discuss ways to fill transportation gaps in the 
community. They would like to start a Statewide Transportation Association as Nevada is one of 
the few states who do not already have one. They would also like to provide an "information 
highway" to provide information on what transportation services and programs are available. She 
would like to talk to business leaders about a Ride with,M,e_'I)ay program. 

Ms. Jocelyn Seemann, representing Neighbor Network of Northern Nevada (N4) and Ms. Twyla 
Lemay, local resident, addressed the Board, and further explained the Ride with Me program as a 
program pairing a public official with an ''older adult or a person with a disability to use public 
transportation together)h the maimer the older adult or person with a disability normally does. 
The hope is to foster , communication between · their members and officials to improve the 
accessibility of existing syst~ms. Ms: Lemay fully ~upports a Ride with Me Day program. 

Mr. Ryan Kinney; local resident, addressed the Board to request some type of signal at Pyramid 
and Holman Way. He also mentioned that the ACCES drivers are usually 15 - 20 minutes late so 
the purchase of additional paratransit vehicles on the agenda for this day is a great idea. Lastly, he 
would like RTC staff to personally speak with visually impaired people about how exactly place 
the new markers on bus stops. . , ·. 

Mr. Juan Martinez and his fiance, Ms. Dora Uchel, addressed the Board to mention they had a 
scheduled trip with ACCESS, so as they were told to do, waited for the phone call letting them 
know when the driver was· :there. They never received a call and when they followed up with 
ACCESS, they were told the driver said he/she was knocking at their door but no one actually 
knocked at the door. 

Dora would also like the RTC to try to enforce the use of leashes or carriers to restrain aggressive 
dogs. She also said the agenda packet was not available for ADA readers online. 

There being no one else wishing to speak, the Chair closed public input. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 2 



Item 2.2 ADVISORY COMMITTEES SUMMARY REPORT 

On motion of Mayor Smith, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, which motion unanimously 
carried, Chairman Lucey ordered that receipt of the monthly Summary Report for the Technical, 
Citizens Multimodal and Regional Road Impact Fee Advisory Committees be acknowledged. 

Item 3 .J thru 3.17 CONSENT ITEMS 

Vice Chair Jardon made a motion to pull Item 3.5 for discussion and approve the remainder of the 
items. The motion was seconded by Commissioner Hartung and upon a vote, passed unanimously. 

Minutes 
3.1 Approve the minutes of the July 19, 2019, meeting (For Possible Action) 

Engineering 
3.2 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Engineering Activity Report (For Possible Action) 

Public Transportation/Operations 
3.3 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Public T~ansportation/Operatfons Report (For 

Possible Action) 

Planning 
3.4 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Planning Activity Report (For Possible Action) 
3.5 Approve the folJ~wing-, pp>jects for the F~deral Fiscal Year 2019 Transportation 

Alternatives (TA) Set-Aside Program:~~ recommended by the Technical Advisory 
Committee and Citizens M~lJimodal Ady(sory Committee (CMAC): 

• Regional Traffic <;almi1.1g: $34,00,Q each for Washoe County, City of Sparks 
and City of Reno ($102~000 total) 

• , Bus Stop ADA Signage & Markers for Visually Impaired Customers: $34,000 
for RTC Transit 

**Item pulled for discussion** 

Ms. Amy Cummings, RTC Deputy Executive Director and Director of Planning, addressed the 
Board to explain that the funding discussed in Item 3.5 is left over from a project that was not able 
to move forward, so there was an additional call for projects for this funding. Two applications 
were received as noted in the recommendation; however, she believes the earlier public comments 
by Mr. Kinney were pertaining to the ADA signage and markers. This project came out of the 
ADA Transition Plan because some of the fonts on the current bus stop signs are too small for the 
height at which they are posted, so the concept is to have a smaller placard midway down the pole 
with larger fonts which will further distinguish a bus stop pole from another type of pole. Ed Park 
is the RTC Project Manager. 

Vice Chair Jardon asked if any particular group was consulted with pertaining to the signage 
improvements. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 3 

http:almi1.1g


Ms. Cumming said it was discussed at the RTC Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) meeting. 
This item is only to identify the funding, so as staff moves forward they will do additional outreach 
with customers and in particular, the customers in attendance today. 

On motion of Vice Chair Jardon, seconded by Commissioner Weber, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered that Consent Items 3.5 be approved. 

Administration 
3.6 Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Procurement Activity Report (For Possible 

Action) 

Procurement and Contracts 
3. 7 Approve the purchase of fifteen (15) CNG paratransit vehicles utilizing the State of 

Nevada Fleet Vehicles procurement contract number 99SWC-S490 in the amount of 
$2,165,937 (For Possible Action) 

3.8 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Stantec Consulting Services, 
Inc. in an amount not to exceed $199,984 for consulting services on the Eagle Canyon 
Extension Alignment Alternatives and Planning and Environmental Linkages (PEL) 
Study; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement (For Possible 
Action) 

3.9 Approve the revised Section 5310 grant agreement with Neighbor Network of 
Northern Nevada (N4) in the amount of $221,403; a.uthorize RTC Executive Director 
to execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.10 Approve Amendment No. 1 to the existing Professional Services Agreement (PSA) 
between the RTC and Wood Rodgers~ Inc. for engineering services during 
construction related to the Reno Consolidated 19-02 - North Hills Boulevard, and 
Hunter Lake Drive Intersection Projecf in the amount of $54,445 for a new not to 
exceed amount of $538,550; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the 
amendment (For Possible Action) 

3.11 Approve Amendment No. 1 to the existing Professional Services Agreement (PSA) 
between the RTC and CF A, Inc. for additional final design and construction services 
related to utility work on 15th and C Street and increased grind/overlay quantities on 

15 th El Rancho for the Sparks Consolidated 19-01 - Street, Franklin Way, Hulda 
Court, and El Rancho Drive Project, in the amount of $27,962 for a new not to exceed 
amount of $420,943; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the Amendment 
(For Possible Action) 

3.12 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Lumos & Associates, Inc. 
("Lumos") to provide design services and optional engineering during construction 
for the Golden Valley Road Rehab - Yorkshire Drive to North Virginia Street Project 
in an amount not to exceed $266,685; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute 
the agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.13 Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Eastern Sierra Engineering, 
P.C. to provide design services and optional engineering during construction for the 
Lakeside Drive Rehab Project in an amount not to exceed $561,260; authorize the 
RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement (For Possible Action) 

3.14 Approve an Administrative Settlement of $125,000 above the just compensation of 
$1,375,000 representing a total settlement offer of $1,500,000 for the full fee simple 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT Page 4 



acquisition of the parcel known as APN 007-183-11 with Bajwa Properties, LLC - Co
Ed Lodge Series, necessary to construct the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT) 
Extension Project (For Possible Action) 

3.15 Approve an Administrative Settlement of $105,000 above the just compensation of 
$1,215,000 representing a total settlement offer of $1,320,000 for the full fee simple 
acquisition of the parcel known as APN 007-183-12 with Ross Rentals, LTD., 
necessary to construct the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT) Extension 
Project (For Possible Action) 

3.16 Approve Amendment #2 to the service agreement with Trane US Inc. to provide 
heating, ventilation and air conditioning (HV AC) preventive maintenance services in 
an amount not to exceed $16,549; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the 
amendment (For Possible Action) 

Inter-Agency Agreements 
3.17 Approve an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement (ICA) between the RTC and the City 

of Reno for the inclusion of requested enhancements to Virginia Street during the 
construction of the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BR1) Extension Project. 
Funding for the enhancements to be provided by the City of Reno in an amount not to 
exceed $222,600; authorize the RTC Executiy~ Director to execute the agreement (For 
Possible Action) 

**Motion precedes Item 3.1 ** 
Item 4.1 thru 4.3 DIRECTOR REPORTS , 

Item 4.1 RTC Executive J)irector Report 

Executive Director (E.D.) Lee Gibson spoke briefly on the following topics, some of which were 
upcoming at the time_ of this meeting: 

1. Keolis Performance Update: 
• July 2019 Keolis' first month of operation had a 2.5% overall increase in RIDE 

ridership, system wide, versus July 2018. This is the first increase in ridership in 13 
months-. 

• On-Time performance for July 2019 was 92.6% versus 90.0% for July 2018 
• Keolis had 23 valid complaints for the month versus 39 for July 2018, which represents 

a 41 % decrease in valid complaints. 
• Keolis delivered more than 99.99% of scheduled service for the month. 
• Keolis had 65 missed trips for the month versus 431 missed trips for July 2018, 

representing an 85% decrease in missed trips. 

2. The R TC continues to build partnerships with local organizations to support regional events to 
provide transit service to special events. 

In continuing efforts to increase transit ridership, transit service will be offered on Route 7 to 
the Reno Air Races Community Take-Off Celebration on September 7th and to the Air Races 
which start the following week. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT Page 5 



RTC will partner again with The Nugget to provide bus shuttle service for the Best in The West 
Rib Cook-off and will, again, offer transit service on the new "UNR to Midtown Direct" line to 
the UNR Wolf Pack home football games. 

Details and route schedules will be announced in this month's eNews Board Update; also at 
www .R TC Washoe.com and on R TC' s social media channels. 

3. The start of the new UNR to Midtown Direct route ·which will begin August 25th was 
announced. The new route replaces the Sierra Spirit service and will be temporary until the 
RAPID Virginia Line extension to UNR begips and when , the Virginia Street project is 
completed. · 

Free rides will be offered on the UNR to Midtown Direct from Augus~ 25th through September 
8th • On September 9th, regular RIDE fares will become effective. For tnore information visit 
R TC' s website and follow us on social media. 

4. Last week, the California Keystone improvements, which began on June 10th 
, were completed. 

The project improves safety and access for drivers, bicyclists and pedestrians, with wider 
sidewalks, the addition of new pedestrian rarrips at the intersection, and access for everyone in 
compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act . 

These neighborhood:enhancements have beerrwell received by the community and represent a 
$2.8 million investment in our community. Thank you to SNC. 

, ' , ·-,.·. , ; 

5. On September 12th, .,the RTC will host a community open house and meeting for the RTC 
Affordable HousingStudy at the McKinley'Arts & Culture Center at 4 pm, with a presentation 
at 5 pm. 

The public is invited to attenµ the meeting to give input to identify opportunities for affordable 
housing neat transit routes. \ ;please join us for a discussion on this critical need m our 
community. The .. ?:_pm presentation will be livestreamed on RTC 's Facebook page. 

6. A 21-Day Public Comm~nt Participation Period begins on August 30, 2019, and ends on 
September 19, 2109, for the Federal Fiscal Year 2020 through 2024 Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program (the RTIP), which was developed in accordance with the Fixing 
America's Surface Transportation (FAST) Act. 

A copy of the RTIP is available for viewing and comment during regular business hours at the 
RTC Planning Office at 1105 Terminal Way, Suite 211, in Reno. The document is also 
available at www.RTCWashoe.com. Comments can also be mailed to: RTC Planning Offices, 
1105 Terminal Way, Suite 211, Reno, NV 89502. Additional ways to provide comment are 
available on our website. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT Page 6 

http:www.RTCWashoe.com
http:Washoe.com


7. Shared Federal Framework update. The RTC had strong participation from local entities and 
agencies from across the region and there was a wide ranging discussion on federal policy 
issues. This will be a future agenda item. 

8. The October Board meeting date will be change and if there is a transit workshop, it will take 
place in October as well. 

Commissioner Hartung requested an update on Lemmon Valley Drive and E.D. Gibson responded 
that an agreement with Jacobs Engineering for preliminary engineering, NEPA and design/build 
procurement services would be brought to the Board for approval in September. 

Commissioner Hartung then asked what the status is for the stoplight requested at Egyptian, Sunset 
and Pyramid. 

Mr. Brian Stewart, RTC Director of Engineering, addressed the Board and said staff is still 
working with NDOT and Washoe County to get the infrastructure installed for the light. 

Item 4.2 RTC Federal Report 

A written update is available in the staff report materials for this item and E.D. Gibson introduced 
Ms. Anja Graves, President of Cardinal Infrastructure, and Congressman Jon Porter, President of 
Porter Group, LLC, both federal lobbyists on behalf of the R TC of Washoe County's interests. 

Ms. Graves addressed the Board and provided her update, saying that the Senate Environment and 
Public Works Committee. ~nanimously passed a highway portion of a Surface Transportation and 
Reauthorization bill which increas~s highway spending approximately 27%; unfortunately, no 
funding has been identified to pay for it. 

She went on to say that the RTC successfully advocated to expand the Safe Routes to Schools 
Program which adds funding for the increased safety of high school students. 

Ms. Graves continued, providing information on a potential gas tax increase, continuing 
resolutions, etc. She added that a budget deal was passed prior to the fall recess so now the house 
and the senate will need to work on a mutually agreed upon spending plan. 

Mr. Porter then addressed the Board and said the government affairs team meets every week for a 
minimum of an hour, via conference call, to discuss everything going on with the RTC and 
government happenings which may have an effect on us. He continued with information on 
what's occurring in the current political environment. He said that republicans and democrats 
actually work very well together, despite what's shown or heard in the news. He added that the 
Shared Federal Framework meeting the previous day was very successful in their discussions of 
community and region-wide issues that need to be addressed. 

Lastly, Mr. Porter expressed how spoiled Nevadans were before Senator Reid had retired because 
he accomplished so many great things for our state. Then Mr. Porter spoke of the great qualities 
our current delegation has and that they are working very hard for their constituents, even in this 
difficult environment. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT Page 7 



Item 4.3 NDOT Director Report 

NDOT Director Kristina Swallow provided a brief update on the I-80 pavement reconstruction 
project, saying final striping should be completed by the end of September. 

She also discussed the Kietzke and 2nd Street projects, which focus mainly on bike lanes and 
mobility improvements. The Kietzke project is complete and 2nd Street should be complete in two 
or three weeks. 

Mayor Smith asked if there is any possibility to add a flasher at the sidewalk near Pyramid and 
Tyler Way as it is a very dangerous traffic area. Ms. Swallow said she would check into that for 
the Mayor. 

Commissioner Hartung mentioned again that the warning lights for upcoming signals are all 
flashing except for the newest lights which do not fla;h. They shoi:ild pe consistent. 

Commissioner Hartung also brought up the diffict1lties that someone towirig,a very large trailer has 
turning south on Pyramid from Egyptian. -

Chairman Lucey asked what the statµs is on the Mt. Rose Highway safety improvements and 
would like an update brought to a future __ meeting. He would also like to discuss what the state 
priorities are for NDOT and the Governor. 

,'. . ·. • . . , 

Ms. Swallow said the implementation ofthe·One Nevada Plan is on their next agenda for approval. 

Item 5.1 thru 5.2 METROPOLITANPLANNING ORGANIZATION 

5.1 Receive a reP,or( on the NDOT Spaghetti Bowl Project and provide input accordingly 
- no action required 

Ms. Jenica Keller, NDOT Project Manager, addressed the Board to provide a presentation update 
on the Spaghetti Bowl and Spagpetti Bowl Express projects. She said a phasing plan has been 
developed to complete this project over the next 20 years. She then went over the timing of each 
phase as follows: 

Phase l (Spaghetti Bowl Xpress): 
• Phase lA (2020-2020) 
• Phase lB (2021-2023) 

Phase 2 (2024-2028) 
Phase 3 (2028-2034) 
Phase 4 (2035-2037) 
Phase 5 (2037-2039) 

Ms. Keller also provided information on what will occur during each phase. She made it very 
clear that even though there is a delay in the start of the project no resources are being reallocated. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 8 



(A full copy of this presentation may be obtained by contacting Denise Thompson -
dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

Chairman Lucey stated that he had received public comment requests on this topic, so opened the 
meeting to public input and called on the following: 

Mr. Craig Madole, representing AGC, thanked the RTC for their ongoing commitment to this 
project and suggested that the money which was being provided to NDOT toward this project be 
allocated to another project which would put more people to work in the current building season. 

Mr. Andrew Diss, representing the Grand Sierra Resort (GSR), expressed the GSR's concern about 
this first delay and that it may lead to additional delays on this project. The other gaming 
properties in the region also have concerns. 

He reminded staff that the area around the Spaghetti Bowl is one of the most dangerous in the 
state. Mr. Diss also brought up the continued growth in the area and how the Spaghetti Bowl 
affects not only Reno/Sparks, but also businesses in Storey County and other areas in the region. 

Mr. Paul McKenzie, representing the building trades, expressed his frustration over these delays, 
adding that NDOT had promised a schedule for this project and while he sat on the Reno City 
Council, the Council members made decisions al:,out development requests that were based upon 
that schedule. There is now one developer that can't build for approximately another five years 
based upon this change to the schedule and there will be an economic impact as well. This project 
was the number one priority in the state and now it's on the back burner which will only increase 
expenses on the project. 

Mr. Scott Fullerton, representing Operating Engineers Local #3 , expressed the union's concern 
over these delays because construction will slow down in the region and their members are 
depending on this project for continued, stable employment. 

There being no one else wishing to speak, public input was closed. 

Vice Chair Jardon said the Spaghetti Bowl became a topic of discussion approximately seven years 
prior (she then asked for this to be a standing monthly item going forward) and the RTC made it a 
regional priority because th~ gi::idlock and lack of safety are only going to grow. She added that 
she understands that the bids came in higher than expected, but construction costs are growing at 
about 5% annualized - so $16 million over a two year delay. Additionally, per volume, the 
Spaghetti Bowl is the highest crash location in the entire state. First responders are also spending 
an inordinate amount of time and money in this one location. 

Commissioner Hartung agreed with the Vice Chair and truly believes (guarantees) that if this 
project were in Las Vegas, it would not be on a 20-year time phase. This project is imperative for 
our community. 

Ms. Keller responded that this project is still the highest priority and utility relocations will begin 
in 2021 to get that work out of the way to make for a smoother Phase IB. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 9 

mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com


Commissioner Weber, thanked everyone, staff and the public speakers, for standing their ground 
on this project and believes this is an emergency project that must be completed now. 

Chairman Lucey said that this project should have taken place 10 years ago instead of waiting until 
after the problems and accidents have occurred. This project needs to be completed sooner than 
the timeline states. 

Both Chairman Lucey and Commissioner Hartung believe that the state funds flow freely to Clark 
County as compared to Washoe County. 

Commissioner Weber wants to know what everyone can doinow to get this project moving. 

Vice Chair Jardon said it feels like seven years of forward movement has all been for nothing and 
every delay is costing more and more tax payer money: 

NDOT Director Swallow said the entire team is also frustrated with the '.situation but they must 
also be good stewards of the tax payer money. She also said that if award had gone through, 
design would still need to be done. However, it is being designed now and is bn•track. 

Commissioner Weber said she thinks there 'should be a specific plan and considers this an 
emergency for the region. We cannot continue to put this off. ,, 

Commissioner Hartung ·said that promises were m~de and they, in-turn, made promises to their 
constituents. Now those promises must be revisecf and asks that NDOT not go back on those 
promises. 

5.2 Receive a 'presentation on the NDOT US 395 North Valleys Improvement Project 
- no action required 

Mr. Nick Johnson, NDOT Project Manager, addressed the Board to provide a presentation update, 
saying that this project is still moving forward. The goal for the first phase is to get as far north as 
the budget will allow and it's looking like it will be somewhere between Golden Valley and 
Lemmon Drive, but it may be a Phase 2 or a stand-alone project. He then quickly went over the 
entire project scope, saying that fmal design is progressing. Because the SBX project was moved 
out a year, this project is als:o being moved out a year. He then offered to answer any questions. 
(A full copy of this presentation may be obtained by contacting Denise Thompson -
dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

Commissioner Hartung asked for confirmation that both the bid and construction will begin in 
2023. Mr. Johnson confirmed. Commissioner Hartung then expressed his frustration with all the 
delays on these very important projects. 

Commissioner Weber said she feels like everyone has been lied to and she was quite emotional 
about the whole thing. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 10 

mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com


Vice Chair Jardon asked if this presentation is different than what was presented at a 
Neighborhood Advisory Board (NAB) meeting a couple of weeks ago. Mr. Johnson confirmed it 
has changed and there have been several adjustments in the past year. Everything has been pushed 
out about a year because of the SBX delays and the reason is that they don't want both projects to 
occur at the same time because there would be significant lane closures, cones and possibly 
overlapping contracts. 

Chairman Lucey asked if the funding has been an issue. 

Mr. Johnson said because costs are going up, staff will need to make potential adjustments where 
needed due to the project delay. 

Chairman Lucey wants to make sure conversations occur with local government to ensure funding 
will be available for the project when it is time to proceed. 

Director Swallow reiterated NDOT's commitpient to both this and the Spaghetti Bowl project. 
She will bring the approved financial split amounts to the September me~ting to share with the 
Commission, adding that all of this is part of the One Nevada Plan. 

Commissioner Hartung suggested that instead of waiting'for the SBX project to begin, they should 
just build the North Valleys portion first. ' Just,get it done. 

Commissioner Weber ag~ees with Commissioner Hartung that the North Valleys project should 
come first. ,, -

**Mayor Smith departed th¢ meeting** 

Item 6.1 tltru 6~2 ENGINEERING 
, ' 

6.1 Acknowledge receipt of the; Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT) Extension 
monthly progress report (For Possible Action) 

Mr. Brian Stewart, :RTC Director of Engineering, addressed the Board to give a presentation 
update on the project, as set forth ip the briefing materials for this agenda item. He said we are 
about two months into the construction of the project and there is something new to see, literally 
every day. He then provided a bit of detail on portions of the project that have been completed or 
will begin shortly. The execution of the Small Starts Grant, which was already awarded, is 
anticipated in September. 

There was a tour given of the Cheney Street businesses for the public and there are still significant 
business support plans occurring and weekly updates are ongoing. The office trailer that was at the 
project was not used as anticipated, so it will no longer be manned as of September; however, there 
will still be boards there to provide information to the public. He then offered to answer any 
questions. (A full copy of this presentation may be obtained by contacting Denise Thompson -
dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 11 

mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com


Vice Chair Jardon said she has not been getting complaints and concerns coming to her, so the 
project seems to be going great! She then asked for the status of the informational videos which 
were discussed at the previous Board meeting. 

Mr. Michael Moreno, RTC Public Affairs Manager, said staff is still working on that production 
and our project is being balanced with many other projects that Mr. Evans has. There is now a 30-
second spot airing on KOLO TV, along with social media. The message continues to be in support 
of Midtown businesses and how to get around the construction occurring. It looks like there will 
be a block party on St. Lawrence A venue and the R TC is supporting that event as well. He then 
thanked involved parties for their continued participation and support. 

Commissioner Hartung said that the business owners on Cheney would love to see Cheney either 
closed off or be turned into a one-way road. He added that business was "hopping" for a Thursday 
night! 

Chairman Lucey asked when construction of tlie round-a-bout at Mary Street will begin and Mr. 
Stewart responded that it will start just after winfot; into the spring. 

Chairman Lucey said this project will be iconic. 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, secoqded by Vice Chair Jardon, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered receipt of the report be acknowledged. 

6.2 Acknowledge receipt of the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program (Bus 
Stop ICP) progress report (For Possible Action) 

Ms. Judy Tortelli, RTC Project Manager, addressed the Board to provide a presentation update on 
the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program, as set forth in the briefing materials for this 
item. She first said that over 100 ofRTC's initial bus stops have been field reviewed and of those 
100 bus stops, 60% design has been completed for over 60 of them. Some of the stops require 
permitting so will be put toward the erid of the project so they don't delay the rest. The biggest 
issues have been right-of-way and schedule. The right-of-way need for these original 100 bus 
stops is greater than anticipated and right-of-way will take 6-9 months to complete. She then 
reviewed some specific stops, showing a few of the items that must be completed for improvement 
and ADA accessibility. She then offered to answer any questions. (A full copy of this presentation 
may be obtained by contacting Penise Thompson - dthompson@rtcwashoe.com) 

Vice Chair Jardon asked what does it "mean" to the rider that there will be a bus stop 
improvement. 

Ms. Tortelli said that to the rider it means the pad will be improved to be ADA accessible, so 5x8 
at a minimum, and will also maintain connectivity to the nearest intersection, which means an 
ADA compliant path to the closest intersection. There will be a separate transit project for adding 
amenities, such as benches. 

Chairman Lucey asked if any of the stops that are planned for potential removal for microtransit 
replacement are being improved. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 12 

mailto:dthompson@rtcwashoe.com


Ms. Tortelli said those have been put on the back burner for now, pending the success of the 
microtransit program. 

Chairman Lucey asked if this is just the first round or will this be it. 

Ms. Tortelli responded that this is the first round as there were over 600 stops that do not currently 
have an ADA compliant pad. The first 100 were chosen based on ridership. 

Commissioner Lucey would like to see the RTC being more proactive rather than reactive. 

On motion of Vice Chair Jardon, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered receipt of the report be acknowledged. 

Item 7.1 thru 7.2 GENERAL ADMINISTRATION 

7.1 Set Executive Director Lee Gibson's goals for fiscal year 2020 (For Possible Action) 

Ms. Angela Reich, RTC Administrative Services Director, addressed the Hoard to say this item 
was carried over from the previous meeting. A list of goals was provided in the support materials 
for this item (attached). 

Additional goals were added to the attached list as follow: 

E.D. Gibson : 
1. Continue working with the Business Improyement District (BID) 
2. Work on the Marketing/Service/Pricing effort to increase ridership 

Vice Chair Jardon: 
1. Purchase a double-decker vehicle for use on Virginia Street 
2. Evaluation of a pedestrian bridge with all RTC partners for Lake Street over I-80 to the 

UNRcampus 
3. Evaluate with all partners the improvements to the esthetics of the Virginia Street overpass 
4. Create a comprehensive plan for the roll-out of Microtransit if successful 

Commissioner Hartung: 
1. Continual reviewing and revamping of the transit system (can routes be flexed mid-day?) 
2. Review of roadway/safety improvements needed in the outlying areas 

Chairman Lucey: 
1. Revamp the Shared Work Program with TRMP A and potentially become the Regional 

MPO while utilizing TMRP A in a different manner 
2. Develop a Shared Regional Framework with NDOT, Carson City and surrounding counties 

E.D. Gibson said that he and Denise Thompson will edit the goals document and go from there. 

On motion of Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Vice Chair Jardon, which motion carried 
unanimously, Chairman Lucey ordered that the amended goals be approved. 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes DRAFT Page 13 



7.2 Legal Issues - Report, discussion and possible action and/or direction to legal counsel and staff following 
receipt of information on legal issues. The RTC may, consistent with Chapter 241 of NRS, 
decide to interrupt the public meeting at any time to conduct a closed session to confer with 
legal counsel and possibly deliberate on legal issues. Any action on pending legal matters will 
be made when the public meeting is reconvened. 

Legal Counsel Dale Ferguson said he had items he wished to communicate with the Board in a 
non-meeting prior to the start of the September 20, 2019, meeting. 

Item8 PUBLIC INPUT 

Chairman Lucey opened the meeting to public input and called on anyone wishing to speak on 
topics relevant to the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) that are not included in the 
current agenda. 

There being no one wishing to speak, the Chair closed public input. 

Item 9 MEMBER ITEMS 

Vice Chair Jardon asked what the policy is pertaining to animals on the bus per the public 
comment earlier in the meeting. 

Mr. Mark Maloney, RTC _Director of Publi,c Transportation and Operations, responded that the 
R TC is governed by the 1\DA whi~h states tq_a! se~ice an:iII11:1ls are allowed and the onus belongs 
to the owner of the animal to keep it under controJ; it does not specify a leash is required. If the 
owner fails to control their service animal, the· ddver will try to address the matter. All other 
animals, such as cats or dogs, must be caged while on the bus. 

Commissioner Weber announced Ward 4's Take,-o:if Celebration and Biggest Little Parade and Fly 
Over Saturday, September 7th from 1 - 5 pm at the Reno/Stead Airport. This is for the Ward 4 
community and the entire city; RTC is proyiding transit service for the event as well as for the Air 
Races. 

Commissioner Hartung suggested the RTC have a "true" definition of what a service animal is. 

Item 10 ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to come before the Board, the meeting adjourned at 11 :26 a.m. 

BOB LUCEY, Chairman 
Regional Transportation Commission 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 14 



ATTACHMENT TO ITEM 7.1 

**Original goals as presented during the meeting** 

LEE GIBSON FY 2020 GOALS 

1 Complete affordable housing study and prepare for joint development/master 
developer RFP to procure a public private partnership. 

2 Initiate property disposal procedures pursuant to AB 270 

3 Implementation of Shared Work Program with TMRP A 

4 Spaghetti Bowl Funding Plan Update 

5 Initiate 2050 RTP Process 

, 

6 
Provide comments 
Delegation 

regarding reauthorization to us DOT and the Nevada 

7 Bus operations test for the Double decker vehicle 

, 
', '), :, 

8 Continue construction program- Virginia Street, Pavement preservation 

9 Succession planning-continue 

10 Federal priorities, including Reauthorization, and Shared Federal Framework 

August 16, 2019 RTC Board Meeting Minutes D R A F T Page 15 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.2 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Brian Stewart, P .E. fJ:.~!lpAf d( Engineering Director 
Executive Director 

SUBJECT: RTC Engineering Activity Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Engineering Activity Report. 

BICYCLE AND PEDESTRIAN IMPROVEMENTS 

Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program 
The program is a multi-year effort to upgrade existing bus stops to comply with state and federal 
requirements, including the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The Professional Services 
Agreement (PSA) was awarded to CA Group, Inc. earlier this year and the design is proceeding on 
the first phase of the project. The construction of the first phase will begin later this year. A 
progress report presentation was provided at the August Board Meeting. 

Center Street Cycle Track Project 
Headway Transportation was determined to be the most highly qualified firm. Task 1 of the scope 
of services is for additional Traffic Analysis of the proposed alternative, which includes a two-way 
cycle track along Center Street from Cheney to 9th Street. After the results are presented, we will 
move forward with the other tasks of the original scope of work or as adjusted to better fit the 
purpose of this project. The PSA will be presented at the September Board Meeting for approval. 

Keystone A venue at California A venue 
The project was completed and opened to traffic before 
the first day of school. Wood Rodgers designed the 
project. Sierra Nevada Construction Company 
performed the construction that began on 
June 10, 2019. Warranties are in place and project 
close out continues. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Engineering Activity Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

Mill Street {I-580 to McCarran Boulevard) 
The scope of this project is to design and construct various complete street improvements along 
Mill Street from Terminal Way to McCarran Boulevard, as identified in the RTC Complete Streets 
Masterplan completed in July 2016, and the Mill/Terminal corridor study completed in March 
2013. The emphasis of this project is to assess and identify improvements for pedestrians, 
bicyclists, and transit riders as well as motorists. Deficiencies in pedestrian access related to 
Charter Schools and AACT High School in the area as well as a number of ADA deficient bus 
stops have been addressed. Preliminary design is complete and 90% plan comments have been 
received from the agencies. The Project will be split into three phases based on the estimated cost 
of construction. Phase 1 will be on the south side of Mill Street from Terminal to Rock Boulevard, 
Phase 2 will be on the south side of Mill Street from Rock to McCarran, and Phase 3 will include 
the north side of Mill Street from Terminal to McCarran. Right-of-Way impacts have been 
identified and the Right-of-Way process for Phase 1 is beginning. It is anticipated the three phases 
will be constructed consecutively over a 5-year timeframe. 

CAPACITY/CONGESTION RELIEF PROJECTS 

ITS Pilot Project, Design of Phase 2 ITS Connectivity 
This pilot project will connect traffic signal systems of the City of Reno, the City of Sparks, 
Washoe County, and NDOT through fiber optic communication lines. This project also includes 
design of Phase 2A and 2B, which will expand communication to outlying signal systems and 
install ITS devices to monitor and remotely adjust traffic signals to respond to special events, 
changing traffic conditions, provide information to drivers and traffic incidents. Construction of 
the Pilot Project is complete. The ITS Phase 2A Project is complete. Phase 2B has been awarded 
to PAR Electrical Contractors, Inc. with construction scheduled for fall 2019. 

Lemmon Drive Project 
The project includes widening Lemmon Drive from US 395 to Military Road from four lanes to 
six lanes and widening Lemmon Drive from Fleetwood Drive to Chickadee Drive from two lanes 
to four lanes. Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. was selected as the most highly qualified consultant 
to provide preliminary engineering for the project. A Professional Services Agreement (PSA) is 
under consideration for R TC Board approval. 

North Valleys Improvements 
Package 3 will include installation of a new traffic signal at the Lemmon Drive/North Virginia 
Street intersection. Bids opened on May 9, 2019, with Sierra Nevada Construction awarded the 
contract. Underground work completed with signal equipment scheduled to arrive mid November 
2019. 

Package 3B is currently at 90% design. Package 3B includes adding capacity to the right tum lane 
at North Virginia Street/Business 395. This project also includes improvements to two bus stop 
pads located within the project area, and associated access and drainage improvements. 
Construction of this package is tentatively scheduled for late summer of 2019. 



Engineering Activity Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 3 

Pyramid and McCanan Intersection lmpro ement 
This mulli - The project is complete. RTC staff and usc p,1ll1 is dcdic:tled 

to I he me1nory of consultants continue to work through final 
Nevada Stale Senator Debbie Smith wananty items with the contractor and the City of 

in recognition o{ h(,.·1· f\•,u.fl!rship and dedication Sparks. NDOT has provided relief of maintenance 
to ouc· community ,ind st.1tc. l-ll.'r commitment 

,u1d advol·;1cy lo imp rove the qu,,Iity of to Granite and taken over maintenance 
life l<u· lhl.' 1·~sid1.•11ts oJ the City of Spa,ks responsibilities. The irrigation issues have been c.:onlrihulL·d to lhL' dvvelopment and (_.un1pletio11 
o( H1L' in1pro\·t·111l.'nl"s .,t the Pyra.1nid \Vc1y resolved and the Plant Establishment period ended 

.ind '\·ld .11 ;, 111 Boulev,1rd inl~r:-.l~dion. 

on July 31 , 2019. Final project closeout activities 
are underway. A dedication plaque to Senator Debbie Smith as a champion of the project including 
the multi-use path will be installed in the next few months. 

Traffi c ignal Coordination 5 Project 
Following a three year cycle schedule, the project includes review and timing optimization of 
approximately one-third ( 1/3) of the signals in the region per year. For 2018, 92 intersections were 
re-timed. For 2019, nine corridors, roughly 23 0 intersections will have new timing implemented. 
Timing plans are developed in coordination with RTC/UNR. In the process, re-evaluation of the 
clearance intervals and pedestrian crossing times are calculated at each intersection to make sure it 
is up to current standards. 

Process for signal retiming 
1. Collect traffic & signal data 
2. Input timings into model and evaluate existing signal timing & develop new timing. 
3. Implement timing in the field 
4. Fine-tune timing 
5. Conduct before-after studies 

Completed Corridors (244 signals as of August 2019) 
1. Wells A venue - (Ryland Street to E. 9th Street) 
2. Vista Boulevard- (Eastbound 1-80 Off/On Ramps to S. Los Altos Parkway) 
3. Sparks Boulevard - (Eastbound I-80 Off/On Ramps to Los Altos Parkway) 
4. N. McCarran Boulevard/Clear Acre Lane - (Sutro Street to Sullivan/N. McCarran 

Boulevard to Scottsdale) 
5. Pyramid Highway (Disc Dr. to Lazy 5) 
6. Kietzke Ln/Mill Street - (Peckham Lane to Glendale A venue/Kietzke Lane to 

Terminal Way) 
7. W. McCarran Boulevard/Mae Anne - (Plumb Lane to W. 7th Street/W. McCarran to 

Sierra Highlands) 
8. S. McCarran/Kietzke Lane/Virginia Street 

a. On McCarran Blvd - Greensboro Drive to Mill Street 
b. On Virginia St. - Kietzke Ln to S. McCarran Blvd 
c. On Kietzke Ln. - S. Virginia St. to Sierra Rose Dr. 
d. On Longley Ln - Peckham Ln to S. McCarran Blvd. 

9. Pyramid Way 
a. I-80 to Sparks Blvd including two intersections of McCarran Boulevard at 

Rock Boulevard & 4th Street 



Engineering Activity Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 4 

10. Downtown Reno (45 signals) 
11. Keystone Ave (6 Signals)- W. 7th St. to W. 1st St. 
12. Damonte Ranch (7 signals) - Zolezzi Ln to Double R Blvd, and Double R Blvd at 

Double Diamond 
13. Rock Blvd (9 signals)- Greg St to Prater Way 
14. Sun Valley Blvd (6 Signals)- Dandini to 7th Ave 
15. Sparks Isolated Intersections (33 Signals)- Various Signals 
16. Prater Way- Galletti Way to 15th St (6 Signals) 
17. Damonte Ranch/Steamboat - ( 4 Signals) 
18. South Meadows Pkwy (5 signals) - Virginia St to Double R - New Timing 

Implementation Mid-June 
19. California/Keystone (3 signals)- California Ave-Keystone Ave to Booth St, including 

Booth St/Foster St. 

Progress as of Mid-June 2019 
• Sutro St (9 Signals) - New Timing implementation/fine-tune mid-August (Now 

September) 
• S. Virginia St (19 Signals)- New Timing under review- Implement September 
• E. McCarran Blvd (12 Signals)-New Timing under development 

Traffic Engineering (TE) Spot 8 - Package 1 Project 
The project is currently advertised with the bid opening scheduled for September 12, 2019. 
Construction will begin in fall 2019. 

The scope of this project includes: 

Flashing Yellow Arrow - .. ast/West 
Keystone A venue at 7th Street 
East Lincoln Way at Marina Gateway Drive 
Mill Street at Kirman Avenue 

Flashing Yellow AtTOW - 01th/South 
McCarran Boulevard at Neil Road 

Battery Back-Up Systems 
Mae Anne A venue at Coit Plaza 
Oddie Boulevard at 1-80 Ramps (both sides) 
Wells Avenue at 1-80 Ramps (both sides) 
Wells A venue at 6th Street 

Traffic Signal 
Evans A venue at Enterprise Road 



Engineering Activity Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 5 

Traffic Engineering (TE) Spot 8 - Package 2 Project 
The project includes a new traffic signal at the intersection of Red Rock Road and Silver Lake 
Road and capacity improvements at the North McCarran Boulevard and U.S. 395 Interchange. 
The project opened bids on June 5, 2019, and Titan Electric is the apparent low bidder. A pre
construction meeting was held on July 24, 20 I 9. Construction is anticipated to start in early fall 
2019. 

Traffic ngineering (TE) pot 9 - Package l Project 
The project includes: 

• Traffic signal at the intersection of Sharlands A venue and Mae Anne A venue; 
• Battery backup systems for signalized intersections on Sun Valley Drive from Scottsdale 

Road to 7th Street; 
• Minor striping improvements to improve traffic flow at Pyramid Way at York Way; and 
• Traffic study with potential improvement to southbound right tum lane at the intersection of 

Vista Boulevard and Baring Boulevard. 
Design scheduled for fall/winter 2019 with construction in late spring 2020. 

Traffic Engineering (TE) Spot 9 - Package 2 Project 
The project includes various traffic updates throughout the Reno/Incline area: 

• Traffic signal cabinet and camera upgrades at various intersections in the Reno area; 
• New traffic signal at the intersection of Rock Boulevard/Edison Way; and a 
• 4th Street/Mesa/Woodland intersection study for future improvements. 

Kimley-Horn & Associates is the design consultants for this project. 

CORRIDOR IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 

Arlington Bridges at Truckee River 
The crossing of the Truckee River at Arlington A venue has served the community of Reno and 
provided access to Wingfield Park for nearly a century. The bridges are showing signs of wear 
resulting from the variety of modifications over the years, their age, and the repeated exposure to 
flood events. 

A feasibility and alternatives analysis has been initiated to determine options for the rehabilitation 
or replacement of the two Arlington Avenue Bridges to ensure continued public safety, to meet the 
needs of the community, and to provide the necessary flood conveyance for the Truckee River. 
This feasibility study will analyze the pedestrian access to the park and river, identify design and 
environmental constraints including traffic and flooding, and develop specific bridge concepts and 
aesthetic themes. To assist with the development and review of alternatives and concepts, the RTC 
will be conducting agency, stakeholder, and public outreach through one-on-one and at community 
public meetings. 

Public outreach activities continue in preparation for our first Public Meeting, tentatively 
scheduled for November 2019. A presentation was given to the RTC Board on May 20, 2019. We 
are scheduled to present our process and approach to the City of Reno Council at the October 
meeting. 



Engineering Activity Report 
R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 6 

Oddie Boulevard/Wells Avenue Improvement Project 
Thirty percent (30%) design plan comments from the c1t1es of Reno and Sparks have been 
received. Engineering continues on the sixty percent (60%) design concept. At the 
August 26, 2019, City of Reno Council Meeting, Reno Council supported staff recommendations 
regarding raised cycle track, the multi-use path, landscaping concepts, lighting, fencing and 
removal of the existing pedestrian bridge. RTC will continue to meet with Reno and Sparks staff 
to coordinate schedules and provide review of plans. 

Pyramid Highway and US 395 Connection 
The RTC and NDOT are finalizing an agreement for design of Phase 1 of the project that includes 
capacity and multimodal improvements on Pyramid from Queen Way to Golden View Drive. The 
agreement will be submitted to the RTC Board for approval. The RTC, with support from NDOT, 
completed and submitted a BUILD Grant application to the Department of Transportation seeking 
up to $25 million for construction of Phase 1. Design and construction of the overall project is 
phased over approximately 20 years. The current estimated cost of the overall project is $800 
million and will relieve congestion on the Pyramid Highway, McCarran Boulevard and other 
regional roads and provide connectivity between the North Valleys, Sun Valley and Spanish 
Springs. 

Sun Valley Boulevard Conidor Improvement Project 
Thirty percent (30%) design for the Washoe County section between 7th Avenue and Highland 
Ranch Parkway was submitted at the end of June 2019. Inadequate drainage systems to handle 
existing storm water flow is presenting project challenges along the NDOT portion of this project 
between El Rancho and 7th A venue. Discussion for a possible partnership with NDOT and 
Washoe County is occurring in order to address existing the drainage issues and the project design. 
Maintenance of the proposed new facilities may also present challenges to Washoe County, 
NDOT, and Sun Valley General Improvement District (GID). 

Truckee River Shared Use Path Project 
The proposed pathway will start at John Champion Memorial Park and continue along the south 
side of the Truckee River. The existing pathway in this segment of the river currently crosses to 
the north side of the river at the park as it continues eastward. The proposed pathway will be about 
2,400 lineal feet in length, continuing below Interstate 580 (I-580) to meet up with the existing 
pathway located near the Walmart east of I-580. This project was included in the fiscal year (FY) 
2017 Program of Projects. The design portion of this project is funded through federal funds and 
includes oversight by NDOT through a Local Public Agency (LPA) agreement. 

Thirty percent design plans have been reviewed and work continues on the environmental 
documentation that is required for the project including a 408 permit that is required. 

Virginia Street RAPID Extension 
A detailed monthly progress report will be given on this project in September. Additional 
information can be viewed at: http://virginiastreetproject.com/ 

http:http://virginiastreetproject.com


Engineering Activity Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 7 

PAVEMENT PRESERVATION PROJECTS 

2018 and 2019 Preventive Maintenance {Various Locations) 
The 2018 Preventive Maintenance Program was suspended last fall and many downtown street 
were pushed to this season due to conflicts with the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit project. 
Construction has resumed and the 2018 program is nearly complete. Sierra Nevada Construction 
Company was awarded the 2019 project. Between the two projects, approximately 300 lane miles 
of roads will be mircosurfaced including major roadways such as Vista, Veterans, South Parkway 
and Eagle Canyon. The Plumb Lane road diet from Arlington to Ferris will be completed in mid
September. All microsurfacing work will be complete by the end of September, but crack sealing 
activities will continue into October. 

Golden Valley Road Rehab Project 
The project includes rehabilitation/reconstruction of Golden Valley Road from Yorkshire Drive to 
North Virginia Street. A Professional Services Agreement was awarded to Lumos & Associates 
on August 16, 2019, and design is under way. Construction is scheduled for next summer. 

Greg Street Rehab Project 
The project includes corrective maintenance of Greg Street from McCarran Boulevard to the 
Union Pacific Railroad Tracks. Wood Rodgers is the consultant for Design and Engineering 
During Construction. Final Design is anticipated to be complete by spring 2020. Construction is 
scheduled for early June 2020 with a scheduled completion in mid-August 2020. 

Lakeside Drive Rehab Project 
The project includes rehabilitation/reconstruction of Lakeside Drive from Evans Creek to 
McCarran Boulevard. Eastern Sierra Engineering is the consultant for Design and Engineering 
During Construction. Construction is scheduled for early June 2020 with a scheduled completion 
in mid-August 2020. 

Prater Way Rehab Project 
The project includes rehabilitation/reconstruction of Prater Way from Howard Drive to Sparks 
Boulevard. Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. is the consultant for design and engineering during 
construction. Construction is scheduled to start in March 2020 with a scheduled completion of 
August 2020. Preliminary design is underway and initial fieldwork is almost complete. 

Reno Consolidated 19-01- Sutro Street 1st treet. Lake Street. and State Street Project 
The project includes rehabilitation/reconstruction of the following street segments: Sutro Street 
from Commercial Row to 4th Street and from McCarran Boulevard to 1,400' north, pt Street from 
Center to Lake, Lake Street Truckee River Bridge, and State Street from Virginia to Sinclair 
Street. Bid were opened for this project on July 19, 2019. Sierra Nevada Construction (SNC) is 
doing a great job on this project. Lake Street and 1st Street construction will be complete by the 
end of September. SNC is scheduled to start work on the northern section of Sutro in the next 
couple of weeks. 



Engineering Activity Report 
R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 8 

Reno Consolidated 19-02 - North Hills Boulevard and Hunter Lake Drive Project 
Construction started on August 5, 2019 and will be complete by the end of October 2019. Q&D 
Construction was awarded the construction contract on July 10, 2019. Staff has been meeting with 
business owners and communicating the traffic control plans to the traveling public. Upon 
completion, North Hill Boulevard will be entirely reconstructed and new sidewalks will be in place 
on both sides of the road. 

Reno Consolidated 19-03 - Sierra Highlands Drive. Colbe1t Drive. HammiH Lane. Ralston Street. 
and Ohm Place Project 
The Professional Services Agreement for design and engineering during construction was awarded 
to Eastern Sierra Engineering (ESE). The project includes rehabilitation/reconstruction of the 
following street segments: Sierra Highlands Drive from the NDOT right-of-way on McCarran 
Boulevard to Idlebury Way; Colbert Drive from Longley Lane to 300 feet northwest of Longley 
Lane; Hammill Lane from Kietzke Lane to the eastern terminus; Ralston Street from University 
Terrance to Eleventh Street; and Ohm Place from Mill Street to 500 feet south. The project 
advertised on June 6, 2019, and bids opened June 27, 2019. Sierra Nevada Construction was 
awarded the construction contract on June 28, 2019. Construction started August 5, 2019. Ralston 
Street construction is scheduled to be complete by the first of October. Construction is continuing 
on Ohm Place. Sierra Highland is scheduled to start construction at the end of September/early 
October. Hammill Lane and Colbert Drive are scheduled to start in October 2019. 

Reno Consolidated 20-01 - Mavberry Drive. California A venue. and First Street 
The project includes rehabilitation/reconstruction of the following street segments: Mayberry 
Drive from Memory Lane to California A venue, California A venue from Westfield A venue to 
Booth Street, and First Street from Arlington A venue to Virginia Street. A Professional Services 
Agreement with Nichols Consulting Engineers, CHTD to provide design services and engineering 
during construction will be presented to the Board this month for consideration of award. 

Sparks Consolidated 19-01 - 15th Street. Franklin Way. Hulda Court. and El Rancho Sidewalk 
Project 
The project includes rehabilitation/reconstruction of the following street segments: 15th Street from 
C Street to Prater Way, Franklin Way from the Rail Road crossing to East Greg Street, Hulda 
Court, and sidewalk improvements on El Rancho Drive from G Street to Oddie Boulevard. 
Construction began on July 10, 2019, and will continue through October 2019. Spanish Springs 
Construction is on-schedule to have this project complete by October. Major items of work on El 

15th Rancho Drive has been completed and work on Street will be complete by the end of 
September. Once 15th Street is complete, Spanish Springs will begin roadway removal on Franklin 
Way. New Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFBs) for the Elementary/El Rancho Drive 
intersection have been ordered and are anticipated to arrive in December when they will be 
installed as one of the final items of work. 



Engineering Activity Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 9 

REPORT ON NEGOTIATED SETTLEMENT AGREEMENTS FOR THE ACQUISITION 
OF PROPERTY 

Project Property Owner Purchase 
Amount 

Amount 
Over 

Appraisal 
Virginia Street BRT Extension Jeffrey Anakatumpunya $4,880.00 $0 

CONTRACTS UNDER $50,000 

None 

ENGINEERING ON-CALL WORK ASSIGNMENTS 

Attachment A summarizes the work assignments on the engineering pre-qualified on-call lists. 
Engineering Department consultant assignments are reported after Board approval of the 
professional services agreement with each firm. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

On Call Consultant Summary 

Civil Engineering Design and Construction Management Services 
BOARD APPROVAL DATE FIRM PROJECT NAME AMOUNT 

7/19/2019 Wood Rodgers, Inc. Greg Street Rehab Project $405,308 

7/19/2019 Stantec Consulting, Inc. Prater Way Rehab Project $757,823 

8/16/2019 Lumos & Associates, Inc. Golden Valley Road Rehab Project $266,685 

8/16/2019 Eastern Sierra Engineering, P.C. Lakeside Drive Rehab Project $561,260 

9/20/2019 Nichols Consulting Engineers Reno Consolidated 20-01 Project $913,830 

Traffic Engineering Services 
BOARD APPROVAL DATE FIRM PROJECT NAME AMOUNT 

9/20/2019 Westwood Traffic Engineering (TE) Spot 9 - Package 1 $246,947 

1 



ATTACHMENT A 
Engineering Design and Construction Management Services 

List valid through June 20, 2022 

Atkins North America, Inc. 
CA Group, Inc. 
Eastern Sierra Engineering, PC 
Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. 
Lumos and Associates, Inc. 
Nichols Consulting Engineers, CHTD 
Stantec Consulting Services, Inc. 
Wood Rodgers, Inc. 

Traffic Engineering Services - Categories 
List valid through April 19, 2022 

Traffic Eneineerine; I.T.S. 
CA Group, Inc. Atkins North America, Inc. 
Headway Transportation, LLC Headway Transportation, LLC 
Kimley-Hom & Associates, Inc. Kimley-Hom & Associates, Inc. 
Westwood dba. Slater Hanifan Group, Inc. 
Stantec, Inc. 

2 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.3 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Mark Maloney 
Director of Public Transportation and 
Operations Executive Director 

SUBJECT: RTC Public Transportation and Operations Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Public Transportation and Operations Report. 

HIGHLIGHTS 

BUS #109 Rides Again during the Hot August 
Night's Parade on Sunday, August 11. Staff from 
Keolis participated in the 33rd annual HAN parade on 
Virginia Street. Keolis reported that Bus 109 was 
enjoyed by all. 

Proterra Hosts Ice Cream Social - Proterra CEO 
Ryan Popple and Mike Finnern VP for Customer 
Service along with other Proterra staff visited Reno 
on August 23, 2019. Their visit to Reno reaffirms 
their commitment to RTC. Staff had the opportunity 
to discuss maintenance challenges and successes 
over the last few months. Proterra staff met with 
key RTC leadership, and Keolis' new maintenance 
team. 

Proterra sponsored an ice cream truck outside of 4th 
Street Station for a driver appreciation event! 
Pictured right to left are Ramon Barroso Field Services Technician, Lee Wixom Regional Sales 
Director, David Carr RTC Facilities and Fleet Manager, Ryan Popple CEO, Mike Finnern VP for 
Customer Service, Patrick Richter Field Services Regional Manager. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


RTC Public Transportation/Operations Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

Don't Drive Arrive - to the 315t Annual Rib Cook Off - RTC 
provided free shuttle service from Sparks Christian Fellowship in 
Sparks, and from the Reno Sparks Livestock Events Center in Reno to 
the event held Wednesday, August 28 through Monday, September 2. 
The shuttle service was provided through a partnership with the Nugget 
Casino Resort, All West Coachlines and the RTC. 

UNR Wolf Pack Game 
Transit Route 
001 1 I 0,1 .,,c Arrive to 

UN R Wol l Pack Gi! l ll('!", 1 

Don't Drive Arrive - to UNR Wolf Pack Home Games - Football fans Avoid lh& haHle of 
panting and take 

RTC's UNR-Midlown can support the Wolf Pack by using the UNR-Midtown Direct to Mackay 
Direct Service to 
Mackay Stadium Stadium. The UNR Wolf Pack Game Transit Route has convenient stops 
$chrc1ulecl Ho1111"J in downtown and Midtown Reno to take football fans to the University ... ,. G.imes 

,,.Jlui,d.,. ""91'1 °1:lO PM 
.. w.. s t1a.s.pu . t :OOJ1N 
,..1ww1,11 &lplJl • TISD ofNevada, Reno (UNR). Parking is limited in and around campus making .,....,.....,S\ onn.,oopy 

the UNR-Midtown Direct transit service a great and affordable way to 
avoid parking hassles. This service is being provided for all scheduled 
home games from August 30 through November 30. 

Q I 

.. NiPwMUICO ,-,._1 - TBD 
YI Uf,LV No\1. )0 .1¥0(»,' 

Yal'IIIO'lll'll'-tomflNnlllla 
allduhldu .. Wlkimlllkln 

- 1t.-01M1arc11..,.,... . ,..,. 

II 

Don't Drive Arrive - to the 56th Annual Reno Air Races 
- RTC provided free rides on RIDE Route 7 to the Reno Air ~ .. STl Races Takeoff Celebration on Saturday, September 7, 2019. 

NATIONAL Air Races fans were also able to ride free on Route 7 on 
CHAMPIONSHIP Wednesday, September 11 to the event. Regular service was 

provided on September 12 through September 15 by AIR RACES. detouring Route 7 from its scheduled route to drop off and AND AIR SHOW 
pick up Air Races fans at the event. 

Don't Drive, Arrive! is a partnership between the RTC, the City of Reno and the City of Sparks. 

RTC Microtransit Vans Being Prepped 
for Service - Two Access vans received a 
new look in anticipation of the new 
microtransit service six-month pilot ~· ...._~~ 
project, set to begin on November 2, 2019. 
FlexRIDE is an on-demand service using 
technology similar to that of services like 
Uber or Lyft to call for a ride. Passengers 
can request a ride by using their 
smartphone or tablet with an app, by 
calling a dispatcher, or by using a 
computer to access a website. The call can 
occur within 30 minutes of their desired 
travel time and passengers can expect their 
ride to arrive within 8 to 15 minutes. Passengers traveling within the FlexRIDE service area in Sparks 

http:st1a.s.pu


RTC Public Transportation/Operations Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 3 

will have curb-to-curb service and can expect shorter ride times than when taking RTC RIDE. People 
looking to travel outside of the service area can transfer to RTC RIDE or RTC ACCESS services at 
Iron Horse Shopping Center or at RTC CENTENNIAL PLAZA. FlexRIDE will serve the areas 
currently served by Routes 25 and 26, as well as some nearby areas in the north and east downtown 
Sparks. The fare will be the same as the standard RTC RIDE fares. 

Senior Fest 2019 - RTC staffed a booth at the 
Annual Senior Fest event on September 3rd at 
the Reno Town Mall. This event gives seniors 
an opportunity to connect with senior service 
providers and businesses. Participants toured 
one of RTC's new FlexRIDE (microtransit 
buses featured above) and were encouraged to 
sign-up for free mobility training with the RTC. 
At the event, staff interacted with members of 
the public, providing answers to questions and 
information about RTC's transit system. Staff 
also gave out information on the new R TC 
ACCESS Mobile App to all RTC ACCESS 
eligible clients who visited the booth. 

Councilwoman Neoma Jardon also attended the event. 

TRANSIT DEMAND MANAGEMENT (TDM) UPDATE -

• Vanpools remained at 181 with over 100 
of those serving the Tahoe Reno 
Industrial Center (TRIC). 

• Staff spent multiple days onsite at UNR 
and TMCC passing out fliers to promote 
the new ED-Pass and the UNR-Midtown 
Direct route. 

• Staff hosted an event at UNR during 
student orientation with a bus running the 
new UNR - Midtown Direct route. 

• Staff had a pop up event at Idlewild Park 
on Food Truck Friday to receive 
information on the University area study, and handed out flyers for the ED pass and new 
UNR-Midtown Direct route. 



700 • 

600 

500 l 
400 ,;,-

300 j 
200 

100 

0 � 
July '18 

TART 

July '19 
1 

Aug '17 - Aug '18 · 
July 18 July '19 

RTC Public Transportation/Operations Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 4 

JULY 2019 TRANSIT PERFORMANCE 

RTCRIDE 
TM to TM Rides Per RVH On-Time Performance 

Ridership 
TM to TM Weighted Avg. Daily 

,,~c 24 T 20.0 20.1 20.0. 
~ 20 
0 

~ 16 -

12 J., 
8 J/ 

10 
5 J 4 ~/ 0 -4! ___________ ....:., o .... 1 ' ___________ _, 

70% ~----,----,-----,------'I Jul 2018 Jul 2019 Aug 2017 Aug 2018 
Jul 2018 Jul 2019 Aug 2017 - Al.II 2018 -Jul 2018 Jul 2019 Aug 2017 Aug 2018 - Jul 2018 - Jul 2019 

Jul 2018 Jul 2019 -Jul 2018 -Jul 2019 

85% 

80% 

75% 

RTC ACCESS 

Wei1hted AV&, Dally Ridership 

Weighted Avs, Daily Ridership 

160 r- 140.6 
127,9 

140 1---
120 _ .. -· 

100 J,,-
80 r 
60 (-

40 y ' 

2: i2 
I 

Jul 2018 Jul 2019 Aug 2017 - Aug 2018 -
Jul 2018 Jul 2019 

RTCVANPOOL 
Monthly Trips 

~ 40 r' 1 35 J_ .... - ,2,.9 -

_g 
~ 

30 
>-

25 r 
20 • 

1s l--
10 

5 j 

0 +''--~ 
Jul 2018 Jul 2019 Aug 2017 - Aug 2018 -

Jul 2018 Jul 2019 

Attachments 

On-Time Performance Passen1er per Revenue Vehicle Hour 

2.5 i 
2.0 1 
1.5 1 
1.0 

0.5 

0.0 70% -+-------,---~--~ 
July '18 July '19 Aug '17- Aug '18 -

July 18 July '19 
July '18 July '19 Aug '17 - Aug '18-

July 18 July '19 

95% 

90% 

85% 

80% 

75% 

Ridas par RVH 

14.4 16 1· . 
12 

8 I 
I 

4 1' 
0-1'-1-~----

Jul 2018 Jul 2019 Aug 2017 Aug 2018 
• Jul 2018 - Jul 2019 

Number of Vans 

200 - 181 
180 +- -

147 
150 T 
140 
120 1: . / 

60 , 

40 t 
20 .. , 

o ~✓-----------------
Jul 2018 Jul 2019 



RTC Transit Performance Statistics 1 

Performance Indicator 

Current month compared with same 
month last year 

Current 12-months compared with 
previous year 

Jul2019 
Percent 
Chane:e 

Jul2018 
Aug2018-

Jul2019 
Percent 
Ch.anee 

Aug 2017 -
Jul2018 

Monthly Ridership 726,376 19.3% 608,624 7,939.120 7.3% 7,397,537 

Monthly Ridership (TM to TM)** 623,982 2.5% 608,624 7,023,982 -5.0% 7,397,537 

Weighted Avg. Daily Ridership 23,358 17.0% 19,972 20,182 -1.3% 20,438 

Weighted Avg. Daily Ridership (TM to TM) 20,066 0.5% 19,972 19,259 -3.6% 19,972 

Revenue Vehicle Hours (RVH) 22,832 12.0% 20,387 256,532 3.7% 247,282 

Rides Per RVH 31.8 6.6% 29.9 30.9 3.5% 29.9 

Rides per RVH (TM to TM) 27.3 -8.5% 29.9 27.4 -8.5% 29.9 

Revenue Vehicle Miles (RVM) 250,374 7.1% 233,668 2,830,774 0,2% 2,823,739 

Complaints Per 25,000 Rides 4.37 -3 .3% 4 52 3.76 -12.7% 4.31 

Accidents per 100,000 Miles NIA* 2.57 NIA* 2 69 

On-Time Performance2 92.6% 2.8% 90. 1% 89.9% -0.3% 90,2% 

Performance Indicator Jun 2019 
Percent 
Chanee 

Jun 2018 
Jul 2018 - Jun 

2019 
Percent 
Chanee 

Jul 2017 - Jun 
2018 

Revenue $467,824 -20,2% $586,301 $5, 108,072 -9. 1% $5,618,634 

Farebox Recovery Ratio 16.9% -35.3% 26.2% 18. 1% -17.6% 22.0% 

Subsidy per Ride $3.43 28. 1% $2.68 $2.99 10.8% $2.70 

1 RTC Transit includes RTC RIDE, RTC RAPID, RTC REGIONAL CONNECTOR and SIERRA SPIRIT 

' Percent of trips zero min early and five minutes or less late 

* - Data not available 
•• - May 2019, the RTC started using a new passenger counting system. Previously, TransitMaster (TM) was used . 



RTC ACCESS Performance Statistics 

Performance Indicator 

Current month compared with 
same month last year 

Current 12-months compared with 
previous year 

July '19 
Percent 
Change 

July '18 
Aug '18-
July '19 

Percent 
Change 

Aug '17-
July 18 

Monthly Ridership 19,435 -8.7% 21,285 225,063 -11.2% 253,330 

Weighted Avg. Daily Ridership 604 -8.9% 663 607 -4.6% 636 

Revenue Vehicle Hours 8,355 -5.4% 8,828 101,817 4.8% 97,145 

Passenger per Revenue Vehicle Hour (does 
not include taxi data) 2.33 3.2% 2.26 2.13 -9.1% 2.34 

Revenue Vehicle Miles (RVM) 146,123 6.0% 137,813 1,689,152 8.3% 1,559,974 

Complaints per 1,000 Rides 0.57 -39.8% 0.94 0.57 -21.7% 0.73 

ADA Capacity Denials 0 0.0% 0 0 0.0% 0 

Other Denials 0 0.0% 0 I -96.8% 31 

Accidents per 100,000 Miles 0.68 0.0% 0.00 0.69 32.7% 0.52 

On-Time Performance 
(does not include taxi data) 89.6% -1 .6% 91.1% 92.9% 0.2% 92.8% 

Taxi On-Time Performance 0.0% -100.0% 97.8% 43 .7% -54.2% 95 .4% 

Performance Indicator Mar '19 
Percent 
Change 

Mar'18 
July '18-
Mar '19 

Percent 
Change 

July '17 -
Mar'l8 

Revenue* $185,548 12.1% $165,465 $1 ,578,574 7.2% $1 ,472,719 

Farebox Recovery Ratio* 24.23% 14.29% 21.20% 24.61% 13.57% 21.67% 

Subsidy per Passenger• $20.34 1.0% $20.13 $19.22 -6.4% $20.53 

*March 2019 data is the latest available. 



TART Performance Statistics 

Performance Indicator 

Current month compared with same 
month last year 

Current 12-months compared with 
previous year 

Jul2018 
Percent 
Change 

Jul2018 
Aug 2018-
Jul2019 

Percent 
Chan,:te 

Aug 2017 -
Jul2018 

Monthly Ridership 3,834 -12.2% 4,368 46,373 12.4% 41,267 

Weighted Avg. Daily Ridership 127.9 -9. 1% 140.6 129.1 13.9% 113.3 

Revenue Vehicle Hours (RVH) 377 24.7% 303 4,416 3.9% 4,248 

Rides per RVH 10.2 -29.6% 14.4 10.5 8.1% 9.7 

Revenue Vehicle Miles (RVM) 8,224 24.7% 6,595 94,603 2.1% 92,628 

Revenue $4,505 -12.7% $5,161 $47,743 -0.5% $47,962 

Farebox Recovery Ratio 9.7% -31.7% 14.3% 9.0% -7.9% 9.8% 

Subsidy per Ride $10.89 53.3% $7.10 $10.38 -3.0% $10.71 



RTC Transit 
Fiscal Year Comparisons 

800 

ci,700 
-0 
C: 

rn soo 
:::, 
0 
§_500 
CL 
:i: 400 
CJ) 

ffi 300 
0 

ii:: 200 

100 

o 

Ridership 

!, ___ - -------.... ~ .... 
-~ '= <:::;:----

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

--- FY 16 

--FY17 

- FY18 

- FY19 

-- FY19TM 

- FY20 

-••FY20TM 

Productivity 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

40 
3 
0 

35 I 
Q) 

u 
:c 30 
~ 
Q) 25 
:::, 
C: 
Q) 20 > 
Q) 

0:: 
Q) 15 
C. 

~ 10 
Q) 
Cl 
C: 

5 Q) ,,, ,,, 
<tJ o CL 

--- FY 16 

--FY17 

- FY18 

- FY19 

---FY19TM 

- FY20 

-e- FY20TM 

•--·---0 

---- ...... ---------- .... 
~ ... ~ 

-.............. -----... 

Service Hours 

25 

5 

0 

• ii 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

--- FY 16 

--FY17 

- FY18 

- FY19 

- FY20 



RTC ACCESS 
Fiscal Year Comparisons 

ti, 
"O 
C: 
Cll 

::, "' 
0 

E 
9: 
I 
Cf) 
0:: 
UJ 
0 
ii: 

Ridership 

25 

20 --- FY 16 

--FY17 

--FY18 

- FY19 

15 

- FY20 10 

5 

0 

3.0 
5 
0 
I 

2.5 Q) 

13 
:c 
~ 2.0 
Q) 
:::, 
C: 
Q) 1.5 
~ 
0:: 

ai 
C. 1.0 
~ 
Q) 
C, 0.5 C: 
Q) 

"' "' 8!_ 0.0 

12.0 

10.0 
ti, 
"O 

ffi 8.0 
:::, 
0 
"' 
§. 6.0 
I 

6: 4.0 

2.0 

0.0 

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN 

Productivity 

- -- - ~ "" '- -=====~ - --m •c---~ ---------~ ~ ------------...... 

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN 

--- FY 16 

--FY17 

- FY18 

- FY19 

- FY20 

Service Hours 

--- FY 16 

--FY17 

--FY18 

- FY19 

- FY20 

JUL AUG SEP OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN 



TART - Nevada 
Fiscal Year Comparisons 

Ridership 

7 en .., 
C: 
:,: 6 
:, 
0 

--- FY 16 i= 5 
--FY17 

E 4 
C. 

- FY18 ~ 
Q) 
-0 3 - FY19 
~ 

- FY20 
2 

0 
Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

20 .... 
:, 
0 18 I 
Q) 16 ti 
E 

14 ~ 
Q) 
:, 12 
C 
Q) 10 > 
Q) 

(l:'. 8 
iii 
C. 6 
Q) 

""C 4 
"' 
~ 

2 

0 

Productivity 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

--- FY 16 

--FY17 

- FY18 

- FY19 

- FY20 

450 

400 
(/) 

~ 350 
0 
I 300 
UJ 

d 250 

~ 200 
> 
~ 150 

ct:i 100 
Gj 
D:'. 50 

0 

Service Hours 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

----· FY 16 

- FY17 

- FY18 

- FY19 

- FY20 



J ........._ REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction l;j(el 
Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

~ 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.4 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Amy Cummings, AICP/LEED AP 
Director of Planning/Deputy for Lee G. Gibson, AICP 
Executive Director Executive Director 

SUBJECT: RTC Planning Department Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Planning Activity Report. 

PLANNING STUDIES 

Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Proiect 
Staff continue to support community outreach efforts and provide technical support for the Small 
Starts process for this project. The Virginia Street project team continues extensive outreach 
activities with Midtown businesses and other stakeholders, identified under community outreach 
activities. 

South Meadows Multimodal Transportation Studv 
The South Meadows Multimodal Transportation Study started in December 2018 and is moving 
forward. The first public meeting for the project was held on March 26th at Damonte Ranch High 
School and a project Technical Advisory Committee meeting was held on June 3rd to review public 
comments to date. Project progress will be updated on the RTC website under Metropolitan 
Planning, Corridor Studies. This multimodal study of the South Meadows area will identify needs 
and transportation improvements for regional roads in the study area. The study will focus on 
traffic operations, safety, pedestrian and bicycle connectivity, and transit service needs. 

University Area Multimodal Transportation Study 
The University Area Multimodal Transportation Study started after the approval of the 
Professional Services Agreement with Kimley-Hom on March 19. This study will take into 
account the current and future development plans slated to occur on or near the university campus 
in the coming years and will identify needed connectivity, safety, and access improvements for 
vehicle and alternative transportation modes on regional roads. In addition, it will include an in
depth analysis of land use and roadway network scenarios in the UNR Gateway District. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Monthly Planning Activity Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

The project team met with staff from the University of Nevada Reno and City of Reno to discuss 
project details. The project Technical Advisory Committee had a kick-off meeting on April 24th

• 

The project team conducted Walking Audits in the study area to evaluate pedestrian walking 
environment and connectivity on May 2nd and 3rd • Pop-up meetings were held in front of the Joe 
Crowley Student Union building and in ldlewild Park for the Food Truck Friday Event to engage 
the community to provide their comments and concerns. The first public meeting was held on June 
27th at Evelyn Mount North Northwest Community Center. An online public input survey was 
open until July 22nd to collect comments and concerns regarding transportation in the university 
area. 

ADA Transition Plan Update 
The ADA Transition Plan internal draft has been completed and the RTC stakeholder team is in 
the process of reviewing and commenting on the draft report. Staff will be asking these different 
stakeholders to provide input and comment on the draft plan prior to it being finalized. 
Stakeholder meetings continue to take place on a monthly basis to update internal project 
stakeholders and provide input on the project. There will be a public open house on 
October 24, 2019, to share the final draft Plan with the public. This project is on schedule. 

Eagle Canyon Extension Alignment Alternatives and Planning and Environmental Linkages (PEL) 
Study 
The RTC Board approved of the Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Stantec Consulting 
Services, Inc., and a notice to proceed has been issued. Additional schedule updates will be 
provided in the October department report. 

Bicvcle and Pedestrian Planning 
The R TC is collaborating with other partner agencies on several initiatives to improve bicycle and 
pedestrian safety & facilities: 

• Bicycle and Pedestrian Count Program - The May counts for the 40 locations have been 
conducted. 

• The RTC continues to partner with the Truckee Meadows Bicycle Alliance (TMBA). 

Vision Zero 
• The Board of Health was given a presentation on August 22nd and they moved to support 

the goal of zero fatalities by 2030 and also adopted a Resolution to support Vision Zero's 
action plan and application to become a Vision Zero Community. 

• August 26, 2019, The City of Sparks adopted a Resolution to support the Vision Zero goal 
of Zero Fatalities by the year 2030 and to support the Action Plan. 

• Vision Zero Task Force will present at the 2019 State Safety Summit in October. 

MPO Certification Review 
Staff has been coordinating with representatives of the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) 
and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) in an effort to prepare for a pending Metropolitan 
Planning Organization (MPO) Certification Review on September 24th and 25th

• It is anticipated 
that the results of the certification review will be presented to the Board after the documentation 
has been finalized. 



Monthly Planning Activity Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 3 

Sustainabilitv Plann;ng 
RTC continues to advance initiatives outlined in the RTC Sustainability Plan through the Green 
Team comprised of agency staff, such as the Sustainable Purchasing Policy and the tracking of 
paper usage in an effort to achieve a ten percent reduction. R TC also participates in the City of 
Reno Sustainability & Climate Advisory Committee and continues to be an active member in the 
regional SPINN Committee. 

RTC Affordable Housing Study 
The project team has developed an inventory of potential candidate sites for affordable housing 
near transit routes and is conducting additional community outreach to gather input. A preliminary 
list of sites was presented to the RTC Technical Advisory Committee and Citizens Multimodal 
Advisory Committee, as well as the project stakeholder group. A summary of this information was 
presented at a public meeting held on September 12 at the McKinley Arts & Culture Center. RTC 
shared information about the study at the Mayor's Town Hall of Housing on September 4. 

Development Review 
RTC staff routinely review development proposals from the local jurisdictions of Washoe County 
and the Cities of Reno and Sparks. Staff from Planning, Engineering, and Public Transportation 
have reviewed and commented on the following number of development proposals from each of 
the jurisdictions since the August Board meeting: 

• Washoe County - 0 
• City of Reno - 2 
• City of Sparks - 0 

This does not include proposals that were reviewed on which staff did not have any comments. 

COMMUNITY AND MEDIA OUTREACH ACTIVITIES 

RTC staff conducted the following outreach activities from August 15 - September 25: 

August 15 Ferrari Lund Meeting - RTC Update 
August 15 Virginia Street Project Information Office Hours 
August 15 Northern Nevada Government Entities - Shared Federal Framework and 

Federal Priorities 
August 19 Berkshire Hathaway Meeting - R TC Update 
August 20 Virginia Street Project Information Office Hours 
August 20 Washoe County Senior Center Weekly Outreach Booth - Taxi Bucks 

and General Transportation Information 
August 21 Reno Planning Commission - RRIF Presentation and Approval 
August 22 Virginia Street Project Information Office Hours 
August 22 Washoe County Board of Health Meeting Vision Zero Outreach 
August 23 Food Truck Fridays Booth - Vision Zero Outreach, UNR Study 

Outreach 



Monthly Planning Activity Report 
R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 4 

August 26 

August 26 
August 27 
August 27 
August 27 
August 27 

August 27 
August 28 
August 29 
September 1-2 
September 3 
September 3 
September 4 

September 4 
September 4 

September 5 
September 5 
September 6-8 
September 7 
September 10 

September 10 
September 11 
September 11 

September 12-15 
September 12 
September 18 

September 19 
September 24 

September 25 

Sparks City Council Meeting - RRIF 2nd Reading, presentation, public 
hearing 
Sparks City Council Meeting - Vision Zero presentation 
Northern Nevada CCIM Chapter: Infrastructure Growing Pains Panel 
Dickson Realty Associates-RTC Update 
Virginia Street Project Information Office Hours 
Washoe County Senior Center Weekly Outreach Booth - Taxi Bucks and 
General Transportation Information 
North Valley's Developers' Summit-RTC Overview of Area Projects 
Harcourts Real Estate - R TC Update 
Virginia Street Project Information Office Hours 
Don't Drive, Arrive! Best in the West Nugget Rib Cook-Off 
Washoe County Planning Commission - RRIF Presentation and Approval 
Senior Fest - Transit, FlexRIDE, Vision Zero Outreach 
Washoe County Senior Center Weekly Outreach Booth -Taxi Bucks and 
General Transportation Information 
RE/MAX Realty Affiliates -RTC Update 
Reno Mayor's Town Hall on Housing-Affordable Housing and Vision Zero 
Booths 
RTC Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) Meeting 
RTC Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC) Meeting 
Don't Drive, Arrive! Great Reno Balloon Race - Event Park-and-ride Shuttle 
Don't Drive, Arrive! Reno Air Races Take-Off Event Free RIDEs on Route 7 
Washoe County Commission Meeting - RRIF 1st reading and numbering of 
ordinance 
Washoe County Commission Meeting - Vision Zero Outreach 
Don't Drive, Arrive! Reno Air Races Route 7 Free RIDE Opportunities 
Washoe County Senior Center Weekly Outreach Booth - Taxi Bucks and 
General Transportation Information 
Don't Drive, Arrive! Reno Air Races on Route 7 
Affordable Housing Study Community Meeting and Open House 
Washoe County Senior Center Weekly Outreach Booth Taxi Bucks and 
General Transportation Information 
Vision Zero Truckee Meadows Task Force Regional Meeting 
Washoe County Commission Meeting - RRIF 2nd reading, presentation, 
public hearing 
Washoe County Senior Center Weekly Outreach Booth - Taxi Bucks and 
General Transportation Information 

Media Relations & Social Media 
The R TC issued 13 news releases and participated in 14 media interviews on various topics, 
including the Virginia Street Project, lane and road closures on Vista Blvd. for pavement 
maintenance, RTC administrative offices closed and transit on a Sunday schedule for Labor Day, 
the Regional Transportation Improvement Program comment period, 1st Street and Lake Street 



Monthly Planning Activity Report 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 5 

closures for roadway reconstruction, transit opportunities for Nevada Wolf Pack home games, 
pedestrian fatalities up 100% in Washoe County, the new UNR-Midtown Direct transit route, 
Sparks roadways receiving pavement treatments, the reconstruction of State Street in Reno and 
more. 

Social media was used to promote staying safe on Labor Day weekend, career opportunities at the 
RTC, RTC administrative offices closed and transit on a Sunday schedule for Labor Day, the 

1st Regional Transportation Improvement Program comment period, Street and Lake Street 
closures for roadway reconstruction, transit opportunities for Nevada Wolf Pack home games, 
pedestrian fatalities up 100% in Washoe County, the new UNR-Midtown Direct transit route, 
Sparks roadways receiving pavement treatments, the reconstruction of State Street in Reno, weekly 
Virginia Street Project update videos, and the RTC Board meeting. 

Social media metrics for the month of August: 71,449 impressions on Facebook, Twitter, YouTube 
and Instagram. 

Informational Materials and Video Production 
Four topics were broadcast on KOLO-TV for The Road Ahead with RTC. Segments included a 
Virginia Street Project update, California/Keystone intersection improvements complete, 
Microtransit/FlexRIDE, and the new UNR-Midtown Direct service. 

COORDINATION WITH PARTNER AGENCIES 

Truckee Meadows Regional PlanningAgencv (TMRPA) 
The R TC continues to have coordination meetings with staff from the TMRP A as the agencies 
progress with the Shared Work Program. Areas for collaboration include population and 
employment forecasts, the Regional Plan update, affordable housing studies, and analysis of 
demographic and socioeconomic issues. 

Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOTJ 
The RTC continues to have coordination meetings with staff from NDOT. Areas for collaboration 
include development of local public agency agreements between NDOT and RTC, maintenance of 
the regional travel demand model, bicycle and pedestrian improvements, transportation 
alternatives projects, coordination regarding funding and the State Transportation Improvement 
Program, One Nevada statewide plan, the 1-80 and US 395 widening and improvements to the 
Spaghetti Bowl, and other ongoing transportation studies. 

Statewide Transportation Planning 
RTC meets monthly with staff from NDOT, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), RTC 
of Southern Nevada, Tahoe Regional Planning Agency, Tahoe Transportation District and the 
Carson Area Metropolitan Planning Organization to discuss statewide transportation planning 
issues. Other topics addressed include statewide data for performance measures analysis, 
comments on proposed rulemaking, and reauthorization of federal transportation legislation. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.5 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Amy Cummings, AICP/LEED AP ~~rA 
Director of Planning, Deputy for Lee G. Gibson, AICP 
Executive Director Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Appointments to the Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the recommended appointment and alternate appointments to the Citizens Multimodal 
Advisory Committee (CMAC): 

• Jillian Keller (Term through June 2022) 
• Mike Soszynski (Alternate) 
• Mauricio Urias (Alternate) 

SUMMARY 

This action will appoint one regular member and two alternate members to the CMAC. There is 
currently a vacancy on the CMAC and there are no alternate members. Jillian Keller will be 
appointed for a partial term. Appointments will be effective October 2019. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact associated with this agenda item. 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

The CMAC policies call for membership to be comprised to the extent possible of the following: 
• Four individuals who use RTC RIDE 
• Two individuals who use RTC ACCESS 
• Four individuals who represent bicycle/pedestrian 
• Five individuals who represent general multimodal transportation 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


CMAC Appointments 
R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

With the recommended appointments the committee membership will be as follows: 
• Three individuals who use RTC RIDE 
• Two individuals who use RTC ACCESS 
• Three individuals who represent bicycle/pedestrian 
• Seven individuals who represent general multimodal transportation 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE{S} RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.6 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Stephanie Haddock, CGFM 
Director of Finance/CFO for Lee G. Gibson, AICP 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: RTC Procurement Activity Report 

RECOMMENDATION 

Acknowledge receipt of the monthly Procurement Activity Report. 

PROJECTS CURRENTLY ADVERTISED 

Invitations for Bids (IFB) 

Project Due Date 

TE Spot 8 Intersection Improvements - Package 1 September 12, 2019 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) 

There were no Requests for Proposals. 

REPORT ON BID AW ARDS 

Per NRS 332, NRS 338 and RTC 's Management Policy P-13 "Purchasing, "the Executive Director has authority to negotiate 
and execute a contract with the lowest responsive and responsible bidder on an Invitation for Bid (IFB) without Commission 
approval. 

Project Contractor Award Date 
Contract 
Amount 

ITS Phase 2B PAR Electrical Contracting, Inc. September 3, 2019 $1,070,250 

Installation of Ariel CNG 
Compressor 

Trillium CNG August 19, 2019 $139,378 

Traffic Count Program Traffic Data, Inc. August 22, 2019 $100,000 

CHANGE ORDERS AND AMENDMENTS WITHIN EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR'S 
AUTHORITY 

There were none. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.7 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Stephanie Haddock 
Director of Finance 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: RTC Management Policy P-13 - Procurement, Contracting and Contract 
Administration 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve amendments to RTC Management Policy P-13 - Procurement, Contracting and Contract 
Administration, effective October 1, 2019. 

SUMMARY 

On June 15, 2018, the Commission approved amendments to RTC Management Policy P-13 to 
make the policy more clear, concise and understandable, and reflect changes to federal and state 
procurement requirements. The amended policy became effective on July 1, 2018. 

Since that time, there have been further changes to federal and state procurement requirements that 
provide more flexibility to local governments. The Nevada legislature adopted Senate Bill 86 
which became effective as of July 1, 2019; federal statutory changes from the Office of 
Management and Budget became effective in 2018. These changes increased the dollar threshold 
limits for what are considered smaller contracts with less formal competition and procedural 
requirements. 

At the same time, staff has continued to review R TC Management Policy P-13 along with other 
organizational procedures and processes relating to procurement and contracting. As part of that 
effort, the Finance Department hired an outside consultant, Matsumoto Consulting, LLC, to assist 
with further revisions to the policy and development of a procedure manual and core process forms 
and templates. As a result of those efforts, staff anticipates implementing a new procedure manual 
on or soon after October 1, 2019, and will begin using new process forms and templates at that 
same time. 

Staff and its outside consultant recommend the amendments to R TC Management Policy P-13 
shown in the attached redline document (Attachment A). Some changes are intended to make this 
a purely policy document by separating out procedural elements; other changes are intended to 
improve the efficiency and effectiveness of staff level activities by aligning the policy 
requirements more closely with current federal and state law and common practice of other local 
governments. The following is a list of the substantive changes: 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chair) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


RTC Management Policy P-13 Amendments 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

• The Executive Director ( or designee) will have sole authority to authorize emergency 
procurements. Sec. 2.3. The original policy provided limited authority to Department 
Directors to authorize emergency procurements. 

• This policy clarifies that Board authorization prior to soliciting proposals is only required 
for procurements of professional services. Sec. 2.4. With regards to other goods and 
services, staff can solicit bids or proposals without prior Board authorization. 

• The threshold limits for authority to exercise options has been increased for Department 
Directors and the Executive Director. Sec. 4.2. The result is that staff will be able to 
exercise options that have previously been approved by the Board without further Board 
action. 

• This policy now expressly includes a provision regarding the use of contingency. Sec. 4.3. 
• The threshold limits for authority to approve contract amendments has been increased for 

the Executive Director to mirror the threshold limits for change orders. Sec. 4.5. The 
original policy required that any amendment, regardless of the dollar amount, be approved 
by the board when the total contract amount was greater than $150,000. 

• The provisions regarding the procedures for the routing and review of contract documents 
have been removed and will instead be addressed in the new procedure manual. Sec. 3.1; 
Sec. 4.8. 

• Exhibit A has been amended to increase the threshold limits for requiring more burdensome 
procurement methods as a result of recent changes to federal and state law. The result is 
that in the case of smaller contracts, staff will be able to purchase goods and services faster 
using less burdensome procurement methods. 

• Exhibit B has been amended with regard to post-award protests to clarify that staff may 
proceed with execution and performance of awarded contracts. 

The amendments to RTC Management Policy P-13 are the result of interdepartmental discussions 
and cooperation. All RTC Directors and supervisors, and most other staff, were given the 
opportunity to comment and provide input. As staff begins to use this amended policy, any 
additional comments will be addressed and the policy will be brought back to the Commission for 
further amendment as necessary. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Funding for this item is included in the approved FY 2020 budget, and there is no additional cost 
in connection with this agenda item. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

June 15, 2018 Approved Revisions to RTC Management Policy P-13 

Attachment 



Attachment A 

RTC Management Policy P-13 
Approved: August 4, 1986 
Revised: November 19, 1999 
Revised: November 19, 2004 
Revised: October 20, 2006 
Revised: _February 10, 2009 
Revised: June 15, 2018 
Revised : September 20. 2019 

Approved : _ ______ _ 

MANAGEMENT POLICY 

SUBJECT: PROCUREMENT, CONTRACTING AND CONTRACT ADMINISTRATION 

PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Management Policy is to define authorities and responsibilities for the 

procurement, contracting and contract administration activities of the Regional Transportation 

Commission (RTC). This Management Policy applies to public works and the purchase of 

materials, goods and services. This Management Policy does not apply to: 

• Purchases of real property 

• Purchases of fuel . utilities, and mun icipal services 

• Acquisition of right-of-way 

• Disposal of surplus property 

• Purchases of annual maintenance licenses for existing software 

• Letting of revenue contracts 

• Selection of public-private partnerships 

• lnterlocal or cooperative agreements 

• Employment matters 

In carrying out its procurements, RTC will comply with applicable state and federal procurement 

requirements including the Nevada Revised Statutes (N.R.S.), the United States Code (U.S.C.), and 

procurement requirements of the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT), U.S. 

Department of Transportation (USDOT), Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), and Federal 

Transit Administration (FTA). As state and federal procurement requirements are amended, this 

policy will be amended to conform. In the event of a conflict between this policy and state or 

federal procurement requirements, RTC will comply with the state and federal procurement 

requirements. 

-1-



Part 1 - General 

1.1 Legal Framework 

All RTC contracts must be procured in accordance with N.R.S. 332, N.R.S. 338, N.R.S. 625, and any 

other applicable state laws and regulations. Contracts relating to projects that will be funded in 

whole, or in part, with federal funding administered by FTA must be procured in accordance with 

2 C.F.R. 200, 49 U.S.C., 49 C.F.R., other FTA requirements, and any other applicable federal laws 

and regulations. Contracts relating to projects that will be funded in whole, or in part, with 

federal funding administered by NDOT on behalf of FHWA must be procured in accordance with 

2 C.F.R. 200, 23 U.S.C., 23 C.F.R., other FHWA requirements, NDOT's Local Public Agency Program, 

and any other applicable federal laws and regulations. 

1.2 Business Objectives 

RTC will use best efforts to achieve the following business objectives: 

• Minimize reasonably foreseeable risks, and eliminate unreasonable or unnecessary risks 

• Maximize the public value generated from the expenditure of public funds 

• Build strong and lasting relationships with contractors, and cultivate a competitive 

marketplace for goods and services 

1.3 Standards of Conduct 

The Executive Director will develop and maintain standards of conduct governing full and open 

competition, conflicts of interest, prohibited uses of confidential information, and discipline for 

violations of those standards. 

1.4 Disadvantaged Business Enterprise Program 

RTC will actively encourage and assist Disadvantaged Business Enterprises (each a DBE} to 

participate competitively in procurement actions. Encouragement and assistance will be 

provided pursuant to RTC's DBE Program . 

1.5 Sustainable Purchasing 

RTC's goal is to purchase environmentally preferred products (i.e., produced with the highest 

recycled content achievable, recyclable, and sustainably and locally sourced) without sacrificing 

quality and performance. Staff will strive to purchase products that meet or exceed United States 

Environmental Protection Agency standards and other more stringent environmental standards 

and certifications. 

-2-



Part 2 - Procurement 

2.1 Procurement Methods 

State and federal procurement requirements may authorize one or more procurement methods 

depending on the source of funds to be used, the estimated amount of the contract (annual 

amount and/or total amount), the type of materials, goods or services being procured, and/or 

other factors. 

Staff is authorized to use the procurement methods identified in Appendix A. Staff will select the 

procurement method that is most appropriate for achieving the business objectives of the RTC. 

The Executive Director is responsible for developing and implementing procedures for staff to 

select and use the most appropriate procurement method. 

2.2 Contracts Not Adapted to Award by Competitive Bidding 

The Nevada Legislature has declared that certain contracts by their nature are not adapted to 

award by competitive bidding. See N.R.S. 332.115. The Executive Director is authorized to 

determine if and when one of those contracts is not subject to the competitive bidding 

requirements in N.R.S. Chapter 332. 

If only local/state funds will be used, the Executive Director may determine the appropriate level 

of competition and direct staff to use an appropriate procurement method in Appendix A. If any 

federal funds will be used, federal competition requirements will still apply unless a federally 

recognized exception exists. See Appendix A, Sec. 9. 

2.3 Emergency Purchases 

In the case of an "emergency" (as defined in state and federal procurement requirements), staff 

may enter into contracts necessary to contend with the emergency without complying with the 

requirements of this Management Policy if the Execut ive Director determines that an emergency 

exists. See N.R.S. 332. 112; N.R.S. 338.011. The fo llowing are the t hresholel levels for aut horizing 

eR=iergenc•r purcl:iases: 

Contract Arnau nt Authorit'( 

€stiR'lated Contract 

Department Directors 

/\m ount $5,000 

€stima teel Contract 

€xecuti1Je Director 

Amount > $5,000 

If the total contract amount e>Eceeds $S0,000, tihe Executive Director must report the action to 

the Board at its next regularly scheduled meeting. N.R.S. 332.112(2); N.R.S. 338.011(2) . 

-3-



2.4 Procurement Authorization 

Procurements must be authorized by a Department Director prior to solicitation._ The following 

are tl=ie threshold lc•.•els for authorizing procurements: 

Contract /\mmmt /\1:Jthorit)' 

estimated Contract Amo1:1nt ! $50,000 Department Directors 

estimateel Contract Amo1:1nt > $50,000 ElECClltiYe Director 

Wffe.R-Board authorization is also required prior to solicitation for procurements of professional 

services using either Competitive Proposal Procedures (RFP), Qualifications-Based Proposal 

Procedures ( RFQ), or Qualified List Procedures. See Appendix A .• staff •,•1ill J;Jresent the solicitation 

document to the Board. 

2.5 Contract Award 

Contracts must be awarded prior to execution. The following are the threshold levels for 

awarding approving a recommendation to award a contracts: 

Contract Type/Amount Authority 

Contracts Awarded by Formal Bidding Procedures (IFB) Executive Director 

Contracts lmml>.1ing for Construction Managers at Risk Board 

Contracts ln¥ol•1ing for Design-Build Teams ___ Board 

Contracts Awarded by Other Procurement Methods 

Contract Amount~ $5,000 Department Directors. 

$5,000 < Contract Amount~ $50,000 Executive Director 

Contract Amount> $50,000 Board 

Staff will provide notice of the recommendation to award and intent to award at least seven (7) 

business days prior to award when required by the protest procedures in Appendix B. When the 

Executive Director or ~ Department Directors approves a recommendation to award a contract, 

staff will inform the Board of the award at its next regularly scheduled meeting. When Board 

action is required to approve a recommendation to award a contract, staff will present the farm 

contract and all material terms to the Board . 

-4-



2.6 Protest Procedures 

Staff will follow the protest procedures in Appendix B to ensure uniform, timely and equitable 

consideration of protests to procurement actions. To the greatest extent permitted by law, the 

protest procedures in Appendix Bare the exclusive means to protest RTC procurement actions. 

Part 3 - Contracting 

3.1. Contract Routing and Review 

Contracts must be reviewed internally prior to execution in order to ensure that all contracts are 

sound and complete agreements. 

-5-



The following are the thresholel levels for necessary internal review anel sign off prior to 

e)Eec1::1tion: 

Contract Amo1::1nt Sign Off 

/\FAOl::lnt < $5,000 Department Director 

Director of Finance 

$5,000 -< Contract AFAount < $25,OOODepartment 

Director 

Director of Finance 

E>Eec1::1tii.•e Director 

$25,000 -< Contract Amo1::1nt < $250,000 

Director of Legal SePt'ices 

Department Director 

Director of Finance 

Exewtii.•e Director 

Contract Amo1::1nt > $250,000 Chief Counsel 

De13a rtment Director 

Di rector of Finance 

Exec1::1tive Director 

3.2. Centract Execution 

Contracts must be executed in order to be binding and effective. The following are the threshold 

levels for executionexecuting contracts: 

Contract Amount Authority 

+e-ta+Contract Amount::;; $5,000 Department Directors 

+et-a+-Contract Amount> $5,000 Executive Director 

Contract~ documents may be executed in paper or electronic format, as appropriate. 

3.3. Purchase Orders 

Purchase orders must be issued before either party proceeds with contract performance. 

Purchase orders cannot be issued until staff has confirmed that there is a fully executed contract. 

-6-



Part 4 - Contract Administration 

4.1 Contract Administration System 

The Executive Director is responsible for developing and implementing a contract administration 

system that ensures that contractors perform in accordance with the terms, conditions, and 

specifications of contracts and purchase orders. 

The th reshold levels in this Part 4 for authorizing and approving contract actions may be changed 

for individua l contracts by official Boa rd action. 

4.2 Options 

When appropriate, contracts should include options to purchase specified materials, goods and 

services at specified prices with procedures for exercising those options. The following are the 

threshold levels for authorizing and approving the exercise of options: 

Cumulative Amount of Option(s} Exercised Authority 

Cumulative Amount< $50,000 Department Director 

Cumulative Amount> $50,000 Executive Director 

C1:1m1:1lati¥e Amount< $5,000 Department Directors 

$5,000 < Cumulati•.•e Amount!: $50,000 ~xecutive Director 

Cumulati1.•e Amount> $50,000 @oard 

Options must be exercised before either party proceeds with performance . 

4.3 Contingency 

When appropriate, contracts may include line item contingency amounts. The Department 

Director must authorize and approve any use of contingency amounts. 

-7-



4..4.4 Change Orders 

When appropriate, contracts should include a changes clause with procedures for preparing and 

processing contract changes that are within the general scope of the original contract, i.e., 

change orders. Change orelers R%1st be authorized anel approved prior to e>mcution . The 

following are the threshold levels for authorizing and approving change orders: 

Contract Amount Authority 

Original Contract Amount< $100,000 f>mcuti¥e Director may 

authorirn change orelers up 

to an aggregate/cumulati\,•e 

JffiOl,IRt of $J§,QQQ. 

$100,000 < Original Contract Amount~ $1,000,000 Executive Director may 

authorize and approve 

change orders up to an 

aggregate/cumulative 

amount of 25% of the Original 

Contract Amount or 

$100,000, whichever is less. 

Board must approve change 

orders in excess of that 

amount. 

Original Contract Amount> $1,000,000 Executive Director may 

=a =ut=h...aoa.;.r.;.;:iz=e'-----aaa"""n=d __ a pp rove 
change orders up to an 

aggregate/cumulative 

amount of 10% of the Original 

Contract Amount or 

$500,000, whichever is less. 

Board must approve change 

orders in excess of that 

amount. 

Change orelers m1::1st l:ie e1Eec1:1teel before either party proceeels with performance . Contract 

changes that are not within the general scope of the original contract are "cardinal changes" and 

are prohibited. 

4.44.S Modifications 

-8-



Contract modifications that will not create additional financial or legal obligations for RTC, 

including but not limited to clarifying language and "no cost" extensions of the period for 

performance, can be authorized and approved by the Executive Director. 

~4.6 Amendments 

Contract amendments that will create additional financial or legal obligations for RTC must be 

authorized and approved prior to execution. The follO\\'ing are the tl=iresholel levels for 

authorizing anel appro•.iing contract ameneln:ients:Executive Director may authorize and approve 

amendments up to an aggregate/cumulative amount of 10% of the original contract amount or 

$50,000. whichever is less. The Boa rd must approve amend ments in excess of that amount. 

Contract An:imrnt /\uth ority 

Contract Amount (as an:ieneled) < $50,000 Department Directors 

$50,000-. Contract Amount (as an:ieneled) < $150,000 ~>Eecuti>re Director 

Contract /\mount (as amended)> $150,000 Qoarel 

Amendments must be e><ecuted before either party proceeds Nith performance. Contract 1

changes that are not within the general scope of the original contract are "cardinal changes" and 

are prohibited. 

4.-&4. 7 Settlement of Disputes 

Contract disputes may be resolved by settlement agreements. Settlements must be authorized 

and approved prior to execution. The following are the threshold levels for authorizing and 

approving settlements: 

Settlement Amount Authority 

Settlement Amount~ $50,000 Executive Director 

Settlement Amount> $50,000 Board 

4.-74.8 Routing and Review 

Contract documents (i.e., options, change orders, modifications, amendments, and settlements) 

must be reviewed internally prior to execution in order to ensure that all contracts documents 

are sound and complete agreements. Tl=ie following are the threshold le•.•els for necessari,• 

internal re¥iew and sign off prior to ei1ecution: 

Amount/Type Sign Off 

An:iount !'. $5,000 Department Director 

-9-



Director of Finance 

$5,000 <Amount!: $250,000 Director of 

begal Ser>1ices 

De13artment Director 

Director of Finance 

f;~(ecuti¥e Director 

Amount> $250,000 Cl:iief Counsel 

De13artment Director 

Director of Finance 

Executi¥e Director 

Contract Modifications Director of legal 

Services 

Director of Finance 

Executive Director 

Settlements Cl:iief Counsel 

Director of Finance 

E)mcuti11e Director 

4.34.9 Execution 

Contract documents (i.e., options, change orders, modifications, amendments, and settlements) 

must be executed in order to be binding and effective. When the Department Director has 

:a:afh'authority to approve the contract action. the Department Director shall execute the 

appropriate documents. When the Executive Director is req uired to approve the contract action, 

the Executive Director shall execute the appropriate documents. When the Board is required to 

approve the contract action. the Executive Director shall execute the appropriate documents 

after the Board approves.The follo•11ing are the thresl=lold le1t'els for execution : 

Amount/Type Autl=lority 

Aniount < $5,000 Department Directors 

Amount> $5,000 Exec1::1ti¥e Director 

-10-



Contract Modi~ications e*ecutii.1e 

Director 

Settlements e>mcutive Director 

Contract d.Qocuments may be executed in paper or electronic format, as appropriate. 

-11-

http:e*ecutii.1e


Appendix A 

Procurement Methods 

Methods Page 

1. Emergency Purchase Procedures A-2 

2. Petty Cash Procedures A-2 

3. Procurement Card (P-Card) Procedures A-2 

4. Micro Purchase Procedures A-2 

5. Small Purchase Procedures A-3 

6. Formal Bidding Procedures (IFB) A-3 

7. Competitive Proposal Procedures (RFP) A-4 

8. Qualifications-Based Procurement Procedures 

A. Qualifications-Based Proposal Procedures (RFQ) A-5 

B. On CallQualified List Procedures A-5 

9. Sole Source Procedures A-6 

10. Special Procurement Methods A-7 

A-1 



1. Emergency Purchase Procedures 

Method: Staff attempts to solicit two or more proposals. If it is not possible to solicit two or 

more proposals, staff purchases from a single source without competition. 

l\vailabil it•t1Authorization: Staff may only use emergency purchase procedures in the case of an 

"emergency" (as defined in state and federal procurement requirements). In general, an 

emergency exists if the use of a competitive procurement method wou ld result in a delay causing 

health, safety or public welfare concerns. See N.R.S. 332.112; N.R.S. 338.011. 

2. Petty Cash Procedures 

Method: Staff uses the petty cash account to purchase non-inventory items without obtaining 

competitive quotes. 

AvailabilityAuthorization : Staff may purchase non-inventory items with petty cash when the cost 

is~ $50. Only local/state funds can be used as petty cash . 

3. Procurement Card Procedures 

Method: Staff uses a Procurement Card (P-Card) to purchase non-inventory items without 

obtaining competitive quotes. 

/\¥ailabilit·rAut horization : Staff may purchase with a P-Card pursuant to the RTC P-Card Program 

when the expenditure is for (i) for authorized training and travel expenditures, (ii) ~ $1,000 for 

Facilities Maintenance expenditures, or (iii) ~ $500 for all other expenditures. The total annual 

expenditures by the holder of the P-Card must be within the spending limits approved by the 

Department Director. Only local/state funds can be used for the RTC P-Card Program . 

4. Micro Purchase Procedures 

Method: Staff purchases without obtaining competitive quotes. 

Ava ilabilityAuthorization : 

If only local/state funds will be used, staff may purchase from a single source without competition 

when: 

• Estimated /\Rn1::1al /\mount Requireel to Perform CoRtract !'. $25,000 

----Total Estimated Contract Amount~ $~~000 

A- 2 



If any federal funds will be used, staff may purchase from a single source without competition 

when : 

• Total Estimated Contract Amount::; $~10,000 

5. Small Purchase Procedures 

Method: Staff purchases after obtaining an appropriate number of proposals (but no less than 2 

proposals}. 

l\v-ai labilit•t'Authorization : 

Staff may use small purchase procedures when both of the following conditions are satisfied : 

• Estimated Annual Amount Required to Perform Contract::; $W100,000; and 

• Total Estimated Contract Amount::; $~250,000 

6. Formal Bidding Procedures (IFB) 

Method: RTC advertises an invitation for bids and awards a contract to the lowest responsive 

and responsible bidder. 

,11,,.,a ilabi lityAuthorization: 

Staff must use formal bidding procedures for public works construction projects for which the 

estimated cost is > $250,000 unless an alternative special procurement method is authorized. 

See N.R.S. 338.1389 and N.R.S. 338.147. Staff must also use formal bidding proced ures if feasible 

when: 

• Estimated Annual Amount Required to Perform Contract> $W100,000; or 

• Total Estimated Contract Amount> $~250.000 

Formal bidding procedures are feasible if all of the following conditions exist: 

• A complete, adequate, and realistic specification or purchase description is available; 

• Two or more responsible bidders are willing and able to compete effectively for the 

businesses; 

• The procurement lends itself to a firm fixed price contract and the selection of the 

successful bidder can be made principally on the basis of price; and 

• No discussion with bidders is needed to award a contract. 

A-3 



7. Competitive Proposal Procedures (RFP) 

Method: RTC advertises a request for proposals and awards a contract to the proposer that 

submitted the best proposal based on (i) price, or (ii) price and other factors (i.e. "best value"). 

A>.1a ila b ii it>,<Authori zatio n: 

If formal bidding procedures are infeasible, and no other procurement method is authoriz.ed, 

staff must use competitive proposal procedures when: 

• Estimated Annual Amount Required to Perform Contract> $W100,000; or 

• Total Estimated Contract Amount> $~250,000 

Formal bidding procedures may be infeasible if one or more of the following conditions exist: 

• The contract award will be based on qualitative factors in addition to price, rather than 

primarily on the basis of price; 

• A complete, adequate and realistic specification or purchase description allowing for 

competition primarily on the basis of price may not be available; 

• The contract award,amount can only be determined on the basis of costs of the contractor 

derived from a negotiation process; 

• Discussions or negotiations may be needed to address technical requirements as well as 

proposed cost or price aspects of the bidder's proposal; or 

• Other circumstances necessitate a more flexible procurement tool that allows for 

negotiation. 

A-4 

http:authoriz.ed


8. Qualifications-Based Procurement Procedures 

Qualifications-based procurement procedures require that price be excluded as an evaluation 

factor. Qualifications-based procurement procedures (i.e. federal "Brooks Act"/state "mini

Brooks Act" compliant procedures) must be must be used to procure certain architectural, 

engineering, and land surveying services specified under federal and state law, regardless of the 

contract amount. See 40 U.S.C. Section 1101-1104; 49 US.C. Section 5325(b); N.R.S. 625.530 and 

338.010(17). Qualification-based procurement procedures may not be used to procure any other 

professiona I services. 

A. Qualifications-Based Proposal Procedures (RFQ) 

Method: RTC advertises a request for proposals with price excluded as an evaluation factor. RTC 

awards a contract to the most qualified firrn/cons1::1ltantcontractor with whom staff can negotiate 

a fair and reasonable price. 

A¥ailability/\uthorization: 

If only local/state funds will be used, staff may use qualifications-based proposal procedures 

when the services are architectural and engineering services specified under state law. See N.R.S. 

625.530. 

If any federal funds will be used, staff may use qualifications-based proposal procedures when 

the services are architectural and engineering services specified under federal law. See 40 U.S.C. 

Section 1101-1104; 49 U.S.C. Section 5325(b) . 

B. OR CallQualified List Procedures 

Method: RTC advertises a request for statements of qualifications in certain categories of 

architectural, engineering or land surveying services specified under state law with price 

excluded as an evaluation factor. A selection committee ranks the statements of qualifications 

and develops a list of qualified fifFw.r<:ontractors by category. The Board approves the list. When 

RTC needs services in a category, staff identifies the most qualified firA1/cons1::1ltantcontractor 

and attempts to negotiate a fair and reasonable price. 

A>.•ailabilit¥Authorization : If any federal funds will be used, staff cannot use on callqualified list 

procedures. 

If only local/state funds will be used, RTC may use on callqualified list procedures to procure a 

routine scope of services in the folloi. .. •ingcertain categories such as: 

• Engineering and design 

• Engineering and construction management during construction 

• Independent cost cstirnating 

• Traffic engineering 

• Land surveying 

A-5 



9. Sole Source Procedures 

Method: RTC purchases from a single source without competition. 

A>.•ailabilityAuthorization : 

If only local/state funds will be used, RTC may purchase goods and services from a single source 

without competition when: 

• The Executive Director determines that: 

The contract b•~ its nature is not adapted to av.•ard by competitive bidding, including contracts 

identified in ~IRS 332.llS( l ), filll:!. the e>~ecuti•.•e Qirector determines that: 

- The contract by its nature is not adapted to award by competitive solicitation and is 

not subject to the competitive solicitation requirements of N.R.S. Chapter 332 

(including but not limited to contracts identified in N.R.S. 332. 115(1)); and 

____ The contract is not sub:iect to the competitive bidding requirements of NRS Chapter 

332;and 

---- Sole source procedures are most appropriate due to unique factors and 

circumstances. 

• The contract is otherwise not subject to the competition requirements of N.,_R.,_S.,_ Chapter 

332 pursuant to state law. 

If any federal funds will be used, RTC cannot purchase from a single source without competition 

unless: 

• Competitive procedure methods are infeasible; and 

• Pursuant to 2 C.,_F.,_R.,_ 200.320(c)(2)(v)(f), one or more of the following circumstances apply: 

The item is available only from a single source; 

The public exigency or emergency for the requirement will not permit a delay resulting 

from competitive solicitation; 

The federal awarding agency or pass-through entity expressly authorizes non

competitive proposals in response to a written request from RTC (i.e. the non-federal 

entity); or 

After solicitation of a number of sources, competition is determined inadequate. 

A-6 



10. Special Procurement Methods 

Method: State and federal law may authorize (and/or require) special procurement methods in 

some circumstances. 

/'NailabilityAuthorization : 

State and federal law may authorize (and/or require) RTC to use special procurement methods 

in certain circumstances including, but not limited to, the following: 

• Contracts Involving Construction Managers at Risk- N.R.S. 338.1685 et seq. 

• Contracts Involving Design-Build Teams - N.R.S. 338.1711 et seq. 

• Joinder or Mutual Use of Contracts by Governmental Entities - N.R.S. 332.195 

• Purchases through the Purchasing Division of the Department of Administration - N.R.S. 

332.135) 

• Other State Authorized Special Procurement Methods 

• FTA Authorized Special Procurement Methods 

• FHWA Authorized Special Procurement Methods 

• Specifically Authorized Uses of GSA Federal Supply Schedules 

A-7 



Appendix B 

Protest Procedures 

Section 

A. Scope B-2 

B. Standing B-2 

C. Grounds B-2 

D. Costs B-2 

E. Filing B-2 

F. Contents B-2 

G. Pre bid/pre proposal ProtestsTiming and Deadlines B-3 

1-4 . Pre award Protests Q 3 

I. Post award Protests Q 4 

:h_H_. _ Review and Determination B-4 

K-,._1. __ FT A Involvement B-5 

-b_J. __ Confidentiality B-5 

M,.L_Records B-5 

Staff shall post Management Policy P-13 on the RTC website and shall ensure that every 
solicitation that is required to be advertised/publicized includes the following provision: 

Protest Procedures. RTC's policy and procedures for the administrative resolution 
of protests are set forth in RTC's Management Policy P-13, which is available on 
the RTC website. RTC will furnish a copy of Management Policy P-13 upon request. 

B-1 



A. Scope. These protest procedures apply to solicitations that are advertised/publicized 
through Formal Bidding Procedures (IFB), Competitive Proposal Procedures (RFP), or 
Qualifications-Based Procurement Procedures.1 These protest procedures are the exclusive 
means to protest RTC procurement actions. 

B. Standing. In order to file a protest, the protester must be an actual or prospective supplier 
of the goods or services whose direct economic interest would be affected by the award of, 
or failure to award, a contract. 

C. Grounds. Protesters may only protest RTC procurement actions based on an allegation that: 

1. RTC failed to comply with state or federal law; 

2. RTC failed to comply with its procurement policies; or 

3. RTC failed to comply with the terms of its solicitation document. 

D. Costs. By filing a protest, the protester agrees that RTC will not be responsible for any costs 
associated with the protest, including any attorney fees, and that the protester shall not be 
entitled to reimbursement from RTC regardless of the outcome. 

E. Filing. Protests must be in writing and filed with RTC by physical delivery to 1105 Terminal 
Way, Suite 300, Reno, Nevada 89502 . The envelope or package should be addressed to "Attn: 
Procurement Manager." 

F. Contents. Protests should be concise, logically arranged, clear and legible and must contain 
the following: 

1. Name, address and telephone number of the protester and a contact person; 

2. Date, title and identification number of the solicitation; 

3. A written statement setting forth with specificity the grounds for the protest and 
supporting evidence. If the protester later raises new grounds or provides new evidence 
that reasonably could have been raised or provided earlier, RTC will not consider such 
new grounds or evidence in the determination of the protest; 

4. A written statement setting forth with specificity the reasons the protester believes the 
applicable provisions of law, if any, were violated;2 

5. The action or relief desired from RTC; and 

1 N.R.S. 332.068(1); N.R.S. 338.142(1) ; 2 C.F.R. 200.320. 
2 N.R.S. 332.068(2); N.R.S. 338.142(2) . 

8-2 



6. In the case of solicitations through an IFB or RFP, a protest bond issued by a good and 
solvent surety authorized to do business in Nevada, in an amount equal to the lesser of: 
a. Twenty-five percent of the total value of the bid or proposal submitted by the person 

filing the protest; or 
b. Two hundred fifty thousand dollars.3 

G. Timing and Deadlines 

G,._1_. _ _ _ P~r-'e_-b_i_d~/-p_re~-~P_ro_p~o_s_a_l_P_r_o_te_s_ts. 

-1-:-,2.:.Protests against RTC actions during the solicitation phase must be filed at least five (5) 
business days prior to the bid opening or proposal due date. 

6_b_. _ The Procurement Manager shall make a determination on the merits of the 
protest prior to opening bids or evaluating proposals. 

¼,-f:.. The Procurement Manager shall provide the determination to all bidders/proposers 
prior to opening bids or evaluating proposals. 

~ =. _ _ _,Pr""'e"-';:;;..wa.:...:rd=--=-P""'ro:;..;t=e=s-==-ts. 2.:.... '""' -a= 

-1-:-,2.:.Staff shall provide notice of its intent to recommend award of the contract to all 
bidders/proposers at least seven (7) business days prior to award. 

6_b_. _ Protests against the intended award of a contract must be filed within five (S) 
business days after RTC provides notice of its intent to recommend award. 4 

¼,-f:..A pre-award protest cannot be on grounds which were known, or with due diligence 
should have been known, by the protester at the pre-bid/proposal protest deadline. 

4:-_d_. _ RTC will not award the contract until the Procurement Manager makes a 
determination on the merits of the protest and presents that determination to the 
Board or the Executive Director, as applicable, prior to award ;5 provided, however, 
that RTC reserves the right to proceed with an award to avoid undue delay or harm to 
RTC or if it is otherwise in the best interest of RTC as determined by the Executive 
Director. 

3 N.R.S. 332.068(3); N.R.S. 338.142(3). This requirement is not applicable to solicitations through 
Qualifications-Based Procurement Procedures because there is no "total value of the bid" upon which to 
calculate the amount of the protest bond. 
4 N.R.S. 338.142(1). 
5 N.R.S. 332.068(4); N.R.S. 338.142(4). 

B-3 



� ..~ The Procurement Manager shall provide the final determination to all 
bidders/proposers at the time of, or prior to, the award if possible . 

-h-3. Post-award Protests. 

a. Staff shall pro• .. ide notice of award of the contract to all bidders/proposers. 

~£.:.Post-award protests must be filed within ~three (3) business days after -R+t 
provides noticeaward of the awaffl.contract. 

~_b_. _ A post-award protest cannot be on grounds which were known, or, with due 
diligence should have been known, by the protester at the pre-award protest 
deadline. 

4-,,c. RTC will not execute the contract until the Procurement Manager makes a 
deten"Aination on the merits of the protest anel presents that determination to the 
E:Kecuti•_.e Director; pro'v'ieled, howe'v'er, that RTC reser\les the right to mcecute aRTC 
reserves the right to proceed with th e execution or performance of th e contract to 
avoid undue delay or harm to RTC or if it is otherwise in the best interest of RTC as 
determined by the Executive Director. 

d. The Procurement Manager shall make a determination on the merits of the protest 
and present that determination to the Executive Director. 

� .._e_. _ The Procurement Manager shall provide tR-ea final determination to all 
bidders/proposers stating the action(s) taken on the protest, and the reason for the 
action(s). The notice shall be provided within five (5) business days of receipt of a 
post-award protest, if possible. 

hH .Review and Determination. 

l. Upon receipt of a protest, Staff will notify the protester that the protest is being reviewed. 
For FTA funded contracts, the Procurement Manager will notify FTA Region IX, and will 
keep FTA informed about the status of the protest. For FHWA funded contracts, the 
Procurement Manager will notify NDOT, and will keep NDOT informed about the status 
of the protest. 

2. The Procurement Manager shall investigate the merits of the protest. 
a. In its sole discretion, RTC may request additional information from the protester. 
b. In its sole discretion, RTC may request additional information from other 

bidders/proposers, and may allow other bidders/proposers to submit comments 
regarding the merits of the protest. 

c. In its sole discretion, RTC may schedule an informal conference with all 
bidders/proposers to discuss the merits of the protest. 

B-4 



d. In its sole discretion, RTC may summarily dismiss all or any portion of a protest that 
raises legal or factual arguments or allegations that have been previously considered 
and resolved by RTC in a previous protest. 

3. The Procurement Manager shall mal,e aManager's determination on the merits of the 
protest and present that eletermination to the Board or the f:>1ecutive Director, as 
app licable. The determination must be in writing and contain four parts: 
a. Summary - Describes the protester, the solicitation, the issue(s) raised, and the 

determination. 
b. Background - Describes in more detail the history of the solicitation, the events 

leading to the protest, the date the protest was received, and the evaluation process. 
c. Discussion - Identifies the issue(s) raised, the factors considered in reaching the 

determination, and the rationale for the determination. 
d. Determination - States the determination and any remedy or subsequent action 

resulting from the determination, e.g. award, cancellation of the procurement, etc. 

-K-:-1. FTA Involvement. For FTA funded contracts, the protester may raise matters that are 
primarily a Federal concern with the FTA. Matters involving the award of a contract must be 
raised with FTA within five (5) business days of receipt of RTC's determination on the merits 
of the protest. If the protester does not raise the matter with FT/\ with ih five (.S) days of 
receipt of the Eletermination, the Elctermination shall be deemed f inal. If the protester does 
raise the Fl'latter with HA within fr.«e (5) Elays of receipt of the Eletcrmination, RTC shall notify 

al l bidelers/proposers of th e pending a131"eal. 

b J. Confidentiality. Materials submitted by a protester will not be withheld from any interested 
party outside of RTC or from any governmental entity which may be involved in the protest, 
except to the extent that the withholding of information is permitted or required by law or 
regulation. If the protester consielersbelieves that a protest contains proprietary materials 
which should be withheld, a statement advising of this fact ma-ymust be affixed to the front 
page of the protest and the alleged proprietary information must be so identified wherever 
it appears. If a protester requests that RTC withhold from disclosure information identified 
as confidential, and RTC complies with the protester's request, the protester assumes all 
responsibility for any challenges resulting from the non-disclosure, indemnify and hold 
harmless RTC from and against all damages (including but not limited to attorneys' fees that 
may be awarded to the party requesting the protester information), and pay any and all costs 
and expenses related to the withholding of the protester's information. The protester shall 
not make a claim, sue, or maintain any legal action against RTC or its directors, officers, 
employees, or agents concerning the withholding from disclosure of protester's information. 

M,.K. Records. 

1. Upon receipt of a protest, the Procurement Manager shall establish a separate file in 
which reasonable and adequate documentation of the protest and outcome shall be 
maintained. 

8-5 



2. The file should, at a minimum, include the following: 
a. Notice of intent to award; 
b. Notice of award; 
c. The protest; 
d. Notices to·FTA or NDOT, if required; 
e. Record of timeliness of actions; 
f. Record of internal or external review of the protest; 
g. Record of legal review of the protest, if any; 
h. The Procurement Manager's determination on the merits of the protest; 
i. Any notices or correspondence provided in connection with the protest. 

B-6 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.8 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Judy L. Tortelli 
Engineer II 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Approve an Amendment to Task Order # 1 for the Bus Stop Improvement and 
Connectivity Program 19-01 Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve an amendment to the existing Task Order # 1 under the Master Services Agreement with 
CA Group, Inc. for design services related to the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program 
19-01 Project in the amount of $76,440 for a new not-to-exceed amount for $518,145, and an 
amendment to the Master services Agreement to reflect the increased not-to-exceed amount; 
authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the amendments. 

SUMMARY 

CA Group, Inc. was awarded a Master Services Agreement to provide design services and optional 
engineering during construction for the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program for up to 
three years. Task Order # 1 was issued for projects in the 2019 construction season and includes 
professional design services in the amount of $237,810 and optional engineering during construction 
services in the amount of $203,895. 

The number of easements required for Task Order # 1 are greater than originally anticipated. The 
total number of easements were not determined until the 60% design plans were completed. This 
amendment will enable RTC's consultant to complete Right-of-Way engineering services as 
necessary to obtain easements required to construct improvements. 

This amendment to Task Order #1 (see Attachment A) adds $21,460 for additional services under 
Task 1.0 (Project Management) and $54,980 for additional services under Task 4.0 (Right-of-Way) 
for a new not-to-exceed amount of $518,145. Each amendment to a task order requires a 
corresponding amendment to the not-to-exceed amount in the Master Services Agreement (see 
Attachment B). 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Bus Stop ICP 19-01 Project 
Task Order No. 1 Amendment No. l 

RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 
Page 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Project appropriations are included in the approved FY 2019 and 2020 Budget and Program of 
Projects as part of the Annual Pavement Preservation Program. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

August 16, 2019 Acknowledged receipt of the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity 
Program (Bus Stop ICP) progress report. 

March 15, 2019 Approved a Master Services Agreement with CA Group, Inc. to 
provide engineering design and construction management services for 
up to three years; approved Task Order No. 1 for the 2019 construction 
season. 

March 15, 2019 Acknowledged receipt of an update report on bus stop accessibility and 
improvements. 

January 18, 2019 Approved the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 Street and Highway Program of 
Projects (POP) 

November 16, 2018 Authorized a Request for Qualifications for Engineering Design and 
Construction Management Services for the Bus Stop Improvement and 
Connectivity Program 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE{S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachments 



ATTACHMENT A 

Amendment #1 to 
Task Order #1 

Master Services Agreement 

This Amendment # 1 to Task Order# 1 is dated and effective as of October 1, 2019, in accordance 
with the terms and conditions of the Master Services Agreement dated March 25, 2019 as amended 
on October I, 2019 (the "Agreement"), by and between the Regional Transportation Commission 
of Washoe County ("RTC") and CA Group, Inc.("CONSULTANT"). 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, as 90% design plans were being completed for the Bus Stop Improvement and 
Connectivity Program for the 2019 construction season pursuant to Task Order # 1, it was 
determined that additional right-of-way engineering services effort would be necessary to 
construct bus stop improvements at multiple sites; and 

WHEREAS, the parties have determined that there is a need to amend Task Order #1 in order for 
CONSULT ANT to provide $21,460 of additional services under Task 1.0 (Project Management) 
and $54,980 of additional services under Task 4.0 (Right of Way); and 

WHEREAS, RTC's Board of Commissioners approved this Amendment #1 to Task Order #1 on 
September 20, 2019. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the parties and other good and 
valuable consideration, the parties do agree as follows: 

1. Section 1. shall be replaced in its entirety with the following: 

The term of this Task Order Agreement shall be from the date first written above through 
June 30, 2021, unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date, pursuant to 
the provisions of the Agreement. The term of this Task Order cannot exceed the term of 
the Agreement. 

2. Section 5. shall be replaced in its entirety with the following: 

The maximum amount payable to CONSUL TANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULTANT can request in writing that 
RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSUL TANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 



-------------------

Total Design Services (Tasks 1.0 to 5.0) $309 250 
Contingency - Design Services (Task 6.0) $5,000 
Total OPTIONAL Construction Services (Tasks 7.0 to 9.0) $183895 
Contingency - Construction Services (Task I 0.0) $20.000 
Total (Including Optional Services) $518,145 

3. Exhibit A is replaced in its entirety With the version of Exhibit A attached hereto. 

4. Exhibit B is replaced in its entirety with the version of Exhibit B attached hereto. 

5. All other provisions of Task Order #1 shall remain in full force and effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this amendment. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM: 

Adam Spear, R TC Director of Legal Services 

REGIO AL TR.A SPORTA TION COMMISSION 
OF WA HOE COUNTY 

By: 
Lee G. Gibson, Executive Director 

CA GROUP, INC. 

By: _ ________________ _ 

Chad Anson, P.E., Vice President 

2 



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services and Schedule 



EXHIBIT A-1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 

BUS STOP IMPROVEMENT AND CONNECTIVITY PROGRAM (ICP) PROJECT 
TASK ORDER NO. 1 - AMENDMENT NO. 1 

The scope of services for this project will generally consist of the following tasks: 

l .O Project Management. CONSUL TANT will provide Project Management for the 
scope of work. The Project Manager will be responsible for the ongoing project 
coordination of all activities for the duration of the work. The Project Manager 
shall be a licensed Professional Civil Engineer, Registered in the State of Nevada 
and provide both design and construction oversight. The Project Manager, 
Designer and Lead Inspector shall be considered key personnel for this Project. 
Project Management includes tasks such as: 

• Project set-up and administration 
• Monthly budget monitoring and invoicing 
• Preparation and reporting of project progress and schedule 
• Quality assurance on deliverables 
• Coordination with the RTC Project Manager 

The duration of the project development and design portion of the project is 
assumed to be twelve ( 12) months. 

2.0 Project Development. Identify constraints, collect data, and perform analysis to 
determine a reasonable set of improvements. 

2.1 CONSULTANT will define a specific set of parameters for improvements 
to address the following: 

• Existing public Right-of-Way (ROW) verification 
• Sidewalk connectivity 
• Utility adjustments 
• Landscape adjustments 
• Curb, gutter, driveway, and curb ramp replacement at 

intersections 
• Bus stop pad dimensions 
• ADA compliance of improvements 

2.2 Utility Investigation/Depiction. CONSULTANT will investigate and 
locate subsurface utilities within the roadway right-of-way, and areas 
reasonably affected, in accordance with the American Society of Civil 
Engineers Standard guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing 
Subsurface Utility Data, Quality Level C. Additionally, CONSULTANT 

Task Order No. I I 



will coordinate with Utility Owners to remove lids of surface features and 
document depth of utility device, or invert of pipe, within such surface 
features ifthere is reason to expect conflict due to vertical clearances. All 
located, existing underground utilities will be shown on the Plan Sheets 
accompanied with the following "Note: Subsurface utilities are depicted 
by their Quality Levels in accordance American Society of Civil 
Engineers Standard Guidelines for the Collection and Depiction of 
Existing Subsurface Utility Data (CI/ ASCE 38-02). All utility information 
shown hereon is depicted to Quality Level "C", unless otherwise noted." 

2.2.A Utility coordination: Based on field investigation, 
CONSULTANT will provide RTC a list of utility company whose 
utilities are likely to be within the project limits or reasonably 
affected by the project. RTC will issue the initial notification to 
the utility agencies on the list. CONSUL TANT will evaluate 
potential conflicts through field investigation, investigate conflict 
resolution strategies and coordinate with the. utility agencies for 
upcoming work, facility relocation/adjustment, and ensure utilities 
likely affected by the project are indicated on the project plans. 

2.2.B Utility Pothole Exploration (OPTIONAL): Should insufficient 
information be available from existing records to determine 
whether or not conflic{s between the proposed work and existing 
utilities will occur, .the CONSULT ANT shall pothole a sufficient 
number oflocations to make such a determination. These services 
are optional and will be compensated through Section 2.2 by 
written approval from the RTC Project Manager. One (I) pothole 
location assumed. 

2.3 Field Review and Data Collection. CONSULTANT will perform the 
following.field review and data collection activities: 

• Document potential design constraints at each location ( drainage, 
utility, landscape, aesthetics, etc.) 

• Field measure quantities 
• Sidewalk connectivity and accessible pedestrian access route 
• Safety review of bus stop locations with recommendations 

One hundred (I 00) bus stop locations are assumed. 

2.3.A Surveying. These services will not be provided at all bus stop 
locations. Some locations may have a more complex design and 
may require staking to properly locate and construct the 
improvements. Five (5) sites are assumed to need survey The 
following are examples of anticipated survey: 

• Existing curb and gutter stakes at 50 foot stations and 25 

Task Order No. I 2 



foot stations at returns. 
• Right-of way boundary for areas around proposed bus stop 

improvements 
• Location of existing storm drains, retaining curbs, 

sidewalks or walls, utility pull boxes and vaults. 

2.4 Cost Estimates. CONSUL TANT will prepare a preliminary cost estimate 
suitable for RTC review. Items identified during Field Review and Data 
Collection, Task 2.3, will be included in the Cost Estimate. 

2.5 Prioritization. CONSULTANT will work with the RTC Project Manager 
and Transit to further prioritize the list of bus stop improvements. 

Deliverables - Report providing documentation that summarizes Project 
Development activities and decisions made to determine the final set of 
proposed improvements. 

3.0 Design. Sixty (60) bus stop locations are assumed. 

3 .1 Permitting 
3.1.A CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the City of Reno as 

necessary to determine Encroachment and Excavation Permit 
requirements. 'Two (2) Permits will be required for bus stop 
improvements locate'd within the City of Reno ( one (1) permit 
north of the Truckee River and one (1) permit south) 

3.1.B CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the City of Sparks as 
necessary to determine Encroachment and Excavation Permit 
requirements. One (1) Permit will be required for bus stop 
improvements located within the City of Sparks 

3.1.C CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the Washoe County as 
necessary to determine Permit requirements. One (1) Permit will 
be required for bus stop improvements located within Washoe 
County. 

3.1.D CONSUL TANT shall prepare and submit Occupancy Permits for 
bus stop improvements located on NDOT routes. Five (5) Permits 
are assumed (one (1) permit for each State Route affected) will be 
required for bus stop improvements located within NDOT right-of
way. 

3.2 Constructability Review. CONSULTANT shall facilitate a one day 
workshop to perform a Constructability Review of the Project prior to the 
100% submittal. The intent is to review plans, specifications, and 
construction approach to minimize potential construction change orders 
and ensure clear intent is provided. Field personnel, Designer, Project 
Manager and RTC Project manager shall attend a field review of some of 
the more complex bus stop improvements. Discussion topics include 

Task Order No. 1 3 



review of design in the field, project plan clarity, conflict identification, 
maintenance of traffic, limitations of operations, schedule and phasing. 

3.2.A Prior to 60% submittal, CONSULTANT shall develop construction 
working day duration estimate and construction phasing plan based 
on final list of improvements. Define traffic impacts, schedule 
constraints and reasonable limitations of operations 

3.3 60% and 100% Plans, Specifications, and Engineer's Estimate for Agency 
review 

3.3.A Prepare Construction Plans, Contract Documents and Technical 
Specifications suitable for construction bid advertisement in 
accordance with RTC standards and requirements. RTC will 
provide the boilerplate in MS Word format. The RTC, Local Entity 
and Quality Control review comments will be incorporated into the 
final Plans and Specifications. 

The final construction plans will be on 22" x 34" size sheets and 
will be presented in an abbreviated format using GIS based aerial 
photography that properly depicts the elements of the project 
construction, including plan view, right-of-way lines, and 
construction/slope limits. Any modification to traffic signal are 
anticipated to be minimal and limited to pedestrian push buttons 
and poles. Traffic Signal Modification will be included in the 
Special Detail Sheets, with the customary information, schedules 
and symbology. The final plan set will include, as a minimum: 

• Title Sheet 
• Legend, General Notes, and Abbreviations 
• Standard Bus Pad Detail (scales as noted) 
• Plan Sheets (at l "=20' scale). Estimated 2 to 4 locations per 

plan sheet 
• Special Detail Sheets (at I "=IO' scale) 
• Standard Detail Sheets (scales as noted). 

The Contract Documents and Technical Specifications for bus stop 
locations located in the limits of the City of Reno, City of Sparks 
and Washoe County will reference the latest edition of Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Construction (Orange Book) for 
standard construction items. Technical provisions will be prepared 
for approved deviations from the Orange Book and unique 
construction items not adequately covered in the Orange Book. 
The Contract Documents and Technical Specifications for bus stop 
location located within Nevada Department of Transportation 
(NDOT) right-of -way will reference the latest edition of the 
NDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction 

Task Order No. I 4 



3.3.B 

3.3.C 

3.3.D 

(Silver Book) and the NDOT Standard Plans for Road and Bridge 
Construction for standard construction items. Technical provisions 
will be prepared for approved deviations from the Silver Book and 
unique construction items not adequately covered in the Silver 
Book. The final plans and specifications will be signed and sealed 
by a Nevada Registered Professional Civil Engineer in responsible 
charge of preparation. Plans and specifications will be submitted 
to the RTC, Local Entity, NDOT, utility agencies and other 
affected parties for review at the 60%, 100%, and final stages of 
completion per the following: 

• 60% and I 00% Plans - One electronic copy (PDF) on a flash 
drive or through email to RTC, local entities, utility agencies 
and other affected parties. Up to two 11 "x 17" sets will be 
provided upon request. 

• 60% Plans-One electronic copy (PDF) to Washoe County 
Health District (WCHD). Up to two 11 "xl 7" sets will be 
provided upon request. 

• 60% and I 00% Specifications - One electronic copy (PDF) 
R TC and Local Entities 

• 100% Plans - Email electronic copy (PDF) of updated sheet(s) 
to WCHD as needed 

• Final Constru~tion Plan Set - One 22"x34" set to RTC, one 
11 "x] 7" set ~ach to RTC, Local Entities, and utility agencies. 

• Final Construction Specification Document - One set each to 
RTC and Local Entities, one copy in MS Word format of the 
Contract Documents and Technical Specifications to RTC. 

Independent Checker. An independent checker will check, initial 
and date each plan sheet. A quality control review of the plans, 
contract documents and technical specifications will be performed 
which will focus on technical aspects of the plans and 
specifications and will ensure that all items of work are adequately 
covered. 

Utility Agency Coordination. Distribute design review submittals 
(60% & 100%) to utility agencies for review and comment, and 
provide RTC a list of utility agencies provided design review 
submittals and Utility Agency review comments. CONSUL TANT 
will submit areas within NDOT right-of-way to NDOT District 2 
Permits, including pre-permitting and final permit review. 

Final Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Costs and 
Time. Provide a final Engineer's opinion of probable construction 
costs for the project based on the final design and any alternatives 
or options. The cost opinion will be in the same format as the bid 
proposal form included in the contract documents. A quality 

Task Order No. 1 5 



control review of the cost opinion will be performed by the 
CONSUL TANT. The CONSULT ANT will also estimate the 
number of working or calendar days, as appropriate, for the 
construction of the projects. 

4.0 Right-of-Way. CONSULTANT will obtain record right-of-way based upon 
Washoe County GIS information. Right-of way will be tied to the roadway 
centerline and existing monuments, as necessary for Permanent Easements. 
Right-of-way information will be shown on the project plans. No further 
resolution of the roadway right-of-way is included in this task. 

4.1 Permanent Easements and Temporary Construction Easements. It is 
estimated approximately forty three (43) parcels will require permanent 
and/or temporary easements to construct the planned improvements. 
CONSULTANT will perform boundary surveying including preparation 
of full Metes and Bounds descriptions of forty three (43) individual 
parcels. This will include property record research, drafting of property 
boundaries from record descriptions, calculations of search coordinates for 
filed boundary survey, field boundary survey on each affected parcel, post 
processing and reduction of field data, boundary resolution based upon 
field findings, preparation of legal descriptions and exhibit maps of 
individual affected parcels. CONSULTANT shall pull preliminary Title 
Reports and updates as necessary for each affected parcel. 

Right-of-way appraisal, property owner negotiations, escrow coordination 
and title clearance is not included within this task. 

Deliverables-property boundary for forty (43) parcels along with exhibit 
maps, legal descriptions, and title report for permanent and/or temporary 
construction easements on each parcel. Right-of-Way summary 
spreadsheet detailing easement type, size, and reason by parcel. 

5.0 Bidding Services 

5.1 Plan Set and Specification Distribution. CONSUL TANT will provide 
RTC with final plans and specifications, including addenda, in Portable 
Document Format (PDF), for use in the Ebid system. 

5.2 Pre-bid Meeting. CONSULT ANT will be available during the bidding 
process to answer technical questions and will hold the pre-bid meeting. 
All questions and responses will be documented and provided to RTC. 
CONSULTANT will prepare and provide PDF addenda, if required . All 
questions regarding legal aspects of the contract documents will be 
referred directly to RTC. CONSULTANT will prepare and provide a PDF 
summary of the pre-bid meeting, as directed by the RTC. 

Task Order No. I 6 



5.3 Requests for Information (RFI) and Addenda. CONSULTANT will 
answers to RFis from the bidders as forwarded and requested by the RTC. 
If necessary, CONSUL TANT will prepare plan sheets or specification for 
addenda to the bid package. 

5.4 Bid Opening. CONSUL TANT will attend the bid opening and review the 
bids received for irregularities and provide a recommendation for award. 
CONSULT ANT will tabulate bid results into a MS Excel spreadsheet and 
check multiplication and addition of bid items. 

6.0 Design Contingency (OPTIONAL) 

This is a contingency for miscellaneous increases within the scope of this contract 
in the performance of services under Tasks 1.0 to 5.0. If CONSULTANT 
determines that it is necessary to perform work to be paid out of contingency, 
CONSULT ANT shall provide a letter detailing the need, scope, and not-to-exceed 
budget for any proposed work. Work under this task shall proceed only with the 
RTC Project Manager's prior written approval. 

7 .0 Construction Services (OPTIONAL) - The RTC and CONSULT ANT shall 
review Optional Construction Services following the completion of final design to 
determine their appropriateness to the project. 

7.1 Provide Contract Administration and Project Management services as 
follows: 

• Attend the preconstruction conference 
• Perform construction coordination 
• Review and provide recommendations on contractor's traffic control 

plans 
• Review and stamp contractor's submittal for conformance to the 

contract documents, including specified material certifications, 
plantmix bituminous pavement and Portland Cement concrete mix 
designs 

• Review and provide recommendations on test results 
• Review and provide recommendations on contractor's construction 

schedule and work progress 
• Review construction for acceptance and/or mitigation 
• Provide verification and approval of contractor's monthly pay request 
• Supervise the inspection, surveying and material testing activities 
• Provide recommendations to the RTC for any necessary construction 

changes due to field conditions 
• Assist in change order review and approval 

7.2 Construction Surveying. These services will not be provided at all bus 
stop locations. Surveying will be provided at areas where the construction 

Task Order No. 1 7 



activities are performed outside right-of-way and require either an 
easement or permission to construct. Some location may have a more 
complex design and may require staking to properly locate and construct 
the improvements. Twenty sites are assumed need staking; This include 
the sixty (60) sites for right-of-way and five (5) sites for more complex 
design. The following are examples of anticipated construction staking: 

• Final curb and gutter stakes at 50 foot stations and 25 foot stations at 
returns. 

• Offset stakes for easement and permission to construct agreements. 
• Offset stakes for curb cut ramps, storm drains, retaining curbs or walls, 

pedestrian push button poles, utility pull boxes and vaults. 
• Roadway monuments, referenced in four directions. 

7 .3 Inspection 

7.3.A Provide Inspector. Provide one ful] time and one quarter time 
inspector during all construction activities. 8-hour work days and 
a 60 working day contract period are anticipated. This inspector 
will: 

• Attend the preconstruction conference 
• Monitor the work p~rformed by the Contractor and verify that 

the work is in accordance with the plans and specifications 
• Assist in problem resolution with the RTC, contractor 

personnel, utility agencies, the public and others 
• Prepare daily inspection reports, submitted weekly to RTC and 

, CC'd to the appropriate government jurisdiction(s). 
• Provide quantity reports and assist in contractor's monthly 

progress payments 
• Provide verification of the distribution of public relation 

notices required to be delivered by the contractor 
• Assist in preparation of the Punch List 
• Maintain a field blueline set of drawings to incorporate 

contractor record drawing mark-ups 

8.0 Materials Testing (OPTIONAL) 

8.1 Provide Material Testing for compliance with the specifications per the 
latest edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 
(Orange Book) testing requirements or as directed by the RTC.' Materials 
to be tested will include aggregate base, native subgrade material, 
structural fill material and Portland Cement Concrete. Test reports, 
accompanied with CONSUL TANT's recommendation regarding 

Task Order No. l 8 



acceptance/mitigation of materials, shall be submitted promptly to the 
RTC and CC'd to appropriate governmental jurisdiction(s). 

8.2 Provide On-site Nuclear Gauge Testing & Sampling during the placement 
of aggregate base and fill materials and on-site PCC testing & sampling. 
120 hours of field testing are anticipated. Laboratory tests will include 
moisture density curves, Atterberg limits, and sieve analysis. Testing will 
also include compressive strength for PCC. Test frequency and 
methodology shall comply with the latest edition of the Orange Book or as 
directed by the RTC. 

9.0 As-Built Information (OPTIONAL) 

9.1 Record Drawings. Provide as-built record drawings for the completed 
project. Two sets of electronic drawings, in single file PDF format (22" x 
34" at 300 dpi), on diskette will be provided to RTC for its files and 
distribution to the Local Entity. The PDF file shall include all plan sheets 
in one file with index/bookmark for easy access to different sheets or 
sections of the plan set. 

9.2 The Record Drawings shall includ~ a scan of the original title sheet 
(including the appropriate signatures by RTC, local government, signed 
and stamped by the CONSULT ANT) and identified as record drawings. 

9.3 The final record drawings must be identified, dated, and signed as the 
record drawings and QIUst also contain the engineer's stamp and signature. 
The Consultant may eitller: 

9 .3 .A. I Provide tl;te final revisions on the original engineer
stamped/signed reproducible drawings, which will then 
also be identified as the record drawings, or 

9~3.A.2,Provide new engineer-stamped/signed reproducible 
drawings identified as the record drawings. 

Deliverables - Electronic copies on CD or Flash drive that contain Daily 
inspection reports testing results, material submittals and reviews, before and after 
pictures and as built plans. 

10.0 Construction CONTINGENCY (OPTIONAL) 
This is a contingency for miscellaneous increases within the scope of this contract 
in the performance of services under Tasks 6.0 to 9 .0. If CONSULT ANT 
determines that it is necessary to perform work to be paid out of contingency, 
CONSULTANT shall provide a letter detailing the need, scope, and not-to-exceed 
budget for any proposed work. Work under this task shall proceed only with the 
RTC Project Manager's prior written approval. 

Task Order No. 1 9 



Exhibit A-2 

SCHEDULE FOR THE 

Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program 

Task Order No. 1 - Amendment No.1 

Milestone Begin End Duration 

RTC Board Approval 3/21/2019 

NTP 3/25/2019 

Preliminary Design 3/25/2019 6/26/2019 13 Weeks 

Preliminary Design Submittal 6/27/2019 

RTC Review 6/28/2019 7/12/2019 2 Weeks 

Rinal Design and ROW 7/13/2019 11/2/2019 16 Weeks 

Final Design Submittal 11/3/2019 

RTC Review 11/4/2019 11/18/2019 2 Weeks 

Finalize Plans 11/19/2019 11/26/2019 1 Week 

Final Plans to RTC 11/27/2019 

Advertise 12/4/2019 1/1/2020 4 Weeks 

Pre Bid Meeting 12/18/2019 

Bid Opening 1/1/2020 

Construction NTP 2/2/2020 90 Calendar Days 

Construction Complete 5/2/2020 ', for Construction 

' 



Exhibit B 

Cost Proposal and Rates 



• • 

Project Information: 
Consultant Information : 

Project Manager: 

,..,., 

TnkNo 
1.o ICI r,~lllllrlit UfllfflL 

<IS.i~MIIA::I""" 

"°" 
o ord1n a li0n w1lh RTC PM 

Hou r~ Subtota l: 

CO!.I Sublolal, 
).0 

1. 
''"'" "'"' """' 

~"' B 
2 3 
2. ~ 

3.D 
H 
32 
.3 3 

--1.Bl-

COit~Ui, 1 1 t r.Gc.r;r Ul..YQ,to Ml'D0-00 ilU>2Il.OO 

$"11 llll 

Ciciorlti~'ll1:l0iletlllllf"CIK ............. .,... 11 1,ii'J 

'"·"' ~~l:l1o~'ll!UCQIU 
0,ftJE,pt:NU 

C~e'IC'\ 
u ,&,-. 

,. ... .. , 
• 

... 
, .. 
r:, 

" • 
. 0.0 , .. 

CONlAACTTO 1-U 
NIW11 •u : a. u 101,aj ti'~ 

71,1 1,&5,14<! Pt~Q ..... ~..l!tll 

Utl .Mitt P't~JO..,C,lo.,,..,. 
)1."-' ,w.p 10f'TICIN.U.' ........ 

u;i .Ulb.N[I 

11C' 11-.1-~ • ..,,,"' itf'IN,jfOf'fJOH,.it 

lilEIAXi • Pe MOTR 

,.. 

.. 

1Qln:.1Ull'l/._10UIII~ 

(lc~l'IOO Piilam enlcr!i 

PGlhAlc OPTW-NALI 
Rdd R~D.tlit 0c:kdmn 
(:;g'-1,~\Q.i, 

ttOUU~OLIIL 

EXHIBIT B-1 COST PROPOSAL 
Bus Stop JCP Project - Task Order 1 - Amendment 1 
CA Group 
Judy Tortelli 

" 
f:"Oll"Ull'l iffl 

Subtansu lla n l 
ifil•tft 1aw.llAIIOI l11.111!81UOO, 

Ho u, s Jo,.tc,"4, HIMIJI cm, .. 

,, " 
·• _ ll.5 t----2t.1- ~ ~1

~ l 
$5 
57.4 

IX -".. ·' 
:, ,~ tG 

• n: 

... .... 
' ~ .. .. 
&I ,,., 

1lt ,a 4"'..t 
1 1,l!,tllOO g,fi lliwlQQ 1 11...M!O.OO SJ9 780 DO sooo iD,OO 50,ltlOI) 

I 
~ • 40 

S.~000 lU ,IO!UID l,T !t,;1.W 'l.lQilJ.00 

,, llt 
n . 1.)11 ) 00.1fl(i 1}01a:i .,.,., ...... "" 

" 

Ck,..,,. 
o 
CMWl.ld»tiaaRl'w-c"" 
60'-" V1d 1QQ•J, P.la!U. 

Hoi11'1-:kltl!Ot.Ai. 
Co:US..di,eul 

ffr;dll\ OT'W.lil' JDP 1,0JrllJ.J 
Pnm.itmt .aNI rl!.,.. E-n,~1, rQIIIIK!C~"'11 

Mov11 5uolo~II 

Co!.1 Sublo la l· 

l.tlocb rd . 0He.t.t1TC1U~ 

~-ocon1,gJH,1tl 
Co&ta 

--- -"'1 

S1 -DO!dc-
.J6. 

.. 

B'2BJ::019 
Sus Slcp lCPCAG T0_1 Amend 1 EXH 8 Fee v:! •In P~, t 

http:Hoi11'1-:kltl!Ot.Ai
http:l.lQilJ.00


Exhibit B-2 Rates 

For the 

Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program 

CA Group Personnel Classification and Rate Schedule 

Principal. ....................................................... $230.00 
Chad Anson 

Project Manager ............................................. $185.00 
Dean Mottram 
Peter Booth (Constructability) 

Independent Checker ........................................ $160.00 
Paul Frost 
Fidel Calixto 

Engineer ....................................................... $145.00 
Jim Ceragioli 
Scott Carrol 
Steve Bird 
Bao Tran 
Helena Murvosh 
Valerie Flock 

Engineering Intern ........................ ✓• ................ 97.50 
Trevor Howard 
Angelie Tiongson 
Jennifer Jarquin 

CADD Technician ............................................ $60.00 
Alyssa Young 
Elisa Chaney 

Clerical .......................... ·~ .............................. $60.00 
Lori Decker 

Inspector ........................................................ $110.00 
George Nicely 
Trevor Howard 

Rate Schedule associated with Task Order #1 

Rate Schedule for Task Orders #2 and #3 will each have individual rate schedules adjusted based on The Consumer 
Price Index at the time of authorization. 



ATTACHMENT B 

AMENDMENT NO. I 
MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

The Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and CA Group, Inc. 
("CONSUL TANT") entered into a Master Services Agreement dated March 25, 2019. This 
Amendment # 1 is dated and effective as of October I, 2019. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Master Services Agreement allows RTC to approve annual task orders for design 
and construction management services for the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectively Program 
for up to a three year period depending on annual program needs and budget for the program; and 

WHEREAS, each task order or amendment requires a corresponqing amendment to the not-to
exceed amount in the Master Services Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, RTC approved Task Order # 1 on March 25, 2019 for the 2019 construction season 
in an amount not-to-exceed $441 ,705; and 

WHEREAS, RTC approved an amendment to Task Order #1 on September 20, 2019 to increase 
the not-to-exceed amount by $76,440 for a new not-to-exceed amount of $518, I 45; and 

WHEREAS, RTC approved Task Order #2 on September 20, 2019 for the 2020 construction 
season in an amount not-to exceed $580,865 ; and 

WHEREAS, the Master Services Agreement must be amended to increase the not-to-exceed 
amount by $657,305 to reflect the amendment to Task Order # 1 and the approval of Task Order 
#2. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the parties and other good and 
valuable consideration, the parties do agree as follows: 

I. Section 3.3 of the Master Services Agreement shall be replaced in its entirety with the 
following: 

The maximum amount payable to CONSUL TANT for all Task Orders resulting from this 
Agreement shall not exceed $1,099,010. Subsequent Task Orders must be approved by the 
RTC Board of Commissioners, along with a corresponding amendment to the not-to
exceed amount in this section, prior to execution and effectiveness. 

2. All other provisions of the Master Services Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this amendment. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM: 

Dale Ferguson, RTC Chief Counsel 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

By: __________ _______ _ 
Lee G. Gibson, l;:x:ecutive Director 

CA GROUP, lNC. 

By: ___ ______________ _ 

Chad Anson, P.E., Vice President 

2 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.9 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

t,,&_ ~·~ FROM: Judy L. Tortelli 
Engineer II son, AICP 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Approve Task Order #2 for the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity 
Program for the 2020 Construction Season 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve Task Order #2 under the Master Services Agreement with CA Group, Inc. for design 
services and optional engineering during construction for the Bus Stop Improvement and 
Connectivity Program for the 2020 construction season in an amount not-to-exceed $580,865 and 
an amendment to the Master Services Agreement to reflect the increased not-to-exceed amount; 
authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the task order and amendment. 

SUMMARY 

CA Group, Inc. was awarded a Master Services Agreement to provide design services and optional 
engineering during construction for the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program for up to 
three years. This Task Order #2 (see Attachment A) is for professional design services for the 2020 
construction season in the amount of $363,470, and optional engineering during construction 
services (EDC) in the amount of $217,395. The program is a multi-year effort to upgrade existing 
bus stops to comply with state and federal requirements, including the Americans with Disabilities 
Act (ADA). Each issuance of a task order requires a corresponding amendment to the not-to-exceed 
amount in the Master Services Agreement (see Attachment B). 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Project appropriations are included in the approved FY 2020 Budget and Program of Projects as part 
of the Annual Pavement Preservation Program. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

August 16, 2019 Acknowledged receipt of the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity 
Program (Bus Stop ICP) progress report. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno , NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


March 15, 2019 

March 15, 2019 

January 18, 2019 

November 16, 2018 

Bus Stop ICP 19-01 Project 
Task Order No. 2 PSA 

R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 
Page2 

Approved a Master Services Agreement with CA Group, Inc. to 
provide engineering design and construction management services for 
up to three years; approved Task Order No. 1 for the 2019 construction 
season. 

Acknowledged receipt of an update report on bus stop accessibility and 
improvements. 

Approved the Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 Street and Highway Program of 
Projects (POP) 

Authorized a Request for Qualifications for Engineering Design and 
Construction Management Services for the Bus Stop Improvement and 
Connectivity Program 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachments 



ATTACHMENT A 

Task Order #2 
Master Services Agreement 

This Task Order #2 (this "Task Order") is dated and effective as of October I, 2019, in 
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Master Services Agreement dated March 25, 2019 
as amended on October 1, 2019 (the "Agreement"), by and between the Regional Transportation 
Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and CA Group, Inc. ("CONSULTANT"). 

WHEREAS, the parties entered into the Agreement for CONSULT ANT to perform 
engineering design and construction management services in connection with RTC's Bus Stop 
Improvement and Connectivity Program for up to three years; and 

WHEREAS, RTC's Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program is a multi-year 
effort to upgrade existing bus stops to be in compliance with state and federal requirements, 
including the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA); and 

WHEREAS, this Task Order is for services to be performed•in connection with projects in 
RTC's 2020 construction season; and 

WHEREAS, RTC's Board of Commissioners approved this Task Order on September 20, 
2019. 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSULTANT agree as follows: 

1. TERM 

The term of this Task Order shall be from the date first written above through June 30, 
202 I, unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions of the Agreement. The term of this Task Order cannot exceed the term of the 
Agreement. 

2. SCOP OF SERVICES 

The scope of services consist of the tasks and deliverables set forth in Exhibit A. 

3. CHEDULE OF PERFORMA CE 

Tasks shall be completed in accordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any change(s) to 
the schedule must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

4. COSTS 

CONSULT ANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. RTC shall not be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as provided 
in Exhibit B. 

-1-



5. MAXIM UM COMPENSA TIO 

The maximum amount payable to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULT ANT can request in writing 
that RTC ' s Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSULTANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amount for this Task Order: 

Total Design Services: (Tasks 1.0 to 5.0) $358,470 
Contingency - Design Services: (Task 6.0) $5,000 
Total OPTIONAL Construction Services: (Tasks 7.0 to 9.0) $197,395 
Contingency - Construction Services: (Task 10.0) $20.000 
Total (Including Optional Services) $580,865 

6. OTHER PROVISIONS 

All other provisions of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect during the term 
of this Task Order, as if fully set forth herein. · 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: ___ _ ____ _ ____ _ _ 

Dale E. Ferguson, RTC Chief Counsel 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WA SHOE COUNTY 

By: _ __________ __ _ 

Lee G. Gibson, Executive Director 

CA GROUP, INC. 

By: ___ __________ _ 

Chad Anson, PE, Vice President 

-2-



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services and Schedule 



EXHIBIT A-1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 

BUS STOP IMPROVEMENT AND CONNECTIVITY PROGRAM (ICP) PROJECT 
TASKORDER2 

The scope of services for this project will generally consist of the following tasks: 

1.0 Project Management. CONSULTANT will provide Project Management for the 
scope of work. The Project Manager will be responsible for the ongoing project 
coordination of all activities for the duration of the work. The Project Manager 
shall be a licensed Professional Civil Engineer, Registered in the State of Nevada 
and provide both design and construction oversight. The Project Manager, 
Designer and Lead Inspector shall be considered key personnel for this Project. 
Project Management includes tasks such as: 

• Project set-up and administration 
• Monthly budget monitoring and invoicing 
• Preparation and reporting of project progress and schedule 
• Quality assurance on deliverables 
• Coordination with t~e RTC Project Manager 

The duration of the project development and design portion of the project is 
assumed to be nine (9) months. 

2.0 Project Development. Identify constraints, collect data, and perform analysis to 
determine a reasonable set of improvements. 

2.1 CONSUL TANT will define a specific set of parameters for improvements 
to address the following: 

• Existing public Right-of-Way (ROW) verification 
• Sidewalk connectivity 
• Utility adjustments 
• Landscape adjustments 
• Curb, gutter, driveway, and curb ramp replacement at 

intersections 
• Bus stop pad dimensions 
• ADA compliance of improvements 

2.2 Utility Investigation/Depiction. CONSULTANT will investigate and 
locate subsurface utilities within the roadway right-of-way, and areas 
reasonably affected, in accordance with the American Society of Civil 
Engineers Standard guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing 

Task Order No. 2 I 



Subsurface Utility Data, Quality Level C. Additionally, CONSUL TANT 
will coordinate with Utility Owners to remove lids of surface features and 
document depth of utility device, or invert of pipe, within such surface 
features ifthere is reason to expect conflict due to vertical clearances. All 
located, existing underground utilities will be shown on the Plan Sheets 
accompanied with the following "Note: Subsurface utilities are depicted 
by their Quality Levels in accordance American Society of Civil 
Engineers Standard Guidelines for the Collection and Depiction of 
Existing Subsurface Utility Data (CI/ASCE 38-02). All utility information 
shown hereon is depicted to Quality Level "C", unless otherwise noted." 

2.2.A Utility coordination: Based on field investigation, 
CONSULTANT will provide RTC a list of utility company whose 
utilities are likely to be within the project limits or reasonably 
affected by the project. RTC will issue the initial notification to 
the utility agencies on the list. CONSULT ANT will evaluate 
potential conflicts through field investigation, investigate conflict 
resolution strategies and coordinate with the utility agencies for 
upcoming work, facility relpcation/adjllstment, and ensure utilities 
likely affected by the project are indicated on the project plans. 

2.2.B Utility Pothole Exploration (OPTIONAL): Should insufficient 
information be available from existing records to determine 
whether or not conflicts between the proposed work and existing 
utilities will occur, the CONSULTANT shall pothole a sufficient 
number oflocations to make such a determination. These services 
are optional and will be compensated through Section 2.2 by 
written approval from the RTC Project Manager. One (1) pothole 
location assumed. 

2.3 Field Review and Data Collection. CONSULTANT will perform the 
foilowing field review and data collection activities: 

• Document potential design constraints at each location ( drainage, 
utility, landscape, aesthetics, etc.) 

• Field measure quantities 
• Sidewalk connectivity and accessible pedestrian access route 
• Safety review of bus stop locations with recommendations 

One hundred and forty (140) bus stop locations are assumed. 

2.3.A Surveying. These services will not be provided at all bus stop 
locations. Some locations may have a more complex design and 
may require staking to properly locate and construct the 
improvements. Sixty (60) sites are assumed to need survey. The 
following are examples of anticipated survey: 

Task Order No. 2 2 



• Existing curb and gutter stakes at 50 foot stations and 25 
foot stations at returns. 

• Right-of way boundary for areas around proposed bus stop 
improvements 

• Location of existing storm drains, retaining curbs, 
sidewalks or walls, utility pull boxes and vaults. 

2.4 Cost Estimates. CONSULTANT will prepare a preliminary cost estimate 
suitable for RTC review. Items identified during Field Review and Data 
Collection, Task 2.3, will be included in the Cost Estimate. 

2.5 Prioritization. CONSUL TANT will work with the R TC Project Manager 
and Transit to further prioritize the list ofblis stop improvements. 

Deliverables - Report providing documentation that summarizes Project 
Development activities and decisions made to determine the final set of 
proposed improvements. 

3.0 Design. Sixty (60) bus stop locations are assumed. 

3.1 Permitting 
3.1.A CONSUL TAN1 shall coordinate with the City of Reno as 

necessary to determine Encroachment and Excavation Permit 
requirements: Two (2) Permits will be required for bus stop 
improvements located within the City of Reno (one (1) permit 
north of the Truckee River and one (1) permit south) 

3.1.B CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the City of Sparks as 
necessary to determine Encroachment and Excavation Permit 
requirements. One (1) Permit will be required for bus stop 
improvements located within the City of Sparks 

3.1.C CONSULTANT shall coordinate with the Washoe County as 
necessary to determine Permit requirements. One (1) Permit will 
be required for bus stop improvements located within Washoe 
County. 

3 .1.D CONSULT ANT shall prepare and submit Occupancy Permits for 
bus stop improvements located on NDOT routes. Five (5) Permits 
are assumed ( one ( 1) permit for each State Route affected) will be 
required for bus stop improvements located within NDOT right-of
way. 

3.2 Constructability Review. CONSULTANT shall facilitate a one day 
workshop to perform a Constructability Review of the Project prior to the 
I 00% submittal. The intent is to review plans, specifications, and 
construction approach to minimize potential construction change orders 
and ensure clear intent is provided. Field personnel, Designer, Project 

Task Order No. 2 3 



Manager and RTC Project manager shall attend a field review of some of 
the more complex bus stop improvements. Discussion topics include 
review of design in the field, project plan clarity, conflict identification, 
maintenance of traffic, limitations of operations, schedule and phasing. 

3 .2.A Prior to 60% submittal, CONSULT ANT shall develop construction 
working day duration estimate and construction phasing plan based 
on final list of improvements. Define traffic impacts, schedule 
constraints and reasonable limitations of operations 

3.3 60% and I 00% Plans, Specifications, and Engineer's Estimate for Agency 
review 

3.3.A Prepare Construction Plans, Contract Documents and Technical 
Specifications suitable for constru~tion bid advertisement in 
accordance with RTC standards and requirements. RTC will 
provide the boilerplate in MS Word format. The RTC, Local Entity 
and Quality Control review comments will be incorporated into the 
final Plans and Specifications. 

The final construction plans will .be on 22" x 34" size sheets and 
will be presented in an abbreviated format using GIS based aerial 
photography that properly depicts the elements of the project 
construction, including plan view, right-of-way lines, and 
construetion/slope limits. Any modification to traffic signal are 
anticipated to be minimal and limited to pedestrian push buttons 
and poles. Traffic Signal Modification will be included in the 
Special Detail Sheets, with the customary information, schedules 
and symbology. The final plan set will include, as a minimum: 

• Title Sheet 
• Legend, General Notes, and Abbreviations 
• Standard Bus Pad Detail (scales as noted) 
• Plan Sheets (at l "=20' scale). Estimated 2 to 4 locations per 

plan sheet 
• Special Detail Sheets (at I "=IO' scale) 
• Standard Detail Sheets (scales as noted). 

The Contract Documents and Technical Specifications for bus stop 
locations located in the limits of the City of Reno, City of Sparks 
and Washoe County will reference the latest edition of Standard 
Specifications for Public Works Construction (Orange Book) for 
standard construction items. Technical provisions will be prepared 
for approved deviations from the Orange Book and unique 
construction items not adequately covered in the Orange Book. 
The Contract Documents and Technical Specifications for bus stop 
location located within Nevada Department of Transportation 

Task Order No. 2 4 



3.3.B 

3.3.C 

3.3.D 

(NDOT) right-of -way will reference the latest edition of the 
NDOT Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge Construction 
(Silver Book) and the NDOT Standard Plans for Road and Bridge 
Construction for standard construction items. Technical provisions 
will be prepared for approved deviations from the Silver Book and 
unique construction items not adequately covered in the Silver 
Book. The final plans and specifications will be signed and sealed 
by a Nevada Registered Professional Civil Engineer in responsible 
charge of preparation. Plans and specifications will be submitted 
to the RTC, Local Entity, NDOT, utility agencies and other 
affected parties for review at the 60%, 100%, and final stages of 
completion per the following: 

• 60% and 100% Plans - One electronic copy (PDF) on a flash 
drive or through email to RTC,-local entities, utility agencies 
and other affected parties. Up to two 11 "x 17" sets will be 
provided upon request. 

• 60% Plans - One electronic copy (PDF) to Washoe County 
Health District (WCHD). Up to two 11 "x 17" sets will be 
provided upon request. 

• 60% and 100% Specifications - One electronic copy (PDF) 
R TC and Local Entities 

• 100% Plans - Email electronic copy (PDF) of updated sheet(s) 
to WCHD as rieeded 

• Final Construction Plan Set - One 22"x34" set to RTC, one 
11 "x 17" set each to RTC, Local Entities, and utility agencies. 

• Final Construction Specification Document - One set each to 
RTC and Local Entities, one copy in MS Word format of the 
Contract Documents and Technical Specifications to RTC. 

Independent Checker. An independent checker will check, initial 
arid date each plan sheet. A quality control review of the plans, 
contract documents and technical specifications will be performed 
which will focus on technical aspects of the plans and 
specifications and will ensure that all items of work are adequately 
covered. 

Utility Agency Coordination. Distribute design review submittals 
(60% & I 00%) to utility agencies for review and comment, and 
provide RTC a list of utility agencies provided design review 
submittals and Utility Agency review comments. CONSULTANT 
will submit areas within NDOT right-of-way to NDOT District 2 
Permits, including pre-permitting and final permit review. 

Final Engineer's Opinion of Probable Construction Costs and 
Time. Provide a final Engineer's opinion of probable construction 
costs for the project based on the final design and any alternatives 

Task Order No. 2 5 



or options. The cost opinion will be in the same format as the bid 
proposal form included in the contract documents. A quality 
control review of the cost opinion will be performed by the 
CONSULT ANT. The CONSULT ANT will also estimate the 
number of working or calendar days, as appropriate, for the 
construction of the projects. 

4.0 Right-of-Way. CONSULTANT will obtain record right-of-way based upon 
Washoe County GIS information. Right-of way will be tied to the roadway 
centerline and existing monuments, as necessary for Permanent Easements. 
Right-of-way information will be shown on the project plans. No further 
resolution of the roadway right-of-way is included in this task. 

4.1 Permanent Easements and Temporary Construction Easements. It is 
estimated approximately sixty (60) parcels will require permanent and/or 
temporary easements to construct the planned improvements. 
CONSUL TANT will perform boundary surveying including preparation 
of full Metes and Bounds descriptions of sixty (60) individual parcels. 
This will include property record research, drafting of property boundaries 
from record descriptions, calculations of search coordinates for filed 
boundary survey, field b.oundary survey on each affected parcel, post 
processing and reduction of field data, boundary resolution based upon 
field findings, prepar13;tion oflegal descriptions and exhibit maps of 
individual affected parc;els .. CONSULTANT shall pull preliminary Title 
Reports and updates as necessary for each affected parcel. 

Right-of-way appraisal, property owner negotiations, escrow coordination 
and title clearance is not included within this task. 

Deliverables~ property boundary for sixty (60) parcels along with exhibit 
maps, legal descriptions, and title report for permanent and/or temporary 
construction easements on each parcel. Right-of-Way summary 
spreadsheet detailing easement type, size, and reason by parcel. 

5.0 Bidding Services 

5.1 Plan Set and Specification Distribution. CONSUL TANT will provide 
RTC with final plans and specifications, including addenda, in Portable 
Document Format (PDF), for use in the Ebid system. 

5.2 Pre-bid Meeting. CONSUL TANT will be available during the bidding 
process to answer technical questions and will hold the pre-bid meeting. 
All questions and responses will be documented and provided to RTC. 
CONSULTANT will prepare and provide PDF addenda, if required. All 
questions regarding legal aspects of the contract documents will be 

Task Order No. 2 6 



referred directly to RTC. CONSULTANT will prepare and provide a PDF 
summary of the pre-bid meeting, as directed by the RTC. 

5.3 Requests for Information (RFI) and Addenda. CONSULTANT will 
answers to RFis from the bidders as forwarded and requested by the RTC. 
If necessary, CONSULTANT will prepare plan sheets or specification for 
addenda to the bid package. 

5.4 Bid Opening. CONSUL TANT will attend the bid opening and review the 
bids received for irregularities and provide a recommendation for award. 
CONSULTANT will tabulate bid results into a MS Excel spreadsheet and 
check multiplication and addition of bid items. 

6.0 Design Contingency (OPTIONAL) 

This is a contingency for miscellaneous increases within the scope of this contract 
in the performance of services under Tasks 1.0 to 5.0. If CONSULTANT 
determines that it is necessary to perform work to be paid out of contingency, 
CONSULTANT shall provide a letter detailing the need, scope, and not-to-exceed 
budget for any proposed work. Work under this t~sk shall proceed only with the 
RTC Project Manager's prior written approval: 

7.0 Construction Services (OPTIONAL) - The RTC and CONSULTANT shall 
review Optional Construction Services following the completion of final design to 
determine their appropriateness to the project. 

7 .1 Provide Contract Administration and Project Management services as 
follows: 

• Attend the preconstruction conference 
• Perform construction coordination 
• Review and provide recommendations on contractor's traffic control 

plans 
• Review and stamp contractor's submittal for conformance to the 

contract documents, including specified material certifications, 
plantmix bituminous pavement and Portland Cement concrete mix 
designs 

• Review and provide recommendations on test results 
• Review and provide recommendations on contractor's construction 

schedule and work progress 
• Review construction for acceptance and/or mitigation 
• Provide verification and approval of contractor's monthly pay request 
• Supervise the inspection, surveying and material testing activities 
• Provide recommendations to the R TC for any necessary construction 

changes due to field conditions 
• Assist in change order review and approval 

Task Order No. 2 7 



7.2 Construction Surveying. These services will not be provided at all bus 
stop locations. Surveying will be provided at areas where the construction 
activities are performed outside right-of-way and require either an 
easement or permission to construct. Some location may have a more 
complex design and may require staking to properly locate and construct 
the improvements. Twenty sites are assumed need staking; This include 
the sixty (60) sites for right-of-way and five (5) sites for more complex 
design. The following are examples of anticipated construction staking: 

• Final curb and gutter stakes at 50 foot stations and 25 foot stations at 
returns. 

• Offset stakes for easement and permission to construct agreements. 
• Offset stakes for curb cut ramps, storm drains, retaining curbs or walls, 

pedestrian push button poles, utility pull boxes and vaults. 
• Roadway monuments, referenced in four directions. 

7 .3 Inspection 

7.3.A Provide Inspector. Provide one full time and one quarter time 
inspector during all construction activities. 8-hour work days and 
a 60 working day contract period are anticipated. This inspector 
will: 

• Attend the preconstruction conference 
• Monitor the work performed by the Contractor and verify that 

the work is in accordance with the plans and specifications 
• Assist in problem resolution with the RTC, contractor 

personnel, utility agencies, the public and others 
• 'Prepare daily inspection reports, submitted weekly to RTC and 

CC'd to the appropriate governmentjurisdiction(s). 
• Provide quantity reports and assist in contractor's monthly 

progress payments 
• Provide verification of the distribution of public relation 

notices required to be delivered by the contractor 
• Assist in preparation of the Punch List 
• Maintain a field blueline set of drawings to incorporate 

contractor record drawing mark-ups 

8.0 Materials Testing (OPTIONAL) 

8.1 Provide Material Testing for compliance with the specifications per the 
latest edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 
(Orange Book) testing requirements or as directed by the RTC. Materials 
to be tested will include aggregate base, native subgrade material, 
structural fill material and Portland Cement Concrete. Test reports, 
accompanied with CONSULTANT's recommendation regarding 

Task Order No. 2 8 



acceptance/mitigation of materials, shall be submitted promptly to the 
RTC and CC'd to appropriate governmental jurisdiction(s). 

8.2 Provide On-site Nuclear Gauge Testing & Sampling during the placement 
of aggregate base and fill materials and on-site PCC testing & sampling. 
120 hours of field testing are anticipated. Laboratory tests will include 
moisture density curves, Atterberg limits, and sieve analysis. Testing will 
also include compressive strength for PCC. Test frequency and 
methodology shall comply with the latest edition of the Orange Book or as 
directed by the RTC. 

9.0 As-Built Information (OPTIONAL) 

9.1 Record Drawings. Provide as-built record drawings for the completed 
project. Two sets of electronic drawings, in single file PDF format (22" x 
34" at 300 dpi), on diskette will be provided to RTC for its files and 
distribution to the Local Entity. The PDF file shall include all plan sheets 
in one file with index/bookmark for easy access to different sheets or 
sections of the plan set. 

9.2 The Record Drawings shall include a scan of the original title sheet 
(including the appropriate signatures by RTC, local government, signed 
and stamped by the CONSULT ANT) and identified as record drawings. 

9.3 The final record drawings must be identified, dated, and signed as the 
record drawings and must also contain the engineer's stamp and signature. 
The Consultant may eitper: 

9.3.A.lProvide the final revisions on the original engineer
stamped/signed reproducible drawings, which will then 
also be identified as the record drawings, or 

9.3.A.2Provide new engineer-stamped/signed reproducible 
drawings identified as the record drawings. 

Deliverables - El~ctronic copies on CD or Flash drive that contain Daily 
inspection reports testing results, material submittals and reviews, before and after 
pictures and as built plans. 

10.0 Construction CONTINGENCY (OPTIONAL) 
This is a contingency for miscellaneous increases within the scope of this contract 
in the performance of services under Tasks 6.0 to 9.0. If CONSUL TANT 
determines that it is necessary to perform work to be paid out of contingency, 
CONSULTANT shall provide a letter detailing the need, scope, and not-to-exceed 
budget for any proposed work. Work under this task shall proceed only with the 
RTC Project Manager's prior written approval. 

Task Order No. 2 9 



Exhibit A-2 
SCHEDULE FOR THE 

BUS STOP IMPROVEMENT AND CONNECTIVITY PROGRAM 

TASK ORDER NO. 2 

Milestone Begin End Duration 

RTC Board Approval 9/20/2019 

NTP 9/30/2019 

Preliminary Design 9/30/2019 1/1/2020 13 Weeks 

Preliminary Design Submittal 1/2/2020 

RTC Review 1/3/2020 1/17/2020 2 Weeks 

Final Design 1/18/2020 2/15/2020 4 Weeks 

Final Design Submittal 2/16/2020 

RTC Review 2/17/2020 3/2/2020 2 Weeks 

Finalize Plans 3/3/2020 3/10/2020 1 Week 

Final Plans to RTC 3/11/2020 

Advertise 3/18/2020 4/15/2020 4 Weeks 

Pre Bid Meeting 4/1/2020 
Bid Opening 4/15/2020 

-

Construction NTP 5/17/2020 ""·, . 90 Calendar Days 
Construction Complete 8/15/2020 ...... \.j for Construction 

'-' 



Exhibit B 

Cost Proposal and Rates 



" 

I 
I 
I 

"' ''"'" "'"" 

EXHIBIT B-1 COST PROPOSAL 
Project Information: Bus Stop ICP Project - Task Order 2 

Consultant Information : CA Group 
Project Manager: Judy Tortelli 

l a& kNo , 
1,_Mr.: 1rtbl'liUIMtffit 

_,o,K'l"G.ci~oll4.11:11rn.o ,,,.,._.,!ti 
IU IN! tche.,. lh .,..._..._,,.. 

Coo •d1nal1cm with RTC PM 

t.o PIMn 

-:01 eiw• P~ut 
:t.? l!h'l'INll!b:lfll 

l.,U IA.Lt: Cooli&IIWJOII 

-. " 9 Pel hole fOPTIDNAL l 
,._.) fwrtd ~.w!llt.a Coard~ 

houts:i.lm"'-W 
Cos lSublo la l: 

_., n 

Et11Jlm'W.I 

" 

1:t l!lil 

.. , 
fnglr! ,-PI U'f 

lr1tiffl 
IOu.lgiltt 

li.oW11o~DIOI .. 

Cost Sublol;d. :ll,1600!> U.lUO.QD ll , ~l)O r.-J tOOO:I 

CADD 
Techr,i_c;_1,1 n 

.. ,,. 
)I 

•• 

• -
" ' ,., ,e 

~OCI J I UOOO S.!36DCIO 

'" 

• 
lO CO k!.00 

.. 

r 1111•1 Labo• LoNIHI t..t--
Hoi,11 Co•b 

Subcon~u11ar,t 11,Mbc:on,aul\fnt 
Houis c [n,h 

. I .1-1.1 .. 

., 
.,,.,. ·- ' ~-... 

~ ..... ' 
/UCJfL !51'011!1llll .. 

CostSublolal: ' - .. .., '°"' SD IJ11ldlnG!btvM:.n.- IC """'"" 
?un Se! .,1111 ,S,o~oc,1110l!tlltlJ!l11n 

52 " ?ff...a,111J.K1.-

Ho.i.ltlo.lil.leitcot.N:; 

t cHl.sslb.loUI• ~000 sooo -"l.1JO SD 00 S<JOO so.ao -~ 
6.0 

10'•6'.· 
lt1XlOIJW111:1ld. <I OI 01 

Cost SUblola l ..... " ,.,., IAOO , ... .. en rn:,:1 '°"" C- 011111,10'°" hn'kH {Oft lONM.1 "'"" ~...i----,"""' SCm "'"" 
,~~ " I 

I 

I ·ooo 

'" .... ....... ""' .., l.1~00 lZ.4Cl'JOOO IOOO "'"" """ 
.. .. • 

Co stSUblotal , . .., " ' "'-"" '"-"" 
I.SI ...._•ih,ut l"lo!'TNIIUetn IGl'lUWd,J.1 "'"" """' """' ''"'" ''"" '"-"" 

"'·••9-~IIIM" 
'Ht,011.5.ltbklllll ot 

Co slSUblo\al. S\-'.Ml.CO .,. .. .., ·~ MAtDQ0 .,,_., ' "' , .. o .. 
~o.o COIIIINUWln Ca\11ftt~IOP110HAI..J ''"" """' 

~ - 1'11Cl>i;;.:�..:;,'~,..:. 
Hr.aYHiliOJi,!Jil.; • 

C.tnl l\lb.lt1ra '°1lD " ' Ill.CO 

., 
.Sct,QO ..... 

4m ... 
. ~~-~-u,_,,..., '""' ""' 

n =----,..--- --,;,--- =r---.,,..-- ...,,.,,.-""'l'I--., ==..,,,,,, ,....- ...... ,,,,-- ......... " n, ... , ~~ 
17.lX! S.13-tll&O .uc:i 1to1 :l'al1Xll .i, .... ~ ..... .U.,00 "' ....... IC - ~ - u;r_ui,_., 

I 
I 

I 

ec~a.:w:0,t.rnl..lltit~ 
!.tAlcGt'IIIIDNC,c,J. 

UH) l f<I 

11110.'11 ..... 
S-:0.'0U:.. 

u ,ooc =-,,.., ... 
1.0 ~-= ,., ,. 
•• .... 
• .. , 

•• 
._. 

CQNTR.&CT TOTAi.$ 

UDOl"CIUII ,., ., 
n , 

'" 
., 

,,. 

.. 

• . I ·&IIIKGlM 14m 

J4J..la. l"tWl(t\llnit111m~M 

,._1 ,1 ( «ll)n,;lallolNIII 

T'IWJ ~- ( tAl_ 
H.CUJ Mt00:•Sl/h_... ..... 

B/2!112019 
Bus Slop ICP CA.G T0_2 E XH B Fee: Y::' YISY 

http:S\-'.Ml.CO
http:ff...a,111J.K1


Exhibit B-2 Rates 

For the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectivity Program 

CA Group Personnel Classification and Rate Schedule 

Principal ........................................................ $230.00 
Chad Anson 

Project Manager ............................................. $185.00 
Dean Mottram 
Peter Booth (Constructability) 

Independent Checker ....................................... $160.00 
Paul Frost 
Fidel Calixto 

Engineer ....................................................... $145.00 
Jim Ceragioli 
Scott Carrol 
Steve Bird 
Bao Tran 
Helena Mnrvosh 
Valerie Flock 

Engineering Intern .......................................... $97.50 
Trevor Howard 
Angelie Tiongson 
Jennifer Jarquin 

CADD Technician ............................................ $60.00 
Alyssa Young 
Elisa Chaney 

Clerical. ......................................................... $60.00 
Lori Decker 

Inspector ........................................................ $110.00 
George Nicely 
Trevor Howard 

Rate Schedule associated with Task Order #2 

Rate Schedule for Task Order #3 will have individual rate schedules adjusted based on The Consumer Price Index at 
the time of authorization. 



ATTACHMENT B 

AMENDMENT NO. I 
MASTER SERVICES AGREEMENT 

The Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and CA Group, Inc. 
("CONSUL TANT") entered into a Master Services Agreement dated March 25, 2019. This 
Amendment # l is dated and effective as of October I, 2019. 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the Master Services Agreement allows R TC to approve annual task orders for design 
and construction management services for the Bus Stop Improvement and Connectively Program 
for up to a three year period depending on annual program needs and budget for the program; and 

WHEREAS, each task order or amendment requires a corresponding amendment to the not-to
exceed amount in the Master Services Agreement; and 

WHEREAS, RTC approved Task Order #1 on March 25, 2019 forthe 2019 construction season 
in an amount not-to-exceed $441,705; and 

WHEREAS, RTC approved an amendment to Task Order# 1 on September 20, 2019 to increase 
the not-to-exceed amount by $76,440 for a new not-to-exceed amount of $518,145; and 

WHEREAS, RTC approved Task Order #2 on September 20, 2019 for the 2020 construction 
season in an amount not-to exceed $580,865; and 

WHEREAS, the Master Services Agreement must be amended to increase the not-to-exceed 
amount by $657,305 to reflect the amendment to Task Order #1 and the approval of Task Order 
#2. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises of the parties and other good and 
valuable consideration, the parties do agree as follows: 

I. Section 3.3 of the Master Services Agreement shall be replaced in its entirety with the 
following: 

The maximum amount payable to CONSUL TANT for all Task Orders resulting from this 
Agreement shall not exceed $1,099,010. Subsequent Task Orders must be approved by the 
RTC Board of Commissioners, along with a corresponding amendment to the not-to
exceed amount in this section, prior to execution and effectiveness. 

2. All other provisions of the Master Services Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this amendment. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM: 

Dale Ferguson, RTC Chief Counsel 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

By: _________________ _ 
Lee G. Gibson, Executive Director 

CA GROUP, INC. 

By: _ ________________ _ 

Chad Anson P.E., Vice President 

2 



Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.10 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Maria Paz Fernandez, P.E. fo~u.t~i-~ Engineer II 
Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Headway Transportation, LLC, 
for Traffic Operations Analysis for the Center Street Cycle Track Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Headway Transportation, LLC, to provide 
preliminary traffic operations analysis for the Center Street Cycle Track Project in an amount not
to-exceed $95,950; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

The RTC conducted the Bicycle Facilities Alternatives Analysis for Center, Sierra and Virginia 
Streets to study bicycle facility options on Center and Sierra Streets. Based on that study, staff 
recommended a two-way cycle track on Center Street as well as a southbound bicycle lane on 
Sierra Street. The study was presented to the RTC Board on January 18, 2019. 

On April 25, 2019, RTC issued a Request for Proposals for interested firms to provide traffic 
analysis, design and construction management services for the Center Street Cycle Track Project. 
This agreement (see Attachment A) will provide the preliminary traffic analysis needed to validate 
the proposed alternative of a two-way cycle track along Center Street. 

The limits of this project extend from Center Street at Mary Street to the intersection of Center at 
Ninth Street in Reno. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Appropriations are included in the FY 19 Budget and FY 19 Program of Projects. 

RTC Board: Ron Smith (Chair) · Bob Lucey (Vice Chair) · Oscar Delgado · Vaughn Hartung · Neoma Jardon 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Center St Cycle Track Project PSA 
R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

March 15, 2019 Authorized the procurement of Engineering Professional Services for 
the Center Street Cycle Track and Sierra Street Bicycle Lane Project 

January 18, 2019 Approved Bicycle Facility Alternatives Analysis, for Center, Sierra 
and Virginia Streets Report 

August 17, 2018 Acknowledge receipt of a report on the Bicycle Facility Alternatives 
Analysis for Center, Sierra and Virginia Streets and provided 
direction 

May 18, 2017 Approved the 2040 RTP 

June 15, 2017 Approved the Bicycle & Pedestrian Master Plan 

August 17, 2017 Approved the FFY 2018-2022 RTIP 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

The Bicycle Facilities Alternatives Analysis for Center, Sierra and Virginia Streets was completed 
by Traffic Works, LLC and approved by the RTC Board on January 18, 2019. The purpose of the 
study was to identify bicycle facility options on the main streets in downtown Reno. The preferred 
alternative recommended is a two-way cycle track on Center Street as well as a southbound bicycle 
lane on Sierra Street. The Alternatives were evaluated for feasibility based on the available space 
within the roadway (curb-to-curb), level of traffic stress (safety), planning level cost estimates, 
existing roadway capacity, lane and parking impacts, maintenance factors, and connectivity. 

The RTC identified both Center Street and Sierra Street as high priority bicycle projects in the 
Bicycle & Pedestrian Master Plan and as candidate roadways for complete street design treatments 
in the Complete Street Master Plan. These projects were also included in the first five years of the 
2040 Regional Transportation Plan. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE{S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachments 



ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of September 20, 2019, by and 
between the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and Headway 
Transportation, LLC ("CONSULT ANT"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RTC has selected CONSULTANT to perfonn traffic operations analysis in 
connection with the Center Street Cycle Track Project (the "Project"). 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSUL TANT, in consideratio f the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows: 

1.1. RTC hereby engages CONSULTANT an T hereby accepts the 
engagement to complete traffic analysis fo · 

1.2. CONSUL TANT will perform the wo ik u rig e project team identified in Exhibit A. Any 
changes to the project team must be y RTC's Project Manager. 

1.3. CONSULTANT will prompt~ a faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable pro on ~ndards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act of any gove m t civr j tur ances or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control of CONSULT A 

1 .4. CONSUL TA shall no roceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement an a P. :elra ~ order has been issued to CONSULT ANT. If CONSUL TANT 
violates that prohi itio1 ON SUL TANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 
payment for that 0 nd waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order. CONSUL TANT shall not rely on the terms 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by RTC or any of its agents, employees or 
affiliates, or on any dates of performance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 

1.5 . The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through June 30, 
2020, unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions herein. 

-1-



ARTICLE2 -SERVICES OF CONSULTANT 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICE 

The scope of services consist of the tasks set forth in Exhibit A. 

2.2. SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

Tasks and subtasks shall be completed in accordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any 
change(s) to the schedule must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

2.3. OPTIONS 

RTC shall have the right to exercise its option(s) for all or a part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identified in Exhibit A. CONSULTANT will pr 
of services reflecting the specific optional services req 
and a cost proposal. RTC will review and approve th 
CONSUL TANT will discuss and agree 
CONSUL TANT shall undertake no work on a1 

proceed with the performance of said tasKAJN:lilbL:. 
select another individual or firm to pe · ·m ti 
Exhibit A. 

2.4. ADDITIONAL SERV1CES 

re and submit a detailed scope 
ed chedule for such services, 

e of vices and RTC and 
n and a schedule. 

option and discretion, may 
tasks or subtasks identified in 

CONSULT ANT will provide services in connection with the Project when 
agreed to in writing by _ _,_,,.nd TANT. 

2.5 . 

i1 ering work furnished by CONSUL TANT shall be performed 
n of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 

surveying (as app in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSULTANT shall have the 
responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

-2-



All sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized accrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or materials testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification. Proof of certification 
shall be provided to RTC with this Agreement. If certification expires or is removed during 
the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RTC immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot be agreed upon by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSULT ANT shall provide only Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified personnel to perform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of this Agreement. All test reports shall be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated with his/her license number. 

CONSULTANT shall, without additional compen ation, ¢OJ ect or r ise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissions caused by CONSULTA T in its a a is reports, and services. 
CONSUL TANT also agrees that if any error or • ission is found , CONSUL TANT will 
expeditiously make the necessary correctio nse I:>~ TC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not by and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSUL be compensated for such additional work. 

3.1. orked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
or any other costs or expenses except as provided 

3.2. The maximun amount a le to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amoa t i entified in Exhibit B. CONSUL TANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-e- cei a amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSULT ANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Task 2.1.A. $5,480.00 
Ta k 2.1.B. $90.470.00 
Total $95,950.00 

-3-

http:95,950.00
http:90.470.00
http:5,480.00


3.3. For any work authorized under, "Additional Services," RTC and CONSULTANT will 
negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. Any work authorized under, "Additional Services," when performed by persons 
who are not employees or individuals employed by affiliates of CONSUL TANT, will be 
billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such services, but not more than I 05% of the 
amounts billed to CONSULTANT for such services. 

3.4. CONSULTANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of R TC, except: (I) if such litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSULTANT in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

4.1. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULTANT o al'I di a ;reement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within th: 30 L)'S , receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid '."r 

4.3. 

5.1. Upon request and without cost to CONSUL TANT, RTC will provide all information that 
is reasonably available to RTC and pertinent to the Project including surveys, reports and 
any other data relative to design and construction of the Project. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSULT ANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

-4-



ARTICLE 6 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

6.1 . Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSUL TANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSULTANT prior to the execution of the Project that will be used in the 
Project and services rendered under this Agreement, is excluded from this requirement. 
CONSULT ANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 
interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual property rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreement and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSULT ANT in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall, upon reques also be provided to RTC. 

6.2. CONSULT ANT represents that it has secured all neces at lie n es, consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any intellectual property, incl er g com~ ter software, used in 
providing services under this Agreement, that "t has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that it has the rig 1 0 convey s ch title and other necessary 

6.3. 

rights and interests to RTC. 

6.4. re - ·ift,s communications, electronic files, databases, 
btains or prepares in connection with performing this 

Agreement shall be trea a o ential material and shall not be released or published 
without the prior r"tten o sent of RTC; provided, however, that CONSULTANT may 
refer to this R •dect in co ection with its promotional literature in a professional and 
commercially eas 11able a mer. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in w11aleve · form that comes into the public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also sh ot restrict CONSUL TANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to provide information or data when such order is issued by a 
court, administrative agency, or other entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSULT ANT to defend itself from any suit or claim . 

ARTICLE 7 - TERMINATION 

7.1. CONTRACT TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSUL TANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSUL TANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSUL TANT setting forth the manner in which CONSULT ANT is in 
default. CONSULTANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 

-5-



provision set forth therein . 

accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSULTANT had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSULTANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSUL TANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 

7.2. CONTRACT TERMTNA TfON 'FOR CO VENTENCE 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to 
CONSULTANTwhen it is in RTC's best interest. CONSULTANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, and profit on work ·formed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall promptly submit its t mination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSULT ANT. If CONSULT ANT has any proge ·ty i possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULT ANT will account for the same, and I RO e of it in the manner R TC 
directs. 

8.1. CONSULT ANT shall not comme . X or permit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfacto as been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. ...... .. ,.,",..-. e 0 ,he services/work required by the terms of this 
tain all types and amounts of insurance set forth in 

9.1. ion under this provision is as set forth in Exhibit C. Said 
obligation would a xtend to any liability of RTC resulting from any action to clear any 
lien and/or to recover for damage to RTC property. 

ARTlCLE IO - EQUAL EMPLOYME T OPPORTUNlTY 

I 0.1 . During the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSULTANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSUL TANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 

-6-



10.2. 

I 0.3. 

11.1. 

I 1.2. 

applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

CONSULT ANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSUL TANT, state that well qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. 

CONSULTANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

ARTICLE 1 I - RESOLUTJO OF CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

.GOTIA TED RESOLUTION 

In the event that any dispute or claim arises under this , greem nt, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate in good faith to resolve an s ch di ute or claim. Such 
cooperation shall include providing the other par with all fr , r at1on in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making availa personnel to discuss and 
make decisions relative to the dispute or cl 

MEDIATION 

If the parties have been unable to reao a ,info al negotiated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days ol • ·ng ub, ,· sion in writing of the dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer perio ·ehi a the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in · ing tha the 1spute or claim be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). ~ er tl:ie o e pa11y' s receipt or deemed receipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the partie hall el eavor to agree upon a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have bee unable t agree upon a mediator within ten (I 0) days following receipt 
of the Media(011 o it them each party shall select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select e mediator. A mediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall m et 1 qualification set forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the "Rules Governing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Court." Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 
mediator shall have complete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty (30) days following appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

-7-



11.3. LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as provided 
above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial District Court of the 
State ofNevada, County of Washoe. 

11.4. CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claim shall not constitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperformance or delay. 

ARTICLE 12 -AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

12.1. RTC's Director of Engineering has authority to act as RT ' representative with respect to 
this Agreement. RTC's Director of Engineering all e authority to transmit 
instructions, receive information, interpret and define R oliciyS and make decisions 
with respect to materials, equipment elements, a d systems. 

12.2. CONSUL TANT's Project Manager ha 
representative with respect to this Agre LT ANT's Project Manager has 
authority to sign binding documents o 1 I:, Company. 

13.1. 

RTC: 

CONSULT ANT: 

eno, Nevada 89520 
(775) 335-1880 

Loren Chilson, P.E. 
Principal 
Headway Transportation, LLC. 
5482 Longley Lane, Suite B 
Reno, NV 89511 
(775) 322-4300 

-8-



ARTICLE 14 - DELAY IN PERFORMANCE 

14.1. TIM E IS OF THE ESSENCE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by RTC's Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension of time shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 

14.2. UN A VOIDABLE DELAYS 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSUL TANT was excusably delayed. delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur i connection with or during 
CONSULT ANT' s performance, is not caused directly o subst ntially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSULT ANT, is s ta t ial and in fact causes 
CONSUL TANT to miss specified completion ates, and , adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

14.3. NOTIF ICATION OF DELAYS 

14.4. 

o n as ON SULT ANT has knowledge that an event 
th CON UL TANT will be delayed in the 
, ·k ing days thereafter, CONSULT ANT shall 

·nishing as much detail on the delay as possible 

Any request l:im,.,._~=•= T for an extension of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement ha I be ma , e in writing to R TC. CONSULT ANT shall supply to R TC 
documentation to stantiate and justify the additional time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised schedule. RTC shall provide CONSULT ANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable time after receipt of a request. 

ARTICLE 1.5 - GEN ERAL PROVl IONS 

15.1. 

RTC and CONSULTANT bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 
party and to the successors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither RTC nor 
CONSULT ANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 
the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 

-9-



RTC, so long as said services and a .,...r""-"'"'' a 
i d by 

it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than R TC and 
CONSULTANT. 

15.2. NON TRAN FERABIUTY 

This Agreement is for CONSUL TANT's professional services, and CONSUL TANT's 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

15.3. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provi ion r portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the partie hall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular pa1t rm, or provision held invalid. 

15.4. RELATION HlP OF PARTIES 

CONSUL TANT is an independent contrac . is Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSUL TANT is not entitled to part" pate i any i: ement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance plans or other bene s C , v ides to its employees. CONSULT ANT 
shall be free to contract to provide s· lar ices for others while it is under contract to 

not in direct conflict, as determined by 
RTC, with services being pr UL TANT to RTC. 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

Any waiver or br a h of a r is ion in this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other provisio i this Aor ement and no waiver is valid unless in writing and executed by 
the waiving p lY., . n . n on of the time for performance of any obligation or act shall 
not be deemed an ex tens ·on of time for the performance of any other obligation or act. This 
Agreement inures e benefit of and is binding upon the parties to this Agreement and 
their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

15.6. REGULATORY COMPLIA CE 

A. CONSULTANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
government laws, regulations and ordinances. CONSULT ANT shall be 
responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under this Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSUL TANT shall 
furnish RTC certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

-10-



B. CONSULT ANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 
is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSULTANT does engage in such public work, CONSULTANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLU IVE AGREEMENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set forth herein with 
the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of th i 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

15.9. CONTINUING OBLIGATION 

oeath or any other occurrence it becomes 
o{ CONSULTANT to render the services 

The provisions oftlii ~greement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Nevada. The exclusive venue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties hereto submit to the jurisdiction of that District Court. 

15. I I. ATTORNEY . FEES 

In the event of a dispute between the parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

-11-



15.12. CERTJFICATION REQUIRED BY EVAOA SE ATE BILL 27 (2017) 

CONSULT ANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSULT ANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: _____________ _ 

Adam Spear 
R TC Director of Legal Services 

HEADWAY TRANSPORTATION, LLC. 

By: _____________ _ 

Loren Chilson, P.E., Principal 

-12-



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services, Schedule, and Project Team 



Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 
Scope of Work - Traffic Analysis 

Center Street Cycle Track 
July 30, 2019 

SCOPE OF WORK - Traffic Analysis 

Task 2.1.A - Project Management 

This task includes up to thirty (30) hours of staff time for management and coordination of the project, 

administrative duties, project invoicing, and accounting. 

Task 2.1.B - Traffic Operations Analysis 

Additional Data Collection 

Collect AM (7-9 AM) and PM (4-6 PM) peak hour turning movement counts at the four (4) signalized 

intersections not included in the prior data collection efforts during ot August Nights, and at the 

unsignalized intersection at the south end of the segment where Ian r:eductions are contemplated . The 

count locations are the 8th
, Maple, 6th

, Liberty, and Cheney Street in r-secro s with Center Street. Counts 
are to be conducted on a typical mid-week day (no street closures) . Pr ea fig , r: illustrating the typical 

weekday AM and PM peak hour traffic volumes in the st alized intersections 8th to 

Liberty Streets and at Cheney Street. 

Micro-Simulation 

Prepare SimTraffic micro-simulations with and e two-way cycle track concept on Center Street 

for the ten (10) study intersections between 8th St reets for the following scenarios: 

• 
• 
• Existing Lane Configurati s 

• Cycle Track - Special Events 

e operations analysis, level of service, and delay reporting, but it 

t be shown in SimTraffic simulations due to software limitations. 

Create a proper visualizatio e two-way cycle track phasing, signal operations, and multi-modal 

interactions, by building a VISSIM model and simulation for one (1) critical intersection in the corridor 

(location to be determined from the SimTraffic operations analysis). This intersection specific simulation 

of the cycle track and key intersection will serve as a "worst-case example" of proposed operations in the 

study corridor. The VISSIM simulation will be constructed for one scenario at one intersection (worst case 

volumes/conditions with cycle track). 

Technical Memorandum 

Provide a technical memorandum presenting the operations analysis results and a comparison of level of 

service and delay with and without a cycle track. Include tables and figures illustrating the traffic volumes, 

intersection levels of service and delay, and the recommended lane configurations and signal phasing and 

timing schemes. 

Page 1 of 2 



Exhibit A 

Scope of Work 

Scope of Work - Traffic Analysis 
Center Street Cycle Track 

July 30, 2019 

Concept Revisions & Recommendat ions 

Using the operations analysis findings, provide recommendations to improve the cycle track concept. 

Address left-turn volumes, lane configurations, signal phasing/timing, loading zones, cross-section 

elements, and key features. The recommendations will be incorporated in the Technical Memorandum 

report. 

Meetings 

Prepare materials for, and attend meetings with, the RTC, stakeholders, and decision makers as identified 

by the RTC Project Manager. This task includes up to th irty (40) hours of professional staff time. 

Page 2 of 2 

t.•• ' I 



Exhibit C 

Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 



Exhibit B 

Compensation 

FEE PROPOSAL 
Center Street Cycle Track 
Traffic Analysis 

Date: 07/30/2019 

Billing Rate/ Hour 

Tasks 

2.1.A - Project Management 

2.1.B - Traffic Operations Analysis 

Additional Data Collection 

Micro-Simulation 

Technical Memorandum 

Concept Revisions & Recommendations 

Meetings 

Hours 

Budget 

CHILSON 

Principal 

220 

22 

2 

30 

20 

16 

20 

110-. 

$24\_200, 

HEADWAY TRANSPORTATION 

PETTINARI HARNED AXTELL GOING 

Associate II Associate Engineer II Engineer II 

170 160 130 130 

Hours 

/' 
.... :~ H 

,. I 
1, /✓ 

~ ...,. 
.AO, ¥ � lQ ... 

' 

~~J 
28 20 

...... ,~ 20 

' ~,' .,~ ' 10 --- -- -'Q~ ·~ 60 300 so 
·"""-,,,.._ $0'-..'\ $9,600 $39,000 $6,500 _---.r 

ALTA 

STACEY GILPIN 

Admin Principal 

Asst. ODCs 

80 215 $ 
Task Total 

8 $5,480 

$0 

$4,340 

10 $47,650 

2 10 $15,110 

40 $14,720 

10 $800 $8,650 

10 70 

$800 $15,050 $800 $95,950 



Exhibit B 

Cost Proposal and Fee Schedule 



Exhibit C 

lNDEMNIFlCATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

20 I 8- I I -02 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

TT JS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS TN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONTACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0171. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to defend, save and hold harmless an nify RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno, and City of Sparks, including t ir elected ._,..,,,.. .... ,s, officers, employees, 
and agents (hereafter, "Indemnitees") from and against and all c 1ms, proceedings, actions, 
liability and damages, including attorneys' fee incun·ed in any action or 
proceeding (collectively "Damages") arising o 

A. Any breach of duty, neglect, err ment, misleading statement or om1ss1on 
committed in the conduct of CONS rofession, work or services rendered by 
(i) CONSULT ANT, its em en officers, or directors, (ii) subconsultants 
(hereafter, "Subs"), or (iii) a for which CONSUL TANT may be legally 
responsible; and 

B. The negligent acts T, its employees, agents, officers, directors, Subs, or 
anyone else fo ULT ANT is legally responsible; and 

C. The infringem any atent or copyright resulting from the use by the Indemnitees of 
any equipment, p·~ ,i,~~ 1ponent or other deliverable (including software) supplied by 
CONSUL TANT un er or as a result of this Agreement, but excluding any infringement 
resulting from the modification or alteration by the Indemnitees of any equipment, part, 
component, or other deliverable (including software) except as consented to by 
CONSULT ANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 
property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 

If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions, CONSULT ANT shall reimburse the 
Indemnitees for the time spent by such personnel at the rate the Indemnitees pay for such services. 



If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSUL TANT' S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSUL TANT. 

In determining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 

shall determine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.C above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSUL TANT, at its sole expense, shall either (1) secure for the Indemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by procuring a license or licenses for the 

Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become non-infringing. This covenant shall 
survive the termination of this Agreement. 

3. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the start of any work on a RTC project, CONSULTAN hall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the types and limits as described herein insuring ag · t cl ·ms for injuries to persons 

or damages to property which may arise from or in connectio ith performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSULT ANT, its Subs, or their employees, age entatives. The cost 
of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSUL TAN'u 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSULTANT shall furnish RTC with a certi e(s insura ,ce executed by a duly authorized 

representative of each insurer, showing c with the insurance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All de d self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certi A et cates and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be rece ... ,,....,.,-.."'Pro ed by RTC before work commences. The 

CONSULTANT agrees that ·ight to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 

insurance policies, or certified c ie • policies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 

policy forms or endors ts co ing required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 
notice of cancellatio ·equired to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

CONSULTANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation or non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten ( I 0) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSULTANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 

RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS&SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSULTANT shall include all Subcontractors and Subconsultants (referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause Subs employed by CONSUL TANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limits of the types specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits, each shall include the RTC, Washoe 



County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additional insureds under its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements stated herein, without requiring a written contract 
or agreement between each of the additional insureds and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability maintained by Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for any applicable coverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is GREATER. If any Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the Contractor, Contractor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Contractor. When requested by RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates of insurance evidencing coverage for each Sub. The CONSUL TANT 
need not require its non-design subcontractors to carry Professional Errors and Omissions Liability 
insurance. 

7. DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions that exceed $5,000 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior · 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financi 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retention ny chan,,..,...,rnr 
insured retentions made during the term of this Agr r duri11 t e term of any policy must 
be approved by the RTC' s Finance Director prio · ng effect. 

8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with ins :wi Best's rating of no less than A-VII and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may acce.-..,.,_.,_ 1 carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information --~~.r1,;,;;. SULTANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require tha"".,,..._._..= TS insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
of Nevada or meet any applicabl j)gtl~~aeral laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 

9. OTHER CONDl 

A. Failure to furnish ~"""':!il"luired certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSUL TANT fails to furnish the required certificate or fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSULT ANT's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to furnish such certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of RTC. Failure 
of RTC to demand such certificate or other evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of RTC to identify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver as to the enforcement of any of these provisions at a later 
date. 



D. By requiring insurance herein, RTC does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to protect CONSUL TANT, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a limitation on CONSUL TANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
RTC in this contract. 

E. If CONSULTANT'S liability policies do not contain the standard TSO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONSULT A NT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit ofnot less than $2,000,000 each occ ence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on TSO occurrence form CG 00 ( or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover I ia6 m premises, operations, 
products-completed operations, personal and adv liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of her a business contract) . 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Se EM IFICA TION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, u · ditional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07/04 or CG 20 33 07/04 or a substi -..n.~,.... ivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall ns ce with respect to any other insurance or self-
D.--~6,""· .:::a,:~other Indemnitees under this Agreement. 

CONSUL TANT wai s all · oainst RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. 
INDEMNIFICA TIO eernent for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commerci al liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreemen . CONSULTANT's insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including owned, hired, and non-owned autos). 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for all owned, leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept auto liability for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSULTANT does not own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 



CONSULT ANT waives all rights against RTC, its officers, employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insurance obtained by CONSULT ANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker' s Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONSULT ANT or any Subs by RTC. The 
CONSULT ANT, and any Subs, shall procure, pay for and maintain the required coverages. 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain workers ' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State of Nevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodiJ Y., · ~ury by disease . 

CONSUL TANT shall provide a Final Certificate for 
CONSUL TANT and each Sub maintained workers' 
insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

itse Sub evidencing that 
employer's liability 

If CONSULT ANT, or any Sub is a sole propri 
purchased and evidence 

the sole proprietor must be 
tficate of Insurance and Final 

Certificate. 

CONSUL TANT waives all rights against RT officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent da ·e covered by the workers compensation and 
employer' s liability or commercial um6 ·ry insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSUL TANT I 1dorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSION ND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT sha a in ta i professional liability insurance applying to liability for a 
professional , error, act, 111 . ........ ,,~ssion arising out of the scope of CONSUL TANT' S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULTANT shall maintain professional liability insurance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a "claims made" or "claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extended reporting period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreement. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.11 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Dale R. Keller, P.E. 
Engineer II for Lee G. Gib on, AICP 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Award of Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Lemmon Drive 
Capacity Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. ("Jacobs") 
as the selected firm to provide Engineering Professional Services for the Lemmon Drive Capacity 
Project in an amount not to exceed $2,661,932; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the 
agreement. 

SUMMARY 

Jacobs was selected as the highest ranked firm out of five (5) firms that submitted responsive 
proposals for the Lemmon Drive Project RFP advertised on May 23, 2019. This Agreement (see 
Attachment A) is divided into two distinct segments and scope of works. Improvements proposed 
for the first segment (Segment 1) include widening Lemmon Drive from US 395 to Military Road 
from four lanes to six lanes. Improvements proposed for the second segment (Segment 2) include 
widening Lemmon Drive from Fleetwood Drive to Chickadee Drive from two lanes to four lanes. 

The Segment 1 Scope of Work includes Final Design and support during the bidding process. 
General tasks identified in the base scope of work include 100% design, cost analysis, special 
provisions, drainage analysis, traffic analysis, right-of-way services, and public involvement. 

The Segment 2 Scope of Work includes Alternative Analysis, Preliminary Engineering (30% 
design), and preparing a project delivery selection approach report. The report will consider multiple 
design and construction delivery methods (including design-build) to determine the appropriate 
method for Segment 2 construction. 

Negotiation with Jacobs is now complete and the scope, schedule and budget are included in the 
Professional Services Agreement. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Lemmon Drive Capacity Project PSA 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Appropriations are included in the FY 20 Budget. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

May 20, 2019 Approved the Procurement for the Selection of Engineering Professional 
Services for Design the Lemmon Drive Project 

April 19, 2019 Received an update on the project 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

A large portion of Segment 2 of Lemmon Drive resides in the flood plain of Swan Lake. 
Construction activities that proposed fill in the flood plain would need to be mitigated so to not raise 
the existing water surface elevation in Swan Lake. There is no natural outlet for the lake and it is 
considered to be in a hydrologically closed basin system in an isolated playa. Therefore, the only 
reduction to the water surface elevation _is through evaporation during the dry months. 

The Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) currently defines the Lemmon Drive Project as a capacity 
project that falls within the first five years of the 2040 RTP. Therefore, the project is currently in 
the Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) and the Transportation Improvement Program (TIP). 

RTC, Washoe County, and the City of Reno can also explore funding opportunities that might be 
joined with RTC Fuel Tax to provide comprehensive solutions to provide safe reliable access to the 
area. A potential funding source the Lemmon Drive Project may be able to utilize is the FEMA 
Pre-Disaster Mitigation Grant Program. The Lemmon Drive Project might be an element of that 
larger program to assist in the overall program to improve conditions around Swan Lake. 

At this time, it is not believed that the Lemmon Drive Project would require substantial National 
Environmental Policy Act (NEPA) documentation. RTC plans to follow federal requirements for 
the project so that federal funding options can remain open. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of September 20, 2019, by and 
between the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and Jacobs 
Engineering Group Inc. ("CONSULT ANT"). 

WITNESS ETH: 

WHEREAS, RTC issued a Request for Proposals for interested persons and firms to perform 
certain engineering and design services in connection with Lemmon Drive Widening Project (the 
"Project"); and 

WHEREAS, the Project is divided into two distinct segments. Improvements proposed for the 
first segment ("Segment 1 ") include widening Lemmon Drive from US 395 to Military Road from 
four lanes to six lanes. Improvements proposed for the second segment ("Segment 2") include 
widening Lemmon Drive from Fleetwood to Chickadee Drive from two lanes to four lanes; and 

WHEREAS, Segment I of the Project includes final design, cost analysis, special provisions, 
drainage analysis, traffic analysis, right-of-way services, and public involvement; and 

WHEREAS, Segment 2 of the Project includes coordination with Swan Lake stakeholders and 
governing agencies, preparation of an alternatives analysis, preliminary engineering, and preparing 
a project delivery selection approach; and 

WHEREAS, RTC has selected CONSULT ANT to perform certain engineering and design 
services in connection with the Project; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSULTANT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I - ENGAGEMENT AND TERM 

1.1. CONSULT ANT will perform the work using the project team identified in Exhibit B. Any 
changes to the project team must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

I .2. CONSUL TANT will promptly, diligently and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable professional standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act of any government, civil disturbances, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control of CONSULTANT. 

-1-



1.3. CONSULT ANT shall not proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement and a notice to proceed has been issued to CONSULT ANT. If CONSULT ANT 
violates that prohibition, CONSULTANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 
payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. 

I .4. Except to the extent prohibited by law, nothing contained in this Agreement shall prohibit 
CONSULTANT from contracting with RTC for consulting, professional engineering, 
design, or other services related to the potential construction following completion of the 
work performed by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

1.5. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through July I, 2021, 
unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date pursuant to the provisions 
herein. 

2. I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services consists of the task 

2.2. CHEDULE OF SERVICES 

Tasks and subtasks shall be coril,P.leted in accordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any 
change(s) to the schedul·e must be a roved by RTC's Project Manager. 

2.3. OPTIONS 

RTC shall ha\(e tjle i·i-gl'I toe: ercise its option(s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identinea in Exhibit A. CONSULTANT will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the specific optional services requested, a schedule for such services, 
and a cost proposal. R TC will review and approve the scope of services and R TC and 
CONSULT ANT will discuss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSULT ANT shall undertake no work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the performance of said task. R TC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another individual or firm to perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.4. ADD1T10 AL SERVICES 

CONSULT ANT will provide additional services in connection with the Project when 
agreed to in writing by RTC and CONSULTANT. 

-2-



2.5. PERFORMANCE REQUIR EMENT 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSUL TANT shall be perfonned 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying (as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSULTANT shall have the 
responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

All sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized accrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or materials testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification.- Proof of certification 
shall be provided to RTC with this Agreement. If certification expires or is removed during 
the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RTC immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot be agreed upon by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSULTANT shall provide only Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified personnel to perform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of thi~ Agreement. All test reports shall be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated with his/her license number. 

2.6. ERRORS A D OMISSIONS 

CONSUL TANT shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissions caused by CONSULTANT in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSUL TANT also agrees that if any error or omission is found, CONSULTANT will 
expeditiously make the necessary correction, at no expense to R TC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not by CONSULT ANT and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSUL TANT may be compensated for such additional work. 

ARTICLE 3 - COMPE SA T ION 

3.1 . CONSUL TANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. RTC shall not be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as provided 
in Exhibit B. 

-3-



3.2. The maximum amount payable to CONSUL TANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULT ANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSUL TANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Total Design Services (Tasks 1.0 to 9.0) $2,411,932 
Contingency - Design Services (Task 10.0 - Optional) $250.000 
Total $2,661,932 

3.3 . For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSULT ANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 
and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 
Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSUL TANT, will be billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than 105% of the amounts billed to CONSULT ANT for such 
services. 

3.4. CONSUL TANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of RTC, ~xcept: (1) if such litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSULT ANT in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSUL TANT's indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

ARTICLE 4 - TNVOlCTNG 

4.l. CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoices in the format specified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to accountspayable(a).rtc ashoe.com. RTC's payment terms are 30 days 
after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be paid at the rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by RTC that are not paid within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULTANT of any disagreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by RTC. 

4.3. CONSUL TANT shall maintain complete records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. Upon request, CONSULTANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and RTC shall have the right to inspect and copy such records. 

-4-

http:ashoe.com


ARTICLE 5 - ACCES TO TNFORMA TJON AND PROPERTY 

5.1 . Upon request and without cost to CONSULTANT, RTC will provide all information that 
is reasonably available to RTC and pertinent to the Project including surveys, reports and 
any other data relative to design and construction of the Project. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSUL TANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 -OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

6.1. Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSUL TANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSUL TANT prior to the execution of the Project that will be used in the 
Project and services rendered under this Agreement, is exc}uded from this requirement. 
CONSULT ANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 
interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual property rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreement and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSULT ANT in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSULT ANT under this Agreement shall, upon request, also be provided to RTC. 

6.2. CONSULT ANT represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any_ intellectual property, including computer software, used in 
providing services under this Agreement, that it has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that it has the right to convey such title and other necessary 
rights and interests to RTC. 

6.3. CONSULT ANT shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked materials, equipment, devices, or processes used on or incorporated 
in the services and materials produced under this Agreement. 

6.4. CONSULTANT agrees that all reports, communications, electronic files, databases, 
documents, and information that it obtains or prepares in connection with performing this 
Agreement shall be treated as confidential material and shall not be released or published 
without the prior written consent of RTC; provided, however, that CONSULTANT may 
refer to this Project in connection with its promotional literature in a professional and 
commercially reasonable manner. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever form that comes into the public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not restrict CONSULT ANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to provide information or data when such order is issued by a 

-5-



court, administrative agency, or other entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSULTANT to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

ARTICLE 7-TERMINATION 

7.1. CONTRACTTERMl ATION FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSULT ANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSULTANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSULT ANT setting forth the manner in which CONSUL TANT is in 
default. CONSULT ANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSULT ANT had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSULTANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSULTANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 

7.2. CONTRACT TERMTNA TION FOR CONVENIENCE 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to 
CONSULTANT when it is in RTC's best interest. CONSUL TANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall promptly submit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSULT ANT. Jf CONSULT ANT has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULTANT will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 
directs. 

ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE 

8.1. CONSUL TANT shall not commence any work or permit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. In conjunction with the performance of the services/work required by the terms of this 
Agreement, CONSULT ANT shall obtain all types and amounts of insurance set forth in 
Exhibit C, and shall comply with all provisions set forth therein. 

-6-



ARTICLE 9 - HOLD HARMLESS 

9.1. CONSULTANT's obligation under this provision is as set forth in Exhibit C. Said 
obligation would also extend to any liability of RTC resulting from any action to clear any 
lien and/or to recover for damage to RTC property. 

ARTICLE IO - EQUAL EMPLOYME T OPPORTUNlTY 

10.1 . During the performance of this Agreement, CONSULT ANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSULTANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSULT ANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

10.2. CONSULT ANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSULTANT, state that well qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin . 

10.3. CONSUL TANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

ARTICLE 11 - RE SOLUTION OF CLAIMS AN D DISPUTE 

11.1. NEGOTIATED RE OLUTION 

In the event that any dispute or claim arises under this Agreement, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate in good faith to resolve any such dispute or claim. Such 
cooperation shall include providing the other party with all information in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making available the necessary personnel to discuss and 
make decisions relative to the dispute or claim. 

11.2. MEDIA TfO 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negotiated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writing of the dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dispute or claim be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other party ' s receipt or deemed receipt of the Mediation 

-7-



Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agree upon a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree upon a mediator within ten (I 0) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each party shall select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the mediator. A mediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the qualification set forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the "Rules Governing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Court." Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 
mediator shall have complete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty (30) days following appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

11.3 . LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Court of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 

11.4. CONTTNUTNG CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claim shall not constitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperformance or delay. 

ART1CLE 12 - AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

12.1 . RTC's Director of Engineering has authority to act as RTC's representative with respect to 
this Agreement. RTC's Director of Engineering shall have authority to transmit 
instructions, receive information, interpret and define RTC policies, and make decisions 
with respect to materials, equipment elements, and systems. 

12.2. CONSUL TANT's Project Manager has authority to act as CONSULTANT's 
representative with respect to this Agreement. 

-8-



ARTICLE 13 - NOTICE 

13.1. Notices required under this Agreement shall be given as follows: 

RTC: Brian Stewart, P.E. 
Director of Engineering 
Regional Transportation Commission 
1105 Terminal Way 
Reno,Nevada 89502 
(775) 335-1880 

CONSUL TANT: Kaci Stansbury, P.E. 
Project Manager 
Jacobs Engineering Group, Inc. 
50 West Liberty Street, Suite 205 
Reno,Nevada 89501 
(775) 360-7215 

ARTICLE 14 - DELAYS JN PERFORMANCE 

14.1. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by RTC's Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension of time shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 

14.2. UNA VOIDABLE DELAYS 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSULTANT was excusably delayed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during 
CONSULTANT's performance, is not caused directly or substantially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSULTANT, is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSULTANT to miss specified completion dates, and cannot adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

14.3. NOTIFICATION OF DELAYS 

CONSULTANT shall notify RTC as soon as CONSULTANT has knowledge that an event 
has occurred or otherwise becomes aware that CONSUL TANT will be delayed in the 
completion of the work. Within ten (10) working days thereafter, CONSULTANT shall 
provide such notice to R TC, in writing, furnishing as much detail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extension of time. 

-9-



14.4. REQUE T FOR EXTENSION 

Any request by CONSULT ANT for an extension of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement shall be made in writing to RTC. CONSUL TANT shall supply to RTC 
documentation to substantiate and justify the additional time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised schedule. RTC shall provide CONSULT ANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable time after receipt of a request. 

ARTICLE 15 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

15.1. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

RTC and CONSULT ANT bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 
party and to the successors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither RTC nor 
CONSULT ANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creatirig a personal liability on 
the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than R TC and 
CONSULT ANT. 

I 5.2. NON TRANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONSULTANT's professional services, and CONSULTANT's 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

15 .3. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held invalid. 

15.4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

CONSUL TANT is an independent contractor to RTC under this Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSUL TANT is not entitled to participate in any retirement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance plans or other benefits RTC provides to its employees. CONSULT ANT 
shall be free to contract to provide similar services for others while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services and advocacy are not in direct conflict, as determined by 
RTC, with services being provided by CONSULT ANT to R TC. 

-10-



15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

Any waiver or breach of a provision in this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other provision in this Agreement and no waiver is valid unless in writing and executed by 
the waiving party. An extension of the time for performance of any obligation or act shall 
not be deemed an extension of time for the performance ofany other obligation or act. This 
Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the parties to this Agreement and 
their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

15.6. REGULATORY COMPLIA CE 

A. CONSUL TANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
government laws, regulations and ordinances. CONSULT ANT shall be 
responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under this Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSUL TANT shall 
furnish RTC certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

B. CONSUL TANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 
is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSUL TANT does engage in such public work, CONSUL TANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set forth herein with 
the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

15.9. CONTINUING OBUGA no 

CONSUL TANT agrees that if, because of death or any other occurrence it becomes 
impossible for any principal or employee of CONSULT ANT to render the services 
required under this Agreement, neither CONSUL TANT nor the surviving principals shall 
be relieved of any obligation to render complete performance. However, in such event, 
RTC may term in ate this Agreement if it considers the death or incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of such magnitude as to affect CONSULTANT's ability to 
satisfactorily complete the performance of this Agreement. 

-] 1-



15.10. APPLlCABLE LAW AND VENUE 

The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State ofNevada. The exclusive venue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties hereto submit to the jurisdiction of that District Court. 

15.11 . ATTORNEYS FEES 

In the event of a dispute between the parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

15.12. CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY NEVADA SENATE BILL27 (2017) 

CONSUL TANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. lf, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSULTANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

-12-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: ___ ___ _______ __ _ 
Dale E. Ferguson, Esq. RTC Chief Legal Counsel 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

By: ___ _________ ___ _ 

Lee G. Gibson, Executive Director 

JACOBS ENGTNEERTNG GROUP, INC. 

By: _________ ____ _ 
Ken Gilbreth, P.E., Vice President 

-13-



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services and Schedule 



Exhibit A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES OF THE CONSULTANT 

LEMMON DRIVE 

SEGMENT 1 - US 395 TO MILITARY ROAD 
CAPACITY IMPROVEMENTS 

PRELIMINARY AND FINAL DESIGN 

SEGMENT 1 B - MILITARY ROAD TO FLEETWOOD DRIVE 
MUL TIMODAL IMPROVEMENTS 

SEGMENT 2 - FLEETWOOD DRIVE TO CHICKADEE DRIVE 
CAPACITY IMPROVEMENT 

ALTERNATIVES ANALYSIS AND 30% DESIGN OF PREFERR ED ALTERNATIVE 

SEGMENT2B-CHICKADEE DRlVE TO POMPE WAY 
POSSIBLE ROADWAY PROFILE ADJ USTMENT W ITHlN THE FLOODPLAIN 



INTRODUCTION 

The Lemmon Drive Capacity Improvements Project is divided into two distinct segments. 
Improvements proposed for the first segment (Segment I) include widening Lemmon Drive from 
US 395 to Military Road from four lanes to six lanes. Improvements proposed for the second 
segment (Segment 2) include widening Lemmon Drive from Fleetwood Drive to Chickadee Drive 
from two lanes to four lanes. 

The Segment I Scope of Work for the CONSULT ANT includes Final Design and support during 
the bidding process. General tasks identified in the base scope of work include 50%, 90%, I 00% 
and final design, cost estimate, special provisions, drainage analysis, traffic analysis, right-of-way 
services, and public involvement. 

The Segment I B Scope of Work for the CONSUL TANT includes investigation of existing 
multimodal connectivity. A technical memo summarizing any deficiencies will be prepared. If 
the RTC would like to add any design or analysis services for this location, a contract amendment 
will be executed. 

The Segment 2 Scope of Work for the CONSULT ANT includes Alternative Analysis, Preliminary 
Engineering (30% design), and preparing a project delivery selection approach report. The report 
will consider multiple design and construction delivery methods to determine the appropriate 
method for Segment 2 construction. 

The Segment 2B Scope of Work for the CONSUL TANT includes drone flight aerial imagery and 
surface topography. No field survey or design services for this location are included in this scope. 
If the RTC would like to add any design or analysis services for this location, a contract 
amendment will be executed. 

BACKGROUND 

The design of Segment 1 will require close coordination with NDOT's U.S. 395 North Valleys 
Project which NDOT is currently conducting an environmental review and performing design 
engineering. NDOT's project includes additional merging lanes between the freeway ramps in both 
directions and construction of a diverging diamond interchange underneath U.S. 395 at Lemmon 
Drive. Construction of NDOT's improvements are anticipated to begin in 2022. Lemmon Drive 
widening improvements, including any bicycle and pedestrian facilities, will be designed to match 
into the NDOT design. 

A significant portion of Segment 2 resides in the floodplain of Swan Lake. There is no natural 
outlet for the lake and it is considered to be an isolated playa within a FEMA floodplain. Since 
Swan Lake is not considered as Waters of the U.S., substantial NEPA documentation is not 
required. However, federal requirements will be followed so that federal funding options can 
remain open. 

2 



SCOPE OF SERVICES 

TASKl PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

1.1 PROJECT EXECUTION 

CONSULTANT will provide project management services for the scope of work for the duration 
of the project and for project close-out activities; assumed to be nineteen (19) months, September 
2019 through March 2021. Project management includes project setup and administration, 
including preparation and execution of Subconsultant agreements, monthly budget monitoring and 
invoicing, monthly preparation and reporting of project progress (including work completed and 
documentation of any changes, actual and anticipated, in scope, schedule, and budget), preparation 
and monthly updates of the project schedule, continued management of Subconsultants, quality 
assurance on deliverables, coordination with the RTC Project Manager, and project closeout. 

The CONSULT ANT Project Manager will be responsible for the ongoing project coordination of 
CONSULTANT activities for the duration of the work. The CONSUL TANT Project Manager 
shall also maintain communication, as appropriate, with local, state, federal, and private 
stakeholders as required for the progress of the scope of work detailed in this document. All 
significant communications shall be documented and reported to the RTC Project Manager. The 
CONSULTANT Project Manager will coordinate with team leads under his/her responsibility to 
discuss the progress of the project and identify issues and action items to be addressed. 

The Project Manager is responsible for the contracting, coordination, and management of all 
Subconsultants. The CONSULTANT will be the primary point of contact for the RTC for all team 
Subconsultants and will be responsible for communicating and coordinating the direction from the 
RTC to all team members. 

1.2 PROJECT MANAGEMENT MEETINGS 

1.2.1 Project Kickoff Meetings 

CONSULTANT will hold a kickoff meeting with RTC, Washoe County, City of Reno, and 
other agency staff as appropriate, to confirm the project objectives, approach, milestones, 
stakeholder and outreach approach, and potential project challenges. Five (5) 
CONSULTANT staff will attend the meeting. CONSULTANT will prepare a meeting 
agenda, take and distribute meeting minutes, and track concerns about the project from the 
attendees. 

CONSULTANT will also hold an internal kickoff meeting with CONSULTANT staff, and 
Subconsultants to internally align the team with the goals of the RTC and the goals of the 
project. 

1.2.2 Project Management Meetings 

CONSUL TANT will facilitate monthly Project Management Team Meetings with the 
RTC, Washoe County, the City of Reno, and other parties, as appropriate, to discuss the 

3 



design progress, upcoming milestones, scope, schedule, budget, risk status, key technical 
issues by discipline, and make informed decisions. CONSULT ANT will prepare an agenda 
and distribute meeting notes and the action item log, identifying the person responsible for 
resolving each item and expected date of completion. via email. It is anticipated that up to 
four ( 4) CONSULTANT staff will attend the Project Management Meetings. 

1.2.3 Design Coordination Meetings 

CONSULTANT will hold a ]-hour biweekly design coordination meeting with task leads, 
design staff as appropriate, and Subconsultants to ensure cross-discipline coordination with 
design and schedule. 

1.3 PROJECT MANAGEMENT PLAN (PMP) 

CONSUL TANT will prepare a Project Management Plan (PMP) that will include: Project 
Instructions, Risk Management Plan, Communications Protocols; Project Directory, Scope, 
Schedule, and Budget, File and Information Sharing and Storage Protocols, and the Health and 
Safety Plan. 

The PMP will be distributed to the CONSULT ANT team, including Subconsultants, and will be 
updated as needed throughout the project duration. 

1.4 QUALITY MANAGEMENT PLAN (QMP) 

CONSULT ANT will prepare a Quality Management Plan (QMP) specific to the Lemmon Drive 
Project that will include both Segments 1 and 2. A project Quality Manager will be assigned who 
be responsible for the development and implementation of the plan and provide initial training. The 
QMP will apply to both prime and Subconsultant team members. An independent quality review 
will be performed on Segment 1 on each design deliverable when submitting the 50%, 90%, 100%, 
and Final milestone packages. Independent quality reviews will also be performed on the Segment 
2 15% alternative designs, and 30% design of the preferred alternative. 

1.5 FILE AND DOCUMENT MANAGEMENT 

CONSUL TANT will update and maintain the Project Management Plan and all project files 
(electronic and hardcopy as appropriate) throughout the duration of the project. Copies of all 
outgoing and incoming correspondence will be provided to the Project Manager, or designee, on a 
continuing basis and distributed to the RTC Project Manager as needed. Word processing, data 
bases, spreadsheets, etc. will be prepared using a format compatible with Microsoft Office. 

4 



1.6 DELIVERABLES 

• Monthly Invoices that show staff names, hours, classifications, and billing rates, for each 

month of the anticipated project schedule 

• Monthly Progress Reports to be included with the invoices 

• Monthly schedule update 

• Meeting Agenda & Minutes for Kickoff Meetings 

• Meeting Agenda, Minutes and Action Item Log for Project Management Meetings 

• Meeting Agenda, Minutes and Action Item Log for the Design Coordination Meetings 

• Project Management Plan preparation and as-needed updates 

• Quality Management Plan 

TASK2 PUBLIC AND AGENCY INVOLVEMEN1: 

2.1 PUBIC OUTREACH PLAN AND METHODS 

CONSULTANT will develop a Public Out ~ach and Jnvolvem nt Plan that outlines specific 
objections, organization and roles of takeholder:, aud definiti on and schedule of target activities to 
accomplish the objectives of the project. 

CONSUL TANT will meet with ttie RTC Ri:oje"'ot Manager, and public information officers to 
review the overall strategy for pub lic i , wol epje t. Following these meetings, CONSULTANT will 
draft a plan that supports the RTC s objeet i es and address the needs of the community. 

2.1 .1 Stakeholder Database 

CON SU LTA T will develop a strategic and comprehensive stakeholder list. 
CONSULTA T will obtain an updated list of property owners within 500-feet of the 
project corridor fr.em 'the County Assessor' s Office. CONSULTANT will obtain lists of 
homeowner's associations/neighborhood associations within the project area. The 
stakeholder database will include project team members, elected officials, businesses, 
agencies, residents, community organizations and media. The database will include owners 
name and physical property location for property owners, and mailing and email address 
for elected officials, and other stakeholders. The database will be Microsoft Excel based 
and be updated as needed. Only one database will be created and maintained that includes 
both Segments I and 2. 

2.1.2 Website/ Digital Outreach 

CONSUL TANT will establish and secure a domain name and maintain the Project website. 
The website will be updated monthly, at a minimum, and more often as project activity 
requires. The website will be for the entire project with an introductory main page, and 
separate subpages for Segment I and Segment 2 information. Project information 

5 



maintained on the website will include project descriptions, project photos, e-mail sign-up 
and comment page, RTC Project Manager contact information, frequently asked questions 
(FAQs), project schedules with updates to emphasize current activities, public meeting 
notices, and public meeting information. The website will include links to the RTC Home 
Page and any project related videos, including "The Road Ahead" television segments, and 
the livestream recordings from the public meetings. The website will be designed using 
WordPress, and all content will be approved by the RTC Public Informational Officer prior 
to being available to the public. 

The comment page will be linked to an RTC domain email address, allowing the RTC to 
monitor and respond to any comments or project inquiries at their discretion. 

CONSULTANT will not be responsible for providing public meeting notices to newspapers 
and television news media. The RTC Public Information Office will provide these services, 
as well as posting announcements and project updates to ocial media such as Facebook. 

2.1.3 Project Branding and Logo 

CONSUL TANT will develop three (3) project b.randing c lor and style palettes and three 
(3) project logo concepts for the RTC to, ch00se 0m 0r to provide direction on how to 
modify/combine the concepts develop one (I) nal pr0ject branding color theme, style, and 
logo. Branding and a project log<:i wi I pt0vide a consistent look on public outreach 
materials, including the website, and J!!rojeet documents. 

2.1.4 Project Promotional Items 

CONSULTANT will 11),t@vide up't© three (3) promotional item concepts and pricing for the 
RTC to select from. C@NSU WT will assist in placing the order, however, the RTC 
shall pay for tJ1e Rromot,0nal items directly. 

2.2 TECHNICAL ADVl ORY COMMITTEE (TAC) MEETINGS 

In addition to the RTC, staff from Washoe County, the City of Reno, and other appropriate parties 
will be identified, and a technical advisory committee (TAC) will be established to provide 
Segment 2 alternative recommendations and come to a consensus on the preferred alternative to 
advance to 30% design. 

TAC meetings will be held monthly, two weeks after the monthly Project Management Team 
Meetings, through the completion of final design for Segment I. It is assumed ten (I 0) meetings 
will be held and attended, on average, by five (5) CONSUL TANT/Subconsultant Staff. 

CONSULT ANT will prepare meeting agendas, compose meeting notes, maintain action item log 
and distribute meeting notes via email. 

6 



2.3 ONE-ON-ONE STAKEHOLDER MEETINGS 

As the project progresses, it is assumed that certain interest groups, individuals, and/or public 
officials may request specific meetings to discuss project issues, concerns, and/or provide input to 
the project or process. These groups include the Lemmon Valley residents and businesses, 
community organizations, and/or interested parties. CONSULT ANT will attend individual one
on-one meetings with these groups during the course of the project. The specific need, number, 
and nature of these meetings will be dynamic and as necessary; however, ten (10) meetings, 
attended by two (2) CONSULTANT staff, are assumed in the base fee. CONSULTANT will 
manage a list of meetings, meeting attendees, and will provide meeting materials for distribution. 
CONSUL TANT will include the RTC Project Manager in all one-on-one meetings. 

2.4 PUBLIC INFORMATION MEETINGS 

Public Information Meetings will be held with residents, property owner adjacent to the project 
improvements and other members of the public to discuss project limit , scope tentative schedule, 
driveway access, public notification requirements, and concenrs of atljacent properties. It is 
anticipated that two (2) public meetings will be held, once during the 50% preliminary design phase 
and once again, before finalization of the I 00% design f S.egment J. ~he public meetings will also 
include information and updates about Segment 2. f©\lr pr&Jllarati<:>n meetings with RTC staff prior 
to each meeting are anticipated. Media plac.ement ~ill be Gpordinated through the RTC public 
information officer. CONSULT ANT Pr0.ject Manager Design Manager, Public Information 
Specialist, and up to four (4) additional CONSULTANT staff will attend the public meetings as 
appropriate. CONSULT ANT will provide tip fa ten (I 0) total display boards covering Segment I 
and Segment 2, a PowerPoint presentation ar:id a project factsheet handout. 

CONSUL TANT will research and assist in reserving a venue, with RTC paying any venue usage 
costs directly. CONSULT ANT -wilJ pr0vide flyers (in English and Spanish) to RTC for 
distribution. Translati9n to Spanisli will be provided by the RTC. The RTCwill use the Stakeholder 
Database prepared by the CONSULTANT under Task 3.3 to print, address, and mail post cards, 
including postage costs themsel v.es. Additionally, public meetings will be promoted on project 
website and social media. 

Public Information Meetings will be livestreamed on Facebook by the RTC Public Information 
Officer. 

2.5 REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION BOARD MEETINGS 

CONSULTANT will provide PowerPoint presentation to RTC Project Manager and staff for 
monthly presentations to the RTC Board of Commissioners 

CONSULTANT Project Manager and Design Manager will attend the monthly RTC Board 
Meetings to support the R TC Project Manager during Lemmon Drive presentations and assist in 
responding to questions from the RTC Board Members. A total of nine (9) meetings are 
anticipated. 

7 



2.6 WASHOE COUNTY BOARD OR RENO CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS 

CONSULTANT will provide PowerPoint presentation to RTC Project Manager and staff for 
presentation to the Washoe County Board of Commissioners and/or Reno City Council as required. 
A total of five (5) meetings are anticipated to be attended by the RTC Project Manager and Design 
Manager. 

2. 7 DELIVERABLES 

• Draft Public Outreach and Involvement Plan (Segments 1 and 2) 
• Final Public Outreach and Involvement Plan (Segments 1 and 2) 
• Stakeholder Database (Segments 1 and 2) 
• Project website with secure domain name (Segments I a cl 2) 
• Meeting Agenda, Minutes and Action Item Log for TAC Meetings 
• Preparation and Attendance at ten (10) One-on-One Stakeholde;'Mtgs 
• Preparation and Attendance at two (2) Public Information Meetings 
• Presentation Material and Attendance at nine (9) R'.I'C Board Meetings 
• Presentation Material and Attendance at five 5)' tota Washoe County Board of Commissioners 

and/or Reno City Council Meetings 

TASK3 0 CO. DITIONS 

3.1 GEOTECHNICAL 1 V ES'fJGATl0" 

CONSULTANT will perforf)l eofedmical investigations and associated laboratory testing to 
develop geotechnical de~ign req. , 1 1endat ions for Lemmon Drive. 

3.1.1 Segment 1 

In addition to the widening of Lemmon Drive to six lanes, it is assumed the existing lanes 
will be rehabilitated possibly via mill and overlay. 

CONSULTANT will research existing geotechnical studies and reports, perform field 
exploration, and complete field and laboratory testing and engineering analyses to allow 
formulation of geotechnical recommendations for design and construction. 

Research will also include review of published geologic maps and fault hazard reports to 
establish the presence of any documented geologic hazards near the project location. 

Field exploration will include 15 borings located approximately every 300 to 400 feet along 
the roadway as well as at other selected locations to adequately reveal the subsurface soil 
and groundwater conditions for final design for Segment 1 improvements. A majority of 
the borings will be advanced to 10 feet below the existing ground surface, and some selected 
borings will be advanced to 15 feet depth. Borings will be located within both the 

8 



northbound and southbound travel lanes as well as on the sides/shoulders of the roadway 
where feasible. 

Encroachment permits will be required with both NDOT and the City of Reno. For safety 
3rd reasons, a party traffic control service will be hired for onsite traffic control and 

preparation of traffic control plans. Underground Service Alert (USA) will be contacted to 
clear all utilities in the location of the proposed boreholes. If significant utility conflicts 
exist based on USA markings, a private utility locating firm will be hired, as necessary. 

Borings will be backfilled with cement grout per NDOT/City of Reno requirements. The 
pavement cores will be patched per the permit requirements. 

CONSULTANT will complete all necessary geotechnical and pavement analyses to 
develop the geotechnical and pavement recommendations for Segment I. The geotechnical 
task lead will participate in design team and agency meetings throughout the design 
process, as appropriate. 

The findings and recommendations will be swmnarized in a draft report for submittal to 
governing agencies. A final report will be is?uecl addressing the comments; only one round 
of review and comments is scoped. 

3. I .2 Segment 2 

In addition to widening Lemmon 01 ive:;te, fOL'rr lanes, it is assumed the profile of Lemmon 
Drive will be raised above the fleod elevation. 

CONSULTANT will research exi ting geotechnical studies and reports, perform field 
exploration, and complete ;field and laboratory testing and engineering analyses to allow 
formulation of geetechnieal recommendations for design and construction. 

Research ill also include review of published geologic maps and fault hazard reports to 
establish the presence-of any documented geologic hazards near the project location. 

The geotechnical investigation for Segment 2 is meant to support the alternative analysis 
and 30% design of the preferred alternative, reducing the need for extensive additional 
exploration and laboratory testing for the final design. The profile adjustment will require 
improvements on the side streets, so exploration will be completed on side streets as well. 

Field exploration will include the advancement of 35 borings along Segment 2 of Lemmon 
Drive and side streets within the expected profile adjustment near Swan Lake. The borings 
along Lemmon Drive will be located approximately every 400 to 500 feet. Additional 
borings will be advanced in the roadway segment near Swan Lake to address the 
recommendations for evaluation of other elements (levee, culverts, etc.) and also on the 
side streets intersecting Lemmon Drive. The borings will be advanced to adequately reveal 
the subsurface soil and groundwater conditions for evaluation of alternatives and 
preliminary design of the preferred alternative. A majority of the borings will be advanced 
to IO feet below the existing ground, and up to 5 borings along Lemmon Drive near Swan 

9 



Lake will be advanced to 25 feet depth. The borings will be located within both northbound 
and southbound travel lanes of Lemmon Drive as well as on the sides/shoulders of the 
roadway where feasible. 

Encroachment permits will be required with both City of Reno along Lemmon Drive and 
Washoe County for the side streets. For safety reasons, a 3rd party traffic control service 
will be hired for onsite traffic control and preparation of traffic control plans. Underground 
Service Alert (USA) will be contacted to clear all utilities in the location of the proposed 
boreholes. If significant utility conflicts exist based on USA markings, a private utility 
locating firm will be hired, as necessary. 

Borings will be backfilled with cement grout per City of Reno/Washoe County 
requirements. The pavement cores will be patched per the permit requirements. 

CONSULT ANT will complete all necessary geoteehn ical analyses to develop the 
geotechnical recommendations for Segment 2. Geoteehnica1 task lead will participate in 
design team and agency meetings throughout the design pr.ocess, as appropriate. 

The findings and recommendations will be. smn,marized in a draft report for submittal to 
governing agencies. A final report will be isst\ed add.res in~ the comments; only one round 
of review and comments is scoped. 

3.1.3 Exclusions 

No pavement analysis will be eompleted for Segment 2. The City of Reno typical section 
for an arterial roadway 6-inches asph tover 12-inches aggregate base, will be assumed as 
the structural section 'f~rlhe 30% design. 

No GeotechnicaJ lnvestig:ation will be performed within the Segment 1B limits. 

No Geotechhjca Irnvestigation will be performed within the Segment 2B limits. 

3.1.4 Deliverables: 

• Segment I Draft Geotechnical Report for Agency Review 
• Segment I Final Geotechnical Report 
• Segment 2 Draft Geotechnical Report for Agency Review 
• Segment 2 Final Geotechnical Report 

3.2 PAVEMENT DISTRESS/CONDITION SURVEY 

3 .2.1 Segment 1 

CONSULT ANT will perform a brief pavement distress/conditions survey within the 
Segment 1 project limits to provide a qualitative discussion of the distresses on the 
pavement, identifying the distress conditions, extent of the distress, etc. FHW A Distress 
Identification Manual for Long-Term Pavement Performance will be used to identify the 

10 



distress. This survey would not provide the lengths of the various cracks or areas of alligator 
cracking, fatigue failure, etc. 

CONSULT ANT will work with RTC to obtain, if any, PA VERS reports compiled by Nichols 
Consulting Engineers (NCE) for streets that include previous work history, quantitative 
information on distress, as well as overall pavement condition index (PCI) from their inspections. 

3 .2.2 Segment 2 

Assuming the roadway profile will be adjusted, no pavement distress/condition survey will be 
performed within the Segment 2 limits of Lemmon Drive. 

3.2.3 Exclusions 

No pavement distress/condition survey will be completed for Segment 1 B or Segment 2B. 

3.3 EXISTING SUBSURFACE UTILITIES 

CONSULTANT will coordinate with NV Energy, TMWA, City of Reno Charter, AT&T, Verizon, 
and all other utility companies as necessary for 0btain-ing t'ec.erds of existing improvements, 
upcoming work, facility relocations, and new · s a Ila ions. A t6tal of four (4) utility coordination 
meetings are anticipated through the duration 0f the project. 

CONSULTANT will investigate and locate sub urface utilities within the roadway R/W, and areas 
reasonably affected, in accordance with the erican Society of Civil Engineers Standard 
guideline for the Collection and Depiction o xisting Subsurface Utility Data, Quality Level C. 
Additionally, CONSULT ANT will co0rdinafe with Utility Owners to remove lids of surface 
features and document depth @futility device, or invert of pipe, within such surface features . 

3.3.1 Segment 1 Utilities 

Based on fiel'd investigation, CONSULTANT will provide RTC a list of utility companies 
whose utilities ave likely to be within the project limits or reasonably affected by the project. 
RTC will issue the initial notification to the utility agencies on the list and CONSULTANT 
will coordinate with the utility agencies for upcoming work, facility relocation and new 
installation, and to ensure utilities likely affected by the project are drawn on the plan and 
profile, evaluate potential conflicts through field investigation, and investigate conflict 
resolution strategies. 

CONSULTANT will coordinate any utility relocations necessary to accommodate the 
project with the utility companies. The design and technical specifications required to 
relocate impacted facilities will be provided by others. CONSUL TANT will include the 
approved utility design(s) and unique technical provision requirements for each utility in 
the contract documents. CONSUL TANT will assist the RTC in preparation of applications 
necessary for submission to utility companies for facility relocations, as required. 

11 



Coordination costs to be burdened by the RTC with the utility companies will be included 
in the Engineer's estimate. 

No upgrading or expanding of facilities shall be included in the project scope. 

Where modifications to existing easements are necessary or new easements are required, 
the needed easement(s) will be reflected on the plans and provided to the agency or 
company for their right-of-way acquisition process. 

No right-of-way document preparation or acquisition activities are included 

As it is difficult to estimate the level of effort required to perform this task, a budget 
estimate of 120 hours is included in this scope of services. Should the actual time required 
to coordinate exceed the budget estimate, CONSUL TA: T will notify the RTC and the 
budget will be adjusted. 

3.3.2 Segment 2 Utilities 

Based on field investigation, CONSULT.4NT will provide RTC a list of utility companies 
whose utilities are likely to be within theproject limits 0r reasonably affected by the project. 
RTC will issue the initial notification to the utility agencies on the list and CONSULTANT 
will coordinate with the utility agencies for upcoming work, facility relocation and new 
installation, and to insure utilities Ii ·el affee ed by the project are drawn on the plan and 
profile, evaluate potential conflicts through field investigation, and investigate conflict 
resolution strategies. 

Detailed utility relocations within Segment 2 project limits will not completed as a part of 
this scope. 

3.3.3 Exclusions 

No utility work will'be completed for Segment 1 B or Segment 2B. 

3.4 UTILITY POTHOLING 

Where additional detail is required to support the design and avoidance of utility impacts, 
CONSUL TANT shall perform potholing. It is assumed a total of up to 20 potholes will be 
conducted to locate facilities in Segment 1. 

12 



3.5 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY 

3.5.1 Topographic Survey 

CONSULTANT will conduct field surveys, photogrammetric mapping and office support 
to provide topographic design surveys for the Lemmon Valley project. The survey 
information will be provided for the full right-of-way width and will include cross-sections 
at 50-foot intervals. For the adjoining side streets, the existing ground topo shall extend 
500' past the intersection with Lemmon Drive. Field survey will include but is not limited 
to, centerline elevations, existing stripping, edge of pavement, curb/gutter, sidewalks, ADA 
ramps, multi use paths, retaining walls, ditch features, hinge points, location, invert and rim 
elevations of all sewer and storm drain manholes and cross-manholes, culverts, location, 
invert and rim elevations for all water and gas valves, boxes/vaults, location, invert and 
rim elevations of storm drain inlets/catch basins; utility poles/anchors, fences; signs, 
existing survey monuments, location of underground utility carsonite markers (if any), and 
any other key existing features. 

Field survey will include up to 25 right of way centerline m<muments property corners, 
section corners, and applicable public land urvey monume ts within the limits of Segment 
1. 

Segment I field topography limits will ex.tend from 500' south of the Sky Vista Parkway/ 
Buck Drive intersection to 500' no nof Military Drive. 

Segment I B field topography limits i 11 extend from the end of Segment 1 limits to the 
beginning of Segment 2 Jim its. 

Segment 2 field topograph . Hmit,s will extend from the southern return of Limber Pine 
Drive (approx.imately 500 south of Fleetwood Drive) to 300' north of Chickadee Drive. 

The horizontal datum shall be Nevada State Plane Coordinate System, West Zone 
NAD83/94 (HA RN), based on GPS surveys. The vertical datum shall be NA VD 88 based 
on digital bar-code leveling circuits to published City or County, benchmarks. 

CONSUL TANT will coordinate with NDOT to obtain topographic survey information 
obtained for use on the U.S. 395 North Valleys Project, specifically along Lemmon Drive 
and the proposed diverging diamond interchange. 

3.5.2 Drone Aerial Imagery and Topography 

CONSULT ANT will perform an aerial planimetric survey with a drone for the entire 
project corridor limits, including Segments 1B and 2B. 

The drone flight path shall be established to provide aerial imagery and topography for 
I 000-feet beyond the right-of-way on either side of the roadway from the Southbound 
US395 exit/entrance ramp terminals to 1000' north of Pompe Way. 

13 



3.5.3 Deliverables: 
• Color Aerial imagery ortho photos compatible with both MicroStation and AutoCAD 
• MicroStation V8i file with topographic linework 
• MicroStation InRoads Existing Ground Surface with 3D breaklines 
• Label callouts for Rim and pipe inverts of Storm Drains, Sewer Systems, and other 

utilities 
• One (1 )-Foot existing ground contour intervals at a scale of 1 "=20' for full width of 

existing right of way and 500' beyond each side street intersection return for Segment 
I, 1B, and 2. 

3.6 RIGHTOFWAYMAPPING 

3.6.1 Segment I 

CONSULTANT will research ownerships and A sess0r s Parcel Numbers (APNs) within 
the limits of Segment 1, as well as obtain copies of any reeorded -map that identify road 
rights-of-way and property lines. 

CONSUL TANT will prepare right-of-way based en field sorvey of centerline monuments, 
section corners, and record maps. Field surve:ris to a!:le.quately locate existing property lines 
is included in Task 3.5.1. 

The right-of-way will be shown on tli project plans and used as the basis for right-of-way 
engineering services. Owners names an assessor's parcel numbers will be shown on the 
base mapping. 

3 .6.2 Segment 2 

CONSULTANT will obtain record right-of-way based upon Washoe County GIS 
information The right-of~~ay will be shown on the project plans as-is, with no further 
resolution. 

3.7 RIGHT-OF-WAY E GINEERING SERVICES 

CONSULTANT will provide the following services for this Segment I: 

• Obtain and review current preliminary title reports for the affected ownerships along Segment 
I. For budgetary purposes, it is estimated that ten (10) property ownerships will be affected 
resulting in ten ( 10) temporary construction easement acquisitions. 

• Review title reports to determine if any easements exist that will affect the proposed route 
design - if any easements exist, copies of the easement documents will be obtained, and they 
will be delineated on the base mapping 

• Where necessary, to locate information not provided in the PTR, as necessary, perform as 
necessary research with the County of Washoe to and obtain available record maps, assessor's 
parcel map, vesting ownership deeds, and easement documents to provide to the Project Team 
and identify existing rights of way. 

14 



• Secure preliminary parcel information from online database sources and investigate current 
ownerships. Utilizing this information and Assessor's Roll information, determine other 
valuation considerations such as zoning, lot and building size, current usage, and other relevant 
factors. 

• Visually inspect each property (aerial and street-level views) and note the effects of all 
proposed acquisitions. 

• Sort each property into product types to determine the set of real estate data to be researched 
and create valuation data sets for each product type. 

• Prepare an estimate of the probable cost of each temporary easement interests. 
• Prepare an estimate of the total services and incidental costs associated with each real estate 

acquisition (appraisals, acquisition and title/escrow, legal services, etc.). 
• Summarize all findings into a Preliminary Cost Estimate deliverable and corresponding abstract 

illustrating all key issues, assumptions, and findings associated with the estimate. 
• If necessary, provide two sets of revisions (up to 4 hou each for the analyst position), 

assuming that any changes to alternative designs are minimal. do not result in a change to the 
type of acquisition (i.e. temporary easement only to perananent pattial fee, etc.), and that 
revisions are performed no later than 6 months following the origina1 estimate. 

• Develop temporary easement acquisition docume t including legal descriptions and plats for 
use by the R TC per the R TC standards. 

CONSULTANT will attend in person up to two ~2 and p,articipate via phone in up to ten (10) additional 
right-of-way coordination meetings as requireiiJ. 

3. 7 .1 Exclusions 

It is assumed no permanent easement par1ial permanent acquisitions, or full takes will be 
required. It is assumed 110 .utiUty c0~,rdination or utility agreements will be required. Right
of-Way engineering ervices wilJ not be performed on Segments 1 B, 2, or 2B. 

3.8 TRAFFIC VOLU~ V~ RlFlCA TION 

3 .8.1 Data Collection 

CONSULTANT will collect new AM and PM peak hour volumes and turning movements 
at the study intersections, to update/verify the volumes identified in the North Valleys 
Multimodal Transportation Study Final Report, dated, February 20, 2017. 

3.8.2 Update Travel Demand Forecast 

CONSUL TANT will evaluate the existing conditions and one future scenario year using 
outputs of the RTC's travel demand model, historical growth indicators, and known 
planned/approved development (i.e. new schools, private development projects, etc.). RTC 
will provide base year, 2020, and 2040 travel demand model outputs from RTC's most 
recent travel demand model. CONSULTANT will do basic post-processing of the model 
outputs to develop traffic forecasts for Lemmon Drive. 

15 



3.8.3 Traffic Operations Report 

CONSULTANT will prepare a Traffic Operations Report that outlines existing and future 
traffic volumes at key intersections and describes the necessary lane configurations at the 
two major intersections, Sky Vista Parkway/Buck Drive and Military Road. The Lemmon 
Drive / US 395 intersection will be modeled as the proposed diverging diamond 
configuration being designed by NDOT. 

Merge lane locations and lengths will be evaluated based on the traffic volume projections 
and adjacent intersection locations. Minor stop-controlled side street intersections will not 
be evaluated. 

Signal timing will not be evaluated under this contract. 

3.8.3.1 Deliverables 

• One Draft version of the Traffic Operations Report 
• One Final version of the Traffic Operatio s Report 

3.9 ACCESS MANAGEMENT 

According to the RTCs 2040 Regional Transpert'a ion Plan, Lemmon Drive is classified as a 
"Medium Access Control Arterial." RTC s ·ccess Standards as outlined in the 2040 Regional 
Transportation Plan may be utilized given t11e url;,an nature of this project. The CONSUL TANT 
will provide recommendations for se ect 10, ions with special operational or safety concerns in a 
memorandum report. Access Management will be evaluated with the proposed design of raised 
median islands. 

The existing median a'.loo-g Lemmon Drive just north of the Sky Vista Parkway / Buck Drive 
intersection is currently a two-way-left-turn lane (TWLTL) configuration. The widening of 
Lemmon Drive to sixJam· swill eliminate the acceptability of a TWLTL configuration, and access 
to and from Lemmon Drive will be reconfigured and confined to right-in/right-out only 
movements. 

3.10 SAFETY ASSESSMENT 

CONSULT ANT will review the August 2010 to August 2015 crash data provided in the 2017 
North Valleys Multimodal Transportation Study and will also obtain updated crash data from 
NDOT for August 2015-August 2018. CONSULTANT will identify existing hot spots and/or 
trends for special consideration. Characterization of the crash types and trends will be used to 
identify potential countenneasures that could be incorporated in the project design. Site specific 
crash analysis and diagramming is not included as a high-level, predictive type evaluation is 
intended. 

16 



3.11 DATA COLLECTION 

CONSULTANT will obtain as-built data (pdf and electronic CADD files) for Lemmon Drive 
Segment 1 and Segment 2 project limits from the City of Reno. 

CONSULT ANT will coordinate with NDOT to obtain the current electronic design files for the 
diverging diamond configuration proposed for the Lemmon Drive/US 395 interchange. 
CONSULT ANT will continue regular coordination with NDOT to ensure design information is 
updated as NDOT's design is finalized. 

3.12 EXISTING HYDROLOGY 

CONSULT ANT will analyze the existing hydrology utilizing the Truckee Meadows Regional 
Drainage Manual, and applicable elements of the Orange Book as guidance. Analysis will include: 

• Conduct a field observation of the project site. 

• Obtain and review existing drainage studies which pertain tO the project site. 

• Gathering of relevant Swan Lake data and coordination with Washoe County regarding Swan 

Lake improvements 

• Existing offsite peak flow rates will be caleufated for the 25- and 100-year design storm events 

from localized off-site contributing areas at key concentration points, per the TMRDM. Off

site watersheds will be modeled using $6.$ HE - I or HEC-HMS. 

• Coordination with Washoe County and their subconsultant, HOR, for Swan Lake hydraulic 

modeling inputs/outputs; however Lemmon Drive will be designed per TMRDM 

requirements. 

• Onsite peak flow rates will be calcu ated for the 5-, I 0-, and 100-year storm events at key 

design points. 011-site waters1ieds will be modeled using the Rational Formula. These design 

flows will be used to measure impacts of project improvements on peak flow values, to 

determine !ocations,where additional or upgraded drainage facilities are required to meet street 
flow criteria, and for preJitn inary sizing of drainage facilities. 

• For areas outside of the topographic survey limits, Washoe County contours will be used. 

• It is assumed no offsite storm drainage facility design will be required. 

• It is assumed the existing channel located between northbound and southbound Lemmon Drive 

has adequate capacity, and no design efforts are needed. 

3.13 SEGMENT I B MUL TIMODAL CONNECTIVITY 

CONSULTANT will review overall pedestrian and bicycle circulation patterns and linkages within 
Segment 1 B and corresponding connectivity throughout the corridor and ensure crossing locations 
are adequate and meet ADA requirements. 

17 



3 .13 .1 Deliverables 

• Technical memorandum summarizing any deficiencies and possible mitigation 
alternatives. 

TASK 4 SEGMENT 1 PRELIMINARY DESIGN 

4.1 DESIGN CRITERIA & SOFTWARE 

4.1.1 Design Criteria 

CONSUL TANT will develop design criteria for Segment 1 and Segment 2. Design 
standards will be established based on: 

• Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction ,@range Book), Revision 8 of 
the 2012 Edition 

• AASHTO Policy for Geometric Design of Highways and Streets (Green Book), 2011 
• Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Device 2010 
• AASHTO Roadside Design Guide, 201 I 
• Guide for the Planning, Design, al\d per~ ion of'Pedestrian Facilities, AASHTO, 2004 
• Washoe County Development e ode at-est version 
• Truckee Meadows Regional Draina&e Manual, latest version 

If any structural design is needled beyo,nd wtiat is included in the Orange Book, The NDOT 
Structures Manual, 2008 and sub equent revisions, shall be used for design criteria. 

CONSULTANT will p epare draft-design criteria, consisting of a tabular format document 
of critical criteria and a summarized listing of the governing standards and references, for 
review by tl:ie RTC ~nd other agencies for review and approval. A meeting will be held 
with the RTG an.cl agencie to reconcile any outstanding review comments and prepare and 
submit the final egmeJlt 1 Design Criteria. CONSULT ANT will review existing geometry 
for consistency with the agreed upon standards. 

Should the RTC direct the use of future releases of these references that would significantly 
alter the scope of work or increase the level of effort required to complete the work, 
incorporating these changes will be negotiated as additional services before additional work 
is initiated. 

4.1.2 Software 

Project design and plans will be produced using MicroStation V8i and InRoads SS2, with 
the understanding that master files can be translated to AutoCAD at the completion of final 
design for final delivery to the RTC, if required. ProjectWise will be used to organize 
CADD files, included those of the Subconsultants. 

18 



4.1.3 Deliverables 

• Segment 1 Draft Design Criteria for Agency Review 
• Segment I Final Design Criteria 
• Segment 2 Draft Design Criteria for Agency Review 
• Segment 2 Final Design Criteria 

4.2 PRELIMINARY DESIGN -SEGMENT 1 

4.2.1 50% Design 

Incorporating the results of the updated traffic volume analysis report, CONSULTANT will 
prepare preliminary design for widening Lemmon Drive to six (6) lanes from US 395 to 
Military Road and any intersection improvements, if necessary. 

Roadway plans will be designed in accordance with desigp criterifl developed in sub-task 
1.7.1 Design exceptions are not anticipated, however, where an exception has been included 
as part of the design, CONSULTANT will erepare a list of the exceptions identifying 
station limits, standards, and potential mitigations. 

4.2.1.1 Drainage Analysis 

This scope is based upon the drainage ~ ·iter.i:a outlined by the Truckee Meadows Regional 
Drainage Manual (l'MRDJvfJ,, Truckee Meddows Structural Controls Design and Low 
Impact Development Manua~ ™RDM section 709.2 North Valleys requires volumetric 
analysis within the Swan Lake basin t'0 be based on the 100-year, 10-day storm event, while 
routing of peak flows1Shall be ba ed on the 100-year, 24-hour storm event. 

CONSULT A NT wi 11 estimate street surface flow characteristics (i.e. depth, velocity, spread 
width/dry lane, and veJoc'iliy times depth) using Manning's Equations for 5-, 10-, and 100-
year design stor.m event . · 

CONSULTA T will evaluate existing drainage facilities to ensure they meet drainage 
criteria using Manning's Equation for roadside ditches and storm drain facilities, and HEC-
22 for drop inlets. 

CONSULTANT will complete a preliminary design (50 percent) of proposed drainage 
facilities (culverts, roadside ditches, drop inlets, and storm drain facilities) to meet drainage 
criteria. Where possible, use of and tie-ins into existing drainage systems along Lemmon 
Drive will be incorporated into the design. 

The preparation of FEMA submittals will not be required for Segment 1. 

19 



4.2.2 Environmental Permitting 

CONSULTANT will coordinate with the Nevada Division of State Lands and the Nevada 
Division of Environmental Protection (NDEP) to verify there are no state-owned waters 
within the Segment 1 limits. It is assumed no permits will be required. 

4.2.3 Lighting and Electrical Design 

Electrical design will include any required new street lighting, relocating, and/or removing 
the existing street lighting, irrigation control power, miscellaneous electrical connections 
(if any), electrical service points for lighting and signalized intersections, and coordination 
with NV Energy for any electrical utility relocations and any new service requirements. 
CONSUL TANT will provide electrical load and voltage drop calculations. 

Lighting design, if any, for the 50% submittal will be col;lceptual only. No detailed analysis 
will be completed at the 50% design for lighting. 

4.2.4 50% Plan Set 

Plan sheets will be drafted electronicall)yllt tu size l "= :25' scale, on 22" x 34" size paper, 
and PDF'd full size, but printed at on ly half ize 1 =§0 scale, on 11" x 17". 

The following is a listing of plan sheets (ar:id amount of detail) anticipated in the project 
contract documents for the 50% submittal: 

Title Sheet (I) 

Index of Sheets, Gener~l ote ~ Legend and Abbreviations (2) 

Typical ecnion Shee.rs (3~ 
• As-con tructed al)d proposed improvement typical sections for each alignment 
• Minimum and max imum roadway widths for each alignment and lane configurations 
• Preliminary roadside designs (slopes, curbs, gutters, dikes, and traffic barriers) 
• Proposed pedestrian and bicycle improvements 
• Proposed retaining wall locations, if any 
• Removal limits 
• Pavement section depths 

Survey Control / Right of Way Sheets (7) 
• Existing Right of Way limits 
• Schedule of coordinates, basis of bearing, stationing and offsets, the control 

coordinates, and datum statement 

Removals and Utility Sheets (4) 
• Two stacked plan view windows 
• Removal Limits, including existing roadway, signs, drainage, etc. 

20 



• Existing Utilities and Proposed Utility adjustments/relocations 
• Sign removals 
• Existing ground contours at I ' interval 

Roadway - Plan and Profile Sheets (7) 
• Plan view over profile view stacked window layout 
• Horizontal curve data, bearings, distances and station and offsets for angle points, 

tapers, and curves 
• Preliminary locations for curbs, gutters, and sidewalk 
• Preliminary road widths 
• Preliminary cut and fill slope limits 
• Vertical grade and curve data 
• Superelevation Diagrams 

Drainage - Plan and Profile Sheets (7) 
• Plan view over pipe profile view stacked window layout 
• Locations of existing and proposed drainage facilities 
• Locations of utilities shown in plan view 
• Locations of utility crossings in pip,e profile view 
• Proposed ground contours at l ' in: erval 

Striping Sheets (4) 
• Double plan view, stacked win<ilow 
• Proposed striping sho il:ig lane arrangements including turn lanes, storage lengths, 

acceleration lanes, and decelerati~n lanes 

Electrical Sheets ( 4) 
• Prelimi1Jal1' electrie"l design layout, if necessary 

Traffic Sign J nee s 2~ 
• Traffic signal m0•dification (if necessary) 

Landscape and Aesthetics Sheets (4) 
• General Concept, no detailed information 

Approximately 45 Sheets Total. 

Exclusions from the 50% Scope of Work: 
• Specific/Custom details will not be prepared 

• Utility specific generated design (water, gas, etc.), as necessary resulting from utility 

conflicts, will not be prepared 

• Site reconstruction plans for adjacent properties will not be prepared 

• Geometric Control and Grading Plans will not be prepared 

• Drainage Details will not be prepared 

21 



• Retaining Wall Plans will not be prepared 

• Signal and Traffic Signal Interconnect plans will not be prepared 

• Detailed analysis for lighting and/or electrical will not be completed 

• Cross Sections will not be included in the plans or provided to the agency(s) 

• No public art design is included, nor identification of potential location(s) 

• No soundwalls or soundwall aesthetic design is included 

• No landscape and aesthetic design for remediation of impacts to adjacent private 

parcels is included 

4.2.5 50% Cost Estimate 

CONSUL TANT will prepare a detailed unit price engineer' s estimate of probable 
construction cost in the same format as the bid proposal form to be included in the contract 
documents. Bid item numbers will correspond to the appropriate sections in the RTC's 
Orange Book. 

4.2.6 50% Technical Provisions 

RTC will provide CONSULTANT tne m ,st eent RTC Technical Specifications 
templates. Technical provisions will reference Rev i ion 8 of the 2012 Edition of Standard 
Specifications for Pub.lie Works C0nstruetion (Orange Book) for standard construction 
items. Technical provisions will be. p epared for changes to the standards or unique site 
conditions not adequately covered in the _ range Book. CONSUL TANT will prepare 50% 
technical provisions which will inc.Ju a cietailed outline of the technical provisions for 
those items not identified as pai1 0f the tandard Specifications. 

4.2.7 50% Design Submittal 

CONSULT Twill 'Subm'it 50% Design Documents and instructions for providing review 
comments to the agenc es and utility companies as summarized below: 

• RTC 
3 copies 11 "xl 7" 50% design plans, Design Exception Summary (as necessary); 

I copy Draft Hydraulic Report (without appendices) 

l copy Engineer's opinion of probable construction cost estimate; 

2 CDs with 22" x 34" PDF of 50% design plans; construction cost estimate; full 

version of Draft Hydraulic Report; full version ofGeotechnical Report; full version 

of Traffic Analysis Report 

1 Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions & Comment Form 

• City of Reno and Washoe County: 

2 copies 11 "xl 7" 50% design plans, Design Exception Summary (as necessary); 
1 copy Draft Hydraulic Report (without appendices) 

I copy Engineer's opinion of probable construction cost estimate; 
22 



2 CDs with 22" x 34" PDF of 50% design plans; construction cost estimate; full 
version of Draft Hydraulic Report; full version of Geotechnical Report; full version 
of Traffic Analysis Report 

1 Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions & Comment Form 

• Utility Companies with facilities in the area: 

I copy 11 "x 17" 50% design plans; 
1 Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions & Comment Form 

4.2.8 Constructability Review/ Risk Assessment Workshop 

Subconsultant PCSG will provide an independent constructability review of the 50% design 
plans, an independent review of the 50% cost estimate, and provide a draft construction 
schedule. Subconsultant PCSG will also host a risk as essment work hop to be attended by 
the RTC, City of Reno, Washoe County, NDOT, and ot e' TAC members as appropriate, 
during the agency review period of the 50% design plan . 

4.2.9 50% Review Comment Resolution 

CONSULTANT will consolidate and 'j31evide'responses to the 50% plan review comments. 
A comment resolution meeting, with 6 C0 S'UL TANT attendees, will be held if comments 
are extensive and need agency coorchnation · ,r ·or to advancing the design to the 90% level. 

4.2.10 90% Design 

Incorporating agenc comments ij-om the 50% design review, CONSULTANT will 
advance the design and prepa ·e 90% preliminary design plans, a corresponding 90% 
preliminary 0pinibn of probable construction cost estimate, and 90% technical 
specification&. 

4.2.11 90% Plan Set 

Plan sheets included in the 50% submittal will be advanced to the 90% level of detail. 
Additional sheets to be included are: 

• Geometric Control and Grading Plans (5): Geometric control and grading plan 
information for median islands, separated sidewalks, ADA ramps, driveways, and any 
other feature needing geometry/grading defined for construction 

• Signal and Traffic Signal Interconnect plans (6) 

• Utility specific generated design (water, gas, etc.), as necessary from utility conflicts 
(2) 

• Detailed analysis for lighting and/or electrical (4) 
• Retaining Wall or other Special Structural Features (5) 
• Detail Sheets (10) 

23 



• Site reconstruction plans including landscape and aesthetic design for remediation of 
impacts to adjacent properties (8) 

Approximately 85 Sheets total 

Exclusions from the 90% Scope of Work: 

• Cross Sections will not be included in the plans or provided to the agency(s) 

• No public art design is included, nor identification of potential location(s) 

• No soundwalls or soundwall aesthetic design in included 

4.2.12 90% Cost Estimate 

CONSULTANT will advance the detailed unit priee engineer' s estimate of probable 
construction cost to the 90% design level. 

4.2.13 90% Technical Provisions 

CONSULTANT will provide detailed technical specifie'ations for the outline created at the 
50% submittal, and any additional item as de1errninecl during the 90% design. Technical 
provisions will reference Revision 8 o e 2012 Edition of Standard Specifications for 
Public Works Construction (Orang B0.0k) for standard construction items. 

4.2.14 90% Design Submittal 

CONSUL TANT will submit 90% Design Documents and instructions for providing review 
comments to the agencie a,-id utility companies as summarized below: 

• RTC 
3 copies 11 'xJ "/" 90% design plans, Design Exception Summary (as necessary); 
1 copy 90% 'Technical Specifications 

1 copy Engineer's opinion of probable construction cost estimate; 

2 CDs 22" x 34" PDF of 90% design plans, technical specifications, construction 

cost estimate, full versions of hydraulic, geotechnical, and traffic analysis reports 

1 Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions & Comment Form 

• City of Reno and Washoe County: 

2 copies 11 "xl 7" 90% design plans, Design Exception Summary (as necessary); 

1 copy 90% Technical Specifications 

1 copy Engineer's opinion of probable construction cost estimate; 

2 CDs 22" x 34" PDF of 90% design plans, technical specifications, construction 

cost estimate, full versions of hydraulic, geotechnical, and traffic analysis reports 
1 Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions & Comment Form 

24 



• Utility Companies with facilities in the area: 

1 copy 11 "x 17" 90% design plans 

1 copy Technical Specifications 

1 Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions & Comment Form 

4.2. I 5 Constructability, Cost Estimate, and Technical Specification Review 

Subconsultant PCSG will provide an independent constructability review of the 90% design 
plans, an independent review of the 90% cost estimate, an independent review of the 
technical specifications and update the draft construction schedule prepared at 50% design. 

TASKS SEGMENT 1 FINAL DESIGN 

Task 5.1 SEGMENT I - I 00% DESIGN 

CONSULTANT will organize a 90% review comme t reoonci _iation meeting with the RTC and 
other agencies. Six (6) CONSULTANT tea members are anticipated to attend the comment 
reconciliation meeting. The agreed upon revisi0ns W,iH be incorporated into the plans, allowing the 
CONSULTANT to finalize the design pla s, specifications, and engineer's estimate to 100%. 

CONSULTANT will submit 100% plans, specifieations and engineer's estimate to RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno, and utility c0mpa1t ie"S with facilities in the project limits to verify all 
comments have been respond,ed to reconciled, and incorporated into the plans. 

Subconsultant PCSG will prov ic!le an independent constructability review of the 100% design plans, 
an independent review of the I 00% cost estimate, an independent review of the technical 
specifications and update the Gonstruction schedule prepared at 100% design. 

5.1.1 100% Design Subn'Httal 

CONSULT ANT will submit 100% Design Documents and instructions for providing review 
comments to the agencies and utility companies as summarized below: 

• RTC 
3 copies 1 I "x 17" of I 00% design plans, Design Exception Summary (as necessary); 

1 copy 90% Technical Specifications 

I copy Engineer's opinion of probable construction cost estimate; 

2 CDs 22" x 34" PDF of 100% design plans, technical specifications, and 

construction cost estimate; full versions of hydraulic, geotechnical, and traffic 

analysis reports 
1 Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions & Comment Form 

25 



• City of Reno and Washoe County: 

2 copies 11 "x 17" 100% design plans, Design Exception Summary (as necessary); 

I copy 90% Technical Specifications 

1 copy Engineer' s opinion of probable construction cost estimate; 

2 CDs 22" x 34" PDF of I 00% design plans, technical specifications, and 

construction cost estimate; full versions of hydraulic, geotechnical, and traffic 

analysis reports 

I Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions & Comment Form 

• Utility Companies with facilities in the area: 

1 copy 11 "x 17" I 00% design plans 

I copy Technical Specifications 

I Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Ltjstrucf ons & Comment Form 

Task 5.2 SEGMENT I - FINAL DESIGN 

Once the agencies verify that all review comments av been addressed and no additional changes 
are required, CONSULTANT will sign and sta1np the design plans and technical specifications for 
use as an advertised project. 

5.2.1 Final Design Submittal 

CONSULTANT will provicle ill size PD -~ and a PDF of the Technical Specifications via 
a USB or CD to the RTC for p0_sting-on their e-bid system for advertisement. 

CONSUL TANT will su mit I hru;l!l co y, 11" x 17", of the Final Design Plan Set and I hard copy 
of the Technica pecificati@ i'S to the RTC, City of Reno, and Washoe County. 

TASK6 SEGMENT 1 BlDDING SERVICES 

CONSULT ANT will provide services during bidding for Lemmon Drive Segment 1. CONSULT ANT 
Project Manager and Design Manager will attend the RTC hosted pre-bid meeting, respond to any Request 
for Information (RF!s) during the bidding period, and prepare any addenda that may be required. 

CONSULT ANT Project Manager and Design Manager will attend the project bid opening, review the bids 
received for any irregularities, and create a tabulation of the bid results in an excel spreadsheet-based format 
to verify the quantities and costs of the bid items. 

After bid opening and award, CONSULT ANT will prepare a Conformed Set of Specifications for 
distribution to the project and construction teams. All RTC and Contractor signed pages and any 
addenda will be incorporated into a final set of project specifications. CONSUL TANT will also 
prepare a conformed set of plans, if any changes are required resulting from RFis during the 
bidding process. 

26 



TASK7 SEGMENT 2 ALTERNATIVE ANALYSIS 

7 .1 SEGMENT 2 - ALTERNATIVES DEVELOPMENT 

In coordination with the TAC, CONSULTANT will develop the project purpose and need and 
project goals. Once these have been established and agreed upon, several conceptual level 
alternatives will be identified for screening. CONSULTANT will follow a two-step process for 
evaluating and screening the alternatives. 

7.2 LEVEL 1 SCREENING 

The Level 1 screening process will be a qualitative evaluation of conceptual level alternatives 
developed by the TAC. They will be screened based on the ability to meet project purpose and 
need, ability to meet project goals, ability to avoid and minimize impacts to the natural and built 
environment, and input from the TAC. 

CONSULTANT will work with County and City of Reno stafft0 gain information regarding Swan 
Lake water surface elevation. CONSULTANT will evaluate how wid nir1g and profile adjustments 
to Lemmon Drive would impact the flood plain, and how project ~pecific impact mitigation might 
be completed as a piece of the overall solution for Swan Lake. f'-roposed development conditions 
and how they would affect alternatives will also be considered during the evaluation process. 

The results of the Level 1 screening proc-ess ill identify the top three alternatives to be further 
developed to a 15% design level. 

CONSULT ANT will provide 15% design for up to three alternatives. The design will include 
determining typical sections prefile adjustment, drainage concepts, impacts to adjoining cross 
streets, multi-use path alignme t f10odplain impacts and mitigation measures, striping 
configuration, traffic analysis results, major utility conflicts, and coordination with regional Swan 
Lake improvements·. 

7.2.1 Deliverables: 

• Completed Level 1 Screening Evaluation Chart 
• l" = 100' scale Roll Plots (36"x 60" maximum size each) (approx .. 3 plots) 
• PDFs created; 6 printed copies 
• Plan view - Roadway, Drainage Concepts, Striping, Major Utility Conflicts, and Swan 

Lake Coordination Features, preliminary finished grade contours, cut/fill limits, 
existing right-of-way 

• Profile view shall be included below the plan view. 
• Design Report Technical memo for each of the three alternatives summarizing key 

design issues and possible mitigations, and a construction cost estimate. 

27 



7.3 CONSTRUCTABILITY REVIEW/ RISK ASSESSMENT WORKSHOP 

Subconsultant PCSG will provide an independent constructability review and risk assessment of 
the three selected alternatives. PCSG will share the information during a TAC meeting to be 
included in the Level 2 Screening process. 

7.4 LEVEL 2 SCREENING 

The Level 2 screening process will be qualitative evaluation of the 15% Design of the three selected 
alternatives. They will be screened based on criteria developed and agreed upon by the TAC, 
including planning level construction costs. The results of the Level 2 screening process will 
identify provide a consensus of the preferred alternative to be advanced to 30% design. 

7.4.1 Deliverables: 

• Level 2 Screening Evaluation Chart and Techni0al Memorandum summarizing the 
three alternatives and the selection and consensus of.tile preferred alternative. 

TASKS SEGMENT 2 PRELIMINARY DE JG~ 

8.1 30% DESIGN 

CONSULTANT will advance the preferred alternative to a 30% design level. Roadway plans will 
be designed in accordance with design criteria developed in sub-task 4.1.1 . 

Design exceptions are not anticipated, however, where an exception has been included as part of 
the design, CONSUL TANT wi II rep-are a list of the exceptions identifying station limits, 
standards, and potentiat .zyi itigations. An engineer's estimate of probable construction cost will 
accompany the 30% desigp; ;r'echnical Specifications will be excluded. 

8.1 .1 Drainage Analysis 

This scope is based upon the drainage criteria outlined by the Truckee Meadows Regional 
Drainage Manual (J'MRDM), Truckee Meadows Structural Controls Design and Low 
Impact Development Manual. TMRDM section 709.2 North Valleys requires volumetric 
analysis within the Swan Lake basin to be based on the 100-year, 10-day storm event, while 
routing of peak flows shall be based on the 100-year, 24-hour storm event. 

CONSUL TANT will estimate street surface flow characteristics (i.e. depth, velocity, spread 
width/dry lane, and velocity times depth) using Manning's Equations for 5-, 10-, and 100-
year design storm events. 

CONSUL TANT will evaluate if existing drainage facilities meet drainage criteria using 
Manning's Equation for roadside ditches and storm drain facilities, and HEC-22 for drop 
inlets. 

28 



CONSULTANT will complete a preliminary design (30 percent) of proposed drainage 
facilities (culverts, roadside ditches, drop inlets, and storm drain facilities) to meet drainage 
criteria. Where possible, use of and tie-ins into existing drainage systems along Lemmon 
Drive will be incorporated into the design. 

As Segment 2 will encroach into the FEMA special flood hazard area AE, CONSULT ANT 
will prepare a technical memorandum with alternatives for the project's construction within 
the FEMA flood zone. 

8.1.2 Environmental Permitting 

CONSUL TANT will meet with each of the potential permitting agencies and discuss the 
conceptual project, design alternatives, construction delivery method alternatives, and will 
work to establish with each agency the permitting requirements for the project, any known 
limitations to construction methods and any mitigation expected for project permitting. This 
will clarify which regulatory agencies will assert jurisdiction over the project and the 
permitting that each will require, if any. This effort will al o identify for the project the 
types and depth of information required to make permit application(s) with each permitting 
agency, the permit limitation(s) on construction ethods and the timeline for securing the 
permit(s), if any. 

The fee associated with this scope a sumes a maximum often (10), two (2)-hour, in-person, 
meetings. 

Permits for the project may lµclude but are not limited to: Nevada Division of 
Environmental Protection W01·k.ing in Waters Permit, 401 Water Quality Permit, 
Construction StormwafeJT Permit di~charge permits for dewatering; building and grading 
permits and associated lf>cal fl@<i>dplain management; Special Use Permit; Nevada Division 
of State Lands PeJIDl its; and other permits as identified throughout the review process. 

For each required permit iclentified, CONSULTANT will develop a summary of submittal 
requirements, timelines, risks to the project, and permitting fees. These results will be 
factored into the sele· tion of the preferred alternative. 

8.1.2.1 Exclusions 

Per the RTC, it is assumed no Federal Funding will be applied to the project, and therefore 
no NEPA compliance review is required. 

It is assumed a 408 Permit will not be required through the Army Corp of Engineers. 

No FEMA flood boundary adjustment(s) are included in this scope/fee. 

No permit applications will be submitted. 

29 



8.1.3 Lighting and Electrical Design 

No lighting or electrical design will be included with the 30% design for Segment 2. 

8.2 30% PLAN SET 

Plan sheets will be drafted electronically at full size, l" = 25' scale, on 22" x 34" size paper, PDF'd 
full size, but printed only at half size, l" = 50' scale, on 11" x 17". 

The following is a listing of plan sheets (and amount of detail) anticipated in the project contract 
documents for the 30% submittal: 

The following is a listing of plan sheets (and amount of detail) anticipated in the project contract 
documents for the 30% submittal: 

Title Sheet ( 1) 

Index of Sheets, General Notes, Legend, and Abbreviations (2) 

Typical Section Sheets ( 4) 
• As-constructed and proposed improvement t)lpi'cal eetions for each alignment 
• Minimum and maximum roadway jdths tor each alignment and lane configurations 
• Preliminary roadside designs (slopes curb . gutters dikes, and traffic barriers) 
• Proposed pedestrian and bic;ycJe imptov 
• Proposed retaining wall locatfons if a y 
• Removal limits 
• Pavement section depths 

Survey Control / Riglft of Way Sheets (10) 
• Existing Right o W'ay. limits 
• Schedule of coordinates, basis of bearing, stationing and offsets, the control coordinates, 

and datum taternent 

Removals and Utility Sheets (10) 
• Removal Limits, including existing roadway, signs, drainage, etc. 
• Existing Utilities and Proposed Utility adjustments/relocations 
• Sign removals 
• Existing ground contours at 1' interval 

Roadway- Plan and Profile Sheets (18) 
• Plan view over profile view stacked window layout 
• Horizontal curve data, bearings, distances and station and offsets for angle points, tapers, 

and curves 
• Preliminary locations for curbs, gutters, and sidewalk 
• Preliminary road widths 
• Preliminary cut and fill slope limits 

30 



• Vertical grade and curve data 
• Superelevation Diagrams 

Drainage - Plan and Profile Sheets (18) 
• Plan view over pipe profile view stacked window layout 
• Locations of existing and proposed drainage facilities 
• Locations of utilities shown in plan view 
• Locations of utility crossings in pipe profile view 
• Proposed ground contours at 1 ' interval 

Striping Sheets (I 0) 
• Two stacked plan view windows 
• Proposed striping showing lane arrangements including turn lanes, storage lengths, 

acceleration lanes, and deceleration lanes 

Traffic Signal Sheets (2) 
• Traffic signal modifications (if necessary) 

Landscape and Aesthetics Sheets (3) 
• General Concept, no detailed informati~n 

Approximately 70 Sheets Total. 

Exclusions from the 30% Scope of -0r.k: 
• Specific/Custom details will n©t be-pxepared 

• Utility specific generated de ign (water, gas, etc.), as necessary resulting from utility 

conflicts, will not be prepared 

• Site reconstp:10f plans fot adjacent properties will not be prepared 

• Geometric Contrnl and Grading Plans will not be prepared 

• Drainage Profiles and Details will not be prepared 

• Retaining Wall P-:lans will not be prepared 

• Signal and Traffic Signal Interconnect plans will not be prepared 

• Detailed analysis for lighting and/or electrical will not be completed 

• Cross Sections will not be included in the plans or provided to the agency(s) 

• No public art design is included, nor identification of potential location(s) 

• No soundwalls or soundwall aesthetic design in included 

• No landscape and aesthetic design for remediation of impacts to adjacent private parcels 

is included 

8.3 30% COST ESTIMATE 

CONSULTANT will prepare a detailed unit price engineer's estimate of probable construction cost 
in the same format as the bid proposal form to be included in the contract documents. Bid item 
numbers will correspond to the appropriate sections in the RTC's Orange Book. 

31 



8.4 30% DESIGN SUBMITTAL 

CONSULTANT will submit 30% Design Documents and instructions for providing review 
comments to the agencies and utility companies as summarized below: 

• RTC 
- 3 copies 11 "xl 7" 30% design plans, Design Exception Summary (as necessary); 

1 copy Draft Hydraulic Report (without appendices) 

1 copy Engineer' s opinion of probable construction cost estimate; 

- 2 CDs 22" x 34" PDF and of 30% design plans, and construction cost estimate; 

1 Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions & Comment Template 

• City of Reno and Washoe County: 

- 2 copies 11 "x 17" 30% design plans, Design Excepti'<l>n Summary (as necessary); 

I copy Draft Hydraulic Report (without appendices) 

1 copy Engineer' s opinion of probable construction cost estimate; 

- 2 CDs 22" x 34" PDF and of 30% design plaas and construction cost estimate; full 

version of Hydraulic Report; full ver 10n o geoteclinical report; full version of Traffic 

Analysis Report 

1 Electronic Distribution of Review Comment Instructions 

• Utility Companies with facilitie in fne arrea: 

1 copy 11 "x 17" 30% design plaos; 

1 Electronic Distrib tion of.R eview Comment Instructions 

TASK9 SEGMENT 2 PROJ ECT DELIVERY SELECTION APPROACH 

9.1 PROJECT DELNBRY METHOD SELECTION 

9.1.1 Project Delivery Method Selection Workshop #I 

CONSULTANT will organize and present a four (4) hour workshop for RTC staff to 
explain alternate project delivery selection method tools currently in use by various 
agencies, including Nevada, Utah, and Colorado Departments of Transportation. Working 
with RTC staff, selection of the preferred tool to use as a starting point will be decided 
upon. 

9.1.2 Project Delivery Method Selection Workshop #2 

CONSULTANT will use the NDOT (assuming it is selected as the preferred tool) Project 
Delivery Selection tool as a starting point, and revise the tool based on project specific 
goals, challenges, and opportunities. Together with the RTC, CONSULTANT will evaluate 

32 



three project delivery methods: Design-Build (DB), Construction Manager At-Risk 
(CMAR), and Design-Bid-Build (DBB). This is assumed to be a four (4) hour workshop 
as well. 

CONSULTANT will prepare a Project Delivery Selection technical memorandum 
summarizing the scoring results and the recommended project delivery method for 
construction. Included in the scoring will be costs associated with the CMAR and DB 
processes. 

9.1.3 Deliverables 

• Draft - Project Delivery Method Recommendation Technical Memorandum 
• Final - Project Delivery Method Recommendation Technical Memorandum 

9.2 PROGRAM MANAGER FOR DESIGN-BUILD (POSSTBL ADDE OUM) 

If design-build (DB) is selected as the preferred project delivecy meth0'd, an addendum will be 
issued to CONSULT ANT to prepare scope and fee fodhe program management role for this project. 
This role shall include the project management ancl admini trative support and coordination with 
RTC engineering and procurement departments cJevelopment @'f qualification evaluation criteria, 
methodology, proposal criteria and proposal evaluation criteria. CONSULT ANT will develop and 
assist the RTC in publishing the RFQ, deve op anu publish the Draft RFP, review and publication 
support for the final RFP, ITP, and addenda evaluation and selection review and support, and 
contract conformance. 

TASKlO DESIGN CON1JNGENCY 

This is a contingeney for misoellaneous increases within the scope of this contract in the 
performance of services unaer Ta ks I to 9. If CONSULTANT determines that it is necessary to 
perform work to be paid out of contingency, CONSULTANT shall provide a letter detailing the 
need, scope, and not-to-.exc~ed budget for any proposed work. Work under this task shall proceed 
only with the RTC Project Manager' s prior written approval. 

33 



LEMON VALLEY 

f ,i11 '-: Name Ou,.1t'loi, 1Start ,w,i, Pn.•drw Q.,._llll9 QU 2020 Q111, 1D2'0 Qlr.3, 2020 Qtr4,:l020 Qtrl.~l 
0 _, A,g S!a!p 0c, _N.o~ De<; _ _ ,., I _feb -- ~r_ ,.,,. May I _ _Jun A,g ' Sep OU Nov ct< Feb Mar 

RTC Board Approval I day Fri9/20/ 19 Frl9/ 20/19 '"' I ·'- "'" 'l 
NTP Sdavs Mon9/23/19 Fri9/27/19 

J 3 Subcontract Signed 20days Mon9/30/19 Fri 10/25/19 2 

SEGMENT 1 370days Mon9/JO/J9 Fri2/26/21 

&tmng Conditions 70days Mon9/30/19 Fn1/3/20 

, Geo tech Fieldwork - Segmenl J 2D days Mon9/3D/l9 Frl 10/25/19 

Geotech Report 3D days Monl0/28/19 Frl12/6/19 

SurveyField•Segmentl 25days Mon9/30/19 Fri 11/1/19 

Office lope Orafting-Segml!nt 1 2Sdays Monl0/14/19 Fri ll/15/19 

10 :;:;i Drone: Fllght and Aerials (Segs 1 & 2) 30days Mon 9/30/19 Fri 11/8/19 

II Traffic Volume Counts {Seg l & 2) 20days Mon9/30/19 Fri 10/25/19 2 

11 ,a Traffic Analysls Report jSeg 1 & 2) 50days Mon 10/28/19 Frll/3/20 11 

1) SO"Ddgn 9Ddair; Mon 1/6/20 FrlS/8/20 12 

M SO%Design 70days Monl/6/20 Frf4/10/20 12 

15 .!ii PubUcMeetir,clll(Segmentl&2) !day Wed4/22/20 Wed4/22/20 

16 ;;;I Agency Review 20da,r.; Mon4/]3/20 Fri5/8/20 " 
17 Right or Way ActNihes lday Wed4/1S/20 Wed4/15/20 

18 RightoFWaySetungMeelinc ldav Wed4/15/20 Wed 4/15/20 

19 'El RrghtorWayAcquis1tions/Easement 180days Thu4/16/20 Wed12/23/20 1B 

20 901' Oe5ign lOOdays Mon5/ll/20 Fri9/2S/20 16 

21 90%0esign 80days MonS/11/20 FriS/28/20 16 

22 Agency Review 20days MonB/31/20 Fri9/25/20 21 

lJ Publk;: Meet.ng 112 (Segment 1 & 2) lday Wed 7/29/20 Wed?/29/20 

1~ 100" Design SO days Mon9/28/20 Fri12/4/20 20 

l~ 100% Design 30days Mon 9/28/20 Fri 11/6/20 22 

26 Agency Review 20days Mon 11/9/20 Frl12/4/20 25 ,., :;. FlnalforConmuctlan 20days Mon 12/7/20 Fri 1/1/21 26 

'8 BtddfngSMpport 40days Mon 1/4/Zl frl2/26/Zl " 2'l SEGMENTZ 275days Mon9/30/19 Fril0/16/20 

JD Existing Conditions 105 days Mon9/3D/19 Fn2/21/20 

J I Geotech - Segrnent 2 35days Mon 10/28/19 Fri 12/13/19 6 

J2 Geotech Report 3Sdays Mon 12/16/19 Fril/31/20 31 

JI SurveyField - 5egmenl2 7D days Mon 11/4/19 Frl2/7/20 

1' a Survey Topo • Segment 2 70days Mor, 11/18/19 Fri2/21/20 
I 

)S a Orone: Flight and Aerials-WI Se.111 30 days Mon 9/30/19 Fri 11/8/19 toss 

J6 Trame Volume Counts-WI Seg 1 20days Mon9/30/19 Fril0/25/19 1155 
I 

J1 !i TrafficAnalaysisReport-W/Segl SD days Mon 10/28/19 Frl 1/3/20 125S 

13 Alternaffve Analysis lDOdays Mon2/24/20 Frl7/10/20 " 
39 LNell 40days MonZ/24/20 frl4/17/20 " AD tevel2 40davs Mon4/20/20 Frl6/12/2D 39 

•1 :iii ~tlonot Pr•ft!ll~All,,1iu.1M• 20days Mon6/15/20 Fri7/10/20 40 ., Public Muting 111 (Segment 1 & 2} lday Wed4/22/20 Wedfl/22/20 1555 

• J . Rena NA.8/orhcr athnstJ,V oommfttl'6 60days Wedfl/8/20 Tue6/3D/20 

« - arycaur,cl/ lday Wed7/l/20 Wed7/1/20 

Ji .';I Washoe County CAB l day Mon 7/13/20 Mon7/13/20 

"6 Public Meeting 112 {Segment 1 & 2) lday Wed?/29/20 Wed7/29/20 23SS 

., •1 Preferred Alte-rnative to .30% 70 day, Mon7/B/20 Fril0/ 16/20 

~. 

,. 

48 Selection a/Consrruction Delivery Method 30days Thu 7/30/20 Wed 9/9/20 46 

ProJeCt: Lemon VaUey SC:Ndulf" 
Oa,te: Tue 8/27/19 

b~k Summ•ry .-------, lnac:Li...,Milesttine Oural ion-11n+y ~,..,...., t•~W..,~ Mi,nualProgt<MS 

S11ht Pro,te1Summ,1ry lnm>'leSumm•,Y M;a,..,alSumm•ryRollup f" ... .. ~, 

M ...... Jr..a,trveTask Manual Task Manu1ISummnry l q mil " lo'll1 -PtagleSi - " • 
Pagel 



Exhibit B 

Compensation 



Exhibit B - Compcnsalion Schcdnlc 

Project Design Senior Pmj Projccl Project Projccl Slaff QA/QC ROW Landscape Sr. Sr. Public Project 
Admin/ 

Project Tille 
Mmaagcr Manager Mimagcr Engineer Ht Engineer II Engineer I Engineer 

CAD Tech 
M;i.nagcr Assoda1c An:hitccl Structural lnh Accountant 

Projccl 
Conlrols Sub-

,114-K ~m· Hc:n Sh:unn ll.ilan..1. 
Hours Subtask Cost 

Consullanls 
Tolal Costs 

Proposed .'':ra.O K.., Clok 
l"Kli1t 

Chad 11 
K11~unn.Zm 

M1111to l\n1"4..,,, John Kini Nokes 
Patrice L111d• C,inpct l'1cbl Sha\\11/Candy 

Raw Rate 

Task h,gRate.-; Sl80110 '.§1300() 5250 on $16000 Sl35 00 SIOU,IIO $7500 $10000 $25000 $1<,QOO S\8500 $2-W00 s190 no S6500 $6000 

1.0 Project Management 970 )JO 84 4 426 -16 46 -16 0 50 4 46 4 120 418 2574 $ 360.120 $ . 
II 

Project Management Acti, itics. Scheduling Monthly 
7.i, 92 80 120 268 130� S ]HQ,7M 

Jm·oicing Accounting. File Managemcnl 

12 Kickorf Meetings 16 8 ,I 4 IJ 4 4 4 8 4 4 4 8 84 S IZ.500 

13 Project Managcmcnl Meetings 144 144 2IUI 576 $ 113,520 

14 Internal Design Coordinalion Meetings 41 4? 126 42 42 4] 42 41 4> � 61 S (,0,900 

I 5 Projccl & Qu;i.lity Management Pl;1ns DC\ & Updates 24 24 
., JOO 148 S 1:\.440 

2.0 Public Outreach 262 170 0 0 80 12 12 68 0 ,,A, O_A 0 12 0 uo 756 $ 99.640 $ 80,000 

21 Public Oulrcach Pl:m/Mcthods/Stakcholdcr Da1abasc v.... H A 
40 .o s 2,400 

22 TAC Meetings 80 40 RO -.,,, 80 2110 S J5.ZOO 

23 One-on-One Stakeholder Meetings 811 80 ~ '" ~ 160 $ 24 ROO 

24 Public Information Mlgs (2) 6! 12 I] ll 48 " ..... 12 2(1 ]80 S ZJ,460 

25 RTC Board Meetings 18 18 ,. 1-._ ... 1 ..... � 36 S 5.5RO 

26 Washoe Counly Comm & Reno City Council 20 20 ,Mr, "" r"'- /' 60 S H,200 

SUB SJ Marketing it. .JI ,,,. 0 • $ 80.000 

3.0 lnn~tigation of Existing Condition!! 29 182 24 0 448 48 0 .... ~' ,,,-. 260 0 0 0 0 0 1195 s 162.160 $ -U2 .. 992 

JI Grotcchnical Jmcstigation 4 16 \ :\.'-. -.~ 20 S 2ROO 

SUB Black Eagle ~"'- V 
0 ' 

$ 210A30 ,_ 

32 Pa,cmcnl Dislrcss.lCondilion Sun·cv I 8 ~ l ..... ~ ' "'' 
17 s 2,020 

33 fais1ing Subsurface Utilities 14 ,~ ,~ "' 14 s 1,H20 

H Utilil) Po1holing 8 16 .............. ""'" 
24 s J.520 

SUB Po1holing \,\ .......__ 
0 S s 3(1000 

; 5 Topogrnphic Sun·cy & Aerial Images Jr, -- 16 l_ ,r. 4S ' 6.640 

SUB MAPCA Survevs ., ...,.. \\. 0 S $ l� 2.562 

)6 Righl-Of-Way Mapping 18 -"" \\ 108 s/l 206 S 25,940 

37 Rigl11-0f-Wa, Engineering ~ ., ' 80 180 260 S J(,!«)() 

SUB OPC t II$ $ 20,000 

3 8 Traffic Volume Verification 18 16 'W;.ltl 27-1 J JH.740 

SUB Trnrric Counls 0 S s 10.000 

JI) Access Man.igcmcnl 32 32 64 S R,480 

3 10 Safctv Assessment 12 56 68 S 9,120 

J I! Da1a Collection 16 .o _'iC, s 6.080 

J\2 Exis1ing H)drology 8 an 48 S 7,400 

313 Segment I 8 Mullimodill Connec\h ity J] 64 96 S 12,800 

, .o Segment t - Preliminary DC!lign 106 480 0 60 1332 100 696 560 56 0 82 28 0 0 104 3604 s 431.230 s 85.500 

4 I I Design Criteria (Segments 1&2) 12 12 41 72 s 6.780 

4 12 Sonwarc- ProjceLWisc Setup 4" 40 $ 4.000 

4 2 I Segment I - 50% Roadway 16 2011 ,oo .o 280 8 944 s 109,ROO 

� 2 I 1 Segment I - 50% Drainage 20 200 220 S JO.ZOO -



SeniorProj Project Project Projeer Staff QA/QC ROW Landscape s,. Sr. Public Project 
Admin/ 

Prr'}ecl Tille 
Project Design 

CAD Tech Project 
Manager Manager Manager E.np_r¢1" 111 Engineer II Engineer I Engineer Manager Associale Architect Siruclur•I lnh Accountant 

Conlmls Sul>-
Hou rs Subtajljk Cost 

Consultants 
Total Costs 

Pmpo.~ed ,"·lto.D ·- Clih, .lt .. K . km· 
Clad II 

Ben Sharan _ M_, John Kim Nokes 
111'tana, 

tMd• Cw rc* lkbl .Sha"n CanJ~· 
1\11111 11 K:l\';mn Zen ""'"""'. l!l.i)ricc 

fl111r /ltl:r 

ra,k 11-gRai,•.{ $180 00 snooo S2~000 Sl6000 5135 00 SIOOOO .$7500 $1()000 S25000 Sl(,000 $185 00 s2-rnoo $19000 S6500 .$(1'>00 

-12 I 2 Segment I - Em ironmenlal Pennilling , 
' $ 5'0 

SUB TriSage 0 $ $ 5.000 

4 2 I .l Segment 1- Lla;.l~nqe& Elcc1rieal • 8 • l.[).10 

SUB PK Electrical (I • 5 60.000 

'22 Segment I - 50% Plan Sci 300 2, 32-1 S 3fi.OOO 

� 2 J Segment I - 50% Cosl Estimalc -I 16 60 2, Jrnt J 13 2411 

"' Segmcnl I - 50¾ Technical Spccinc<tlions 8 16 16 ' •• $ 6.(,40 

� 2 5 Segment I - 50% Design Submittal 8 8 " A '" 6� $ 5.•UUJ 

-12 6 Segment I - 50% Constmctabilily/Risk Assessment WrkShop 8 s I(, 8 '- � u s 5 2-lO 

SUB PCSG IP 0 $ s 11 500 

'27 Segment l - 50% Re, icw Comment Resolution "' "' ,2 le, · ~~ ~ H 106 S 12,290 

� 2. Segment I - 90% Design 16 I 12 -10 5110 on 2RII ~ " 8 1096 J 13S,060 

-4 2 9 Segment I - 90% Plan Sci 220 1-- '!i? ' 1.A 2S2 s JOOOO 

.nm Segment I - 90% Cost Estimate • J{, J2 2-1 //' ... ,., ,J 76 S 1\920 

-Dll Segment I - 90% Technical Specifications 16 60 56 ,h' JI 'V' 8 140 S N.160 

,42 12 Segment I - 90% Design SubmiUal R R J '' N' -10 6-1 $ S.,UIO 

� 21J Scgmcnl I - 90% Construc1abili1y/Risk Assessment 2 ~ !\... ..__ 2 $ ;I(.() 

SUB PCSG ~ ,,-V,,..,. 1,, 0 • s 9.000 

:5.0 !segme-nt 1 - Final De!ign 32 6-1 0 0 256 0 ~ .... B-1 '\ C:. .,. 
0 12 18 0 0 80 658 $ IM.680 $ 8.S00 

SI Scgmenl I I 00% Design , 16 180 °'L~I ' ,o 16 8 4 328 • 42.()40 

51 Segment 1 100°/o Estimate & Specs & Delh cry 16 16 2R "it,._ •I.._.~ 8 -I 8 -10 128 S 16,400 

SUB PCSG ..,.__ 
~ 0 • - $ 7.500 

5 2 Segmcnl I Final Design , 16 " ... ... ..... l 2, ,. ' 96 $ 1� .000 

52 Segment I Final Estimate & Spcc:s & Dch,cry 8 "' 2-1 l\H --. 8 2 .in 106 J 12,240 

SUB PCSG ,.; 1..-...; 'IE 0 $ $ 1 000 

6,0 ~menl 1 - !Uddin~ Sen·ices 32 32 0 •C ){y \.. b 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 100 $ 14,780 s 
61 Bidding Ser. ices 32 12 

.,,,. ., 
'" I IQO s 14.7RO 

7.0 Segment 2 - Allemati\·es Anal)·!is 68 212 0 0 _.l.i.__... 
, 

12 160 180 2-1 0 0 60 0 0 .j() 1100 $ i.0.2-10 $ 11.000 

71 AllcmatiYCS DC\Clopmcnt ,. 2! .,_.,8 96 S 1) .920 

7 2 Level I Screening 16 80 12-1 8 80 RO 2n � OS S 49,620 

73 Constrnclion/Risk Workshop j ' • � 20 S 2,720 

7-1 LC\cl 2 Screening 16 \Iii ,.., 80 100 -I ll � 80 $ 61.020 

75 Oclfrcrablcs • 2-1 2, ,o 96 $ 12.960 

SUB PCSG (I s $ 11.000 

l!.O Segmenl 2 - Prdhoinar)' Design ,o 20-1 0 0 678 -18 268 200 2-1 0 ~o -18 0 0 ,o l590 s 191.470 $ 22,000 

81 30% Design 2, 180 -150 -10 2'0 -10 ,o IOI-I $ 127.470 

8 I I 30% Drainage \Gtl 160 1i 2\.(,00 

RI 2 Environmcnlal Permitting I ! 12 $ 1.620 

SUB TriSagc 0 S - s 15.000 

8 I 3 Lighting & Elcclrical () . - -



Admin/ s,. QA/QC Sr. Public Project Design ScniorProj Project Project Project Staff ROW Landscape Project 
Project Project Title CAD Tech 

Manager Associate A11:hilcct S1ruc1ural Ink Accounlanl ~nagcr Manager Manager Engineer Ill Engineer If Engineer I Engineer 
Controls Sub-

Hours Total Costs Subtask Cost 
Consultants nm~Sh� rnn 11.-lnn� .... K . km· t .. dw Chad [I A111h,111, K1111Nol.:cs Cooper Debi Sh11\\111 Cond~ •.. Joho Propn.ftcl Stnb Chri• M -

Ko\'lJnn . 7.cn PJl ricc ·-Rmt• RMr 

.$16000 $101)00 $60 00 Ta.\k ~h•RRate.f 518000 SIJ000 S25000 .$1J500 S75 00 $10000 $250 00 Sl60 00 SIR500 $190.00 $65 00 $2"000 

$ 26.000 82 30% Plan Set 200 24 22-' 

5(, 15.iOO 83 30% Cost Estimate 28 8 8 16 11r. ' 
I) s SUB PCSG $ 7.000 

' • 5.(,81) 84 30% Design Submiual 8 40 8 64 

24 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 60 $ 8.840 $ 10.500 ,,.o Segmcot 2 Project Ddn·cry Mdhod Sdection 8 4 8 8 8 0 

J S 3 920 28 9 I I Wmkshop#I 12 4 4 4 '"" S 4,920 912 Workshop #2 4 4 4 32 l J 1? ,I 
0 S $ 10.500 SUB AYcnuc Consul!anls A .. 

II 0 0 0 $ 22-l.OOO s 26.000 IO.O DCQgn Contingericy - S2S0,000 per RTC 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 ,# A 
s 224,000 0 10 I Ocslp, Conlingcncy As Appro\cd By RTC ~ ~ ,...,,, 

$ 26.000 SUB Subconsullants ft.. (I ' ,_o, _. u 0 $ . s 2t7.280 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 Sub!lOnsultaat- Dyer 0 0 I.. 

0 S s 2-l7,280 All Tasks H ''-
0 

_,,, ,-
JI 'r ""'' .,,, 3608 IS2 310 138 200 16 120 11637 Hou rs Per Stilff 1563 1662 Ill 6-1 274 "'li.E2 an 12?,I 

s -l9,600 $ 1.723~[60 s 903.772 S 216.060 $ 28.000 $_ JS.000 $ 25.530 $ -18.000 $ 3.0-10 $ 7.800 $ -l'J.320 Ba.~c Scope Direct Labor Costs S 281.3-10 $ I0.2-10 S 487.080 $ 27.400 's-_,Jll.JIJQ. $ 95.~ . .; s 35.000 Dir~, e, rc:n,r'\ ' ~ .. - . Misc E:,,.11. s lllJIM 
Tra\·cl Costs (Airf,1rc. Car. Ho!cl. Food) 1li ~. s 15.000 -

.-'C '---,- '--~~ ~ 

s 1,758,160 s 903,772 S 2,661 ,932 rt°OTAL PROPOSED BASE FEE /TOTAL SUB-CONSULTANT SERVICES / TOTAL (Rounded) ... .: = l '- -



Exhibit C 

Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 



Exhibit C 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REOUlREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

2018- 1 1-02 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULT ANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONT ACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0171. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to defend, save and hold harmless and fully indemnify RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno, and City of Sparks, including their elected officials officers, employees, 
and agents (hereafter, "Indemnitees") from and against any and all claim proceedings actions, 
liaqility and damages, including attorneys' fees and defense costs ineurred in any action or 
proceeding ( collectively "Damages") arising out of: 

A. Any breach of duty, neglect, error, misstatement naisleading statement or omission 
committed in the conduct of CONSUL TAN $ profession, work or services rendered by 
(i) CONSULTANT, its employee agents officers, or directors, (ii) subconsultants 
(hereafter, "Subs"), or (iii) anyone else fo · -which CONSULT ANT may be legally 
responsible; and 

B. The negligent acts of C@NSUL TANT its employees, agents, officers, directors, Subs, or 
anyone else for which O . lJb TANJ is legally responsible; and 

C. The infringem nt of any patent or copyright resulting from the use by the lndemnitees of 
any equipmerlt~ par¼ Gompo .ent or other deliverable (including software) supplied by 
CONSUL TANT l:1rider or as a result of this Agreement, but excluding any infringement 
resulting from the modification or alteration by the Indemnitees of any equipment, part, 
component, or other deliverable (including software) except as consented to by 
CONSULTANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 
property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 

If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions, CONSULT ANT shall reimburse the 
Indemnitees for the time spent by such personnel at the rate the Indemnitees pay for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSULTANT'S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 



In detennining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall detennine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.C above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall either (1) secure for the Indemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by procuring a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become non-infringing. This covenant shall 
survive the tennination of this Agreement. 

3. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the start of any work on a R TC project, CONSUL TANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the types and limits as described herein insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSULT ANT, its Subs, or their employees, agents, or representatives. The cost 
of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSULT ANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSUL TANT shall furnish RTC with a certificate(s) of.lnsurance, executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing complianGe with Ole ir)s'urance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All deductibles and self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. All Cl§rtifi.cate and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and app o ed by RTC before work commences. The 
CONSULT ANT agrees that RTC has the right to inspect CONSULT ANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or certified copie 0 the policies at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements confirming required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 
notice of cancellation provision are 11equired to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

5. NOTICE OF CANCELLATl(i) 

CONSULTANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation ·er r:ion-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten (10) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSULTANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSUL TANTS & SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSULT ANT shall include all Subcontractors and Subconsultants (referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause Subs employed by CONSULT ANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limits of the types specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits, each shall include the RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additional insureds under its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements stated herein, without requiring a written contract 



or agreement between each of the additional insureds and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability maintained by Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for any applicable coverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is GREATER. If any Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the Contractor, Contractor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Contractor. When requested by RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates of insurance evidencing coverage for each Sub. The CONSULT ANT 
need not require its non-design subcontractors to carry Professional Errors and Omissions Liability 
insurance. 

7. DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financial or otherwise prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any 'c)a.anges to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by the RTC's Finance Director prior to the,,change taking effect. 

8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurel' 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept cover~e liili carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning C'Q S TANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CO StJLTAN'T'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
ofNevada or meet any applicable state and feoeral laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 

9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in tetirnination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSULT ANT fai Is to furnish the required certificate or fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSULT ANT's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to furnish such certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of RTC. Failure 
of RTC to demand such certificate or other evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of RTC to identify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver as to the enforcement of any of these provisions at a later 
date. 



D. By requiring insurance herein, RTC does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to protect CONSULTANT, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a limitation on CONSULTANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
RTC in this contract. 

E. If CONSULTANT'S liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit ofnot less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal twise the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 0 I 04 13 ,(or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 
products-completed operations, personal and adve11ising injury, and lrability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another ~ssum€d in a bu ines contract). 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Sectio 2. TN,DEMNIFlCA TION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, u ing ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07/04 or CG 20 33 07/04 or a substitute providing equi'(l'a]ent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall apply as Rrimary 111 urance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to · T or any ether Indemnitees under this Agreement. 

CONSUL TANT waives all righ s against RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. 
INDEMNIFICA TIO of this· Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general !,ability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CO SULTANT's insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC wlt11 respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including owned, hired, and non-owned autos). 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for all owned, leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept auto liability for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSUL TANT does not own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 



CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC, its officers, employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insurance obtained by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONSULT ANT or any Subs by RTC. The 
CONSULT ANT, and any Subs, shall procure, pay for and maintain the required coverages. 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State of Nevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodil~ i'njury by disease. 

CONSULTANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself an each Sub evidencing that 
CONSUL TANT and each Sub maintained workers' compen anon and employer's liability 
insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSULTANT, or any Sub is a sole propriero't covet'age fqr the sole proprietor must be 
purchased and evidence of coverage must appear o the ertificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 

CONSULT ANT waives all rights against RT , its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the exten~ these da ages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbr.el)a lialflity insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSULTANT shall 0btain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 I 3 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT shall aintai111 professional liability insurance applying to liability for a 
professional, error, act, o,i: omission arising out of the scope of CONSULTANT'S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULT ANT shall maintain professional liability insurance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a "claims made" or "claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extended reporting period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreement. 



. son 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe Cowity, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.12 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Judy Tortelli, P.E. 
Engineer II AICP 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Award of Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the Reno Consolidated 
20-01 - Mayberry Drive, California Avenue, and First Street Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Nichols Consulting Engineers, CHTD 
("NCE") to provide design services and optional engineering during construction for the Reno 
Consolidated 20-01 -Mayberry Drive, California Avenue, and First Street Project in an amount not 
to exceed $913,830; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

This Agreement (see Attachment A) with NCE is for professional design services for the Reno 
Consolidated 20-01 Project in the amount of$665,447, and optional engineering during construction 
services (EDC) in the amount of $248,383. The Project includes rehabilitation/reconstruction of the 
following street segments: Mayberry Drive from Memory Lane to California A venue, California 
A venue from Westfield A venue to Booth Street, and First Street from Arlington A venue to Virginia 
Street. 

NCE was selected from the Civil Engineering Design and Construction Management Services List 
as a qualified firm to perform engineering, construction management and quality assurance. 
Negotiation ofNCE's scope, schedule and budget indicated the amount for design services is within 
the appropriated budget. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

2020 Roadway Reconstruction Project appropriations are included in the approved FY 2020 Budget 
and Program of Projects as part of the Annual Pavement Preservation Program. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Reno Consolidated 20-01 - Mayberry Drive, 
First Street, and California A venue Project PSA 

RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 
Page 2 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

June 20, 2019 Approved the Qualified Consultant List for Engineering Design and 
Construction Management Services 

January 18, 2019 Approved the FY 2020 Program of Projects 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE{S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of October I, 2019, by and between 
the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and Nichols Consulting 
Engineers, CHTD ("CONSULT ANT"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RTC delivers various rehabilitation/reconstruction projects as part of its Annual 
Pavement Preservation Program; and 

WHEREAS, as part of that program, RTC deliver the project known as Reno Consolidated 20-01 
(the "Project") to rehabilitate and/or reconstruct the following streets: Mayberry Drive from 
Memory Lane to California A venue, California A venue from Hunter Lake to Booth Street, and 
First Street from Arlington Avenue to Virginia Street; and 

WHEREAS, the Project will include removal and replacement of the roadway structural section, 
mill and fill, sidewalk, curb and gutter replacement as necessary, correction of localized drainage 
deficiencies, reconstruction of existing handicapped ramps, reconstruction of driveways, and other 
incidentals necessary for the rehabilitation and/or reconstruction of the street segments within the 
Project limits; and 

WHEREAS, RTC has selected CONSULTANT to perform certain engineering, design, 
construction management, and quality assurance services in connection with the Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSULTANT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows: 

ARTLCLE 1 - ENGAG EMENT AND TERM 

1.1. RTC hereby engages CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT hereby accepts the 
engagement to complete design and engineering during construction services for the 
Project. 

1.2. CONSULTANT will perform the work using the project team identified in Exhibit A. Any 
changes to the project team must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

1.3. CONSULTANT will promptly, diligently and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable professional standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act of any government, civil disturbances, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control of CONSULTANT. 

-1 -



1.4. CONSUL TANT shall not proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement and a purchase order has been issued to CONSUL TANT. If CONSULT ANT 
violates that prohibition, CONSULTANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 
payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order. CONSULTANT shall not rely on the terms 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by RTC or any of its agents, employees or 
affiliates, or on any dates of performance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 

1.5. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through December 
31, 2022, unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended t0 a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions herein. 

ARTI LE 2 - SERVICES OF CONSlJld A T 

2.1. SCOPE OF 

The scope of services consist of thetas et forth in e.~ioit A. 

2.2. SCH EDULE OF SERVICE 

Tasks and subtasks shall be c0m leted in aceordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any 
change(s) to the schedule must l:>e approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

2.3 . OPTION 

RTC shall have the right to -exercise its option(s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identified in xhibit A. CONSULTANT will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the specific optional services requested, a schedule for such services, 
and a cost propo al. RTC will review and approve the scope of services and RTC and 
CONSULTANT will discuss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSULTANT shall undertake no work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the performance of said task. RTC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another individual or firm to perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.4. ADDITIO 

CONSULT ANT will provide additional services in connection with the Project when 
agreed to in writing by RTC and CONSULTANT. 

-2-



2.5. PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSULTANT shall be perfonned 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying (as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSULTANT shall have the 
responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

All sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized accrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or materials testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification. Proof of certification 
shall be provided to RTC with this Agreement. If certification expires or is removed during 
the tenn of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RTC immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot be agreed upon by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSULTANT shall provide only Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified personnel to perform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of this Agreement. All test reports shall be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated with his/her license number. 

2.6 . ERRORS A D OMISSIONS 

CONSUL TANT shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissions caused by CONSULT ANT in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSULTANT also agrees that if any error or omission is found, CONSULTANT will 
expeditiously make the necessary correction, at no expense to RTC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not by CONSUL TANT and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSULTANT may be compensated for such additional work. 

ARTICLE 3 - COMPENSATION 

3.1 . CONSUL TANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. RTC shall not be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as provided 
in Exhibit B. 

3.2. The maximum amount payable to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULTANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 

-3-



must be approved in writing by RTC ' s Project Manager prior to performance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSULTANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Total Design Services (Tasks 2.1.A. to 2. 1 .C. and 2. 1 .E to 2. 1 .H.) $459,552 
Total OPTIONAL Right of Way Engineering (Task 2.1.D.) $155,895 
Contingency - Design Services (Task 2.1.I.) $50,000 
Total OPTIONAL Construction Services (Tasks 2.1.J. to 2.1.N.) $198,383 
Contingency - Construction Services (Task 2.1.0.) $50.000 
Total (Including Optional Services) $913,830 

3.3. For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSULTANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 
and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 
Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSUL TANT, will be billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than 105% of the amounts billed to CONSULTANT for such 
services. 

3.4. CONSULTANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of RTC, except: (1) if such litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSULTANT in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSULTANT'S indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC-shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

ARTICLE 4 - INVOICING 

4.1. CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoices in the format specified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com . RTC's payment terms are 30 days 
after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be paid at the rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by RTC that are not paid within thirty (30) days 
ofreceipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULTANT of any disagreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by RTC. 

4.3. CONSULTANT shall maintain complete records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. Upon request, CONSULTANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and RTC shall have the right to inspect and copy such records. 

-4-

mailto:accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com


ARTICLE 5 - ACCESS TO TNFORMA TJON A D PROPERTY 

5.1. Upon request and without cost to CONSUL TANT, RTC will provide all information that 
is reasonably available to RTC and pertinent to the Project including surveys, reports and 
any other data relative to design and construction of the Project. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSUL TANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSULTANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 - OWNERS HJP OF WORK 

6.1. Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSULT ANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSULT ANT prior to the execution of th~ Project that will be used in the 
Project and services rendered under this Agreement, is excluded from this requirement. 
CONSUL TANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 
interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual property rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreement and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSULTA~T in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall, upon request, also be provided to RTC. 

6.2 . CONSULTANT represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any intell~ctual property, including computer software, used in 
providing services under this Agreement, that it has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that it has the right to convey such title and other necessary 
rights and interests to RTC. 

6.3 . CONSULTANT shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked materials, equipment, devices, or processes used on or incorporated 
in the services and materials produced under this Agreement. 

6.4. CONSULTANT agrees that all reports, communications, electronic files, databases, 
documents, and information that it obtains or prepares in connection with performing this 
Agreement shall be treated as confidential material and shall not be released or published 
without the prior written consent of RTC; provided, however, that CONS ULT ANT may 
refer to this Project in connection with its promotional literature in a professional and 
commercially reasonable manner. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever form that comes into the public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not restrict CONSULTANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to provide information or data when such order is issued by a 
court, administrative agency, or other entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSULTANT to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

-5-



ARTICLE 7 - TERMlNA TION 

7.1. CONTRACTTERMrNATlON FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSULTANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSULTANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSULTANT setting forth the manner in which CONSUL TANT is in 
default. CONSUL TANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSUL TANT had- an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSUL TANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSUL TANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to 
CONSULTANT when it is in RTC's best interest. CONSULTANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, arid profit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall promptly submit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSULTANT. If CONSULTANT has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULTANT will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 
directs. 

ART ICLE 8 - IN SURANC E 

8.1. CONSULTANT shall not commence any work or permit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. In conjunction with the performance of the services/work required by the terms of this 
Agreement, CONSULT ANT shall obtain all types and amounts of insurance set forth in 
Exhibit C, and shall comply with all provisions set forth therein. 

ARTICLE 9 - HOLD HARMLESS 

9.1. CONSULTANT's obligation under this provision is as set forth in Exhibit C. Said 
obligation would also extend to any liability ofRTC resulting from any action to clear any 
lien and/or to recover for damage to RTC property . 

-6-



ARTICLE IO - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

10.1. During the performance of this Agreement, CONSULTANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSULTANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

I 0.2. CONSULT ANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSULTANT, state that well qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. 

10.3. CONSULTANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

ARTICLE 11 - RESOLUTTON OF LAIMS AND DISPUTES 

11.1. NEGOTIATED RESOLUTION 

In the event that any dispute or claim arises under this Agreement, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate in good faith to resolve any such dispute or claim. Such 
cooperation shall include providing the other party with all information in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making available the necessary personnel to discuss and 
make decisions relative to the dispute or claim. 

11.2. MEDIA TJON 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negotiated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writing of the dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dispute or claim be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other party's receipt or deemed receipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agree upon a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree upon a mediator within ten (I 0) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each party shall select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the mediator. A mediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the qualification set forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the "Rules Governing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Court." Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 

-7-



mediator shall have complete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty (30) days following appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

11.3. LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Court of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 

11.4. CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claim shall not constitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperformance or delay. 

ARTICLE 12-AUTHORJZED REPRESENTATJVES 

12.1. RTC's Director of Engineering has authority to act as RTC's representative with respect to 
this Agreement. RTC's Director of Engineering shall have authority to transmit 
instructions, receive information, interpret and define RTC policies, and make decisions 
with respect to materials, equipment elements, and systems. 

12.2. CONSULTANT's Principal has authority to act as CONSUL TANT's representative with 
respect to this Agreement. CONSULT ANT' s Principal has authority to sign binding 
documents on behalf of Company. 

ARTICLE 13 - NOTICE 

13.1. Notices required under this Agreement shall be given as follows: 

RTC: Brian Stewart, P.E. 
Director of Engineering 
Regional Transportation Commission 
1105 Terminal Way 
Post Office Box 30002 
Reno, Nevada 89520 
(775) 335-1880 

-8-



CONSUL TANT: Angie Hueftle, P.E. 
Principal 
Nichols Consulting Engineers, CHTD 
1885 South Arlington A venue, Suite # 111 
Reno, NV 89509 
(775) 329-4955 

ARTICLE 14- DELAYS TN PERFORMANCE 

14.1. TlME IS OF THE ESSENCE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by RTC's Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension of time shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 

14.2. UNA VOIDABLE DELAY 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSUL TANT was excusably delayed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during 
CONSULTANT's performance, is not caused directly or substantially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSULTANT, is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSUL TANT to miss specified completion dates, and cannot adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

14.3. OTIFICATION OF DELAYS 

CONSULTANT shall notify RTC as soon as CONSULTANT has knowledge that an event 
has occurred -or otherwise becomes aware that CONSUL TANT will be delayed in the 
completion of the work. Within ten (I 0) working days thereafter, CONSULTANT shall 
provide such notice to RTC, in writing, furnishing as much detail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extension of time. 

14.4. REQUEST FOR EXTEN JON 

Any request by CONSULTANT for an extension of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement shall be made in writing to RTC. CONSULTANT shall supply to RTC 
documentation to substantiate and justify the additional time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised schedule. RTC shall provide CONSULTANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable time after receipt of a request. 

-9-



ARTICLE 15 - GE ERAL PROVI IONS 

15. l. SUCCES ORS AND ASSIGNS 

RTC and CONSULTANT bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 
party and to the successors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither R TC nor 
CONSULTANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 
the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than RTC and 
CONSULTANT. 

15.2. NON TRANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONSULTANT's professional services, arid CONSULTANT's 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

15.3. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, dr unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held invalid. 

15.4. RELATlO HlP OF PARTIE 

CONSULT ANT is an independent contractor to RTC under this Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSULTANT is not entitled to participate in any retirement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance plans or other benefits RTC provides to its employees. CONSUL TANT 
shall be free to contract to provide similar services for others while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services and advocacy are not in direct conflict, as determined by 
RTC, with services being provided by CONSULTANT to RTC. 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

Any waiver or breach of a provision in this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other provision in this Agreement and no waiver is valid unless in writing and executed by 
the waiving party. An extension of the time for performance of any obligation or act shall 
not be deemed an extension of time for the performance of any other obligation or act. This 
Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the parties to this Agreement and 
their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

-10-



15.6. REGULA TORY COMP LIA CE 

A. CONSUL TANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
government laws, regulations and ordinances. CONSULT ANT shall be 
responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under this Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish RTC certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

B. CONSULT ANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 
is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSULT ANT does engage in such public work, CONSULT ANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLUSLVE AGREEME T 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set forth herein with 
the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDM ENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

15.9. CONTINUING OBLIGA TJON 

CONSULTANT agrees that if, because of death or any other occurrence it becomes 
impossible for any principal or employee of CONSULTANT to render the services 
required under this Agreement, neither CONSULT ANT nor the surviving principals shall 
be relieved of any obligation to render complete performance. However, in such event, 
RTC may terminate this Agreement if it considers the death or incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of such magnitude as to affect CONSUL TANT's ability to 
satisfactorily complete the performance of this Agreement. 

15.10. APPLICA BLE LAW AND VE UE 

The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Nevada. The exclusive venue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties hereto submit to the jurisdiction of that District Court. 

-I I-



15.11. ATTORNEY FEES 

In the event of a dispute between the parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

15.12. CERTJFICA TIO REQUIRED BY NEV ADA SENA TE Bl LL 27 (2017) 

CONSUL TANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSULTANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

Dale E. Ferguson, RTC Legal Counsel 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

By: _ _ ___________ _ 

Lee G. Gibson, AICP, Executive Director 

NICHOLS CONSULTING ENGINEERS, CHTD 

By: _ ___________ _ _ 

Angie Hueftle, P.E., Principal 

-12-



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services, Schedule, and Project Team 



EXHIBIT A-1 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 

RENO CONSOLIDATED 20-01 - MAYBERRY DRIVE, CALIFORNIA A VENUE, AND 
FIRST STREET PROJECT 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

CONSULTANT will provide engineering services for the Reno Consolidated 20-01 
Project. The project limits include California A venue from and excluding the intersection 
of Booth Street to and excluding the intersection of Hunter Lake Drive, Mayberry Drive 
from California A venue to Memory Lane, and First Street from and excluding the 
intersection of Arlington Avenue to and excluding the intersection of South Virginia Street. 
Portions of California Avenue currently do not have bicycle or pedestrian facilities. 
Anticipated improvements include new sidewalk, sidewalk replacement, bicycle lanes, 
pedestrian ramps, grading and drainage improvements. The intersection of Mayberry 
Drive and California A venue will be reconfigured and reconstructed to improve safety. 
New curb, gutter and sidewalk along portions of California Avenue and the reconfiguration 
of the California/Mayberry intersection will require new drainage inlets and storm drain 
improvements. Anticipated improvements for First Street include portions of sidewalk and 
pedestrian ramp replacement, roadway rehabilitation, and utility adjustments. First Street 
improvements will be included as a Special Assessment District (SAD) and 
CONSULTANT will review the City of Reno's SAD documents for compatibility to the 
project, make suggestions and incorporate into the construction plans accordingly. This 
scope of services does not include landscape, lighting or structural design. The scope of 
services will generally consist of the following tasks: 

2. I .A. Project Management 

1. Team and Project Management 

a. CONSULTANT'S Project Manager will serve as RTC' s single point of 
contact on the contract and will have primary responsibility for 
coordinating the efforts of the project team and subconsultants. Specific 
project management tasks to be conducted by CONSULTANT'S 
Project Manager include monthly budgeting, invoicing, scheduling, 
subconsultant invoicing, and general project administration. It is 
assumed the project design duration will be 15-months. 

2. Project Coordination 

a. CONSULTANT'S Project Manager will keep the RTC Project Manager 
well informed of progress with bi-weekly informal briefings via email 
or phone call. CONSULTANT'S Project Manager will participate in a 
project kickoff meeting as well as 50%, 60%, and 90% design review 



meetings, and up to three coordination meetings with RTC and City of 
Reno. 

2.1 B. Investigation of Existing Conditions 

I. Falling Weight Deflectometer (FWD) Testing. Not applicable. 

2. Condition Survey. 

a. CONSULT ANT will visually evaluate and document the condition 
of the existing pavement to include fatigue cracking, potholes, 
rutting, transverse cracking and raveling. A subjective measure of 
ride quality will also be obtained. 

b. CONSULTANT will evaluate curb and gutter, sidewalk, and 
driveway approach based upon RTC criteria. The CONSULT ANT 
shall also evaluate existing pedestrian ramps for compliance with 
current ADA standards and consider multi-modal improvements. 

c. Construction of improvements on First Street for a Special 
Assessment District (SAD) will- be included with this project. The 
City of Reno will perform a sidewalk and driveway apron condition 
survey and prepare the SAD documents. The CO SUL TA T shall 
review the City of Reno's SAD documents for compatibility to 
project, make suggestions and incorporate into the construction 
plans accordingly. It is assumed that First Street will not need to be 
upgraded to conform to the latest Downtown Streetscape 
Masterplan. 

3. . Traffic Data. 

a. Traffic data is needed to estimate the past 18-kip equivalent single 
axle load (ESAL) applications that have contributed to the current 
condition of the pavement, as well as the future 18-kip ESAL 
applications that will be required for rehabilitation/reconstruction 
design. It is assumed that all the information on average daily traffic 
(current and future), truck percentages and truck factors will be 
available from the Regional Transportation Commission, City of 
Reno and/or the Nevada DOT traffic records. The CONSULTANT 
will also review accident data for possible safety problem areas, and 
provide recommendations. 

b. CONSULTANT shall review RTC RIDE bus route schedules, 
calculate and include ESAL's in the pavement design to ensure 
proposed structural sections will accommodate a 20-year pavement 
design life. 

2 



4. Geotechnical Investigation. 

a. Coring/Boring. Prior to start of the geotechnical investigation, 
CONSULT ANT shall perform Subsection Identification and Core 
Location Selection. Information from both the FWD testing and 
condition surveys will be reviewed and locations for pavement 
coring and boring will be identified by CONSULTANT and 
reviewed and approved by the RTC. It is anticipated that 
approximately 7 pavement core locations and 4 bores will be 
required. The primary objective of the coring/boring program will 
be to establish pavement, base, and subgrade layer thickness and 
material types. 

CONSULTANT will obtain an encroachment permit from the City 
of Reno for coring. 

Following pavement coring, the subsurface soils will be hand 
augered, if possible, to a depth of three feet to determine the 
thickness of aggregate base present and to obtain samples of the 
subgrade soils for classification. If the subsurface soils are unable 
to be augered by hand, a drill rig will be mobilized to complete the 
investigation. Representative samples of the soils encountered will 
be used for testing to aid in classification and moisture content 
determination. The results of the field investigation and associated 
laboratory testing will be summarized in a written report. 

b. Soils Investigation. CONSULTANT will perform a geotechnical 
investigation to formulate geotechnical recommendations for design 
and construction of this project. Based on our experience in the area, 
the project site is anticipated to be underlain by glacial outwash 
deposits. In order to penetrate the very dense gravel, cobbles, and 
boulders, CONSULTANT will utilize ODEX drilling methods to 
drill 3 borings to depths of about 10 feet below the existing surface 
or to refusal, whichever comes first. Soil samples collected in the 
field will be laboratory tested to evaluate the engineering and 
mechanical properties. A geotechnical investigation will be 
completed and will include construction and design 
recommendations including trench excavatability and backfill; 
recommendations for trench excavation, corrosion potential, 
dewatering recommendations if warranted, and foundation 
recommendations for manhole and/or vault construction. 

5. Backcalculation Analysis. Not applicable. 

6. Develop Feasible Rehabilitation/Reconstruction Alternatives. Based upon 
the results of the backcalculation, CONSUL TANT will identify feasible 

3 



pavement rehabilitation and/or reconstruction alternatives for the project. 
Among the alternatives that will be considered are: 

• Full-depth patching (plus AC overlay) 
• Mill and fill (plus AC overlay) 
• Full Reconstruction 
• Roadbed modification (reconstruction) 

Upon completion of the geotechnical investigation, CONSUL TANT will 
meet with RTC to present feasible rehabilitation alternatives. 
CONSULTANT will then apply the design procedures contained in the 
latest (1993) AASHTO Guide for Design of Pavement Structures to 
generate the design layer thickness associated with each pavement 
alternative. 

7. Conduct Life-Cycle Cost Analysis. (Not Applicable) 

8. Identify Optimum Rehabilitation/Reconstruction Alternative. Based upon 
cost analysis, as well as some practical construction considerations, 
CONSULTANT will prepare the recommended rehabilitation or 
reconstruction alternative(s) for the project. It should be noted that because 
of varying conditions along the length of the project, there may be more 
than one recommendation. 

9. Utility Investigation/Depiction 

a. Overhead Utilities: CONSULTANT will investigate and locate all 
overhead utilities within the roadway right of way and areas 
reasonably affected. Deliverable will include depiction of all 
overhead utilities within the roadway right-of-way on plans 
developed under Section 2.1.F, Preliminary Design. 

b. Subsurface Utilities: CONSUL TANT will investigate and locate 
subsurface utilities within the roadway right-of-way, and areas 
reasonably effected, in accordance with the American Society of 
Civil Engineers Standard guideline for the Collection and Depiction 
of Existing Subsurface Utility Data, Quality Level BIA. 

c. Utility Coordination: Based on field investigation, CONSUL TANT 
will provide RTC a list of utility companies whose utilities are likely 
to be within the project limits or reasonably affected by the project. 
RTC will issue the initial notification to the utility agencies on the 
list and CONSULTANT will coordinate with the utility agencies for 
upcoming work, facility relocation and new installation, and to 
insure utilities likely affected by the project are drawn on the plan 
and profile, evaluate potential conflicts through field investigation, 
investigate conflict resolution strategies. CONSULTANT will 

4 



assist in relocation of utilities with prior rights by facilitating 
meetings and reviewing utility' s design/cost for incorporation into a 
reimbursement agreement and/or incorporation of the utility work 
into the RTC plans. Monthly utility coordination meetings will be 
held with the RTC and affected utility companies. CONSUL TANT 
will coordinate the meetings with the R TC Project Manager, prepare 
meeting agendas, and provide meeting summaries following the 
meeting. It is assumed six (6) utility coordination meetings will be 
held. 

CONSULTANT will distribute design review submittals (50% & 
90%) to utility agencies for review and comment, and provide RTC 
a list of utility agencies provided design review submittals and 
Utility Agency review comments. 

d. Utility Pothole Exploration: Should insufficient information be 
available from existing records to determine whether or not conflicts 
between the proposed work and existing utilities will occur, the 
CONSULTANT shall request approval from RTC to pothole a 
sufficient number oflocationsto make such a determination, as part 
of Task 2.11, Design Contingericy. 

I 0. Report. The findings and recommendations of CONSULTANT for all tasks 
identified in Section 2.1.B (with the exception of the utility investigation 
task) shall be submitted by report with backup documentation. The 
Geotechnical Report and pavement design shall also be submitted to the 
Local Entity if the recommended pavement section varies from the Entities 
standards. 

2.1 C. Topographic Mapping 

I. Topographic Survey. CONSUL TANT will conduct a topographic survey 
of the street right-of-ways. The survey will consist of gathering survey data 
associated with ground topography and drainage features, existing 
improvements, evidence of existing utilities, planometrics (buildings, 
fences, trees, power poles, etc.), and any other pertinent physical features as 
determined applicable within 20' from the back of curb on Mayberry Drive 
and California A venue and to face of building on W. 1st Street. 
CONSULTANT will utilize the boundary information and the data gathered 
during the topographic survey to prepare a digital base map for the project 
site. The digital base map will depict the existing ground topography in one 
foot contour intervals or spot elevations, parcel boundaries, easements and 
right-of-ways, roadway and site improvements, planometrics, and evidence 
of existing utility services (i.e. existing telephone or power, water, storm 
drain, and sanitary sewer infrastructure etc.). 

5 



CONSULTANT will obtain record right-of-way based upon Washoe 
County GIS information. The record right-of-way information ill be 
hown on the project plans. No further resolution of the roadway right-of

way is included in this task. 

2.1D. Right-of-Way Engineering (Optional) 

1. Preliminary Title Reports. It is estimated that sixty four (64) temporary 
construction easements and thirteen (13) permanent easements on fifty five 
properties will be required for construction of driveway transitions, 
improvements at the California and Mayberry intersection, and pedestrian 
path sidewalk improvements. CONSULTANT will obtain fifty five (55) 
preliminary title reports including exceptions and updates. CONSUL TANT 
will review the assessor parcel map, address, and owner information within 
the title reports and verify the document links within the title reports are 
correct and functioning. CONSULTANT wrll coordinate necessary 
revisions to the preliminary title rep0rrs with the title company. 
CONSULTANT will deliver the electronic plieliminary title reports to RTC. 
CONSULTANT assumes one upclate to each o the 55 title reports will be 
required for the duration o ~be project. CO. SUL TANT will coordinate 
the updates with the title company and dellver the updated title reports to 
RTC. 

2. Boundary Survey. CONSUL TJ\NT will review title reports for an estimated 
55 subject pare'~ls to 'dentify existing encumbrances, record mapping, 
parcel boundary and{or easement legal descriptions detailed within the 
exceptioH portion of aid repo,ts. CONSUL TANT will utilize the Washoe 
County ½\ss ss©r & Recorder' s on-line data base to conduct records 
re earch aa:1d obtain current documentation and mapping regarding the 
~arious subdhvisions and individual parcels which are adjacent to and whose 
boundarie define the configuration of street right-of-ways associated with 
rhe 'Projeet CONSULT ANT will use this information to create digital 
Aut@CAD boundary line work necessary for generating search survey 
coordinates for boundary monuments associated with the subject 
subdivisions and parcels. 

CONSULT ANT will establish a horizontal and vertical survey control 
network on-site that coincides with the North American Datum (NAD 
83/94) Nevada State Plane West Zone horizontal datum and the North 
American Vertical Datum (NA VD 88) vertical datum. CONSULTANT 
will then perform field boundary surveys of the subject subdivisions and 
individual parcels. During the field survey, existing property corners, 
section comers, and Right-of-Way monuments will be located as required 
to resolve the legal boundaries of the subject parcels and associated right
of-way boundaries. 

CONSUL TANT will utilize record boundary information in conjunction 
with the data gathered in the field to prepare a digital boundary base map 

6 



for the project site. The digital base map will depict parcel boundaries, 
easement boundaries, street right-of-ways and found boundary monuments. 

3. Right-of-Way Setting. CON ULTA Twill pa11icipate in a meeting to set 
the right-of-way requirement for the project. CONSULTANT will prepare 
a meeting agenda and meeting summary. CONSULT A T will prepare a 
right-of-way summary that identifies all ea ements necessary to constrnct 
the project including acquisitions, partial acquisitions, permanent 
easements, public utility easements, temporary construction easements, and 
perm i sions to construct. The summary will include AP , property owner, 
address easement type, easement size, and easement purpo e. The 
summary wi 11 be updated as needed throughout the project to reflect updated 
vesting deeds and final easements. 

4. Right-of-Way Maps. CONSULTANT wjll prepare right-of-way maps 
including existing and proposed easements e ·isting right-of-way, APN, 
owner information, and size and type of prop@sed e;1sement. The right-of
way maps will be updated as needed throngh u.t the project to reflect 
updated vesting deeds and final Ci\Sements. 

5. Legal Descriptions and Eiliibit . CON! ULTA Twill utilize the boundary 
basemap assembled under, Task2.1 D.2 to prepare up to 77 legal descriptions 
and exhibit figures. 

Right-of-way apprai al pro"Qe.rty owner negotiations, escrow coordination 
and title clearane i nor iAclu ed within this task. 

Deliverables. 
I . Pre Ii m inru y fit le reports and updated vesting deeds 
2. Right-o'f-way setting meeting agenda and summary 

Right-of;.- ay summary 
4. Rf ght-0f-way maps 
5. Legal descriptions and exhibits 

2.1 E. Public Outreach 

I . Public Information Meetings. CONSUL TANT will prepare applicable 
exhibits, assist with facilitation, and document two (2) public information 
meetings. Presentations will be made by CONSULTANT and RTC to 
properties adjacent to the project work zone to discuss project 
improvements, limits, scope, tentative schedule, traffic controls, driveway 
access, public notification requirements, and concerns of adjacent 
properties before the plans and specifications are finalized. 

CONSULT ANT will also participate in two (2) pre public information 
meetings with RTC staff to discuss and review exhibits, topics, and 
appropriate responses to questions. CONSUL TANT will provide RTC with 
all publicly viewed information, two weeks prior to their public release for 

7 



review and comment. 

It is assumed RTC will identify appropriate venues, design and place print 
ads, prepare mailers and press releases, cover the direct costs associated 
with the meeting venues, print ads, court reporter, Spanish translator, and 
mailers and those costs are not included as part of the CONSULTANT'S 
fee. 

Deliverables: 
1. Public information meeting exhibits 

2. One-on-One Meetings With Community Stakeholders. CONSUL TANT 
will be available for one-on-one briefings/meetings with and presentations 
to community stakeholders as requested by the RTC Project Manager. It is 
anticipated that the CONSUL TANT will attend up to twenty (20) one-on
one presentations and/or meetings durin the course of this 
project. CONSUL TANT will provide meeting rn inutes as directed by RTC. 

Deliverables: 
1. Community stakeholder roee'ting exhibit and summaries 

2.1.F. Preliminary Design 

1. Conceptual Desjgn, CO SUL TANT will develop and evaluate up to three 
concepts to imll!rove. be California A venue/Mayberry intersection. 
CONSULT Twill prepare conceptual intersection geometrics, signing 
and stripi g level 0f service analysis, and memorandum documenting the 
basis of the recommendations. CONSULTANT will include new sidewalk 
and signage improvements to demonstrate pedestrian and bicycle 
'Conneetiv't-y 0n California Avenue from Hunter Lake Drive to Booth Street. 

2. Plan and Estimate. Prepare preliminary Plans and a preliminary cost 
estimate suitable for RTC and Local Government review. Construction 
plans shall cover an area sufficient for contractor's later use as a base for 
traffic control plans, e.g., coverage should include traffic control taper areas 
across intersections. Curb, gutter, and sidewalk that are deficient according 
to both RTC and local entity standards shall be identified. 

3. Traffic Signal Modification Design. CONSULTANT will prepare plans, 
specifications, and estimate (PS&E) for modification of the traffic signal 
and interconnect system at the First Street/Sierra Street intersection. Work 
will include: 

8 



• Full inventory of the existing signal system 
• Determining detection scheme and equipment 
• Modifying signal heads 
• ADA accessible design for pedestrian buttons 
• Phasing revisions as appropriate 
• Providing schedules for signal equipment and conductors 

It is assumed that modifications at the First Street/ Arlington and 
First Street/South Virginia intersections will not be required and are 
not included. 

2.1.G. Final Design 

1. Prepare Final Plans and Specifications 

a. Prepare Final Construction Plaos €ontract Documents and 
Technical Specifications suitable for. construction bid advertisement 
for the approved alignment in accordanee with RTC standards and 
requirements. RTC wi!Lpro~ide the boilerplate on disk in MS Word 
format. The RTC, oeal En'tity and Quality Control review 
comments will be im:iorporatied into the final Plans and 
Specifications. 

The final construcf10.n plans will be on 22" x 34" size sheets and will 
show all element offhe project construction, including plan/profile 
v· w, rig t-of-way lines, cross-sections and construction/slope 
limits The final plan set will include, as a minimum: 

• Cover Sheet 
• Legend, General Notes, and Abbreviations 
• Plan/Profile Sheets (at 1 "=20' scale) 
• Cross-section Sheets (at I "=20' scale) 
• Intersection, Grading, and Pedestrian Ramp Detail Sheets (at 

1 "=10' scale) 
• Traffic Signal Modification Sheets ( at 1"=10' scale) 
• Signage and Striping Sheets (at 1 "=20') 
• Detail Sheets (scales as noted). 

Depths of existing sanitary sewer and storm drain utilities will be 
checked and noted on the plans if there is any reason to expect 
conflict due to vertical clearances. All located, existing 
underground utilities will be shown on the Plan Sheets accompanied 
with the following "Note: Subsurface utilities are depicted by their 
Quality Levels in accordance American Society of Civil Engineers 
Standard Guidelines for the Collection and Depiction of Existing 
Subsurface Utility Data (Cl/ASCE 38-02). All utility information 

9 



shown hereon is depicted to Quality Level "C", unless otherwise 
noted." 

The Contract Documents and Technical Specifications will 
reference the latest edition of Standard Specifications for Public 
Works Construction (Orange Book) for standard construction items. 
Technical provisions will be prepared for approved deviations from 
the Orange Book and unique construction items not adequately 
covered in the Orange Book. The final plans and specifications will 
be signed and sealed by a Nevada Registered Professional Civil 
Engineer in responsible charge of preparation. Plans and 
specifications will be submitted to the RTC, City of Reno, utility 
agencies and other affected parties for review at the 50%, 90%, 
100%, and final stages of completion per the following: 

• 50% & 90% Plans - Two 11 x17" sets to RTC, six 1 I "x 17" sets 
to Local Entity, and one 1 I "x 1"1 set each to utility agencies and 
other affected parties. 

• 90% Specifications - ~rt set each to RTC and Local Entity. 
• 100% Plans - Tw0 I I'' ' 11 ~ sets to R TC and one I 1 "x I 7" set to 

Local Entity. 
• 100% Speeificati0ns - One set each to R TC and Local Entity. 
• Final Wor ·ng Pia: Set - One 22"x34" set to RTC, two 11 "x 17" 

sets to RT · ntl c:me 1 "xl 7 set to Local Entity. 
• Final Werking, Sp cification Document - One set each to RTC 

and Locru Entity, one copy in MS Word format of the Contract 
Q0cuments and Technical Specifications to RTC. 

Independent Checker. An independent checker will check, initial 
-ai1d cl. te each plan sheet. A quality control review of the plans, 
co tract documents and technical specifications will be performed 
which will focus on technical aspects of the plans and specifications 
and will ensure that all items of work are adequately covered. 

b. Drainage Analysis and Design. CONSUL TANT will perform 
hydrologic and hydraulic analyses of the California/Mayberry 
intersection and the project area where new curb and gutter and 
drainage inlets will be installed to assess existing drainage patterns 
and infra tructure and determine pipe sizes and inlet spacing. 
CONSUL TANT will request mapping of existing storm drain 
facilities for the project and surrounding areas from the City of 
Reno, aerial photographs, and topographic information to aid in 
identifying existing drainage patterns contributing flows to the 
project area . A hydrologic and hydraulic analysis will be performed 
per methodology outlined in the Truckee Meadows Regional 
Drainage Manual to determine peak flows of the design storm at 
existing and proposed inlets. The results of the hydro logic analysis 

10 



will include hydraulic calculations and modeling focusing on 
potential capacity and drainage issues related to catch basins and 
conveyance within the street section. Regional h draulic modeling 
of the storm drain pipe network within the project area is not patt of 
this scope. 

The results of the hydrologic and hydraulic analyses will be 
compiled into a drainage report. Collection and conveyance 
facilities will be designed to meet current standards as descrlbed in 
the Truckee Meadows Regional Drainage Manual and the City of 
Reno Public Works Design manual. 

Deliverables: 
1. Draft Final and Final Drainage Report. 

c. Constructability Review. CONStJL TA 'F shall facilitate a one day 
workshop to perform a ConstructaoiJity Review of the Project prior 
to the 90% submittal. The intent is ta review plans, specifications, 
and construction approaeh to minimize potential construction 
change orders and er sqre c a.ar intent is provided. Field personnel 
and designer shall attend af;ld a field review of roadway segments is 
anticipated. Discussion opics may include review of design in the 
field, traffic ignal e 1:1fpment procurement, conflict identification, 
maintenance ot: traffic (closures/detours), special events, limitations 
of ope(ations, scheduJe and phasing. 

2. Final Engineer s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs and Time. 
Provide a final Engineer's opinion of probable construction costs for the 
project based 0n tne final design and any alternatives or options. The cost 
opinion will be in the same format as the bid proposal form included in the 
con):ract d0c ments. A quality control review of the cost opinion will be 
performed by the CONSUL TANT. The CONSUL TANT will also estimate 
the number of working or calendar days, as appropriate, for the construction 
of the projects. 

2.1.H. Bidding Services 

I. Plan Set and Specification Distribution. CONSULTANT will provide RTC 
with final plans and specifications, including addenda, in Portable 
Document Format (PDF), for use in the Ebid system. 

2. Pre-bid Meeting. CONSULTANT will be available during the bidding 
proces to answer technical questions and will hold the pre-bid meeting. All 
questions and respon es will be documented and provided to RTC. 
CONSUL TANT will prepare and provide PDF addenda, if required. All 
questions regarding legal aspects of the contract documents will be referred 
dire tly to RTC. CO SUL TANT will prepare and provide a PDF summary 
of the pre-bid meeting as directed by the RTC. 

11 



3. Bid Opening. CONSULTANT will attend the bid opening and review the 
bids received for irregularities and provide a recommendation for award. 
CONSULT ANT will tabulate bid results into a MS Excel spreadsheet and 
check multiplication and addition of bid items. 

2.1.1. Design Contingency (Optional) 

1. This is a contingency for miscellaneous increases within the scope of this 
contract in the performance of services under Tasks 2.1.A. to 2.1.H. If 
CONSULTANT determines that it is necessary to perform work to be paid 
out of contingency, CONSULTANT shall provide a letter detailing the 
need, scope, and not-to-exceed budget for any proposed work. Work under 
this task shall proceed only with the RTC Project Manager's prior written 
approval. 

2.1.J - 0 Construction Services (Optional) - The RTC and €ONS ULT ANT shall review 
Optional Construction Services following the completion ofi'iuaLdesign to determine their 
appropriateness to the project. 

2.1.J. Contract Administration (OptionaJ) 

I. Provide contract admini :ti;,a,tion er-vices as follows: 

• Prepare conformed p ans and specifications 
• Attend the preconstnu yon conference 
• Perfonn construction coordination 
• Revie ancl ptavi e recommendations on contractor's traffic control 

RJans 
• Review and stamp contractor's submittal for conformance to the 

eontract documents. including plantmix bituminous pavement and 
Po,tland Cement concrete mix designs 

• Review and provide recommendations on test results 
• Review and provide recommendations on contractor's construction 

schedule and work progress 
• Review construction for acceptance and/or mitigation 
• Provide verification and approval of contractor's monthly pay request 
• Supervise the inspection, surveying and material testing activities 
• Provide recommendations to the RTC for any necessary construction 

changes due to field conditions 
• Assist in change order review and approval 

2.1.K. Construction Surveying (Optional) 

Provide construction staking as follows: 

12 



• One set of preliminary grading stakes at 50' stations denoting offsets and 
cut or fill to finish grade. This set of stakes will also delineate clearing and 
grubbing limits. 

• One set of red tops at 50 feet centers for sub grade preparation. 
• One set of final curb and gutter, sidewalk, pedestrian ramps, and roadway 

centerline finish grades stakes at 50 foot stations and 25 foot stations at 
returns. 

• One set of offset stakes for storm drains, head walls, traffic signals, and 
utility pull boxes and vaults. 

• Roadway monuments, referenced in four directions. 

2. I .L. Inspection (Optional) 

1. Provide Inspector. Provide one full time in pector during all construction 
activities. I 0-hour work days and a 45 working day contract period are 
anticipated. This inspector will: 

• Attend the preconstructiori conference 
• Monitor the work performed by the Gontractor and verify that the 

work is in accordanQe wi b the plans and specifications 
• Assist in proble1 · resol,ution wifl\ the RTC, contractor personnel, 

utility agenci . ,_ the gubltc and others 
• Prepare daily ins , ecti@n reports submitted weekly to RTC and 

CC'd tot~ apprr0priate 0 overnmentjurisdiction(s). 
• Provide quantity rrep01is and assist in contractor's monthly progress 

R yments 
• Provide v,erifie.ation of the distribution of public relation notices 

require' to be delivered by the contractor 
• Assi 'tin preparation of the Punch List 
• Mainrpin a field blueline set of drawings to incorporate contractor 

re,c_0rd drawing mark-ups 

2. Provide Additional Inspector During Paving Operations. Provide additional 
inspector during mainline paving days to monitor plantmix bituminous 
pavement placement and in-place density tests. 32 hours of field inspection 
and sampling and 32 hours of Nuclear Gauge time are anticipated. 

2.1.M. Materials Testing (Optional) 

I. Provide Material Testing for compliance with the specifications per the 
latest edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction 
(Orange Book) testing requirements. Materials to be tested will include 
plantmix bituminous pavement, aggregate base, native subgrade material, 
structural fill material and Portland Cement Concrete. Test reports, 
accompanied with CONSULT ANT's recommendation regarding 
acceptance/mitigation of materials, shall be submitted promptly to the RTC 
and CC'd to appropriate governmental jurisdiction(s). 

13 



2. Provide AC Plant Inspection and Testing. Provide plantmix bituminous 
pavement plant inspection and laboratory aggregate testing. 12 hours for 
plant visits and sampling are anticipated. Laboratory tests will consist of 
sieve analysis, percent of wear, fractured faces and plasticity index. 

3. Provide Asphalt Cement Testing. Sampling and testing of asphalt cement 
binder material shall be in accordance with Section 1.0 l A ASPHALT 
CEMENT of the RTC's Special Technical Specifications. For each paving 
day, the CONSULTANT's designated representative shall coordinate with 
and receive asphalt cement binder samples from the designated plant 
representative. The CONSUL TANT's designated representative shall be 
present during all sampling operations. Each sample will be properly 
labeled and signed off by both represemativ,es. A sample shall be taken 
during the production of each "lot" (500 ton) of plantmix bituminous 
pavement using container no larger thalli,a quart in size. CONSULTANT to 
submit all asphalt cement binder samples tb the evada Department of 
Transportation (NDOT), Material Laboratory or testing. All samples 
should accompany with a NDO:f fonn titled 'Transmittal for Asphalt 
Samples" to be provided b:t rne:RT · . 

4. Provide On-site Nuclear &cluge esting & Sampling during the placement 
of aggregate base ano fill materials, on-site thin-lift Nuclear Gauge testing 
& sampling for plantmt b'tuminous pavement placement, and on-site PCC 
testing & ampling, 204 bourH>ffield testing are anticipated, and laboratory 
tests will include moisture density curves, Atterberg limits, and sieve 
analysis. Test frequeacy shall comply with the latest edition of the Orange 
Book. 

5. Provide Plantmix Bituminous Pavement Testing. Provide plantmix 
bituminou p;avement tests per each "lot" (500 tons) placed. Laboratory test 
shal l include extraction, aggregate gradation, specific gravity, flow & 
stability and Marshall unit weight. Reports will also include voids in total 
mix and voids filled. 

6. Provide Plantmix Bituminous Pavement coring and Lab Testing. Lab test 
shall include core unit weight. Test reports will include percent compaction. 

7. Provide Top Lift Longitudinal Joint Testing and Coring. Nuclear density 
testing will be performed on each side of all longitudinal joints at 200 foot 
intervals per every 1,000 foot segment. A core will be taken in every 1,000 
foot segment near the point of one of the density tests on the side of the joint 
with the lowest mean joint density. The cores will be tested for specific 
gravity (air voids and compaction). The test report will include a Paving 
Plan and a Data/Calculation Sheet. 

14 



2.1.N. As-Built Information (Optional) 

Record Drawings. Provide as-built record drawings for the completed project. 
Two sets of electronic drawings, in single file PDF format (22" x 34" at 300 dpi), 
on diskette will be provided to RTC for its files and distribution to the Local Entity. 
The PDF file shall include all plan sheets in one file with index/bookmark for easy 
access to different sheets or sections of the plan set. 

The final record drawings must be identified, dated, and signed as the record 
drawings and must also contain the engineer's stamp and signature. The Consultant 
may either: 

1. Provide the final rev1s1ons on the original engineer-stamped/signed 
reproducible drawings, which will then also be identified as the record 
drawings, or 

2. Provide new engineer-stamped/signed re roducible cl.rawings identified as 
the record drawings. 

The Record Drawings shall include,a can o:f the o 1iginal title sheet (including the 
appropriate signatures by R TC local government signed and stamped by the 
CONSULTANT) and identified as rec11>rd drawings. 

2.1.0 Construction Contingency (Optional 

This is a contingency for- mi'sGellaneous increases within the scope of this contract 
in the performam:ie of erviees under Tasks 2.1.J. to 2.1.N. If CONSULTANT 
determines that it is necessary to perform work to be paid out of contingency, 
CONSULTANT sHall proviae a letter detailing the need, scope, and not-to-exceed 
budget for any Rropt>sed work. Work under this task shall proceed only with the 
RTC P ojeet Man-ager' s prior written approval. 

15 



EXHIBIT A-2 

PROJECT SCHEDULE 
FOR THE 

RENO CONSOLIDATED 20-01 -MA YBERRY DRIVE , CALIFORNIA A VENUE, AND 
FIRST STREET PROJECT 

RENO CONSOLIDATED 20-01 
Milestone Beein End Duration 

RTC Board Approval 09/20/2019 
NTP 10/01/2019 

Conceptual Desien 10/01/2019 11/29/2019 8 weeks 
Review & Selection of 
Preferred Alternative 

12/02/19 01/1012, 6 weeks 

Public Information Meetine #1 February 2020 Febriiati 202(14 ~ 1 day 
Preliminary Desi2n 01/13/2020 <1111 10.. 03/06/2020 8weeks 
RTC/Citv Review 03/02/2020 04/03/2020 4 weeks 

Utility Coordination April 2020 ~ Decembe r 2020 9 months 
Final Desi2n, includine Reviews April 2020 i , Dec~mber 2020 9 months 
Public Information Meetin2 #2 N ovember~202i0 November 2020 1 day 

Ri2ht of Way May 2020 February 2021 9 months 
Advertise .a.March 2'()21 ' April 2021 4 weeks 

Construction NTP May2Q2fT 
Construction Completion Aueusf 2021 9 weeks 



EXHIBIT A-3 

PROJECT TEAM 
FOR THE 

RENO CONSOLIDATED 20-0J - MAYBERRY DRIVE, CALIFORNIA A VENUE, AND 
FIRST STREET PROJECT 

Key personnel assigned to this project include: 

• Angie Hueftle, PE - Principal Engineer @ $260/hr 

• Angie Hueftle, PE - Project Manager@$210/hr 

• Jack Norberg, PE-QA/QC @$260/hr 

• Dustin Thelen, PE - Project Engineer @ $155/hr 

• Sean Teeter - Senior Designer @ $145/hr 

• Jeff Stempihar, PE- Materials Engineer @ $180/nr 

• Anna Henke, PG - Construction Management/I spection @ $130/hr 

• Erik Lee, PE (BBV) - Topographic Ma,ppin and Survey 

• Headway Transportation - Traffic ~sign 

• CME - Laboratory Servie~ and Materials Testing 



Exhibit B 

Cost Proposal and Rates 



Last Updated: August 23, 2019 

Exhibit B-1 
Cost Proposal For The 

Reno Consolidated 20-01 Project 

2.1A Projec1 Management 

Investigation of Existing 
218 

Condilions 

~t IC I To_oc:intmlhle Mo~nn 

210 
Righi of Way 

Engineering {Optional) 

2 1,E Public Outreach 

2 1.F Preliminary Design 

21G Final Design 

21 H Bidding Services 

2 11 I 
Omi43n con11i1,oaney 

(C>m,anotl 

Conslruction Services 
2,' J.Q 

(Optional) 

~·~•-
NonU!lbl I M111111Jo I Cost ,Labor I 

L Tc~m and Pfoicat: Mru\aoamcnt I 0 5" I 
2. PN>loci Coonllnell<>n 5001 251'5 5:!b.00 I 

Sul>T~nl, I I 5 525.()ll I 

2. n, Co,,ajo," Sor,cy 200 0 S 20D.OO 
2..b.. Curnr1:oout.i..Dr Survey 25 ,.2s s 20.25 
2.c SAO Oocumo-nls 50 2.5 S 52.60 
3.e. l'mfl\e AnA~ls 0 s - -
U, ESALS for RTC Rltle 0 S 
4.a Co!lnoJllo,lno 1 0750 0 S . 6 .750,00 , , :110 
•~b. Gi:0tcc11nrei1£lr1vcstllllaUar1 0 -S - 11380 
B- OC\JQJoD Fea1ibkJ Allemlllivo 25 125 S 26.25 
I!. Ocvaaoo Recon'lnuindtb AIU1rn11.ll11C: 0 S -
9 n Drid 9. b. lJtal~'lt' UWU!lllfHt.tlon 0 $ 
9.c: UUUlv COOld1n.n1lo.n 500 25 $ s2s.oo 
10. P1ona10 W'tUCt1 Reoa,t 200 10 ·s 210 00 

.SUb-Tclulo s 1,790.00 

1~Ta:oonruDhlo.Si,NtiY I 01 $ 27000 

t _P,ellm T ttlcR,:,nnrta 38500 11125 5 •O.<?S.DD 
2.. Sound.arv Survey 0 S 37000 
3. Rlont ofW•v Solfino 5D 2.5 s 52.50 
, . RinM 01 Wav MilPS 500 25 S 525,00 
5. Leaal Oescdptlons 50 2.5 ' S2.SO 41000 

Su!).TOlel ·s il ,0.55.00 

11 . Publ!c.lnfom,.,uon Me,,tloo• I 1500 751 .S 1~75,00•1 I 
l;t. Onc...a,1J ~Orie MceJ1nns 250 12.5 $ 2a2.so I 

Silb-l'olllls IS 11137,601 I 

1. C1mceP1ual Ot.!JDfl SOD 251.S 525,DD I 5000 
2. Prcimlnar, 30% P&E IOOll • bOI S 1,050.00 I I 
S, Traffk S':Q.nJt MOdIDccrllo.n Oas,Qr, I OLS . le 180001 

SUl>-TO!nh I'S 1,575,00 I I 

1 cil P,eonre 60,S. ?&E 500 25 S 525;DD , 3000 
1.a (cont'd\ 90%, 100% and FlnaJ PS&E._ 100Q 50 S 1.050_00 "3 ~ 
1.b.. Otalntme Ar,.111-nB .and Dc11,cti1 600 25 S 525..0ll I 
1.ci con1ot.rudnblli1v Ra~ 50 2.S .$' 52.50 ..2250 
Z. Prepare Ffnal Enqmeer's Estimate D ,- 1000 

SUl>-Tollll,; $' "2,16:1!5ll 

1. Distilbui. F"1nl P&E I D S . I I 
12. .Condur:I Pnt-BldMeeUno 4.Ail<fOJ!dA I 0 ,$ - I 
3. Allarul BIO QpfitlkMI QJ"IG Tabul1:llc BlidlS I I 0 $ , . I I 

I SUl>-Tolnio;I I '.;$ -· I I 

I .I I I 

I I I I 

ISub•lOUII Oo1(nn Servic:as d ~4 .9l5.DD 

J, CortlTIICI Admlni'11'11U011 [O0IIQMD 600 2S s 52!.00 
K. Conslruction Surve ino { Oolianal\ 0 S . 30000 

~n!Ootlooun• 0 $ -. 
le.111in0 (ontl.anB.l} 0 $ - ,os,o 
,(OOl/o""D so 2.5 $ 52.50 

O~ Construction Con1ingencv ..(Qp/lo.o..all 0 S -
S"l>-Tolal5 s '577!.50 

GRAND "l'OTALS - l I s 5.$,5-1 'I.""1J -

SLlt)COOSUIIDll15 TDlob 
Morl•n Cru;I llort-roua I Cos:I 

01 S - 118 s 22,4.0.00 
OIS - •52 IS 1,.,,s.00 

IS - 110 IS 33,MS.00 

0 S 29 s 3,630,00 
•0~ 28 s 3:82_1,25 
0 S . 0 s 7.572.50 
0 ,s • s 620,00 
D S . a 5 930.00 

235,s s ,.~6.50 '24 s 15 ,070.50 
719 5 ,s.o,,.oo 2 s 15.614,00 

0 S ·3~ 5 8 ,325.25 
0 S 2D s ~.305,00 
0 S n s 2 ,810.00 
0 s - Hill s 28,815.00 
0 s 39 s 5.610.00 

$ 20,04'C:50 .ss s 93 aao,so 
13Sll s 28,l!>0,.001 s IS 7Q .085,_. QO 

0 5 - 61 $ 40,1t•s:oo 
1851) S 38.350.DD 2 s 39 140.D0 

D S- -'20 ' $ 3,262,50 
0 S . 90 s 12,135.00 

":!050 . $, ~~.050.00 SB $ 51 ,372,50 
s 61 ,900.00 2l2 s 1s s,aus.00 

Dl 1S - I 118 IS 18 OSSJOO 
OIS - • •• IS 10,002.SD 

s . I '161> IS' 2!1,051.60 

250 S 5.250 00 I 112 IS 23,175.00 

lllS . I 2BB IS 39.1130,00 
aoor~ 18.IH!O.Qll I 6 IS 19 770100 

1$ .2.USll.001 366 IS 82'875'.00 

150 S 3,150.00 328 s ~8,585,00 
150 $ Jl,150.00 .675 s Ge.375.0D 

0 S . 182 s 28 44 5.00 

112.S S- 2_362.50 lZ' 5 6,975.00 
so s ' 050.00 25 s 4 630,00 

s 9.712.SO 12•0 s t87,Sl0.DD 

01 S . I 5 IS 890.00 
DI 5 . I 26 , IS •.120.00 
01 S I • 1 5 1.2•0.00 
IS - I •o s 8 ,~50.0D 

I I IS $0000.00 
I 

s IG4.15100 s 685,4•7.00 

0 S 1:12 s ~9!495.00 
1500 S 31 ,500 00 0 s 31.50Cl.O.O 

D S - 450 s 58,SOO.DD 
2415,5 S 51 985 so D s 51,985_50 

0 'SC . 56 s S.1t1~~ 
0 S D s S0.000 00 

5 &l,485,.50 3301(1' $ 248,3a3:00 

s 2A7,6"Z.50 I s 91:J,IIJO.DO 

R:\02 Proposals by Client Narne\RTC Washo e Counly\173 33 25 Reno Consolidaled 20·01\PSAAltachment E • Fe e Estimate v03 xis Page 1 ol 1 



Collaboration. Commitment. Confidence~M f !NCE 
EXHIBIT 8-2 

RTC RENO CONSOLIDATED 20-01 
SCHEDULE OF CHARGES 2019 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Principal. .. .. .................................. .. ................. ............ $260/hour 
Associate .... .... .. ... .... ...... ... ................ ... ....... ........ .... .... $210/hour 
Senior ................. . ................... .. . .... . .. ............. .......... $180/hour 
Project .......... . ..................... ....... .. ..... , ...... ..... ....... .. ... . . $155/hour 
Staff .... ..... .. ..... . ........ ..... .......... ................. .......... ..... .. . $135/hour 

TECHNICAL SERVICES 
Senior Construction Manager* . .. ......... .... ... ..... $135/($160-PW)/hour 
Senior Designer ... ... ... .... .................... . ........... ..... ....... .. $145/hour 
CADD Designer .............. ............ . ... . ..... .... ..... ..... ... ..... .. $125/hour 
Senior Technician* ......... .............................. $120/($145-PW)/hour 
Construction Inspector* .. . ..... ....... .... . .. .. . ...... . $120/($145-PW)/hour 
CAD Technician ..... ....... .. .. ..... ... ..... .. , ...... . .. ........ ........... $110/hour 
Senior Field Scientist .... .... ........... .... ........ .. ........ ... .. ...... $115/hour 
Field Scientist ............... ... . ....... .. ·" ..... .. ............. .. ........ .. . $95/hour 
Project Administrator .... ..... .............. .. ..... ............ .......... $100/hour 
Field/Engineering Technician* .......... .... . ... , .... .. . $95/($120-PW)hour 
Technical Editor ... .. ... ......... ........ ........ ............ ..... .. ......... $90/hour 
Clerical . ...... .. .......... ... ....................... ..... ....... ................ $80/hour 

CONTRACT LABOR 
From time to time, NCE etains outside professional and technical labor 
on a tempora r,y basis- tG> meet peak workload demands. Such contract 
labor will be charged at reg ular Schedule charges. 

LITIGATION SUPPORT 
EngineerlScienttst ................................. . ...................... $300/hour 
Court Appearances & Depositions ................................... $500/hour 

EQUIPMENT 
Plotter Usage .................... .. ............. .......... (separate fee schedule) 
Truek .. .. ..................... ........ ......... ... .... .............. ........ .. .. $100/day 
Automobile .... ... .. ........... ............ ..... IRS Standard Mileage Rate+5% 
Falling Weig ht Deflectometer Testing . ............................ $3,500/Day 
Coriin g ..................................... ...... .... .. ....... .. ...... .. ..... $4,500/Day 

OUTSIDE SERVICES 
Rental of equipment not ordinarily furnished by NCE and all other costs 
such as special printing, photographic work, travel by common carrier, 
subsistence, subcontractors, etc. ........................... ....... .. cost + 5% 

TERMS 
Billings are payable upon presentation and are past due 30 days from 
invoice date. A finance charge of 1.5% per month, or the maximum 
amount allowable by law, will be charged on past-due accounts. NCE 
makes no warranty, either expressed or implied, as to its findings, 
recommendations, specifications, or professional advice except that 
they are prepared and issued in accordance with generally accepted 
professional practice. 

Engineering & Environmental Services www. nee net. com 



t !NCE 
EXHIBIT B-3 

RTC RENO CONSOLIDATED 20-01 
SCHEDULE OF PLOTTER CHARGES 2019 

PLOTTER CHARGES 

Black and White Sheets (up to 24 x 36) ..... .......... .. ................. . .. ..... $10.00/sheet 

Black and White Sheets (up to 30 x 42) .. .. ........... ....... ..... ............... $15.00/sheet 

Black and White Sheets (larger sizes) .... . ...... .... ............................. ....... $1. 75/sf 

Color Sheets (up to 24 x 36) .............. .. .......... .......... .. ....... .. ........... $15.00/sheet 

Color Sheets (larger sizes) .................. .................... , .. .... ......... .... ........ $2.50/sf 

Mylar Sheets ............................ ....... ........ .... .. ... ........... ... ... ... .. ..... $20.00/sheet 

Graphic Color Sheets ........................ ...... ..... .... ..... ....... ................. ...... $10.00/sf 

OTHER CHARGES 
Specialized plotting @r grapMic seNi€es . ......... .. .... . Cost + 15% 

www.ncenet.com Engineering & Environmental Services 

http:www.ncenet.com


Exhibit C 

Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 



EXHIBITC 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

!NRS 338 DE IG PROFESSIO AL] 
2018-1 1-02 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONT ACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0171. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to save and hold harmless and full indemnif RTC. Washoe County, and 
City of Reno including their elected official > o:ffieer , empfo>yees and agents (hereafter, 
"Indemnitees") from and against any and all claims, preceedir.igs actions, liability and damages, 
including reasonable attorneys' fees and clefens€ cast incurred in any action or proceeding 
(collectively "Damages") arising out of the: 

A. Negligence, errors, omis ion , recklessnes or intentional misconduct of CONSULT ANT 
or CONSULTANT's agents, em loyees, efficers directors, subconsultants, or anyone else 
for whom CONSUL TXNT may be legally responsible, which are based upon or arising 
out of the professional services of CO U TANT; and 

8. Violation of law or any contractual provisions or any infringement related to trade names, 
licenses, franchises patents er other means of protecting interests in products or inventions 
resulting from the use by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, equipment, 
or other deliverable.(including software) supplied by CONSULTANT under or as a result 
of this Agreement, but excluding any violation or infringement resulting from the 
modification or alteration by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, 
equipment, or other deliverable (including software) not consented to by CONSULTANT. 

CONSULTANT further agrees to defend, save and hold harmless and fully indemnify the 
Indemnitees from and against any and all Damages arising out the negligence, errors, omissions, 
recklessness or intentional misconduct of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT's agents, 
employees, officers, directors, subconsultants, or anyone else for whom CONSULT ANT may be 
legally responsible, which are not based upon or arising out of the professional services of 
CONSUL TANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 



property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 
If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions of CONSULTANT or anyone else for whom 
CONSULTANT is legally responsible, CONSUL TANT shall reimburse the Indemnitees for the 
time spent by such personnel at the rate of the Indemnitees pay or compensation for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSULTANT'S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 

In determining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall determine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.B above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSULTANT, at its sole expense, shall either (1) secure for the lndemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by proclu<ing a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become n0n-infrlnging. This covenant shall 
survive the termination of the Professional Services Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreement are separate and severable and it is the intent of the Parties hereto 
that in the event any provision of this Agreement should be determined by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, voidable or too restrjetive for any reason whatsoever, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain valid ancl b" ding upon said Parties. It is also understood 
and agreed that in the event any provision • ould be considered, by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, to be void because it imposes a gi:_ea er- obligation on CONSULTANT than is 
permitted by law, such court may re.cl.ue and refi, m such provisions to limitations which are 
deemed reasonable and enforceable by said c ·urt. 

3. GENERAL REQUIREME . TS 

Prior to the start of any work on a RTC project, CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the types and limits as i!lescribed below insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSUL T~'f. its subconsultants, or their employees, agents, or representatives. 
The cost of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSULTANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSUL TANT shall furnish RTC with a certificate(s) of insurance, executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All deductibles and self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. All certificates and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and approved by RTC before work commences. 
CONSULTANT agrees that RTC has the right to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or certified copies of the policies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements confirming required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 

http:re.cl.ue


notice of cancellation provisions are required to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

5. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

CONSULTANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation or non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten (10) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSULTANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
R TC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS&SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSULTANT shall include all Subcontractors and Subconsu tant (referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause . ubs em lbyed by CONSUL TANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limits 0f the types specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits each shall i11clude the RTC, Washoe 
County, and City of Reno as additional insureds unde'Tt its commercial general liability policy, 
subject to the same requirements stated herein, w"tb0ut requiring a written contract or agreement 
between each of the additional insureds and a sub-c.0nsulraot or sub-contractor. Any separate 
coverage limits of liability maintained by Subs sijaJI be at least $1,000,000 per occurrence and at 
least $2,000,000 for any applicable coverage .aggre :ates or the amount customarily carried by the 
Sub, whichever is GREATER. If any Subs previde their own insurance with limits less than 
required of the Contractor, Contract~r ,shall it lude Subs in their coverage up to the full limits 
required of the Contractor. When requeste Hy RTC, CONSULTANT shall furnish copies of 
certificates of insurance evide~reing covera&,e for each subconsultant. CONSUL TANT need not 
require its non-design subcontradovs t0- carry Professional Errors and Omissions Liability 
insurance. 

7. DEDUCTIBLES ;¢\ND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS 

Any deductibles or self-in ured retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financial or otherwise; prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any changes to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to the change taking effect. 



8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-VII and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept coverage with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning CONSULTANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CONSULTANT'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
ofNevada or meet any applicable state and federal laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 

9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSUL TANT fails to furnish the required certificate er fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right, l:>ut not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSUL TANT's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONSULTANT's obligation to ftlmish such certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed l:>y an -at1tho11ized representative of RTC. Failure 
of RTC to demand such certificate oi: other evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure o ' 'RTC to identify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a wajver (;)f CONSULT ANT's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver a to the en 0rcement of any of these provisions at a later 
date. 

D. By requiring insurance herein does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be ad~uate to p,rntect CO SULT ANT, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a I imitation 0n CONSULT ANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
R TC in this contr:aet. 

E. If CONSULTANT'S liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit ofnot less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 



products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07 /04 or CG 20 33 07 /04 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to RTC or any other lndemnitees under this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in section 2. 
INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONSULTANT's insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain automobile liability and if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $ 000,000 each ,accident. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including 0wned ~ired and non-owned autos). 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form C CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for arl 0wnetl, leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept aµto liability for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSULTANT doe JilOt own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 

CONSULTANT waives all rightsaga· stRTC its officers, employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insurance obtained by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONSULTANT or any subconsultants by 
RTC. CONSULTANT, and any subconsultants, shall procure, pay for and maintain the required 
coverages. 

CONSULT ANT shall maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State ofNevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. 



CONSULT ANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself and each subconsultant evidencing that 
CONSUL TANT and each subconsultant maintained workers' compensation and employer's 
liability insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSUL TANT, or any subconsultant is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must 
be purchased and evidence of coverage must appear on the Certificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 

CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSULTANT shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain professional liability in urance apply)ng to liability for a 
professional, error, act, or omission arising out of tbe scope of CO , ULT ANT'S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not !es than $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULT ANT shall maintain professjci:mal liability insurance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a "cJafms made" o claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extendechreporHng period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreement. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.13 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Blaine Petersen, P .E. 
Engineer II 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Award of Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for Traffic Engineering (TE) 
Spot 9 - Package 1 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Westwood Professional Services, Inc. 
("WPS") to provide design services and optional engineering during construction for the TE Spot 9 
-Package 1 Project in an amount not to exceed $250,102; authorize the RTC Executive Director to 
execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

This Agreement (see Attachment A) with WPS is for professional design services for the TE Spot 9 
- Package 1 Project in the amount of $138,102, and optional engineering during construction 
services (EDC) in the amount of $112,000. The Project includes a new traffic signal at the 
intersection of Sharlands and Mae Anne; battery backup systems for signalized intersections on Sun 
Valley from Scottsdale to 71

\ minor striping improvements to improve traffic flow at Pyramid at 
York and a traffic study with potential improvement to southbound right tum lane at the intersection 
of Vista and Baring. 

WPS was selected from the Traffic Engineering Services List as a qualified firm to perform 
engineering, construction management and quality assurance. Negotiation of WPS 's scope, schedule 
and budget indicated the amount for design services is within the appropriated budget. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

TE Spot 9 - Package 1 Project appropriations are included in the approved FY 2020 Budget and 
Program of Projects as part of the Capacity and Congestion Relief Program. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


TE Spot 9 - Package I PSA 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page2 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

April 19, 2019 Approved the Qualified Consultant List for Traffic Engineering 
Design Services 

January 18, 2019 Approved the FY 2020 Program of Projects 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT, made this 20th day of September, 2019, by and between the Regional 
Transportation Commission of Washoe County, hereinafter called the RTC, and Westwood 
Professional Services, Inc. dba Slater Hanifan Group ("CONSUL TANT"). 

WITNESS ETH: 

WHEREAS, the CONSULT ANT has represented that it has the expertise and staff necessary to 
perform certain engineering and design services in a competent and professional manner; and 

WHEREAS, the RTC wishes to retain CONSULTANT to perform those services in conjunction 
with the TE SPOT 9 - Package 1 Intersection Project (the "Project"); 

Now, therefore, RTC and CONSULT ANT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and other 
consideration set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I - ENGAGEMENT AND TERM 

1.1. RTC hereby engages CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT hereby accepts the 
engagement to complete certain engineering services in connection with the design and 
construction of for various intersection improvements associated with the TE SPOT 9 -
Package 1 Intersection Project. These services includes design and construction 
administration services for various intersection improvements 

1.2. CONSUL TANT will perform the work using the project team identified in the Proposal. 
Any changes to the project team must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

1.3 . CONSUL TANT will promptly, diligently and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable professional standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act of any government, civil disturbances, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control of CONSUL TANT. 

1.4. CONSUL TANT shall not proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement and a purchase order has been issued to CONSULT ANT. If CONSUL TANT 
violates that prohibition, CONSUL TANT forfeits any and all right to reimbursement and 
payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order. CONSUL TANT shall not rely on the terms 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by RTC or any of its agents, employees or 

-1-



affiliates, or on any dates of performance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 

1.5 . The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through December 
31, 2020, unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions herein. 

ARTICLE 2 - S -RVlCES OF CONSULTANT 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services consist of the tasks set forth in Exhibit A. 

2.2. CHEDULE OF SERVICES 

A. The services to be provided under this Agreemen shall be completed in accordance 
with Exhibit B, Schedule of Services, attached heret0 ~n · incorporated herein by 
reference. Any change to the schedule ust be a proved by the RTC Project 
Manager. 

B. With the exception of any optional ~s~s) all tasks and subtasks shall be completed 
by December 31, 2020. 

2.3. OPTIONS 

RTC shall have the right to exercis its option(s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identified in Exq.ibi fo., GONSUL TANT will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the sp~i'fic optional services requested, a schedule for such services, 
and a cost proposal. RT will review and approve the scope of services and RTC and 
CONSUL TA wl11 ais uss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSUL TANT shall undertake no work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the performance of said task. RTC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another individual or firm to perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.4. ADDITIONAL 

CONSULT ANT will provide additional services in connection with the Project when 
agreed to in writing by RTC and CONSULT ANT. 

-2-



2.5. PERFORMANC REQUIREMENTS 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSULT ANT shall be performed 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying (as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSULTANT shall have the 
responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

All sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized accrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or materials. testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification. Proof of certification 
shall be provided to RTC with this Agreement. If certification expires or is removed during 
the term of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RTC immediately, and propose a 
remedy. If an acceptable remedy cannot be agreed upon by both parties, R TC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSUL TANT shall provide only Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified personnel to perform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the term of this Agreement. A II test reports shall be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated with his/her license number. 

2.6. ERRORS AND OMJSSIONS 

CONSULT ANT shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissions caused by CONSULT ANT in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSUL TANT also agrees that if any error or omission is found, CONSUL TANT will 
expeditiously make the necessary correction, at no expense to RTC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not by CONSULT ANT and RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSULTANT may be compensated for such additional work. 

ARTICLE 3 - COMPENSATION 

3.1. CONSUL TANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. RTC shall not be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as provided 
in Exhibit B. 

-3-



The maximum amount payable to CONSULT ANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULT ANT can request in writing 
that the RTC Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request 
to reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by the RTC Project Manager prior to the performance of the 
work. In no case shall CONSULTANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to 
exceed amounts: 

$138,102.00 
$102,000.00 

00 
$250, I 02.00 

3.2. For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSULT ANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 
and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 
Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSUL TANT, will be billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than I 05% of the amounts billed to CONSULT ANT for such 
services. 

3.3. CONSUL TANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of RTC, except: (1) if such litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSUL TANT in defending its work ·or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

ARTICLE 4 - INVOICING 

4.1. CONSUL TANT shall submit monthly invoices in the format specified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to accountspayab le@rtcwashoe.com. RTC's payment terms are 30 days 
after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be paid at the rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by RTC that are not paid within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULTANT of any disagreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty (30) days of receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by RTC. 

4.3. CONSULT ANT shall maintain complete records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. Upon request, CONSUL TANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and RTC shall have the right to inspect and copy such records. 

-4-

mailto:accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com
http:102,000.00
http:138,102.00


5.1. Upon request and without cost to CONSUL TANT, RTC will provide all information that 
is reasonably available to RTC and pertinent to the Project including surveys, reports and 
any other data relative to design and construction of the Project. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSULTANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

ARTICLE 6 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

6.1. Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSUL TANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSULTANT prior to the execution of the Proj~ct that will be used in the 
Project and services rendered under this Agreement, is excluded from this requirement. 
CONSUL TANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 
interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual property rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreement and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSULT ANT in accordance with the terms of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSUL TANT under thi!l Agreem·ent shall, upon request, also be provided to R TC. 

6.2. CONSULT ANT represents that it has secured all necessary licenses, consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any intellectual property, including computer software, used in 
providing services under .this Agreement, that it has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that it has the right to convey such title and other necessary 
rights and interests to RTC. 

6.3. CONSUL TANT shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked materials, equipment, devices, or processes used on or incorporated 
in the services and materials produced under this Agreement. 

6.4. CONSUL TANT agrees that all reports, communications, electronic files, databases, 
documents, and information that it obtains or prepares in connection with performing this 
Agreement shall be treated as confidential material and shall not be released or published 
without the prior written consent of RTC; provided, however, that CONSULT ANT may 
refer to this Project in connection with its promotional literature in a professional and 
commercially reasonable manner. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever form that comes into the public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not restrict CONSULT ANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to provide information or data when such order is issued by a 

-5-



court, administrative agency, or other entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSULTANT to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

ARTICLE 7-TERM INATION 

7.1. CONTRACT TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSULTANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSULTANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSULT ANT setting forth the manner in which CONSULTANT is in 
default. CONSUL TANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later determined by RTC that CONSULT ANT had an excusable reason for not 
performing, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSULT ANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSUL TANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 

7.2. CONTRACT TERMlNATIO FOR CO'NVENTENCE 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to 
CONSUL TANT when it is in RTC's best interest. CONSULTANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall promptly submit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSULT ANT. If CONSUL TANT has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULTANT will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 
directs. 

ARTICLE 8 - TN URANC:E 

8.1 . CONSUL TANT shall not commence any work or permit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. In conjunction with the performance of the services/work required by the terms of this 
Agreement, CONSULT ANT shall obtain all types and amounts of insurance set forth in 
Exhibit C, and shall comply with all provisions set forth therein. 

-6-



ARTlCLE 9 - HOLD HARMLESS 

9.1. CONSULTANT's obligation under this provision is as set forth in Exhibit C. Said 
obligation would also extend to any liability ofRTC resulting from any action to clear any 
lien and/or to recover for damage to RTC property. 

ARTICLE IO - EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY 

I 0.1. During the performance of this Agreement, CONSULT ANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSUL TANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 
CONSULT ANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

I 0.2. CONSUL TANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSULT ANT, state that welJ qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. 

10.3. CONSULTANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

ARTICLE 11 - RESOLUTION OF CLAJMS AND DISPUTES 

11.1. EGOT IATEDRE OLUTION 

In the event that any dispute or claim arises under this Agreement, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate in good faith to resolve any such dispute or claim. Such 
cooperation shall include providing the other party with all information in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making available the necessary personnel to discuss and 
make decisions relative to the dispute or claim. 

-7-



11 .2. MEDIATION 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negotiated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writing of the dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dispute or claim be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other party's receipt or deemed receipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agree upon a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree upon a mediator within ten (I 0) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each party shall select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the mediator. A mediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the qualification set forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the "Rules Governing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Court." Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 
mediator shall have complete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty (30) days following appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any filing fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

11.3. LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Comt of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 

11.4. CONTI UTNG CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claim shall not constitute an excuse or 
defense for a party's nonperformance or delay. 

ARTICLE 12-AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES 

12.1. RTC ' s Director of Engineering has authority to act as RTC's representative with respect to 
this Agreement. RTC's Director of Engineering shall have authority to transmit 
instructions, receive information, interpret and define RTC policies, and make decisions 
with respect to materials, equipment elements, and systems. 

12.2. CONSULT ANT' s Transportation Service Leader has authority to act as CONSULT ANT' s 
representative with respect to this Agreement. 

-8-



ARTICLE 13 - NOTICE 

13.1. Notices required under this Agreement shall be given as follows : 

RTC: Brian Stewart, P.E. 
Director of Engineering 
Regional Transportation Commission 
1105 Terminal Way 
Post Office Box 30002 
Reno, Nevada 89520 

CONSULT ANT: Randy Carroll, P.E., PTOE 
Transportation Service Leader 
Westwood Professional Services, Inc. dba Slater Hanifan Group 
5740 S. Arville Street, Suite 216 
Las Vegas, NV 89141 

With a copy to : 

Joey Vossen 
General Counsel 
Westwood Professional Services, Inc. dba Slater Hanifan Group 
12701 Whitewater Drive, Suite 300 
Minnetonka, MN 55343 

ARTICLE 14 - DELAYS IN PERFORMANCE 

14.1. TIME IS OF THE ES ENCE 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by RTC's Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension of time shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 

14.2. UNAVOIDABLE DELAYS 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSUL TANT was excusably delayed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during 
CONSUL TANT's performance, is not caused directly or substantially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSUL TANT, is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSUL TANT to miss specified completion dates, and cannot adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

-9-



14.3. NOTIFICAT ION OF DELAYS 

CONSULT A NT shall notify RTC as soon as CONSULT ANT has knowledge that an event 
has occurred or otherwise becomes aware that CONSULT ANT will be delayed in the 
completion of the work. Within ten (I 0) working days thereafter, CONSULT ANT shall 
provide such notice to RTC, in writing, furnishing as much detail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extension of time. 

14.4. REQUEST FOR EXTEN lON 

Any request by CONSULTANT for an extension of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement shall be made in writing to RTC. CONSUL TANT shall supply to RTC 
documentation to substantiate and justify the additional time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised schedule. RTC shall provide CONSUL TANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable time after receipt of a request. 

ARTICLE 15 - GENERAL PROVISIONS 

15.1. D ASSlGN S 

RTC and CONSUL TANT bind themselves and their successors and assigns to the other 
party and to the successors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither RTC nor 
CONSUL TANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 
the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than R TC and 
CONSULT ANT. 

15.2. NON T RANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONSUL TANT's professional services, and CONSULTANT' s 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

15 .3. SEVERABILITY 

If any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term, or provision held invalid. 

-10-



15.4. RELA TIONSHJP OF PARTIES 

CONSULT ANT is an independent contractor to RTC under this Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSULT ANT is not entitled to participate in any retirement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance plans or other benefits RTC provides to its employees. CONSULT ANT 
shall be free to contract to provide similar services for others while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services and advocacy are not in direct conflict, as determined by 
RTC, with services being provided by CONSULT ANT to RTC. 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

Any waiver or breach of a provision in this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other provision in this Agreement and no waiver is valid unless in writing and executed by 
the waiving party. An extension of the time for perform~nce of any obligation or act shall 
not be deemed an extension of time for the performance of any other obligation or act. This 
Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the parties to this Agreement and 
their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

15.6. REGULATORY COMPLIA ·cE 

A. CONSUL TANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
government laws, regulations and ordinances. CONSULT ANT shall be 
responsible for obtaining all .necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under this Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish RTC certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

B. CONSULT ANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 
pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 
is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 
CONSULTANT does engage in such public work, CONSULT ANT shall be 
responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 
Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLUSIVE AGREEM ENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set forth herein with 
the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

-11-



15.9. CONTINUING OBLIGATION 

CONSULT A NT agrees that if, because of death or any other occurrence it becomes 
impossible for any principal or employee of CONSULT ANT to render the services 
required under this Agreement, neither CONSULT ANT nor the surviving principals shall 
be relieved of any obligation to render complete performance. However, in such event, 
RTC may terminate this Agreement if it considers the death or incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of such magnitude as to affect CONSULTANT's ability to 
satisfactorily complete the performance of this Agreement. 

15.10. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 

The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State of Nevada. The exclusive venue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties hereto submit to the jurisdiction of that District Court. 

15.11. ATTORNEYS' FEES 

In the event of a dispute between the parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

15 .12. CERTTFICA TION REQUIRED BY 'NEVADA SE A TE BILL 27 (2017) 

CONSUL TANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSUL TANT is engaged or engages in a boycott of Israel, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

-12-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: ______________ _ 

Dale Ferguson, RTC Chief Counsel 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

By: ______________ _ 
Lee G. Gibson, AICP, Executive Director 

WESTWOOD PROFESSIONAL SERVICES INC. 
DBA SLATER NIFANGROUP. 

-13-



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 

TE SPOT 9 INTER ECTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

2. I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

This scope of services includes design and construction administration services for various 
intersection improvements. These improvements include: 

a. Striping modifications on York Way at its intersection with Pyramid Way (State 
Route 445). 

b. Installation ofa traffic signal system at the intersection of Sharlands Avenue and Mae 
Anne A venue. Improvements at the intersection are also anticipated to include 
modifications to existing sidewalk, drop inlets, pedestrian ramps, signing and 
pavement markings. 

c. Installation of a dedicated southbound to westbound right turn lane on Vista 
Boulevard at its intersection with Baring Boulevard. Improvements at the 
intersection are also anticipated to include relocation and/or replacement of existing 
traffic signal equipment and modifi~ations to existing sidewalks, pedestrian ramps, 
signing and pavement markings. 

d. Installation of Battery Back-up. Systems (BBS) along the Clear Acre Lane/Sun Valley 
Boulevard (State Route 443) Corridor at the following seven (7) signalized 
intersections: 

I) Clear Acre Lane / Scottsdale Road 
2) Clear Acre Lane (Sun Valley Boulevard)/ 

Dandini Boulevard (El Rancho Drive) 
3) Sun Valley Boulevard / I st A venue 
4) Sun Valley Boulevard/ 2nd Avenue 
5) Sun Valley Boulevard/ 4th Avenue 
6) Sun Valley Boulevard/ 5th Avenue 
7) Sun Valley Boulevard / 7th A venue 

2. I .A. PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

I. General Project Management 

CONSULTANT will conduct project management functions to progress the project in a 
timely and orderly manner. These functions include coordination with internal consultant 
staff, RTC, City of Reno, City of Sparks, Washoe County, NDOT and other participating 



agencies, as well as monthly accounting and invoicing. 

2. Project Meetings 

a. CONSUL TANT will notice (via email) and conduct one (1) project kick-off meeting 
with the RTC and participating agencies (each meeting will be coordinated with all 
agencies to meet together at one time). Meetings will be held at the RTC 
Engineering offices at 1105 Terminal Way. 

b. CONSULT ANT will notice (via email) and conduct up to two (2) general project 
meetings with the RTC and participating agencies (each meeting will be coordinated 
with all agencies to meet together at one time). Meetings will be held at the RTC 
Engineering offices at 1105 Terminal Way. 

c. CONSULT ANT will conduct one ( 1) encroachment permit meeting with RTC and 
NDOT in advance of the encroachment permit submittal. The encroachment permit 
meeting will be held at the NDOT District 2 offices at 310 Galletti Way. 

2.1.B PRELIMINARY DESIGN 

I . Investigate Existing Conditions and Field Inventory 

a. CONSULTANT will conduct a field review to verify existing conduit routing, pull 
box locations and other related traffic signal equipment within the project area. 

b. CONSULT ANT will obtain and review available as-built plans from NDOT, City of 
Reno, City of Sparks; -Washoe County and/or RTC for existing traffic signal systems 
or other related infrastructure improvements projects within the project area. NDOT 
as-built plans will be used, if necessary, to establish a centerline and right-of-way on 
the encroachment permit plan set. 

c. CONSUL TANT will only evaluate existing traffic signal equipment and/or 
pedestrian ramps for PROW AG compliance at the following intersections: 

1) Sharlands A venue and Mae Anne A venue 
2) Vista Boulevard and Baring Boulevard 

2. Topographic and right of way mapping 

a. CONSULT ANT will obtain aerial photography and other relevant layers from 
Washoe County GIS. The GIS data will be used in lieu of ground survey, 
topographic and right of way mapping for plan development for the installation of 
BBS at seven (7) signalized intersections along the Clear Acre Lane/Sun Valley 
Boulevard Corridor. 

2 



b. CONSULT ANT will subcontract with Odyssey Engineering, Inc. to provide rectified 
aerial photography on York Way at the intersection of Pyramid Way. Washoe 
County GIS photography does not reflect current field conditions. 

c. CONSULT ANT will subcontract with Odyssey Engineering, Inc. to provide aerial 
topography and field surveys at the following intersections: 

I) Sharlands Avenue and Mae Anne Avenue 
2) Vista Boulevard and Baring Boulevard 

d. CONSULT ANT will subcontract with Odyssey Engineering, Inc. to provide right of 
way research, obtain title reports and prepare legal descriptions for improvements 
that may require additional right of way or easement for construction. A total of 
eight (8) title reports and six (6) legal descriptions are included in this scope. 

3. Utility Investigation/Depiction 

a. Overhead Utilities: CONSUL TANT will investigate and generally locate all 
overhead utilities within the roadway right of way and areas reasonably affected at 
the intersections of Sharlands A venue / Mae Anne A venue and Vista Boulevard / 
Baring Boulevard that are anticipated to be impacted by new or relocated traffic 
signal equipment installation. Deliverables will include: Schematic depiction of 
identified overhead utilities on applicable plan sheets developed under Section 2.1.B, 
Preliminary Design. Overhead utilities will not be investigated or depicted on the 
plans for any other intersection improvements listed in Section 2.1. 

b. Subsurface Utilities: CONSULT ANT will investigate and generally locate 
subsurface utilities with in the roadway right-of-way and areas reasonably effected at 
the intersections of Sharlands A venue / Mae Anne A venue and Vista Boulevard / 
Baring Boulevard that are anticipated to be impacted by new or relocated traffic 
signal equipment installation or other project improvements. Additionally, 
CONSUL TANT will coordinate with Utility owners to remove lids of surface 
features and document depth of utility device, or invert of pipe, within such surface 
features at the Sharlands A venue/ Mae Anne A venue and Vista Boulevard/ Baring 
Boulevard intersections that are anticipated to be impacted by the project. 
Deliverables will include: Depiction of general subsurface utility location on 
applicable plan sheets developed under Section 2.1 .B, Preliminary Design. 
Subsurface utilities will not be investigated or depicted on the plans for any other 
intersection improvements listed in Section 2.1. 

c. Utility coordination: Based on field investigation, CONSULTANT will provide RTC 
a list of utility companies whose utilities are likely to be reasonably affected by the 
project. RTC will issue the initial notification to the utility agencies on the list and 
CONSUL TANT will coordinate with the utility agencies for upcoming work, facility 
relocation and new installation, and to insure utilities likely affected by the project 
are drawn on the applicable plan sheets. 



d. Utility Pothole Exploration: Should insufficient information be available from 
existing records to determine whether or not conflicts between the proposed work 
and existing utilities will occur, the CONSULTANT will not pothole locations to 
make such a determination. This will be an added scope of work. 

4. Preliminary Plan Set Layout 

CONSULTANT will prepare a preliminary plan set illustrating the project area, survey and 
as-built information. The preliminary plan set will be submitted to the RTC for review and 
approval prior to advancing the project to Final Design. 

Deliverables: One 11 "x 17" preliminary plan set and an electronic copy in PDF format to the 
RTC. 

5. Identify Preliminary Right-of-Way Acquisition Areas 

CONSULT ANT will review the preliminary plan layout and identify areas, if any, that could 
require right-of-way acquisition. These areas will be reviewed with the RTC to determine if 
changes in the Scope of Services are necessary to eliminate the need for right-of-way 
acquisition or if additional survey and research is necessary and needs to be authorized by the 
RTC to further define the existing right-of-way. This scope of service provides limited right
of-way research. Acquisition services are not included as part of this Scope of Services. 
Final right-of-way needs will be identified at the 70% design level. 

Deliverables: 11 x 17 right-of-way exhioit(s) and an electronic copy in PDF format to the 
RTC. 

6. Right Turn Lane Analysis 

CONSULT ANT will collect up to twelve ( 12) hours ofturning movement count data at the 
intersection of Vista Boulevard and Baring Boulevard. The data collection is anticipated to 
occur between the hours of7:00AM-9:00AM and 4:00-6:00PM on a Tuesday, Wednesday 
and Thursday. The data will be used to analyze intersection operations and provide a 
recommendation as to the need for a dedicated SB right tum lane. The data, analyses and 
recommendations will be summarized in a technical memorandum submitted to the RTC and 
City of Sparks for review. 

Deliverables: Technical Memorandum and an electronic copy in PDF format to the RTC and 
City of Sparks. 

4 



2.1.C FINAL DESIGN 

1. Prepare Final Plans and Specifications 

a. Prepare Final Construction Plans, Contract Documents and Technical Specifications 
suitable for construction bid advertisement in accordance with R TC standards and 
requirements. RTC will provide the boilerplate on disk in MS Word format. The 
RTC, Local Entity and Quality Control review comments will be incorporated into 
the final Plans and Specifications. 

The final construction plans will be on 22" x 34" size sheets (scalable to I I "xl 7") 
and will show all relevant elements of the project construction. The final plan set will 
include, as a minimum: 

• Cover Sheet 
• Abbreviation, Symbols and General Notes Sheets 
• Plan/Grading Detail Sheets (at "=20' scale 
• Removal/Demolition Plan Sh,~,ets (a 1 "=3Q' scale) 
• Intersection and Signal Eayout ,Plan Sheets (at 1 "=20' scale) 
• Striping Plan heets (a J t'=20') 
• BBS Improvement 'Plan Sheets (at l "=30' scale) 
• Detail Sheets (scales as n0ted). 

Depths of existing anitary ewer aod storm drain utilities will be checked and noted 
on the plans if conflicts are anticipated due to vertical clearances. All located, 
existing underground utiltties shown on the Plan Sheets will be accompanied with the 
following Note: Sub urface utilities are depicted by their Quality Levels in 
accordance Ame,rican Society of Civil Engineers Standard Guidelines for the 
Col lec i!m and Depiction of Existing Subsurface Utility Data (CI/ ASCE 38-02). All 
utility information shown hereon is depicted to Quality Level "C", unless otherwise 
noted .' 

The Contract Documents and Technical Specifications will reference the latest 
edition of Standard Specifications for Public Works Construction (Orange Book) for 
standard construction items. Technical provisions will be prepared for approved 
deviations from the Orange Book and unique construction items not adequately 
covered in the Orange Book. The final plans and specifications will be signed and 
sealed by a Nevada Registered Professional Civil Engineer in responsible charge of 
preparation. Plans and specifications will be submitted to the RTC, Local Entity, 
and other affected parties for review at the 70% and 100% stages of completion per 
the following: 

• 70% Plans - One 11 "x 1 7" set to RTC, six I l "x 17" sets to Local Entity, and 
one 11 "xl 7" set each to utility agencies and other affected parties. 

• 70% Specifications - One set each to RTC and Local Entity. 
5 



• I 00% Plans - One I I "xi 7" each to RTC and Local Entity. 
• I 00% Specifications - One set each to RTC and Local Entity. 
• Final Working Plan Set- One I I "xi 7" set each to RTC and Local Entity. 
• Final Working Specification Document - One set each to RTC and Local 

Entity, one copy in MS Word format of the Contract Documents and 
Technical Specifications to RTC. 

b. Independent Checker. An independent checker will check, initial and date each plan 
sheet. A quality control review of the plans, contract documents and technical 
specifications will be performed which will focus on technical aspects of the plans 
and specifications and will ensure that all items of work are adequately covered. 

c. Utility Agency Coordination. Design review subrn ittals (70%) will be provided to 
utility agencies that have facilities that are anticipat • to be impacted by the project. 
Utilities will only be depicted on the plans if a c~mfiict · an ticipated. RTC will be 
provided a list of utility agencies provided design ne: 1ew subrn ittals and Utility 
Agency review comments. 

d. Final Sealed Construction Plan et Subm ittal. CO · SULTANT will submit final 
sealed plans to the R TC and Local Entities as f6 ll0ws: 

• RTC: One(l)22"x34' Mylar Title Sheet 
• RTC and Local Entities: o (2 I I "xi 7" bond plan set 
• RTC and Local Entities: One (I) CD containing a PDF copy of the final 

plans and AutoO.~D drawing files 

e. Final Specification Doeurnent ·ubmittal. Provide one (I) hard copy and one (I) copy 
in MS W~wd ormal ef the C~mtract Documents and Technical Specifications to the 
RTC and one bard c •py to the Washoe County, City of Reno and City of Sparks. 

f. Final Engineer' s Opinion of Probable Construction Costs and Time. Provide a final 
Engineer's opinion of probable construction costs for the project based on the final 
design and any alternatives or options. The cost opinion will be in the same format as 
the bid proposal form included in the contract documents. A quality control review of 
the cost opinion will be performed by the CONSULT ANT. The CONSULT ANT will 
also estimate the number of working or calendar days, as appropriate, for the 
construction of the projects. 

2. Nevada Department of Transportation Encroachment Permit. CONSULT ANT will prepare 
and process an encroachment permit package through the Nevada Department of 
Transportation for the portions of the project along Sun Valley Boulevard (SR 443) and 
Pyramid Way (SR 445). The RTC and the local agency will be the co-applicants on the 
permit and will provide all applicant fees, signatures and submittal documentation needed by 
the CONSULT ANT to process the perm it. 

6 



3. Contingency. This is a contingency for miscellaneous increases within the scope of this 
contract. CONSULT ANT shall provide a letter detailing the need, scope, and not-to-exceed 
budget for any proposed work. Work under this task shall proceed only with the RTC 
Project Manager's written approval 

2.1.D BIDDTNG SERVICES 

I. Plan Set and Specification Distribution. CONSULTANT will provide RTC with final plans 
and specifications, including addenda, in Portable Document Format (PDF), for use in the 
Ebid system. 

2. Pre-bid Meeting. CONSUL TANT will be available during the bidding process to answer 
technical questions and will hold the pre-bid meeting. All questions and responses will be 
documented and provided to R TC. CONSULT ANT will prepa\·e and provide PDF addenda, 
if required. All questions regarding legal aspects of the c • ntract ocuments will be referred 
directly to RTC. CONSULTANT will prepare and provide a PDF sutnmary of the pre-bid 
meeting, as directed by the R TC. 

3. Bid Opening. CONSUL TANT will attend th bjd <l5p ning and review the bids received for 
irregularities and provide a recommendati , n fo · award. Q@ SULT ANT will tabulate bid 
results into a MS Excel spreadsheet and check multiplication and addition of bid items. 

2.1.E OPTIONAL CONSTRUCTION SER I€E (SQle Option and Discretion of RTC) 

The RTC and CONSULT A NT' shall review Optional Construction Services following the 
completion of final design to determine their appropriateness to the project. Upon receiving 
authorization from the RT , tbe CONSUL TANT will prepare a detailed scope of work for 
the Construction Support Se)'Vices, along with a detailed estimate offees for these services. 

7 



Exhibit B 

Compensation 



EXHIBIT B 

SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 
FOR THE 

TE SPOT 9 INTERSECTION IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

Staff Hours and Fees 

- 1i ~ ~ I -:l 1: ~ 

Task t; ~ . . = Task Description ::i; j t; . 0 C ;, ~ = :l i C No. 
. ., 

0. C • C ·~ "' e~ e ·;, ~ ;;; .., - E -c 1: i 1i 7n !!' ., . f :!' C -.,,!! 

~ 
C o.::. .:n 0. ,li C C Cl W < < (.) 
8 w ~ (.) 

C 
~ ~ 

t; -l; .c l: 0 0 ~ {!. 
$215 $197 $175 $158 $138 $120 $115 $71 :,: (.) ., C 

2.1.A PROJECT MANAGEMENT 

1 General Project Management 20 0 0 0 0 0 0 6 26 $ 4,726 $ . $ $ 4,726 

2 Project Meetings 12 12 0 0 5 1 0 0 30 $ 5,754 $ $ 100 $ 5,854 

Subtotal Hours 32 12 0 0 5 1 0 6 56 
2.1 ,A 

Subtotal Fee $ 6,880 $ 2,364 $ . $ $ 690 $ 120 $ ' 426 $ 10,480 $ $ 100 $ 10,580 

2,1.B PRELIMINARY DESIGN 

1 Investigation/Field Inventory 16 18 0 0 0 4 0 o 38 $ 7,466 $ $ $ 7,466 

2 Topographic and Right-of-Way Mapping 0 5 0 0 12 0 0 0 17 $ 2,641 $ 22,055 $ s 24,696 
~ 

3 Utility Investigation/Depiction 1 5 2 0 2 20 0 0 30 $ 4,226 $ . s $ 4,226 

4 Preliminary Plan Set Layout 1 2 0 0 24 0 0 0 27 $ 3,921 $ $ $ 3,921 

5 
Identify Preliminary ROW Acquisition 
Areas 

2 4 0 0 16 0 0 0 22 $ 3,426 s $ $ 3,426 

6 Righi Turn Lane Analysis 1 0 4 0 D 7 0 0 12 $ 1,755 $ 1,400 $ $ 3,155 

Subtotal Hours 19 30 6 0 38 '• 31 0 0 124 
2.1.B 

Subtotal Fee $ 4,085 $ 5,910 $ 1,050 $ - s 5,244 ' 3,720 $ - $ $ 23,435 $ 23,455 $ $ 46,890 

2,1,C FINAL DESIGN 

' 1 70% Desig n Submillal 26 43 6 16 1s2 
., 

28 0 0 171 $ 28,175 $ $ 125 s 28,300 

1 '100 % Design Submittal 16 24 4 _12 !_8 14 0 0 98 $ 16,308 $ $ 125 $ 16,433 

1 Final Design Submillal 9 13 .., 1 4 20 0 0 0 47 $ 8,063 $ $ 600 $ 8,663 

2 NDOT Encroachment Permit 1 4 1-. 0 - 0 24 1 0 0 30 $ 4,435 $ $ $ 75 4,510 

' 3 Contingency 0 $ 10,000 $ 5,000 $ $ 15,000 

Subtotal Hours 52 84 11 32 124 43 0 0 346 
2.1.C 

Subtotal Fee $ 11,180 , 1e,114a s 1,925 $ 5,056 $ 17,112 $ 5,160 $ $ $ 66,981 $ 5,000 $ 925 $ 72,906 

2.1.D BIDDING SERVICES 

1 Distribution 2 .J 0 0 2 0 0 0 4 $ 706 $ $ $ 706 

2 Pre-Bid Meeling/Bid Support 8 5 4 0 2 2 0 0 21 $ 3,921 s $ 100 s 4,021 

3 Bid Opening 9 4 0 0 2 0 0 0 15 $ 2,999 $ $ - $ 2,999 

Subtotal Hours 19 9 4 0 6 2 0 0 40 
2.1.D 

Subtotal Fee $ 4,085 $ 1,773 $ 700 $ $ 828 $ 240 $ $ - $ 7,626 $ $ 100 $ 7,726 

SUBTOTAL - DESIGN SERVICES 566 $ 108,522 $ 28,455 $ 1,125 $ 138,102 

2.1.E CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES (OPTIONAL) 

1 
Administration/ Testing/ Inspection I 
Survey/ As-Built - Budgelary Estimate $ 32,000 $ 65,000 $ 5,000 $ 102,000 

2 Contingency $ 5,000 $ 5,000 $ $ 10,000 

SUBTOTAL - CONSTRUCTION SUPPORT SERVICES (OPTIONAL - Budgetary Estimate) $ 37,000 $ 70,000 $ 5,000 $ 112,000 

TOTAL 1 $ 145,522 s 98,455 1 s 6,125 1 s 250,102 I 



Exhibit C 

Indemnification and Insurance Requirements 



Exhibit C 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIO AL SERVJCE AGREEMENTS 

(NRS 338 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL) 
2018-11-02 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONTACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0171. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULTANT agrees to save and hold harmless and fully indemni RT I Washoe County, City 
of Reno and City of Sparks including their elected officials, officers employees and agents 
(hereafter, "lndemnitees") from and against any and all GJ.aims, proceedings, actions, liability and 
damages, including reasonable attorneys' fees a d defen_se cost,5 incurred in any action or 
proceeding (collectively "Damages") arising out of the: 

A. Negligence, errors, omissions, reek!~ sness , r inten tional misconduct of CONSULT ANT 
or CONSULTANT's agents, employees, o 1cer: directors, subconsultants, or anyone else 
for whom CONSULT ANT in.a¥ be legally responsible, which are based upon or arising 
out of the professional services of CONSULTANT; and 

B. Violation of law or any , oncractuaJ provi ions or any infringement related to trade names, 
licenses, franchi se..s. paten'ts 0r other means of protecting interests in products or inventions 
resulting from the use by th¢ lndemnitee of any materials, devices, processes, equipment, 
or other deliver-able including software) supplied by CONSUL TANT under or as a result 
of this Agreemen bu~ excluding any violation or infringement resulting from the 
modification or aner-ation by the lndemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, 
equipment, or other deliverable (including software) not consented to by CONSUL TANT. 

CONSULT ANT further agrees to defend, save and hold harmless and fully indemnify the 
Indemnitees from and against any and all Damages arising out the negligence, errors, omissions, 
recklessness or intentional misconduct of CONSULT ANT or CONSULT ANT's agents, 
employees, officers, directors, subconsultants, or anyone else for whom CONSULT ANT may be 
legally responsible, which are not based upon or arising out of the professional services of 
CONSULT ANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 
property, tangible or intang ible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 



If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions of CONSULT ANT or anyone else for whom 
CONSUL TANT is legally responsible, CONSULTANT shall reimburse the Indemnitees for the 
time spent by such personnel at the rate of the Indemnitees pay or compensation for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSULTANT'S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 

In detennining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall detennine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.B above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSULT ANT, at its sole expense, shall either (I) secure for the Indemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by procuring a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become non-in_fi-inging. This covenant shall 
survive the termination of the Professional Services Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreement are separate and severable and it is the intent of the Parties hereto 
that in the event any provision of this Agreement should be determj~d by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, voidable or too restrictive for any reason whatsoever, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain valid and · i~ding u, on a:tcl Parties. It is also understood 
and agreed that in the event any provision sh0ald be consi ered by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, to be void because it imposes a greater obligation on CONSULTANT than is 
permitted by law, such court may reduce cl J·efor,m such provisions to limitations which are 
deemed reasonable and enforceable by said c0urt. 

3. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the start of any work ~n a T<i: project, CONSULT ANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the types a d limits as descrioed below insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to prope11'): which Jna arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSllJL AN/'f' i , ubconsultants, or their employees, agents, or representatives. 
The cost of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSULTANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSULTANT shall furnish RTC with a certificate(s) ofinsurance, executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All deductibles and self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. All certificates and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and approved by RTC before work commences. 
CONSULTANT agrees that RTC has the right to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or certified copies of the policies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements confirming required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 
notice of cancellation provisions are required to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 



5. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

CONSULTANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation or non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten (I 0) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSULT ANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS & SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSULT ANT shall include all Subcontractors and Subconsultants (referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause Subs employed by CONSULT ANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limits of the types specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits, each ... sJ1all include the RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additional insu eds u er its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements stated herein, with0ut requiring a written contract 
or agreement between each of the additional insureds and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability maintained bY. Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for any appJ1cable ooverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is GR£A TER. If afl Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the Contractor, <Sootraetor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Contractor,. Wliell requested by RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates of insurance e idel\cing coverage for each subconsultant. 
CONSUL TANT need not require it H0n-des1 0 ul;, ontractors to carry Professional Errors and 
Omissions Liability insurance. 

7. DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS 

Any deductibles or seJf-insured retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved ey R C' Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive a Elitional documentation, financial or otherwise, prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any changes to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to the change taking effect. 

8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-VII and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept coverage with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning CONSULTANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CONSULTANT'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
ofNevada or meet any applicable state and federal laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 



9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSULTANT fails to furnish the required certificate or fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSULT ANT's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to furnish such certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of RTC. Failure 
of R TC to demand such certificate or other evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of RTC to identify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a waiver of CONSULT. T's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver as to the enforcement of any o these provisions at a later 
date. 

D. By requiring insurance herein, RTC does not epresent tha coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to protect CONSUbTANT, and sucti coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a limitation on ONSUL · NT's tiabillt¥ under the indemnities granted to 
RTC in this contract. 

E. If CONSULTANT'S liability policies do no contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a sub 1tiall simi ar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENE 

CONSULTANT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance wi~ a lynit of11ot less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit. it shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separa ely to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 
products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07/04 or CG 20 33 07/04 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to RTC or any other Indemnitees under this Agreement. 



CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in section 2. 
TNDEMNIFICA TION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONSUL TANT's insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including owned, hired, and non-owned autos). 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form CA 00 01, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for all owned, leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept auto liability ~ non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSULT ANT does not own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 

CONSUL TANT waives all rights against RTC, its offic~rs employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent these damages are covered by, the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insurance obtained by CON UL1'.ANT pursuan to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKER'S COM S:A'tlON AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that thefe sha ll be n o Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage p iVided for CONSUL TANT or any subconsultants by 
RTC. CONSUL TANT, and aAy subconsil tants shall procure, pay for and maintain the required 
coverages. 

CONSULTANT shall maintain wo kers' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requiremenrs,Qf the tafe ofNevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1 000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. 

CONSUL TANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself and each subconsultant evidencing that 
CONSULTANT and each subconsultant maintained workers' compensation and employer's 
liability insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSULT ANT, or any subconsultant is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must 
be purchased and evidence of coverage must appear on the Certificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 



CONSUL TANT waives all rights against RTC, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSULT ANT shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSULT ANT shall maintain professional liability insurance applying to liability for a 
professional, error, act, or omission arising out of the scope of CONSULTANT'S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULT ANT shall maintain professional liability insurance during the term of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a "claims made" or "claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extended reporting period fo · a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreement. 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.14 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Andrew Jayankura, P.E., PTOE 
Engineer I 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Award of Professional Services Agreement (PSA) for the TE Spot 9 -Package 2 
Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Professional Services Agreement (PSA) with Kimley-Horn & Associates to provide 
design services and engineering during construction for the TE Spot 9 - Package 2 Project in an 
amount not to exceed $273,718, authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

This Agreement (see Attachment A) with Kimley-Horn & Associates is for professional design 
services for the TE Spot 9 -Package 2 Project in the amount of $197,950, and optional engineering 
during construction services (EDC) in the amount of $75,758. The Project includes 
replacement/upgrade of traffic cabinets at several intersections in the Reno area, an intersection 
study for improvement at 4th St/Mesa Park-Woodland intersection, installation of traffic cameras at 
several intersections, and lastly, construction of a new traffic signal at the intersection of Rock Blvd. 
and Edison Way. 

Kimley-Hom was selected from the Traffic Engineering Services List as a qualified firm to perform 
engineering, construction management and quality assurance. Negotiation ofKimley-Horn's scope, 
schedule and budget indicated the amount for design services is within the appropriated budget. 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

TE Spot 9 - Package 2 Project appropriations are included in the approved FY 2020 Budget and 
Program of Projects as part of the Capacity and Congestion Relief Program. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


TE Spot 9 - Package 2 Project PSA 
R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page2 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

April 19, 2019 Approved the Qualified Consultant List for Traffic Engineering Design 
Services 

January 18, 2019 Approved the FY 2020 Program of Projects 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this report. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

AGREEMENT 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

This agreement (this "Agreement") is dated and effective as of September 20, 2019, by and 
between the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County ("RTC") and Kimley-Horn 
and Associates, Inc. ("CONSULTANT"). 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, RTC has selected Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. from the Traffic Engineering 
(TE) Shortlist to perform Engineering Design and Construction Services in connection with TE 
Spot 9 - Package 2 (the "Project"); and 

NOW, THEREFORE, RTC and CONSULTANT, in consideration of the mutual covenants and 
other consideration set forth herein, do hereby agree as follows: 

ARTICLE I - ENGAGEMENT AND TERM 

1.1. RTC hereby engages CONSULTANT and CONSULTANT hereby accepts the 
engagement to complete the Project. 

1.2. CONSULTANT will perform the work using the project team identified in Exhibit B. Any 
changes to the project team must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

1.3. CONSULT ANT will promptly, diligently and faithfully execute the work to completion in 
accordance with applicable professional standards subject to any delays due to strikes, acts 
of God, act of any government, civil disturbances, or any other cause beyond the reasonable 
control of CONSULTANT. 

1 .4. CONSULTANT shall not proceed with work until both parties have executed this 
Agreement and a purchase order has been issued to CONSULT ANT. If CONSULTANT 
violates that prohibition, CONSULT ANT forfeits any and a11 right to reimbursement and 
payment for that work and waives any and all claims against RTC, its employees, agents, 
and affiliates, including but not limited to monetary damages, and any other remedy 
available at law or in equity arising under the terms of this Agreement. Furthermore, prior 
to execution and issuance of a purchase order. CONSULT ANT shall not rely on the terms 
of this Agreement in any way, including but not limited to any written or oral 
representations, assurances or warranties made by R TC or any of its agents, employees or 
affiliates, or on any dates of performance, deadlines, indemnities, or any term contained in 
this Agreement or otherwise. 

1.5. The term of this Agreement shall be from the date first written above through June 30, 
2021 unless terminated at an earlier date, or extended to a later date, pursuant to the 
provisions herein. 

-1-



ARTICLE 2 -SERVICES OF CONSULTANT 

2.1. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The scope of services consist of the tasks set forth in Exhibit A. 

2.2. SCHEDULE OF SERVICES 

Tasks and subtasks shall be completed in accordance with the schedule in Exhibit A. Any 
change(s) to the schedule must be approved by RTC's Project Manager. 

2.3. OPTIONS 

RTC shall have the right to exercise its option(s) for all or any part of the optional tasks or 
subtasks identified in Exhibit A. CONSULT ANT will prepare and submit a detailed scope 
of services reflecting the specific optional services requested, a schedule for such services, 
and a cost proposal. RTC will review and approve the scope of services and RTC and 
CONSULT ANT will discuss and agree upon compensation and a schedule. 
CONSULTANT shall undertake no work on any optional task without written notice to 
proceed with the performance of said task. RTC, at its sole option and discretion, may 
select another individual or firm to perform the optional tasks or subtasks identified in 
Exhibit A. 

2.4. ADDITlO AL SERVJCES 

CONSULT ANT will provide additional services in connection with the Project when 
agreed to in writing by RTC and CONSULT ANT. 

2.5. PERFORMANCE-REQUIREMENTS 

Any and all design and engineering work furnished by CONSULT ANT shall be performed 
by or under the supervision of persons licensed to practice architecture, engineering, or 
surveying (as applicable) in the State of Nevada, by personnel who are careful, skilled, 
experienced and competent in their respective trades or professions, who are professionally 
qualified to perform the work, and who shall assume professional responsibility for the 
accuracy and completeness of documents prepared or checked by them, in accordance with 
appropriate prevailing professional standards. Notwithstanding the provision of any 
drawings, technical specifications, or other data by RTC, CONSULT ANT shall have the 
responsibility of supplying all items and details required for the deliverables required 
hereunder. 

-2-



All sampling and materials testing shall be performed by an approved testing laboratory 
accredited by AASHTO or other ASTM recognized accrediting organization in the 
applicable test methods. If any geotechnical or materials testing is performed by a sub
consultant, that laboratory shall maintain the required certification. Proof of certification 
shall be provided to RTC with this Agreement. Jf certification expires or is removed during 
the tenn of this Agreement, CONSULTANT shall notify RTC immediately, and propose a 
remedy. lf an acceptable remedy cannot be agreed upon by both parties, RTC may 
terminate this Agreement for default. 

CONSULTANT shall provide only Nevada Alliance for Quality Transportation 
Construction (NAQTC) qualified personnel to perform field and laboratory sampling and 
testing during the tenn of this Agreement. A II test reports shall be signed by a licensed 
NAQTC tester and notated with his/her license number. 

2.6. ERRORS AND OMfSSJONS 

CONSULT A NT shall, without additional compensation, correct or revise any deficiencies, 
errors, or omissions caused by CONSULT ANT in its analysis, reports, and services. 
CONSULT ANT also agrees that if any error or omission is found, CONSULTANT will 
expeditiously make the necessary correction, at no expense to RTC. If an error or omission 
was directly caused by RTC, and not by CONSU.LTANTand RTC requires that such error 
or omission be corrected, CONSULT A NT may be compensated for such additional work. 

ARTICLE 3 - €0MPENSATION 

3.1. CONSULTANT shall be paid for hours worked at the hourly rates and rates for testing in 
Exhibit B. RTC shall not be responsible for any other costs or expenses except as provided 
in Exhibit B. 

3.2. The maximum amount payable to CONSULTANT to complete each task is equal to the 
not-to-exceed amounts identified in Exhibit B. CONSULT ANT can request in writing 
that RTC's Project Manager reallocate not-to-exceed amounts between tasks. A request to 
reallocate not-to-exceed amounts must be accompanied with a revised fee schedule, and 
must be approved in writing by RTC's Project Manager prior to perfo11nance of the work. 
In no case shall CONSULT ANT be compensated in excess of the following not-to exceed 
amounts: 

Total Services (Tasks A to E and G to H) $259,377.00 
Contingency Services (Task F - 8% of Design) $14.341.12 
Total $273,718.12 

-3-

http:273,718.12
http:14.341.12
http:259,377.00


3.3. For any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional Services," RTC and 
CONSUL TANT will negotiate not-to-exceed amounts based on the standard hourly rates 
and rates for testing in Exhibit B. Any work authorized under Section 2.4, "Additional 
Services," when performed by persons who are not employees or individuals employed by 
affiliates of CONSULT ANT, will be billed at a mutually agreed upon rate for such 
services, but not more than I 05% of the amounts billed to CONSULT ANT for such 
services. 

3.4. CONSULTANT shall receive compensation for preparing for and/or appearing in any 
litigation at the request of RTC, except: ()) if such litigation costs are incurred by 
CONSUL TANT in defending its work or services or those of any of its sub-consultants; or 
(2) as may be required by CONSULTANT's indemnification obligations. Compensation 
for litigation services requested by RTC shall be paid at a mutually agreed upon rate and/or 
at a reasonable rate for such services. 

ARTICLE 4 - INVOJCTNG 

4.1. CONSULTANT shall submit monthly invoices in the format specified by RTC. Invoices 
must be submitted to accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com. RTC's payment terms are 30 days 
after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be paid at the rate of half a percent 
(0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by RTC that are not paid within thirty (30) days 
of receipt of the invoice. 

4.2. RTC shall notify CONSULTANT of any disagreement with any submitted invoice for 
consulting services within thirty .(30) days of receipt of an invoice. Any amounts not in 
dispute shall be promptly paid by RTC. 

4.3 . CONSULT ANT shall maintain complete records supporting every request for payment 
that may become due. Upon request, CONSULT ANT shall produce all or a portion of its 
records and RTC shall have the right to inspect and copy such records. 

ARTICLE 5 - ACCESS TO TNFORMA TION AND PROPERTY 

5.1. Upon request and without cost to CONSULTANT, RTC will provide all information that 
is reasonably available to RTC and pertinent to the Project including surveys, reports and 
any other data relative to design and construction of the Project. 

5.2. RTC will provide access to and make all provisions for CONSULTANT to enter upon RTC 
facilities and public lands, as required for CONSULTANT to perform its work under this 
Agreement. 

-4-

mailto:accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com


ARTTCL 6 - OWNERSHIP OF WORK 

6.1. Plans, reports, studies, tracings, maps, software, electronic files, licenses, programs, 
equipment manuals, and databases and other documents or instruments of service prepared 
or obtained by CONSULT ANT in the course of performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the property of RTC. Software already developed and 
purchased by CONSULTANT prior to the execution of the Project that will be used in the 
Project and services rendered under this Agreement, is excluded from this requirement. 
CONSULTANT and its sub-consultants shall convey and transfer all copyrightable 
interests, trademarks, licenses, and other intellectual property rights in such materials to 
RTC upon completion of all services under this Agreement and upon payment in full of all 
compensation due to CONSULT ANT in accordance with the tenns of this Agreement. 
Basic survey notes, sketches, charts, computations and similar data prepared or obtained 
by CONSULTANT under this Agreement shall, upon request, also be provided to RTC. 

6.2. CONSULT ANT represents that it has secured all necessary I icenses, consents, or approvals 
to use the components of any intellectual property, including computer software, used in 
providing services under this Agreement, that it has full legal title to and the right to 
reproduce such materials, and that it has the right to convey such title and other necessary 
rights and interests to RTC. 

6.3 . CONSULTANT shall bear all costs arising from the use of patented, copyrighted, trade 
secret, or trademarked materials, equipment, devices, or processes used on or incorporated 
in the services and materials produced under this Agreement. 

6.4. CONSULTANT agrees that all reports, communications, electronic files, databases, 
documents, and information that it obtains or prepares in connection with performing this 
Agreement shall be treated as confidential material and shall not be released or published 
without the prior written consent of RTC; provided, however, that CONSULT ANT may 
refer to this Project in connection with its promotional literature in a professional and 
commercially reasonable manner. The provisions of this subsection shall not apply to 
information in whatever fonn that comes into the public domain. The provisions of this 
paragraph also shall not restrict CONSULTANT from giving notices required by law or 
complying with an order to provide infonnation or data when such order is issued by a 
court, administrative agency, or other entity with proper jurisdiction, or if it is reasonably 
necessary for CONSULTANT to defend itself from any suit or claim. 

ARTICLE 7-TERMINATION 

7.1. CONTRACT TERMINATION FOR DEFAULT 

If CONSULTANT fails to perform services in the manner called for in this Agreement or 
if CONSULTANT fails to comply with any other provisions of this Agreement, RTC may 
tem1inate this Agreement for default. Termination shall be effected by serving a notice of 
termination on CONSULTANT setting forth the manner in which CONSULTANT is in 

-5-



default. CONSUL TANT will only be paid the contract price for services delivered and 
accepted, or services performed in accordance with the manner of performance set forth in 
this Agreement. 

If it is later detennined by RTC that CONSULTANT had an excusable reason for not 
perfonning, such as a fire, flood, or events which are not the fault of or are beyond the 
control of CONSULTANT, RTC, after setting up a new performance schedule, may allow 
CONSULTANT to continue work, or treat the termination as a termination for 
convenience. 

7.2. CONTRACT TERMINATION FOR CONVENIENCE. 

RTC may terminate this Agreement, in whole or in part, at any time by written notice to 
CONSULTANT when it is in RTC's best interest. CONSULTANT shall be paid its costs, 
including contract closeout costs, and profit on work performed up to the time of 
termination. CONSULTANT shall promptly submit its termination claim to RTC to be 
paid CONSULTANT. If CONSULTANT has any property in its possession belonging to 
RTC, CONSULTANT will account for the same, and dispose of it in the manner RTC 
directs. 

ARTICLE 8 - INSURANCE 

8.1. CONSULTANT shall not commence any work or permit any employee/agent to 
commence any work until satisfactory probfhas been submitted to RTC that all insurance 
requirements have been met. 

8.2. In conjunction with the perfonnance of the services/work required by the terms of this 
Agreement, CONSULTANT shall obtain all types and amounts of insurance set forth in 
Exhibit C, and shall comply with all provisions set forth therein. 

AR TJCLE 9 - HOLD HARMLESS 

9.1. CONSULTANT's obligation under this provision is as set forth in Exhibit C. Said 
obligation would also extend to any liability ofRTC resulting from any action to clear any 
lien and/or to recover for damage to RTC property. 

ARTICLE 10- EQUAL EMPLOYMENTOPPORTUNTTY 

I 0.1. During the performance of this Agreement, CONSULT ANT agrees not to discriminate 
against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, 
age, disability, or national origin. CONSUL TANT will take affirmative action to ensure 
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated fairly during employment, 
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. Such 
action shall include, but not be limited to, the following: employment, upgrading, 
demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates 
of pay or other fonns of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. 

-6-



CONSULTANT agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and 
applicants for employment, notices to be provided by RTC setting forth the provisions of 
this nondiscrimination clause. 

10.2. CONSUL TANT will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on 
behalf of CONSULTANT, state that well qualified applicants will receive consideration of 
employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, age, disability, or national origin. 

10.3. CONSULTANT will cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in all sub-agreements 
for any work covered by this Agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each 
sub-consultant. 

ARTICLE 11 - RESOLUT1ON OF CLAIMS AND DISPUTES 

11.1. NEGOTIATED RESOLUTION 

In the event that any dispute or claim arises under this Agreement, the parties shall timely 
cooperate and negotiate in good faith to resolve any such dispute or claim. Such 
cooperation shall include providing the other party with all information in order to properly 
evaluate the dispute or claim and making available the necessary personnel to discuss and 
make decisions relative to the dispute or claim. 

11 .2. MEDfA TJON 

If the parties have been unable to reach an informal negotiated resolution to the dispute or 
claim within thirty (30) days following submission in writing of the dispute or claim to the 
other party, or such longer period of time as the parties may agree to in writing, either party 
may then request, in writing, that the dispute or claim be submitted to mediation (the 
"Mediation Notice"). After the other party's receipt or deemed receipt of the Mediation 
Notice, the parties shall endeavor to agree upon a mutually acceptable mediator, but if the 
parties have been unable to agree upon a mediator within ten (10) days following receipt 
of the Mediation Notice, then each party shall select a mediator and those two selected 
mediators shall select the mediator. A mediator selected by the parties' designated 
mediators shall meet the qualification set forth in as provided in Rule 4 of Part C., "Nevada 
Mediation Rules" of the "Rules Governing Alternative Dispute Resolutions adopted by the 
Nevada Supreme Court." Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the 
mediator shall have complete discretion over the conduct of the mediation proceeding. 
Unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing, the mediation proceeding must take 
place within thirty (30) days following appointment of the mediator. The parties shall share 
the mediator's fee and any tiling fees equally. The mediation shall be held in Washoe 
County, Nevada, unless otherwise agreed to by the parties, in writing. Agreements reached 
in mediation shall be enforceable as settlement agreements in any court having jurisdiction 
thereof. 

-7-



11.3. LITIGATION 

In the event that the parties are unable to settle and/or resolve the dispute or claim as 
provided above, then either party may proceed with litigation in the Second Judicial 
District Court of the State of Nevada, County of Washoe. 

I I .4. CONTINUING CONTRACT PERFORMANCE 

During the pendency of any dispute or claim the parties shall proceed diligently with 
performance of this Agreement and such dispute or claim shall not constitute an excuse or 
defense for a patty's nonperformance or delay. 

ARTICLE 12 - AUTHORIZE D REPRESENTAT IV E 

12.1. RTC' s Director of Engineering has authority to act as RTC's representative with respect to 
this Agreement. RTC's Director of Engineering shall have authority to transmit 
instructions, receive information, interpret and define RTC policies, and make decisions 
with respect to materials, equipment elements, and systems. 

12.2. CONSULT ANT' s Vice President/Principal-in-Charge, Molly M. O'Brien, has authority to 
act as CONSUL TANT's representative with respect to this Agreement and has authority 
to sign binding agreement on behalf of CONSULTANT. 

ARTJCLE 13 - NOTICE 

13.1. Notices required under this Agreement shall be given as follows : 

RTC: Brian Stewart, P .E. 
Director of Engineering 
Regional Transportation Commission 
I 105 Terminal Way 
Post Office Box 30002 
Reno, Nevada 89520 
(775) 335-1880 

CONSULTANT: Molly M. O'Brien, P.E., PTOE, RSP 
Vice President/Principal-in-Charge 
Kimley-Horn and Associates, Inc. 
5370 Kietzke Lane, Suite 100 
Reno, NV 8951 I 
775-200-1979 

-8-



ART rCLE 14 • DELAYS TN PERFORMANCE 

14.1. TIME JS OF THE ESSEN E 

It is understood and agreed that all times stated and referred to herein are of the essence. 
The period for performance may be extended by R TC's Executive Director pursuant to the 
process specified herein. No extension of time shall be valid unless reduced to writing and 
signed by RTC's Executive Director. 

14.2. UNAVOIDABLE DELAYS 

If the timely completion of the services under this Agreement should be unavoidably 
delayed, RTC may extend the time for completion of this Agreement for not less than the 
number of days CONSULTANT was excusably delayed. A delay is unavoidable only if 
the delay is not reasonably expected to occur in connection with or during 
CONSULT ANT' s performance, is not caused directly or substantially by acts, omissions, 
negligence or mistakes of CONSULT ANT, is substantial and in fact causes 
CONSULTANT to miss specified completion dates, and cannot adequately be guarded 
against by contractual or legal means. 

14.3. NOTIFICATION OF DELAYS 

CONSULTANT shall notify RTC as soon as CONSULTANT has knowledge that an event 
has occurred or otherwise becomes aware that CONSULT ANT will be delayed in the 
completion of the work. Within ten (10) working days thereafter, CONSULTANT shall 
provide such notice to RTC, in writing, furnishing as much detail on the delay as possible 
and requesting an extension of time. 

14.4. REOUE T FOR EXTENSION 

Any request by CONSULT ANT for an extension of time to complete the work under this 
Agreement shall be made in writing to RTC. CONSULTANT shall supply to RTC 
documentation to substantiate and justify the additional time needed to complete the work 
and shall provide a revised schedule. RTC shall provide CONSULTANT with notice of 
its decision within a reasonable time after receipt of a request. 

ARTICLE 15 - GENERAL PROV ISIONS 

JS .I. SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 

RTC and CONSULTANT bind themselves and their successors and assigns lo the other 
party and to the successors and assigns of such party, with respect to the performance of 
all covenants of this Agreement. Except as set forth herein, neither RTC nor 
CONSULT ANT shall assign or transfer interest in this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other. Nothing herein shall be construed as creating a personal liability on 

-9-



the part of any officer or agent or any public body which may be a party hereto, nor shall 
it be construed as giving any rights or benefits hereunder to anyone other than RTC and 
CONSULT ANT. 

15.2. NON TRANSFERABILITY 

This Agreement is for CONSULTANT's professional services, and CONSULTANT's 
rights and obligations hereunder may not be assigned without the prior written consent of 
RTC. 

15.3. SEVERABILITY 

lf any part, term, article, or provision of this Agreement is, by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, held to be illegal, void, or unenforceable, or to be in conflict with any law of 
the State of Nevada, the validity of the remaining provisions or portions of this Agreement 
are not affected, and the rights and obligations of the parties shall be construed and enforced 
as if this Agreement did not contain the particular part, term; or provision held invalid. 

15.4. RELATIONSHIP OF PARTIES 

CONSULTANT is an independent contractor to RTC under this Agreement. Accordingly, 
CONSUL TANT is not entitled to participate in any retirement, deferred compensation, 
health insurance plans or other benefits RTC provides to its employees. CONSULTANT 
shall be free to contract to provide similar services for others while it is under contract to 
RTC, so long as said services· and advocacy are not in direct conflict, as determined by 
RTC, with services bein~ provided by CONSULTANT to RTC. 

15.5. WAIVER/BREACH 

Any waiver or breach of a provision in this Agreement shall not be deemed a waiver of any 
other provision in this Agreement and no waiver is valid unless in writing and executed by 
the waiving party. An extension of the time for performance of any obligation or act shall 
not be deemed an extension of time for the performance of any other obligation or act. This 
Agreement inures to the benefit of and is binding upon the parties to this Agreement and 
their respective heirs, successors and assigns. 

15.6. REGULATORY COMPLIANCE 

A. CONSULT ANT shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local 
government laws, regulations and ordinances. CONSULTANT shall be 
responsible for obtaining all necessary permits and licenses for performance of 
services under this Agreement. Upon request of RTC, CONSULTANT shall 
furnish RTC certificates of compliance with all such laws, orders and regulations. 

-10-



B. CONSULTANT represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered 

pursuant to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term 

is defined by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent 

CONSULT ANT does engage in such public work, CONSULT ANT shall be 

responsible for paying the prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the 

Nevada Revised Statutes. 

15.7. EXCLUSIVE AGREEMENT 

There are no verbal agreements, representations or understandings affecting this 
Agreement, and all negotiations, representations and undertakings are set fot1h herein with 
the understanding that this Agreement constitutes the entire understanding by and between 
the parties. 

15.8. AMENDMENTS 

No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be effective unless it is 
in writing and signed by both parties. 

15.9. CONTINUING OBLIGATION 

CONSULT ANT agrees that if, because of death or any other occurrence it becomes 
impossible for any principal or employee of CONSULT ANT to render the services 
required under this Agreement, neither CONSULT ANT nor the surviving principals shall 
be relieved of any obligation to render complete performance. However, in such event, 
RTC may terminate this Agreement if it considers the death or incapacity of such principal 
or employee to be a loss of such magnitude as to affect CONSUL TANT's ability to 
satisfactorily complete the performance of this Agreement. 

15.10. APPLICABLE LAW AND VENUE 

The provisions of this Agreement shall be governed and construed in accordance with the 
laws of the State ofNevada. The exclusive venue and court for all lawsuits concerning this 
Agreement shall be the Second Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, County of 
Washoe, and the parties hereto submit to the jurisdiction of that District Court. 

15.11. ATTORNEYS' FEES 

In the event of a dispute between the parties result in a proceeding in any Court of Nevada 
having jurisdiction, the prevailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs and a 
reasonable attorneys' fees. 

-1l-



15.12. CERTIFICATION REQUIRED BY N EVADA SENATE BI LL 27 (2017) 

CONSUL TANT expressly certifies and agrees, as a material part of this Agreement, that 
it is not currently engaged in a boycott of Israel. CONSULT ANT further agrees, as a 
material part of this Agreement, it will not engage in a boycott oflsrael for the duration of 
this Agreement. If, at any time during the formation or duration of this Agreement, 
CONSULT ANT is engaged or engages in a boycott oflsrael, it will constitute a material 
breach of this Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day and 
year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

By: ____ ___ _ _____ _ 

Dale Ferguson, RTC Chief Counsel 

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY 

By: _ _ ___________ _ 

Lee G. Gibson, AICP, Executive Director 

KTMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, Inc. 

By: ~~ fl!~ 
Molly M. O'Brien, P.E., PTOE, RSP 
Vice President/Principal-in Charge 

-12-



Exhibit A 

Scope of Services 



EXHIBIT A 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 
TE SPOT 9- PACKAGE 2 PROJECT 

This scope of services includes design and construction support of the Traffic Engineering (TE) 
Spot 9 - Package 2 Project. The projects lies within Reno, and Washoe County. Some sites are 
within NDOT jurisdiction as indicated in the table below. Procurement and installation of actual 
infrastructure will be provided by the selected contractor after the bid has been awarded for the 
bidding documents provided by the CONSULTANT. 

The extent of design work includes the improvement objectives at the following locations: 

Main Street Side Street Obiective 
2nd St Ralston St New Traffic Cabinet UoJrrade 
4th St Arlington Ave New Traffic Cabinet Uo2.rade 
41h St Ralston St New Traffic Cabinet Up2.rade 
61h St Valley Rd New Traffic Cabinet Upgrade 
7th St Stoker Ave New Traffic Cabinet Upgrade 

Center St 1s1 St New Traffic Cabinet Upgrade ' 
Center St Commercial Row New Traffic Cabinet Upgrade 

Kuenzli St Locust St New Traffic Cabinet Upgrade 
Mill St Lake St New Traffic Cabinet Uoro-ade 

Mt Rose St Arlington Ave New Traffic Cabinet Uoerade 
Sierra St I SI St New Traffic Cabinet Uo!!:rade 
Sierra St 2nd St New Traffic Cabinet Upgrade 

Virginia St Couit St New Traffic Cabinet Uo2:rade 
Mill St Rock Blvd New Traffic Cabinet Upgrade/ New Gridsmart 

CCTV /Pedestrian Pushbuttons/Uninterrupted Power System 
SR28** Northwood New Gridsmart CCTV 
SR 28** Country Club New Gridsma,t CCTV 
SR28** Village Blvd New Gridsmart CCTV 

Tenninal Way PlumbLn New Gridsmart CCTV 
4th St* Mesa Park 

Rd/Woodland 
Ave 

Intersection Control Evaluation Study including signal 
warrant analysis for intersection improvement 

Rock Blvd Edison Way New traffic signal 

*indicates that location is within NDOT right of way 
**indicates that location is within NDOT right or way and will require an encroachment 
permit 

Work will necessitate one (I) NDOT Encroachment Permit for SR 28 CCTV installations. 



A. Preliminary and General Items 

1. Project Management: Coordination with RTC project manager and staff 
will be ongoing throughout the project. Project management and 
coordination meetings or conference calls will be held with the RTC and 
other parties as appropriate. CONSULT ANT will coordinate kick-off 
meeting and hold monthly progress meetings during course of project. 

2. Coordination with Utilities and appropriate agencies will be ongoing 
throughout the project. Coordination with property owners will also be done 
throughout this project to keep owners apprised of the project and access to 
their personal sites. 

3. Coordination meetings with the City of Reno & Washoe County. 
CONSULT ANT will conduct up to three (3) in-person one-on-one agency 
meetings in order to confirm existing conditions, needs, and available 
opportunities to complete project design objectives. The RTC Project 
Manager will determine appropriate contact personnel at each agency to be 
met with. Meeting minutes will be developed and provided as a summary 
of discussions. 

4. No environmental services are anticipated or included in this project. 

B. Data Collection li,lDd Analysis for Design 

1. Investigate Existing Conditions and Field Inventory: 
a. CONSULTANT will obtain and review available as-built plans from 

NDOT, and City of Reno for project locations. NDOT as-built plans will 
also be used to establish a centerline on NDOT facilities for the 
encroachment permit plan set. 

b. CONSULTANT will conduct a field review with City of Reno to verify 
existing conduit routing and pull box locations within the project area. 

c. There will be no conduit proofing services completed during the 
design process of existing conduit. These services will be performed 
during construction by the contractor. This design scope of services 
assumes that a clear path is provided through the existing conduit to 
connect the new interconnect cables and includes adequate bends, pull 
boxes, and clearance. 

d. CONSULT ANT will evaluate existing traffic signal equipment at 
locations identified herein. 

e. CONSULTANT will evaluate ramps at new signal location only. All 
other locations, CONSULT ANT will not evaluate existing pedestrian 
ramps for general compliance with current ADA standards. If the ramps 

2 



are in conflict with proposed improvements evaluation oframps will be 
considered an additional service. 

2. Aerial Mapping: Aerial photography for the project will be Washoe County 
aerials provided by the Washoe County GIS Department. The aerials from 
Washoe County are controlled by Washoe County Modified State Plane 
Coordinates. The project will be controlled off this coordinate system. 

3. CONSULTANT will evaluate right of way needs based on County GlS data 
and where new equipment is to be installed. 

4. Boundary Survey: Survey boundary services will only be done at locations that 
new signal infrastructure is found to be outside of projecl right of way. 
Easement legal descriptions will be created by a Professional Land Surveyor 
and easement documents and signatures for easements will be performed by the 
RTC. The locations for additional easements ·are not known at th is time. 
Services will be provided on an "each" easement required basis. This project 
assumes five (5) traffic signal easements. 

5. Supplemental Design Survey (Optional): Supplemental Survey is not 
anticipated lo be required for this project. Where required it will be considered 
an additional service. 

6. Subsurface Utilities: CONSULTANT will investigate and locate subsurface 
utilities within the rnadway right-of-way where new signal poles are designed 
to be placed, in accorcfance with the American Society of Civil Engineers 
Standard guideline for the Collection and Depiction of Existing Subsurface 
Uti lity Data, Q~1ality Leyel C. Deliverables will include: A pot hole at six (6) 
pole locations. 

7. tilitY, coordination : Based on field investigation, CONSULTANT will provide 
RTC a list of utility company whose utilities are likely to be within the project 
limits or reasonably affected by the project. RTC will issue the initial 
notification to the utility agencies on the list and CONSULTANT will 
coordinate with the utility agencies for upcoming work facility relocation and 
new installation, and to insure utiliti~s likely affected by the project are drawn 
on the plans, evaluate potential conflicts through field investigation, investigate 
conflict resolution strategies. 

8. Traffic Signal Basis of Design: Existing traffic signal/ ITS equipment shall be 
depicted in a "greyed out" format using ' new' and "existing" stipple patterns 
with new installations shown superimposed unless important details are 
obscured. It is assumed that locations of improvements will not require 
communication upgrades to the signal interconnect system. 

9. New cabinet upgrade: New cabinets will be placed at a location close as 
possible to the existing cabinet. In most cases, the signal cables will not need to 

3 



be re-pulled to accommodate the new distance to the cabinet or upgrade the 
signal cables to the latest standard. The design assumes that 5 of the 19 new 
cabinets will require rewiring of signal (conduit and cable schedules.) The 
design does not anticipate design required for replacement of crushed conduit. 
This aspect of design will be addressed during the Engineering During 
Construction Service. 

I 0. Gridsmart Cameras are anticipated to be located on the nearest signal pole 
cabinet and connected with a CA T6 cable (max distance is 300 feet) to the 
signal interconnect switch. 

11. Uninterruptable power supply will be designed to be in a separate cabinet and 
powered by a separate NV Energy Power service point. It is anticipated that 
coordination with NV Energy will take the length of the design. 

12. Intersection Control Evaluations (ICE): The CONSULTANT will prepare an 
objective ~nalysis of concept level, feasible intersection control alternatives at 
the intersections of 4th Street (SR 647) and Mesa Park Road/Woodland Avenue. 
This is a unique intersection with its offset side roads and very steep grades. 
NDOT coordination is not anticipated as part of this task at this time. 

The work described in this Task will evaluate intersection operations, develop 
concept intersection control alternatives, prepare concept level drawings, 
prepare high-level opinion of probable costs, establish and quantify intersection 
control performance measures, calculate a life-cycle benefit-cost, and prepare a 
technical memorandum document summarizing the intersection control 
evaluation. 

The CONSULTANT will complete: 
Traffic Data Collection: CONSULTANT shall collect traffic operation 
information to inform the alternative development process of traffic 
constraints. This traffic information will also be used for each 
intersection alternative evaluation. Traffic counts will not be collected 
on holiday, weekends, or during abnonnal weather conditions. Peak 
hour intersection vehicle turning movement counts, including 
classification of vehicle, motorcycle or bus, and bi-directional bicycle 
and pedestrian counts will be collected at the intersection location. 
Traffic counts will be conducted on a Tuesday, Wednesday, or Thursday 
during the peak commute hours of7:00 AM-9:00 AM and from 4:00 
PM - 6:00 PM. 72 hours of approach volumes will also be collected 
along each of the intersection approaches (4 approaches). This task also 
includes a site visit to document operations. 

a. Traffic Operation Analysis. Analysis will consider weekday, AM and 
PM peak-hour volume conditions at the project intersection. Traffic 

4 



operations will be evaluated for signal control and roundabout control 
improvements. 

b. Design year traffic scenarios evaluated in the traffic operations include 
the existing traffic count data and one future year condition based on 
forecast intersection volumes for a horizon year general plan build out. 
One interim year condition may be evaluated based on linear 
interpolation. 

c. A MUTCD signal warrant analysis will be performed as part of the ICE. 

d. For each design year traffic scenario, signal control analyses will be 
conducted with Synchro® using Highway Capacity Manual (HCM) 
methodologies as defined by the City at the start of the project. 
Roundabout control evaluations will be performed using the Sidra® 8 
software and the HCM 6 capacity model. The Sidra Standard capacity 
model may be used by CONSUL TANT to check the sensitivity of the 
roundabout operations. 

e. CONSULT ANT will also complete the following as part of this task: 
1. Identify the lane configurations (number of turn and through 

lanes), geometrics (length of turn bays, taper/transition length, 
etc.), and lane storage length requirements. Pedestrian and 
bicycle volumes (if known) will be included in the analysis. 

ii. Perform peak-hour intersection Level of Service (LOS) and 
queuing analysis for signal control and roundabout control for 
existing traffic and future year traffic conditions (Weekday AM 
and PM peak-hours only). Report the peak hour average control 
delay, LOS, and 95th percentile queue length for each approach 
by movement. Queue estimates will be examined relative to 
existing storage lengths and left turn storage requirements. 

iii. Develop Concept Layouts: Establish an approximated footprint 
of the study intersection including the number of approach, 
departure, turn, and circulatory lanes. Conceptual layouts will be 
prepared for proposed control types. Layouts will be developed 
in CADD using aerial images and available topographic 
mapping. Concept layouts will depict intersection features and 
geometric design elements based on the traffic operations 
analysis. The layout will include colored pavement markings 
consistent with the MUTCD, color coded areas identifying 
landscape opportunities, and the potential for ve1tical 
obstructions based on estimated sight lines. This scope assumes 
development of one draft concept layout for the intersection 
control alternative as well as a planning level estimate of the 
Opinion of Probable Cost. After review by the RTC, one round 

5 



of adjustments to the layout are included. This subtask included 
one meeting with the RTC review the concepts. Key features 
evaluated during this phase typically include: 

I. Size and location of required intersection control relative 
to right-of-way and geometric constraints. 

2. Design speed, design vehicle, and sight line 
considerations (design check calculations wil1 not be 
conducted at this level of design). 

3. Local access/ access control considerations. 
4. Alignment of approaches and departures. 
5. Number of approach, departure, tum, and circulatory 

lanes. 
6. Channelization of turning movements. 
7. Travel paths for bicyclists and pedestrians. 
8. Estimated limits of intersection based on intersection 

control type geometric features and influence areas. 
9. Underground utilities as provided in other tasks. 
10. Other constraints identified by the RTC will be provided 

to CONSULT ANT prior to development of the project 
concepts. 

f. Concept Review and Revisions: The CONSULT ANT will meet once 
with the RTC to review the draft concepts and make a single round of 
revisions before commencing evaluations. 

g. Prepare Evaluations: This subtask includes the objective evaluation and 
comparison of implementing each of the identified intersection control 
alternatives compared to each other. The purpose of this evaluation is 
to provide an objective analysis that allows the RTC and City to make 
an investment decision based on traffic control and operations strategy 
for the design life of the intersection. The following performance 
measures will be calculated for the design-life life-cycle and adjusted to 
a net present value: 

i. Safety (Crash Prediction Evaluation using Interactive 
Highway Safety Design Model - JHSDM) 

ii. Delay (based on average peak hour delay) 
111 . Operations and Maintenance 
iv. Initial Capital Costs 

h. The performance measures will be used to calculate a Benefit-Cost 
Ratio for each of the proposed improvements compared to the existing 
intersection (no project). Qualitative performance measures will also be 
evaluated and summarized in the analysis. These measures include 
active transportation links, transit service, corridor and regional context. 

i. Prepare a Draft ICE Memo for RTC review summarizing the results. 
The memo will include concept layouts for each of the traffic control 

6 



alternatives, as well as a summary of the ICE performance measures and 
Benefit-Cost analysis. After staff review, a Final memo will be 
prepared. 

C. 60% Design Phase 

1. Prepare 60% Plans and Specifications 

a. Plans and Specifications. Prepare preliminary Plans, an outline of 
Technical Specifications, and an OPC suitable for RTC and Local 
Government review. 

Project Plans will include: 
i. Cover, 

ii. General Notes 
iii. Sheet Index 
iv. Traffic signal details (5) 
v. Traffic Signal Plan sheet ( I 9) 

vi. Conduit schedules and summaries (8) 

2. CONSULTANT will perform a project walk through to evaluate that every 
aspect of the project scope has been captured. 

3. A quality control review of the plans, contract documents and technical 
specifications will be performed by the CONSULTANT which will focus on 
technical aspects of the plans and specifications and will review that all items 
of work are adequately covered. The quality control reviewer will check, initial, 
and date each plan sheet as appropriate. 

4. CONSULTANT will submit 60% Plans to RTC and to utility agencies. 

D. 90% Design J.>hase 

1. Prepare 90% Plans and Specifications 

a. CONSUL TANT shall incorporate review comments from R TC and 
City of Reno into the 90% design process 

b. Plan updates and further development. Prepare preliminary Plans, 
and an OPC suitable for R TC and Local Government review. 

7 



Project Plans will include: 
i. Cover 

ii. General Notes 
iii. Sheet Index 
iv. Traffic signal details (I 0) 
v. Traffic Signal Plan sheet (19) 

vi. Conduit schedules and summaries (8) 

c. Project Specifications: CONSUTLANT will prepare Contract 
Documents and Technical Specifications which will reference the 
latest edition of Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction (Orange Book) for standard construction items. 

2. A quality control review of the plans, contract documents and technical 
specifications will be performed by the CONSULTANT which will focus on 
technical aspects of the plans and specifications and will review that all items 
of work are adequately covered. The quality control reviewer will check, initial, 
and date each plan sheet as appropriate. 

3. CONSULTANT will perform a project walk through to evaluate that every 
aspect of the project scope has been captured. 

4. CONSULT ANT will submit 90% Plans to RTC and to utility agencies. A mylar 
cover sheet will be produced at this submittal for routing to the agencies for 
project bidding. 

5. Nevada Department of Transportation Encroachment Permit. CONSULT ANT 
will prepare and process encroachment permit packages through the NDOT 
District 2. One permit will be processed as part of the scope of this work for 
SR 28. The CONSULTANT will submit the completed application and submit 
the color coded plans at the 90% submittal. One set of review comments will 
be processed by the CONSULT ANT for the permit. The final submittal of 
permit will be at the 100% submittal. The R TC will be the applicant on the 
permit and will provide all applicant fees, signatures and submittal 
documentation needed by the CONSULTANT to process the permit. Permit 
Terms and Conditions will be incorporated into the project specifications. 

E. Final Design 

1. CONSULTANT shall incorporate review comments from RTC and City of 
Reno into Final Construction Document process. 

2. Prepare Final Plans and Specifications: Prepare Final Construction Plans, 
Contract Documents and Technical Specifications suitable for construction bid 
advertisement for the approved alignment in accordance with R TC standards 

8 



and requirements. RTC will provide the boilerplate via e-mail in MS Word 
format. 

3. A quality control review of the plans, contract documents and technical 
specifications will be performed by the CONSULTANT which will focus on 
technical aspects of the plans and specifications and will review that all items 
of work are adequately covered. The quality control reviewer will check initial , 
and date each plan sheet as appropriate. The RTC Local Entity and Quality 
Control review comments will be incorporated inlo the final Plans and 
Specifications. 

4. The final construction plans will be on 11" x 17" size sheets and will show all 
elements of the project construction. The final plans and specifications will be 
signed and sealed by a Nevada Registered Professional Civil Engineer in 
responsible charge of preparation. Plans and specifications will be submitted 
to the RTC, City of Reno, utility agencies and 'Other affected parties for review 
at the 60%, 90%, and final stages of completion per the following: 

a. 60% & 90% Plans-One digital 11 "x 17" setto the RTC, and one digital 
11 "xl 7" set to each utility agencies and other affected parties. 

b. 90% Specifications-One digital set to RTC and City of Reno. 
c. 90% Plans - One digital plan set that are 11 "x 17", One 24"x36" mylar 

cover sheet to RTC. 
d. Final Working Plan Set - one signed and sealed one PDF 11 "x 17" set 

each to the RTC. 
e. Final Working Specification Document- One set each to RTC and City 

of Reno, one copy in MS Word format and one signed and sealed PDF 
of the Contract Documents and Technical Specifications to RTC. 

F. Design Contingency 

This is a contingency for miscellaneous increases within the scope of this 
contract. CONSULTANT shall provide a letter detailing the need scope, and 
not-to-exceed budget for any proposed work. Work under this task shall 
proceed only with the RTC Project Manager's written approval. An 8% 
contingency was added to the design tasks only. 

G. Bidding Services 

a. Plan Set and Specification Distribution. CONSULT ANT will 
provide the RTC with final plans and specifications, including 
addenda, in Portable Document Fom,at (PDF), for use in the Ebid 
system. 

9 



b. Pre-bid Meeting: CONSULTANT will be available during the 
bidding process to answer technical questions and will hold the pre
bid meeting. All questions and responses will be documented and 
provided to RTC. CONSULT ANT will prepare and provide PDF 
addenda, if required. All questions regarding legal aspects of the 
contract documents will be referred directly to RTC. 
CONSUL TANT will prepare and provide a PDF summary of the 
pre-bid meeting, as directed by the RTC. 

c. Bid Opening: CONSULT ANT will attend the bid opening and 
review the bids received for irregularities and provide a 
recommendation for award. CONSULTANT will tabulate bid 
results into a MS Excel spreadsheet and check multiplication and 
addition of bid items. 

H. Construction Phase Services or Engineering During Construction 
The following tasks summarize the rnajor elements of Construction Support 
Services anticipated with this project. No construction survey is anticipated to 
be included in Construction Support Services. 

I. Contract Administration . 

a. Provide contract administration services as follows: 

i. Pre-Construction Conference: CONSULTANT will attend a 
Pre-Construction Conference prior to commencement of Work 
at the Site. 

ii. Visits to Site and Observation of Construction: CONSULTANT 
will provide on-site construction observation services during the 
construction phase. CONSULTANT will make visits at intervals 
as directed by RTC in order to observe the progress of the Work, 
generally expected to be 20 hours per week up to J 6 weeks (80 
workings days). Such v1s1ts and observations by 
CONSULT ANT are not intended to be exhaustive or to extend 
to every aspect of Contractor's work in progress. Observations 
are to be limited to spot checking, selective measurement, and 
similar methods of general observation of the Work based on 
CONSULTANT's exercise of professional judgment. Based on 
information obtained during such visits and such observations, 
CONSULT ANT will evaluate whether Contractor's work is 
generally proceeding in accordance with the Contract 
Documents, and CONSULTANT will keep RTC informed of 
the general progress of the Work. CONSULT ANT shall also 

10 



provide recommendations to RTC for any construction changes 
necessitated by field conditions. 

iii. The purpose of CONSULT ANT' s site visits will be to enable 
CONSULT ANT to better carry out the duties and 
responsibilities specifically assigned in this Agreement to 
CONSULT ANT, and to provide R TC a greater degree of 
confidence that the completed Work will conform in general to 
the Contract Documents. CONSULT ANT shall not, during such 
visits or as a result of such observations of Contractor's work in 
progress, supervise, direct, or have control over Contractor's 
work, nor shall CONSULT ANT have authority over or 
responsibility for the means, methods, techniques, equipment 
choice and usage, sequences, schedules, or procedures of 
construction selected by Contractor, for safety precautions and 
programs incident to Contractor's work, nor for any failure of 
Contractor to comply with laws and regulations applicable to 
Contractor's furnishing and performing the Work. Accordingly, 
CONSULTANT neither guarantees the performance of any 
Contractor nor assumes responsibility for any Contractor's 
failure to furnish and perform its work in accordance with the 
Contract Documents. 

iv. Review and provide recommendations on contractor's traffic 
control plans. 

v. CONSULTANT will review and provide feedback to the RTC 
on traffic control plans submitted to RTC for approval. 

vi. Review and provide recommendations on contractor's 
construction schedule and work progress CONSULTANT will 
review and provide feedback to the RTC on the construction 
schedule and work progress submitted to the RTC for approval. 

vii. Shop Drawings and Samples: CONSULTANT will review and 
approve or take other appropriate action in respect to Shop 
Drawings and Samples and other data which Contractor is 
required to submit, but only for conformance with the 
information given in the Contract Documents. Such review and 
approvals or other action will not extend to means, methods, 
techniques, equipment choice and usage, sequences, schedules, 
or procedures of construction or to related safety precautions and 
programs. 

viii. Substitutes and "or-equal": Evaluate and determine the 
acceptability of substitute or "or-equal" materials and equipment 
proposed by Contractor in accordance with the Contract 

11 



Documents, but subject to the provisions of applicable standards 
of state or local government entities. 

ix. Recommendations with Respect to Defective Work. 
CONSULTANT will recommend to RTC that Contractor's work 
be disapproved and rejected while it is in progress if, on the basis 
of such observations, CONSULT ANT believes that such work 
will not produce a completed Project that conforms generally to 
Contract Documents. 

x. Clarifications and Interpretations: CONSULT ANT will respond 
to reasonable and appropriate Contractor requests for 
information and issue necessary clarifications and 
interpretations of the Contract Documents to RTC as appropriate 
to the orderly completion of Contractor's work. Any orders 
authorizing variations from the Contract Documents will be 
made byRTC. 

xt. Disagreements between RTC and Contractor: CONSULT ANT 
will, if requested by RTC, render written decision on all claims 
of RTC and Contractor relating to the acceptability of 
Contractor's work or the interpretation of the requirements of the 
Contract Documents pertaining to the progress of Contractor's 
work. In rendering such decisions, CONSUL TANT shall be fair 
and not show partiality to R TC or Contractor and shall not be 
liable in connection with any decision rendered in good faith in 
such capacity. 

xii. Applications for Payment: Based on its observations and on 
review of applications for payment and accompanying 
supporting documentation, CONSULTANT will determine the 
amounts that CONSULT ANT recommends Contractor be paid. 
Such recommendations of payment will be in writing and will 
constitute CONSULTANT's representation to RTC, based on 
such observations and review, that, to the best of 
CONSULT ANT' s knowledge, information and belief, 
Contractor's work has progressed to the point indicated and that 
such work-in-progress is generally in accordance with the 
Contract Documents subject to any qualifications stated in the 
recommendation. In the case of unit price work, 
CONSULTANT's recommendations of payment will include 
determinations of quantities and classifications of Contractor's 
work, based on observations and measurements of quantities 
provided with pay requests. 

xiii. By recommending any payment, CONSULT ANT shall not 
thereby be deemed to have represented that its observations to 

12 



check Contractor's work have been exhaustive, extended to 
every aspect of Contractor's work in progress, or involved 
detailed inspections of the Work beyond the responsibilities 
specifically assigned to CONSULT ANT in this Agreement. It 
will also not impose responsibility on CONSULTANT to make 
any examination to ascertain how or for what purposes 
Contractor has used the moneys paid on account of the Contract 
Price, nor to determine that title to any portion of the work in 
progress, materials, or equipment has passed to RTC free and 
clear of any liens, claims, security interests, or encumbrances, 
nor that there may not be other matters at issue between RTC 
and Contractor that might affect the amount that should be paid. 

xiv. Substantial Completion: CONSULTANT will, promptly after 
notice from Contractor that it c0nsiders the entire Work ready 
for its intended use, in company with R TC and Contractor, 
conduct a site visit to determine if the Work is substantially 
complete. Work will be considered substantially complete 
following satisfactory completion of all items with the exception 
of those identified on a final punch list. If after considering any 
objections of . RTC, CONSULTANT considers the Work 
substantially complete, CONSULTANT will notify RTC and 
Contractor. 

xv. Final Notice of Acceptability of the Work: CONSULTANT will 
conduct a final'site visit to determine if the completed Work of 
Contractor is generally in accordance with the Contract 
Documents and the final punch list so that CONSULT ANT may 
recommend, in writing, final payment to Contractor. 
Accompanying the recommendation for final payment, 
CONSULTANT shall also provide a notice that the Work is 
generally in accordance with the Contract Documents to the best 
of CONSULT ANT's knowledge, information, and belief based 
on the extent of its services and based upon information 
provided to CONSULTANT upon which it is entitled to rely. 

xvi. Inspections and Tests: CONSULT A NT may require special 
inspections or tests of Contractor's work as CONSULT ANT 
deems appropriate and as further defined in the scope of services 
below, and will receive and review certificates of inspections 
from Subconsultants within CONSULTANT's area of 
responsibility or of tests and approvals required by laws and 
regulations or the Contract Documents. CONSULT ANT's 
review of such certificates will be for the purpose of determining 
that the results certified indicate compliance with the Contract 
Documents and will not constitute an independent evaluation 
that the content or procedures of such inspections, tests, or 

13 



approvals comply with the requirements of the Contract 
Documents. CONSUL TANT shall be entitled to rely on the 
results of such tests and the facts being certified. 

xvii. Change Orders: CONSULTANT may recommend Change 
Orders to R TC, and will review and make recommendations 
related to reasonable and appropriate Change Orders submitted 
or proposed by the Contractor. 

xviii. Limitation of Responsibilities: CONSULTANT shall not be 
responsible for the acts or omissions of any Contractor, or of any 
of their subcontractors, suppliers, or of any other individual or 
entity performing or furnishing the Work. CONSULTANT 
shall not have the authority or responsibility to stop the work of 
any Contractor. 

2. Inspection 

a. "Inspection services" means the observation of construction process for 
the purpose of determining . that the Contractor is in substantial 
compliance with the plans and specifications, and reporting to the RTC 
any observed deficiencies. The following tasks summarize the major 
elements oflnspection anticipated with this project. 

b. Construction of the project that requires inspection is anticipated at 75 
working days. A full-time (8 hours per day) primary inspector will be 
on site during working days that include trenching, pouring concrete, 
and paving (15 working days anticipated). A part-time (3 hours per day) 
primary inspector will be on site during all other working days (60 
working days anticipated). A full-time supplemental technician will be 
provided at 8 hours per day (4 working days anticipated) and will 
perform asphalt sampling and density testing during paving operations. 
The primary inspector will be responsible for the following items: 

i. Attend the preconstruction conference. 

11. Monitor the work performed by the Contractor to ascertain 
whether the work is in substantial accordance with the plans and 
specifications. 

iii. Assist in problem resolution with the RTC, contractor personnel, 
utility agencies, the public and others. 

iv. Prepare daily inspection reports, submitted weekly to RTC and 
copied to the appropriate government jurisdiction(s). The daily 
inspection will contain materials delivered to the site, excavation 
and earthwork, preparation of sub grades, placement of 

14 



aggregate base material, asphaltic concrete, Portland cement 
concrete, the forming, placement or erection of structures, and 
review of contractor daily progress logs. 

v. Provide materials quantity reports and assist in reviewing and 
analyzing contractor's monthly progress payments. 

vi. Provide verification of the distribution of public relation notices 
required to be delivered by the Contractor. 

vii. Assist in preparation of the Punch List. 

viii. Maintain a field blueline set of drawings (bond copy) to 
incorporate contractor record drawing mark-ups. 

3. Materials Testing 

a. Upon receiving authorization from the R TC, the CONSULT ANT will 
engage a Subconsultant to perform the Materials Testing services. The 
following tasks summarize the major elements of testing anticipated 
with this project. 

b. Provide Material Testing for compliance with the specifications per the 
latest edition of the Standard Specifications for Public Works 
Construction (Orange Book) testing requirements. Materials to be tested 
will include plantmix bituminous pavement, aggregate base, concrete 
cylinder samples, and trenching backfill material. Test reports, 
accompanied with CONSULTANT's recommendation regarding 
acceptance/mitigation of materials, shall be submitted promptly to the 
RTC and CC'd to appropriate governmental jurisdiction(s). 

4. As-Built Information 

a. Record Drawings. Provide as-built record drawings for the completed 
project. A single file PDF format (11" x 17" at 300 dpi), will be 
provided to RTC for its files and distribution. The PDF file shall include 

15 



all plan sheets in one file with index/bookmark for easy access to 
different sheets or sections of the plan set. 

b. The final record drawings must be identified, dated, and signed as the 
record drawings and must also contain the engineer's stamp and 
signature. The Consultant may either: 

i. Provide the final revisions on the· original engineer
stamped/signed reproducible drawings, which will then also be 
identified as the record drawings, or 

ii. Provide new engineer-stamped/signed reproducible drawings 
identified as the record drawings. 

c. The Record Drawings shall include a scan of the original title sheet 
(including the appropriate signatures by RTC, local government signed 
and stamped by the CONSULTANT) and identified as record drawings. 

16 



Rxhibit B 

Compensation 



Exhibit "B" 

Exhibit B - Schedule of Services 
TE SPOT 9 - PACKAGE 2 PROJECT 

TASK DESCRIPTION TASK TOTALS 

A PRELIMINARY AND GENERAL ITEMS $18,650.00 

B DATA COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS $76,863.00 

C 60% DESIGN PHASE $32,654.00 

D 90% DESIGN PHASE $29,948.00 . 
E FINAL DESIGN PHASE $21,249.00 

F DESIGN CONTINGENCY (8% of Design) $14,341.12 

G BIDDING SERVICES $4,345.00 

H ENGINEERING DURING CONSTRUCTION $75,768.00 

Total Basic Services Fee $273,718.12 

' 7. ---

Contract No. : Page 1 of4 



Exhibit "B" 

Exhibit B - Schedule of Services 

TE SPOT 9 - PACKAGE 2 PROJECT 
P1epared by Kimley-Horn MSM 8/15/2019 vs 

TASK DESCRIPTION 
Hours 

Subtotal 
Direct 

Expenses 
Expense 

Description 
Lump Sum 

Task Amounts 

Prlncloal 
Project 

Manaoer 
Senior 
Prof. Prof. 

Senior 
Technical 
Suonort Ana11,,rt Accountlno 

Technical 
Sunnt1rt Admin. 

$22.S $205 $188 $165 $147 $122 $116 S112 $100 

A PRELIMINARY AND GENERAL ITEMS 
0 so.oo 

Proiect Managemenl (1 2 monlhs) 1 ;!4 12 37 S!i,345.00 
Kickoff M eelina 1 4 5 SS00.00 KlckolfTravt!l $1,545.00 
Monlhly Progress calls 12 12 24 $3,924.00 
Coordinallon Meetings (3) 6 8 14 $2,206.00 

lnvolclno. Prooress Reports, Work Plannlno 12 18 30 $4,530.00 
0 SO.OD 
0 SO.OD 
0 $0.00 

Subtotal Hours 2 511 0 0 0 20 18 0 12 110 
Sublotal Fe<! $450.00 S11.B9o.o·o SO.OD $0.llll $0.00 $2,440.00 $2 070.00 $0.00 S1.200.00 S500.00 .$18,550.00 

B DATA COLLECTION AND ANALYSIS 

As.bull! oclleetJon and n!view 10 10 20 $2,340.00 
Field Review wilh Reno " 2S 25 54 S735.00 T ravel S8,730.00 
Evaluale ~sling sJgnal equ1pm<>nl 3 10 10 23 $3,434.00 
New sional ramo e-.alualion 2. 

- 2 4 $574.00 
Aelial mapplno 4 , " 8 $1,076.00 
Centerline developrnenl 4 4 8 $1,036.00 
ROW evalua1lan 1 4 4 9 S1.4SUO 
Boundary Suivev 1 4 5 10 S6.00D.OO 5 leqal desc. $6,600.00 
Ulilitv mapoinq JO 30 60 $6,000.00 6Potholas sn:no.oo 
utility Coordination 10 15 25 $3,150,00 
Sii;inal Buis or Oeslnn 6 .5' 10 $1,650.00 
New Cabin.,, Concepts 1 2 3 6 $901 .00 
Grid sm811 due diflgence 1 2 3 6 $1 ,076.00 
UPS due clrflnence and NVE Coordination 5 5 1 $1,887.00 
ICE Control Evlauation 

..., $0.00 
Coordination wilh NOOT to obtain dala 2 2 5330.00 
Sile Visil 2 2 S244.00 
Traffic Oala colledlon 172 Hour counlsJ 2 6 a $2.388.00 Traffic Counts S3,450.00 
Traffic operalions analysis for 2 allemaliv6 
and existing 4 s 9 $1,270.00 
Operallcns A= QA/QC 1 1 2 S430.00 
Siana! Warcanl Analvsls 1 ..: ~ 13 $1,861.00 
SaCety Aoalaysls for 2 alterria!iv~ and 
l!KISl!ng , 2 5 8 $1,145.00 
Safetv Anatvsis OAIQC 1 5226.00 
Develoo 2 Conceotyal layouts 12 2 15 20 49 $7,481.00 
Concept Meeting and ReV!sions 10 3 8 12 33 $5185.00 
Determine ROW Needs 1 1 5122.00 
Determine Ulilily Confflcts 1 1 S122.00 
Access Manaoement and MitiQation 1 1 2 S327.00 
Structures or Retaining Wall Requireme~ts 1 1 S205.00 
Environmental Cleara11Ce Requirerne.nl_s 1 1 2 S393,00 

Contract No. Page 2 of 4 



Exhibit "B" 

TASK DESCRIPTION 

Oolnlon of Probable Cost 
Dele(!Tllne l,Jfe-Cvcte Costs 
·calculate BenefiUCosl 
Calculate Sa1etv Pertormam:e Benefif/Cos1 
Develop lCE Summary Table 
Conceptual Layout and Benfrt/Cost QA/QC 
Develop ICE Document 
QAIOC 
Address Internal QA/QC Comments 
Conference Call wllh RTC 
Address RTC Commenls 
Subtotal Hours 
Subtotal Fee 

Senior 
Project Senior Technical Technical 

Princioal Manaqer Prof. Prof. Support Analyst Accounting Support 
4 ,, 

1 4 
1 1 2 

1 
1 

3 
2 6 5 
1 

1 
1 1 

1 1 4 
3. 44 19 85 80 140 0 59 

$675.00 $9,020.00 S3.572.00 S14,025.00 $11.760.00 $17.080.00 SO.OD S6.608.00 

Hours Direct 
Subtotal Expenses 

Admin. 
4 
6 
4 
1 
1 
3 

13 
1 
1 
2 
6 

0 418 
SO.OU $14,123.00 

Expense 
Description 

Lump Sum 
Task Amounts 

S488.00 
$858.00 
$614.00 
$165.00 
$165.00 
5615.00 

s2.010.00 
$205.00 
$165.00 
S370.00 
$841 .00 

$76,863.00 

C 60¾ DESIGN PHASE ... 

Cover and General Noles 
Sheet Index 
T raffle sigr,al details (5\ 
TralfiCsiAnal plan sheets (19) 
Condu" Scf,edules and summanes (81 
Specffication oumne 
OPC 
Ffelcj Review 
Ouafrtv Control Review 
Submit 60% RTC and utilities 
Subtotal Hauss 
Subtotal Fee 

1 1 1 
1 2 

10 10 10 
6 10 30 30 40 
4 10 10 10 

1 2 
1 3 3 

10 10 

1 2 5 3 3 
2 2 

1 5 15 31 57 69 0 56 

$225.00 S1.026.00 $2,820.00 $5.115.00 SS,379.00 58,418.00 SO.OD $6,272.00 

3 
3 

30 
116 
34 

3 
7 

20 
14 

4 8 
4 238 

S40D.DO SD.00 

$381.00 
S346.00 

S3.810.00 
S15,328.00 

S5.092.00 
S449.00 
$942,00 

S2.870.0D 
$2,382.00 
$1 ,054.00 

$32.654.00 

D 90% DESIGN PHASE 

Cover and l:ieneral Noles 
Sheet Index 
Traffics.lanai lle!ails 1101 
TrafflcslgriaJ plan sheets (19l 
Conduit Schedules and summaries (Bl 
Prepare specifications 
OPC 
ReldRelliew 
Quality Control Review 
Subm~ 90% RTC and utilities 
NDOTEncli roach. cermft 1.st Submital 
Subtotal Hours 
Subtotal Fee 

1 
2 

7 7 7 
4 7 20 20 30 
-1 8 8 8 

4 10 10 
1 3 3 

10 10 
1 2 6 3 3 

2 2 
1 2 4 

1 8 14 38 41 67 0 40 
$225.00 $1.640.00 $2,632.00 S6.270.00 $6,027.00 58,174.00 $0.00 $4,480.00 

1 
2 

21 
81 
28 
24 

7 
20 
14 

4 8 
1 a 
5 214 

$500.00 $0.00 

S122.0D 
$244.00 

S2.667.00 
$10.647,0D 

S4.224.0D 
$3.690,00 

S942.D_O 
S2.870.00 
S2.382.00 
S1 ,054.00 
$1 ,106.00 

S29,948.00 

e FINAL DESIGN PHASE 

Cover and General Notes 
Sheet Index 
Traffic signal delails (10) 
Traffic slgnal plan sheets (19) 

1 
2 

4 4 7 
2 4 12 12 20 

1 
2 

15 
so 

S12Z,OO 
S244.00 

$1,860.00 
$6,504.00 

Contract No.: Page 3 of 4 



Exhibit "B" 

TASK DESCRIPTION 
Hours 

Subtotal 
Direct 

Expenses 
Expense 

Description 
Lump Sum 

Task Amounts 

Prlncl11al 
Project 

Manaqer 
Senior 
Prof. Prof. 

Senior 
Technical 
Sunnort Analvst Accountinq 

Technical 
Su1111ort Admin. 

Conduit Schedules and summaries (8) 2 6 6 6 zo S2.980.00 
Prepare specifications~ Fron! End 4 6 10 20 Sl,030.00 
OPC 1 3 3 7 $942.00 
Field Review 5 5 10 $1 ,435.00 
Ol>Slilv Cont.rol Review 1 2 5 3 3 14 S2.382.00 
NOOT Enchroach, oermfi 2st Submttal 2 s 5 S696.00 
Submit Bfd documents to RTC 2 2 4 8 S1.054.00 
Subtotal !iaurs 1 8 9 24 28 48 0 30 4 152 
Subtotal Fee S225.00 S1.M0.00 $1 .692.00 $3,960.00 54.116.00 $5,856.00 SO.DO S3.360.00 5400.00 SO.OD S21.249.00 

F DESIGN CONTINGENCY 8% of Design S14.341.12 

G BlDDING SERVICES 

Pre-Bid Meet/no 1 1 2 5327.00 
RFl~esponses 1 4 5 $865.00 
Addend urns ; s 5 10 $1 345.00 
Bid Opening and Bid Tabs 4 4 8 $500.00 PM Travel S1.808.00 

0 SO.DO 
Subtotal Hours 0 6 0 4 5 10 0 0 0 25 
Subtotal Fee $0.00 $1 ,230.00 SO.OD $660,00 $736.00 $1,220.00 SO.DO SO.DO $0.00 $500.00 $4.345.00 

H ENGINEERING DURING CONSTRUCTION 
:{Ts Working Days) 
Construclfon Administration 25 30 50 105 $988.00 PM Travel (2 tr:ills} $17.163.00 
Construction Survey (Exctudedl 0 SO.OD 
Inspection 10 30 275 315 $750.00 Mneage 541.300.00 
Material Testing -:ii 4 10 16 510,000.00 Matertels Testinq $12.290.00 
As-buill inrcrmatlon 5 2 30 37 S5.015.00 

0 $0.00 
0 $0.00 
0 SO.OD 

' 0 SO.OD 
0 SO.DO 
0 so.oo 
0 SO.DO 

Subtotal Hours 0 42 0 66 0 365 0 0 0 473 
Subtotal Fee SO.DO SB.&10.00 SO.DO $10.890.00 SO.DO $44,530.00 $0.00 SO.OD SO.OD S11 738.00 $75j68.00 

Total Basic Services Hours 8 171 57 248 211 719 18 185 ' 25 1,630 
Total Basic Servius FH $1,800.00 $35,055.00 $10,716.00 540.920.00 $31.017.00 $87,718.00 $2.070.00 520.720.0D S2.500.00 $26.B61.00 $273.718.12 

Contract No : Page 4 of 4 



Exhibit B 
SCHEDULE FOR 

TE SPOT 9 PACKAGE 2 

Project Milestones 

Project NIP 

Project Kick•off and Field Review 

Intersection Control Evaluation 

60% Design Submittal 

90% Design Submittal 

Final Design Submittal 
(Pending NDOT approval 
(& NV Energy Coord.) 

Construction Contract A warded 

Date 

9/30/2019 

10/15/2019 

12/6/2019 

12/20/2019 

J/31 /2020 

4/ J 0/2020 

6/22/2020 

*Typical review time for agencies is assumed to be 2 weeks excluding holiday weeks. NDOT 
encroachment review time is assumed to be 5 weeks. 



Exhibit C 

Indemnification and lnsurance Requirements 



Exhibit C 

INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

(NRS 338 DESIGN PROFESSIONAL) 
2018-11-02 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HJGHL Y RECOMMENDED THAT CONSULTANTS CONFER WITH THEIR 
INSURANCE CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE 
INSURANCE CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS TN ADVANCE OF PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AGENT/BROKER CONT ACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR AT (775) 348-0171. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONSULT ANT agrees, subject to the limitations in Nevada Revised Statutes Section 338.155, to 
save and hold harmless and fully indemnify RTC, Washoe County, City of Reno and City of Sparks 
including their elected officials, officers, employees, and agents (he_reafter, "lndemnitees") from 
and against any and all claims, proceedings, actions, liability and damages, including reasonable 
attorneys' foes and defense costs incurred in any action or proceeding (collectively "Damages") to 
the extent arising out of the: 

A. The negligent acts,, errors, omissions, recklessness or intentional misconduct of 
CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT's agents, employees, officers, directors, 
subconsultants, or anyone else for whom CONSULT ANT may be legally responsible, 
which are based upon or arising out of the professional services of CONSULTANT; and 

B. Violation of law or any contractual provisions or any infringement related to trade names, 
licenses, franchises, patents or other means of protecting interests in products or inventions 
resulting from the use by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, equipment, 
or other deliverable (including software) supplied by CONSULTANT under or as a result 
of this Agreement, but excluding any violation or infringement resulting from the 
modification or alteration by the Indemnitees of any materials, devices, processes, 
equipment, or other deliverable (including software) not consented to by CONSULTANT. 

CONSULTANT further agrees to, save and hold harmless and fully indemnify the lndemnitees 
from and against any and all Damages arising out thethe negligent acts, errors, omissions, 
recklessness or intentional misconduct of CONSULTANT or CONSULTANT's agents, 
employees, officers, directors, subconsultants, or anyone else for whom CONSULTANT may be 
legally responsible, which are not based upon or arising out of the professional services of 
CONSUL TANT. 

The Damages shall include, but are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 



property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 
Jfthe lndemnitees are involved in defending actions of CONSULTANT or anyone else for whom 
CONSULTANT is legally responsible, CONSULTANT shall reimburse the lndemnitees for the 
time spent by such personnel at the rate of the Indemnitees pay or compensation for such services. 

If an Jndemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONSULTANT'S obligation 
hereunder shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONSULTANT. 

In detennining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall detennine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.B above and the use is enjoined, 
CONSUL TANT, at its sole expense, shall either (I) secure for the Tndemnitees the right to continue 
using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by procuring a license or licenses for the 
Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become non-infringing. This covenant shall 
survive the termination of the Professional Services Agreement. 

The provisions of this Agreement are separate and severable and it is the intent of the Parties hereto 
that in the event any provision of this Agreement should be detennined by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, voidable or too restrictive for any reason whatsoever, the remaining 
provisions of this Agreement shall remain valid and binding upon said Parties. It is also understood 
and agreed that in the event any provision should be considered, by any court of competent 
jurisdiction, to be void because it imposes a greater obligation on CONSULTANT than is 
pennitted by law, such court may reduce and reform such provisions to limitations which are 
deemed reasonable and enforceable by said court. 

3. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the start of any work on a RTC project, CONSULTANT shall purchase and maintain 
insurance of the types and limits as described below insuring against claims for injuries to persons 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with the performance of the work 
hereunder by CONSULT ANT, its subconsultants, or their employees, agents, or representatives. 
The cost of all such insurance shall be borne by CONSUL TANT. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONSULTANT shall furnish R TC with a certificate( s) of insurance, executed by a duly authorized 
representative of each insurer, showing compliance with the insurance requirements set forth 
herein, on forms acceptable to RTC. All deductibles and self-insured retentions requiring RTC 
approval shall be shown on the certificate. All certificates and endorsements are to be addressed 
to RTC's Finance Director and be received and approved by RTC before work commences. 
CONSULTANT agrees that RTC has the right to inspect CONSULTANT'S and the Sub's 
insurance policies, or ce1tified copies of the policies, at any reasonable time. Copies of applicable 
policy forms or endorsements confirming required additional insured, waiver of subrogation and 



notice of cancellation provisions are required to be provided with any certificate(s) evidencing the 
required coverage. 

5. NOTICE OF CANCELLATION 

CONSULTANT or its insurers shall provide at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC 
prior to the cancellation or non-renewal of any insurance required under this Agreement. An 
exception may be included to provide at least ten ( I 0) days' written notice if cancellation is due to 
non-payment of premium. CONSULT ANT shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to 
RTC as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction in 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONSULTANTS & SUBCONTRACTORS 

CONSULT ANT shall include all Subcontractors and SubconsuJtants (referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR shall cause Subs employed by CONSULT ANT 
to purchase and maintain separate liability coverages and limits of the types specified herein. If 
any Subs maintain separate liability coverages and limits, each shall include the RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno and City of Sparks as additional insureds under its commercial general 
liability policy, subject to the same requirements stated herein, without requiring a written contract 
or agreement between each of the additional insureds and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. 
Any separate coverage limits of liability maintained by Subs shall be at least $1,000,000 per 
occurrence and at least $2,000,000 for any applicable coverage aggregates or the amount 
customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is GREATER. If any Subs provide their own insurance 
with limits less than required of the Contractor, (::ontractor shall include Subs in their coverage up 
to the full limits required of the Contractor. When requested by RTC, CONSULT ANT shall 
furnish copies of certificates of insurance evidencing coverage for each subconsultant. 
CONSULTANT need not require its non-design subcontractors to carry Professional Errors and 
Omissions Liability insurance. 

7. DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions that exceed $5,000 per occurrence or claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to signing this Agreement. RTC is 
entitled to request and receive additional documentation, financial or otherwise, prior to giving its 
approval of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any changes to the deductibles or self
insured retentions made during the term of this Agreement or during the term of any policy must 
be approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to the change taking effect. 



8. ACCEPT ABILITY OF INSURERS 

Required insurance is to be placed with insurers with a Best's rating of no less than A-VJI and 
acceptable to RTC. RTC may accept coverage with carriers having lower Best's ratings upon 
review of financial information concerning CONSULTANT and the insurance carrier. RTC 
reserves the right to require that CONSULTANT'S insurer(s) be licensed and admitted in the State 
of Nevada or meet any applicable state and federal laws and regulations for non-admitted insurance 
placements. 

9. OTHER CONDITIONS 

A. Failure to furnish the required certiticate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may result in termination of this Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. If CONSULTANT fails to furnish the required certificate or fails to maintain the required 
insurance as set forth herein, RTC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONSULT ANT's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONSULT ANT's obligation to furnish such certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of RTC. Failure 
of RTC to demand such certificate or other evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of RTC to identify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a waiver of CONSULTANT's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver as to the enforcement of any of these provisions at a later 
date. 

D. By requiring insurance herein, RTC does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to protect CONSULT ANT, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a limitation on CONSULTANT's liability under the indemnities granted to 
RTC in this contract. 

E. If CONSULTANT'S liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial 
umbrella insurance with a limit of not less than $2,000,000 each occurrence. If such CGL insurance 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal twice the required occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 01 04 13 (or a substitute form 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 



products-completed operations, personal and advertising injury, and liability assumed under an 
insured contract (including the tort liability of another assumed in a business contract). 

RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in Section 2. INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
be included as an insured under the CGL, using ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 
07/04 or CG 20 33 07/04 or a substitute providing equivalent coverage, and under the commercial 
umbrella, if any. 

This insurance shall apply as primary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance programs afforded to RTC or any other lndemnitees under this Agreement. 
CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC and any other Indemnitees listed in section 2. 
TNDEMNIFICA TION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONSULTANT's insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONSULTANT shall maintain automobile liability and, if necessary, commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each accident. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (including owned, 'hired, and non-owned autos). 

Coverage shall be written on JSO form CA 00 0 l, CA 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage for all owned, leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to accept auto liability for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CONSULT ANT does not own or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 

CONSUL TANT waives all rights against RTC, its officers, employees and volunteers for recovery 
of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the automobile liability or commercial 
umbrella liability insurance obtained by CONSULTANT pursuant to this Agreement. 

12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONSUL TANT or any subconsultants by 
RTC. CONSULTANT, and any subconsultants, shall procure, pay for and maintain the required 
coverages. 

CONSULTANT shall maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance meeting 
the statutory requirements of the State ofNevada, including but not limited to NRS 616B.627 and 
NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each accident for 
bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee for bodily injury by disease. 



CONSULTANT shall provide a Final Certificate for itself and each subconsultant evidencing that 
CONSUL TANT and each subconsultant maintained workers' compensation and employer's 
liability insurance throughout the entire course of the project. 

If CONSULT ANT, or any subconsultant is a sole proprietor, coverage for the sole proprietor must 
be purchased and evidence of coverage must appear on the Certificate of Insurance and Final 
Certificate. 

CONSULTANT waives all rights against RTC, its elected officials, officers, employees and agents 
for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the workers compensation and 
employer's liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Tenant pursuant to this 
agreement. CONSUL TANT shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 00 03 13 to affect this 
waiver. 

13. PROFESSIONAL ERRORS AND OMISSIONS LIABILITY 

CONSUL TANT shall maintain professional liability insurance applying to liability for a 
professional, error, act, or omission arising out of the scope of CONSULTANT'S services 
provided under this Agreement with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 each claim and annual 
aggregate. CONSULTANT shall maintain professional liability insurance during the tenn of this 
Agreement and, if coverage is provided on a "claims made" or "claims made and reported" basis, 
shall maintain coverage or purchase an extended reporting period for a period of at least three (3) 
years following the termination of this Agreement. 



, 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

for Lee G. Gi on, AICP 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.15 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: David Carr 
Fleet & Facilities Manager 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Recommendation for Award for the Provision of Heating, Ventilation and Air 
Conditioning (HV AC) maintenance and repairs for RTC facilities 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the award and agreement with Trane US Inc. to provide heating, ventilation, and air 
conditioning (HVAC) preventive maintenance services, for a term of two years with three, one-year 
renewal options; authorize the RTC Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

The R TC issued a Request for Proposal (RFP) in May 2019. The RFP requested proposals for a 
two-year initial contract and three one-year options. A mandatory pre-proposal meeting was held 
on June 5, 2019. The RFP submission deadline was July 2, 2019. Proposals were received by the 
RTC from ACCO, Inc., Gardner Engineering and Trane U.S., Inc. 

A three-person proposal evaluation team consisting of three RTC employees reviewed and ranked 
the proposals. The proposals were evaluated based on the criteria set forth in the RFP: 

• 40 points for technical 
• 40 points for pricing 
• 20 points for references 

Trane scored the highest with 83.0 out of a maximum 100 points. ACCO, Inc. was second with 75 .1 
points. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The FY 2020 Budget contains $125,000 for HVAC repairs and maintenance. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


HV AC Maintenance RFP Award 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page2 

PREVIOUS BOARD ACTIONS: 

April 2019 Approved the draft Request for Proposal (RFP) for the provision of HV AC 
maintenance and repair services for RTC facilities. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 

Attachment 



AGREEMENT FOR GOODS AND SERVICES 

- HV AC Preventative Maintenance Services-

This agreement (the "Agreement") is entered into by and between the Regional 
Transportation Commission of Washoe County, Nevada ("RTC") and TRANE US, Inc. 
("Contractor") and dated and effective on October I, 2019 ("Effective Date"). 

1. Term. The tenn of this agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall end on 
June 30, 2022. 

2. Scope of Work. Contractor shall provide the goods and se ices escribed in the Scope 
of Service attached as Exhibit A. Contractor shall provide ti ttaditio 1al services specified in 
Exhibit A, as requested and authorized in writing by RTC. 

3. Work Orders. RTC's Facilities Supervisor shall provide wor otde.ts to Contractor each 
month for work in Exhibit A (each a "Work Order"). Co tr~ctor shall complete the tasks identified 
in the Work Order by the end of the month and submit t1i compl cl Work Order to RTC's 
Facilities Supervisor within IO calendar days oft 1 en of the e 1t • 

4. Time for Performance. pursuant to the schedule of 
deliverables in Exhibit A as described in 

5. 

6. Proceeding with 

7. Invoices/Pay ent. Gontractor shall submit invoices to accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com. 
RTC's payment terms are 30 days after the receipt of the invoice. Simple interest will be paid at 
the rate of half a percent (0.5%) per month on all invoices approved by RTC that are not paid 
within thirty (30) days of receipt of the invoice. 

8. Legal/Regulatory Compliance. 
a. Contractor shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local government 

laws, regulations and ordinances. Contractor shall be responsible for obtaining all 
necessary permits and licenses for performance of services under this Agreement. 
Upon request ofRTC, Contractor shall furnish RTC certificates of compliance with 
all such laws, orders and regulations. 

-1-

mailto:accountspayable@rtcwashoe.com


a. RTC shall have the fo in0 

I. -.-~.~,:t~lli..,.~LJ.v e1 

e right 
p . d; 

._ .... .11.,11e rigt 
remedy; and 

b. Contractor represents and warrants that none of the services to be rendered pursuant 
to this Agreement constitute the performance of public work, as that term is defined 
by Section 338.010(17) of the Nevada Revised Statutes. To the extent Contractor 
does engage in such public work, Contractor shall be responsible for paying the 
prevailing wage as required by Chapter 338 of the Nevada Revised Statutes. 

9. Insurance. Contractor shall obtain all types and amounts of insurance set forth in Exhibit 
C, and shall comply with all of its terms. Contractor shall not commence any work or permit any 
employee/agent to commence any work until satisfactory proof has been submitted to RTC that all 
insurance requirements have been met. 

10. Indemnification. Contractor's obligations are set forth · 
would also extend to any liability of RTC resulting from any ' 
recover for damage to RTC property. 

11. Termination. 
a. Mutual Assent. al written agreement 

of the parties. 
b. Convenience. whole or in part for 

convenience upon written no tic · 
C. Default. Either party may te 

written notice of terminat' - pr~'\r:H.ta;,.-
provide written notice of ""'J•¥'4:~ 

cure the default within area 

12. Rights, Remedies and D~1 :uiifM;."._':t,,, 
in the event that RTC deems the Contractor 

under the Agreement: 
d complete the work or any part thereof as agency 

&~-s~,MltF.e of the Contractor, either directly or through other 

cancel this Agreement as to any or all of the work yet to be 

to specific performance, an injunction or any other appropriate 

iv. @~:{g1;1t to money damages. 
b. Inasmuch as the Contractor can be adequately compensated by money damages for 

any breach of this Agreement, which may be committed by RTC, the Contractor 
expressly agrees that no default, act or omission of RTC shall constitute a material 
breach of this Contract, entitling Contractor to cancel or rescind the Agreement 
(unless RTC directs Contractor to do so) or to suspend or abandon performance. 

c. Disputes arising in the performance of this Agreement that are not resolved by 
agreement of the parties shall be decided in writing by the authorized representative 
of RTC's Executive Director. This decision shall be final and conclusive unless 
within IO days from the date of receipt of its copy, Contractor mails or otherwise 
furnishes a written appeal to RTC's Executive Director. In connection with any 
such appeal, Contractor shall be afforded an opportunity to be heard and to offer 

-2-

http:pr~'\r:H.ta


evidence in support of its position. The decision ofRTC's Executive Director shall 
be binding upon the Contractor and the Contractor shall abide be the decision. 

d. Unless otherwise directed by RTC, Contractor shall continue performance under 
this Agreement while matters in dispute are being resolved. 

13. Notification and Imposition of Liquidated Damages. 
a. Notification Steps. RTC intends to provide written notice to the Contractor for the 

first occurrence that can be the basis of the assessment of liquidated damages. A 
second violation shall be the basis of the imposition of the liquidated damages at 
issue. Notwithstanding the preceding sentence, RTC retains the discretion to 
impose a liquidated damage for any violation r gardle 0fthe number of violations 
that have occurred in appropriate circumstances witn t regard to any prior notice. 

b. Multiple As essments. RTC does not intend o impose multiple liquidated 
damages for the same incident, occurrence, or other eve 1f. but ret ins the discretion 

C. 

d. 

to do so in appropriate circumstances. 
Agreement of Contractor. The Contractor understan grees that if it fails 

=-=.;:;;.;;;..;:;.;.;""'"""-"""a.=..;;..;;..;a,;-=_,:,t,7t~7~.=;;..,_.;;"""-~.------=== 
1. ·qui ated damages shall be calculated, assessed, 

(b) 

sufficient demonstration from the Contractor, all amounts of 
liquidated damages imposed shall be deducted by RTC from the 
Contractor's next monthly invoice. 

-3-



tb ri the co1 

RTC. 

15. 

e. Liquidated Damages and Amounts. The following liquidated damages shall be 
assessed by RTC on the Contractor for each failure to perform as described below. 
The determination that a failure to perform has occurred shall be made by RTC. 
1. Services Not Provided. Preventive maintenance (PM) work shall be 

completed within the month they are assigned/scheduled and documented 
in writing on the work order provided by RTC. Failure to complete the PM 
work order and/or documentation within the month they are assigned shall 
result in liquidated damages in the amount of $100 per calendar day until 
they are completed (RTC will allow to the 10th of the following month to 
provide the documentation provided the work was performed in the month 
it was assigned/scheduled). If RTC or an al emative contractor performs 
the PM due to the failure to perform by the co racto · the actual cost of the 
work shall also be deducted from ti amou ue to contractor in 
subsequent months (unless it is the last m·. ct and the cost 
shall be deducted from the last payment due . 

ii. Failure to Res ond mer 0 encv Calls . Liquidate d ages in the amount 
of $500 per occurrence of failur t 1) respond by phone within 1 hour an 
emergency call, and/or (2) onsite s . -vice response within 4 
hours. 

14. Ownership of Work. Plans, repo1ts, acings maps, software, electronic files, 
licenses, programs, equipment manuals, ahd da s s and other documents or instruments of 
service prepared or obtained by Contractor· cou ef performing work under this Agreement, 
shall be delivered to and become the proper o T-C. Saftware already developed and purchased 
by Contractor prior to the executiQn qf the Pti~ec that will be used in the Project and services 
rendered under this Agreement, i ded m t ,is requirement. Contractor and its sub-
contractors shall convey and transfe II cop ntable interests, trademarks, licenses, and other 
intellectual property rights i ucl.1 material to RTC upon completion of all services under this 
Agreement and upon paym in ffi t all c mpensation due to Contractor in accordance with the 
terms of this Agreement. B . ic £ ey notes sketches, charts, computations and similar data 
prepared or obtained p Con tr :o under this Agreement shall, upon request, also be provided to 

i I permit RTC access to any books, documents, papers and records 
greemen t, and shall maintain such records for a period of not less 

16. Exhibits. The exhibits to this Agreement, and any additional terms and conditions 
specified therein, are a material part hereof and are incorporated by reference as though fully set 
forth herein. 

17. Exclusive Agreement. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and 
supersedes any prior verbal or written statements or agreements between the parties. 

18. Amendment. No alteration, amendment or modification of this Agreement shall be 
effective unless it is in writing and signed by both parties. 

-4-



19. No Assignment. Contractor shall not assign, sublease, or transfer this Agreement or any 
interest therein, directly or indirectly by operation of law, without the prior written consent of 
RTC. Any attempt to do so without the prior written consent of RTC shall be null and void, and 
any assignee, subleasee, or transferee shall acquire no right or interest by reason thereof. 

20. Notice. Any Notice as required in the Incorporated Agreement must be given in writing at 
least two business days in advance and should be sent the following locations: 

Trane US, Inc. RTC of Washoe County 
5595 Equity Ave., Suite I 00 1105 Tenninal Way 

Reno, NV 89502 Re ., NV 89502 
Email 

21. Governing Law. This Agreement shall be construed in 
the laws of the State of Nevada. 

22. Venue. Any lawsuit brought to enforce this A:-greement shall be brought in the Second 
Judicial District Court of the State of Nevada, Coun!)' of W: hoe appr • priate court in the State of 
Nevada. 

23. Attorneys' Fees. In the event of a di ute betWeen the parties result in a proceeding in 
any Court of Nevada having jurisdiction, he re ailing party shall be entitled to an award of costs 
and a reasonable attorneys' fees 

24. 

Ill 

Ill 

Ill 

-5-



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Agreement the day 
and year first above written. 

APPROVED AS TO LEGALITY AND FORM 

BY: _______________ _ 

Adam Spear, R TC Director of Legal Services 

RORTATION 
SHOE COUNTY 

Pamela Clifford, Contract Analyst 

-6-



Exhibit A - Eq uipment L1s11ng 
As of October 1, 2019 

Name of Location Address Eq~lpmerit Listing 1 1 

VIiianova 2050 Villanova Reno, NV 89502 

Telephone Room B building 

IT Server Room A building 

1 Package Unit 

1 Liebert Unit 

2 AC Package Units 

Sutro FM 600 Sutro Street Reno, NV 89512 

FM Building 1 Package Unit 

3 Reznor Heaters 

1 Sw amp Cooler 

6th Street 1301 6th Street Reno, NV 89502 

Building 1 Package Unit 

1 Main Exhaust Fan 

Centennial Plaza 1421 Victorian Sparks, NV 89431 

Terminal 1105 Terminal Way Reno, NV 89502 

Building 3 Boilers 

1 Cooling Tower 

lMAU 

65 Heat Pumps 

1 Roof Exhaust Fan 

4 Circulation Pumps 

1 Plate Heat Exchanger 

1 Liebert (IT Room) 

4 Console Units (Stairwells) 

2 Electric Heaters (Stairwell and Penthouse) 

Bus Station 

45S 

North Building 

South Building 

lator (maintenance building) 

1 Boiler 

4 Circulation Pumps 

8 Heat Pumps 

lERV 

1 Cooling Tower 

2 Electric Heaters (mechanical room) 

6 Heat Pumps 

2 ERV's 

10 Baseboard Heaters (South building) 



Exhibit A 

General Scope of Work 

ALL SITES 

The Contractor shall provide all labor, equipment and materials to perform the work tasks outlined 
on Preventative Maintenance Schedule at the RTC locations specified. The Contractor shall 
perform the work at the specified frequencies and within the indicated work hours for the duration 
of the contract in accordance with generally accepted industry standards. The work hours can be 
changed by R TC with written direction. 

Contractor shall coordinate service, 48 hours prior to commen01 
initial schedule shall be submitted by the successful contractor a a , , roved 
time the contract is approved. Contractor shall notify the Project Mana er afte 
at each location. 

The (RTC) Procuring Agency shall have the option to p , 
quoted in the Bid. 

Additional services include, but are not limi eel' to: re ular repairs and call back for emergency 
service during day, evening and week-en 

Contractor shall be responsible for all pen 
Services. 

calls 24/7. 

hours. 

Supplies 
The contractor is responsible for supplying all necessary materials including, but not limited to: 
filters, media, evaporative cooler pads, water conditioning agents, belts, oil, grease, cleaning 
agents, normal wear items of HV AC units. It shall be the Contractor's responsibility to submit 
required MSDS to the Facilities Manager before bringing any materials and supplies onto 
any RTC site. 

All filters shall meet or exceed OEM specification and contractor shall provide verification 
documentation upon request. 



and those are noted in this scope of work. 

~ ~ 

Filters shall be new, unused and where applicable shall be a single filter. Filters that are cut and 
taped or otherwise combined with other parts or pieces of filters shall not be acceptable. 

Equipment 
All equipment shall be new, unused and equal or greater in performance to OEM standards for the 
equipment being replaced. 

RTC requires that the contractor provide optional pricing and offer equipment that is more energy 
efficient whenever such products are available. It will be at the RTC's discretion to select a 
replacement unit that meets current efficiency standards or is available in a more efficient model. 

Maintenance Schedule 
The Maintenance schedule set forth below is a general guidelin fo the P.r entative Maintenance 
Schedule. The Operation and Maintenance Manual for each piec o e main source. 
The information for all equipment is located on the RTC prope1ties. 

Note: Certain equipment requires more frequent filter G tanges than the O & M Manual suggests 

by techp cian when installed. All belts 
ocated and note the date is was changed 

Boilers (4) three in-line Slant Fin Gal: · one 

Note: All filters are to be initialed and dated by teclmician when installed 

Circulation Pumps and mot0 · I 0): (6) cen ant speed and (4) variable speed 
Cooling Towers-Mechanical/El c cal (2 , eludes chemical additives and cleaning) 
Console Water source heat pl s 4) Tnme 
Generator- intake air lter chaA_ge -4th St Station Only 
Electric Unit Hea (1 
ERV (Energy R cover)' :Yen.tilator. 3) 
Evaporative cool'e 
Exhaust Fans (2) 
Reznor heaters, gas fired 1) 
Heat Exchanger (2) (Cooling Tower) 
Heat Pumps and Condensers (97) various brands 
Liebert Climate System (IT server rooms) (2) 
MAU (make up Air unit w/ heat wheel) (I) Greenheck 
Make up Air unit (I) 
Packaged units-Rooftop (19) 
Ventilators (13) 
Supplemental Cooling (3) - (1) unit in the 2nd floor IT room Victorian (2) Sutro IT Room 

2 



SPECIFIED ADDRESS OF EQUIPMENT 

2050 Villanova Drive, Reno, NV 89512 

Administration building-northern most building on site: 
Heat Pumps (2)-Located in IT room - one condenser on ·roof, one outside IT Room 
Liebert (IT room climate system) 

Note: all Filters-Merv 8 

600 Sutro Street, Reno NV 89512 

Facility Maintenance Shop: 
1 Package Unit 
I Swamp Cooler 
3 Reznor Style Shop Heaters 

1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89512 

4th Floor Mechanical Room 
Boilers (3) (Slant-Fin) 
Circulation Pumps and mot0 

Electric Heater 
Heat Exchanger (Coolio_g Tow 

Roof 
Cooling Tower 
Exhaust Fan 

Note: all Filters-Merv 8 (to be initialed and dated by technician when installed) 

3 



1421 Victorian Avenue, Sparks, NV 89521 (Centennial Plaza) 

Main Building 
Exhaust Ventilator (2) main building roof, belt driven 
*Replace belts annually 
Heat Pumps (21)-Located on floors l and 2 
Supplemental Cooling (I) unit in the 2nd floor IT room -Mitsubishi 
All baseboard heaters 

Mechanical room-Main Building 
MAU l (Make up Air Unit) with Heat Wheel 
Pumps and motors, variable speed (2) 

Maintenance Building 
Electric heater 
Exhaust Ventilator/ Fan Cooling System-direct drive 

Generator room 
Electric heater 

200 East 4th Street, (4th Street Station) 

North building 
Heat pumps (6) 

North Building Mezzanine 
Boiler 

North Building, 
Cooling Tower 
ERV 
Exhaust Fan-Sidewall 
Heat Exchanger (Cooling Tower) 
Rooftop package Units (2) 

South Building 
Heat pumps (5) 

South Building Roof 
ERV (2) 
Roof top package Units (2)-serviced monthly 

4 



Electric Heaters (2)-Two Baseboard heaters each in Security area and in Supervisor's office. 

Generator intake air filter change- Quarterly Filter Change Only 

Note: all Filters-Merv 11 (to be initialed and dated by technician when installed) 

MAINTENANCE CHEDULE 

BOILERS-Terminal (Slant Fin/Galaxy) 
Monthly 

• Boiler housing surface-clean off any coating found 

• Check contacts and settings 

• Check piping and accessories for leaks 

• Check air vents 
Water system, check: 

• System to be full and pressure is stable 

• Water lines-any small leak corrected 

• Low water cutoff 

Annual 
• Check for gas leaks from valve an-

• 

• Check air vents 

Annual 
• Check for gas leak om valve and gas piping to burners and pilot 

CIRCULATION PUMPS 

Quarterly 
• Inspect for leaks and loose or damaged components 

• Inspect for excessive vibration 

• Replace filters on loop system (when necessary) 

• Check for proper operation 

5 



COOLING TOWERS-Terminal & 4' 11 treet 
Note: Cooling tower cleaning, chemicals and loop chemicals are NOT part of this proposal 
Monthly 

• Inspect general condition of tower, check for unusual noise of vibration 
• Inspect support structure for cracks and corrosion 
• Check for any leaks 
• Check water level in basin and adjust if necessary 
• Check operation of make-up valve 
• Check and adjust bleed rate 
• Check fan belt tension and condition, adjust/replace as necessacy 

Quarterly 
• Inspect cold and hot water basins and spray nozzles 
• Adjust fan belt tension 
• Lubricate fan shaft bearing 
• Lubricate motor base adjusting screw 
• Check motor voltage and current 
• Check general condition of fan, and uniform 
• Check Cooling tower heater units 
• Check operation of heating unit (crucia 

Semi Annual 
• Lubricate remote fan and motor zeJ' 

Annual 
• Check fan drive alignment 

Every 3 years-(start 2019) 
• Clean heat Exchangers 

CON tainvells 
Quarterly 

Replace filters 
Annual 

Annual 
• Clean (blow out dust/dirt in and around unit) 
• Check mounting bolts 
• Check thermostat for proper operation 

ERV - 4 th Street 

Monthly 
• Change filters 

6 



Quarterly 
• Apply lubrication where required 

• Check dampers for unobstructed operation 

• Check fan belt for wear, tension and alignment (repair/replace if necessary) 

• Check motor for cleanliness 

• Check blower wheel and fasteners for cleanliness, tightness, fatigue or wear 

• Check bearings for cleanliness, lubricate as necessary 

• Clean dust and debris from inside and outside of unit 

• Check set screws for tightness 

• Clean external Mesh filter 

• Check that door seals are intact and pliable 

• Check recovery wheel for cleanliness and clean ifrequire 

• Check belts, pulleys, bearings and motor (repair/adju t/tighten · 

EVAPORATIVE COOLER 

Semi Annual (April-startup) 
• Replace pads (new media that is equi\l 
• Clean water reservoir, scrape to re rnve tee 
• Clean and rinse drain tube 
• Check water supply tubing, repair it'\ftc~ce:ss 
• Clean and check water pump test for ee movement of impeller 
• Check Belts (replace if nee - sa oi b ·ings, if applicable 
• Fill cooler, test and adjust floa 
• Check for leaks 
• Add odor control a. . t 

• airflow, and thermostat function 

overs 
• Disconnect water and drain unit supply line 

On heating portion-one unit, Sutro building B, October 
• Inspect blower wheel, clean if necessary 
• Inspect flue box, and clean if necessary 
• Check for proper burner ignition 
• Inspect main burners, adjust if necessary 
• Ensure proper operation of thermostats 

7 



EXHAUST FANS 

Semi annual 
Clean motor surfaces, remove dust build-up 
Check fasteners and mounting bolts 
Check and adjust/change belt (if applicable) 
Check for excessive vibrations 
Replace belts annually 

GENERA TOR -backup power 

Quarterly 
• Change inlet air filters (to be initialed and dated by techni ia 

HEAT PUMP -Terminal Wav, Victorian, 4th Street 

Monthly 
• Replace filters on four heat pump unit treet Sl:3, '"on that need monthly filter 

changes, 2 north building HPN 7 and o sou h building HPS 5 and HPS 6. 

On all other units at all facilities: 

On Condensers 
• Check re igerant pres w-e and/or levels; make necessary adjustment 
• Clean conden er coil fins and straighten if needed 

8 



LIEBERT-Villanova and Terminal Wav - Information Technology Server Rooms 

Monthly: 
Filter 

• Filter, replace (merv 8) (to be initialed and dated by technician when installed) 
• Check filter switch 
• Wipe section clean 

Blower 
• Check impellers for debris and condition 
• Check belt tension and condition 

Compressor 
• Check for Oil leaks 
• Check for any other type of leaks 

Air Cooled Condenser 
• Clean condenser coil (if needed) 
• Tighten motor mounts 
• Check bearing condition 

Reheat 
• Check reheat element operation 
• Inspect elements for cleanliness 

Infrared Humidifier 

• 
Air Distribution 

• Check gri or. oostruc fon 
Refrigerant Charge 

• Check refrigerah el 
Quarterly: January/ April / July / October 
All monthly tasks and: 
On all sections mentioned above where applicable: 

• Inspect and tighten electrical connections 
Control Panel 

• Check fuses 
• Inspect and tighten electrical connections 
• Check operation sequence 

9 



Refrigeration Cycle I Section 
• Check head pressure 
• Check discharge pressure 

MAU-with Heat Wheel-Victorian Ave 
Monthly 

• Change internal Filter (to be initialed and dated by technician when installed) 

Quarterly 
• Lube fittings 

• Check Fan belt tension, condition, and wear (adjust/replace as 

• Clean motor housing and Wheel if there is dust or grease b il up 

• Inspect fan impeller and housing for fatigue, corrosion 

• Check for any excessive vibration 

• Clean External aluminum mesh filter 

• Check coils, and clean if necessary 

• Check UV antimicrobial light 

Annual 
• All Quarterly tasks and: 

• Clean Energy Recovery Wheel 

MAKE UP AIR UNIT-Terminal 

Monthly 
• Replace filters- Merv 8 (to 

Semi annual 
• Monthly service 

• Check pulle • 

• 

Quarterly 
• Replace filters-Merv 8 (to be initialed and dated by technician when installed) 
• Check belt tension and check for proper operation 

Semi annual 
• Inspect blower wheel and flue box, clean if necessary 
• Check for proper burner ignition 
• Inspect main burners-clean and adjust if needed 
• Check dampers for proper opening 
• Ensure proper operation of thermostats 

10 



ROOFTOP PACKAGE UNITS 4th Street 

Monthly, 4th Street Station only: 
• Change Filters (to be initialed and dated by technician when installed) 

Quarterly Package Rooftop units (ALL): January/ April/ July/ October: 
• Return air filter replacement 
• Clean outdoor hood inlet filter 
• Check belt condition, replace belt as needed 
• Check belt tension, re-tension as needed 
• Check pulley alignment, adjust if needed 
• Check fan shaft bearing locking collar tightness 
• Check condenser coil cleanliness 
• Check condenser drain 

Semi Annual - April / October 

Air Conditioning (April) 
• Check Condenser fan motor mountin 
• Check compressor mounting bolts 
• Check condenser blade positioning 
• Clean control box and check wire c 
• Check tightness of wire terminal 
• Check refrigerant charge I el 
• Clean evaporator coil 
• Check voltage of e\( , orator blowe 

Heating (October) 
• Clean heat e 

Economizer (April / 0ctober) 
• Check and clean inlet filter 
• Check damper travel 
• Check gear and dampers for debris and dirt 

SUPPLIMENTAL COOLING- Victorian 

Quarterly 
• Clean filters 
• Inspect drain line for proper drainage 
• Check outdoor coils, clean if necessary 

11 



Annual 
• Check fan of unit for lubrication 
• Check connections 
• Check refrigeration lines for leaks 

THERMOSTATS 

• Semi-Annual 
• Check proper operations 

VENTILATORS 

Semiannual- April, October 
• Check all fasteners for tightness 
• Clean motor and housing 
• Check belt for wear and correct tension, re...,'"'""~"'' ry (for ventilators that are 

not direct drive) 
• Grease and/or lube fittings on units (i 

12 



Name of Location I I Address I .I Equipment Listing 

Villanova 

Telephone Room B building 

20S0 Villanova Reno, NV 89S02 

1 Package Unit 

IT Server Room A building 1 Liebert Unit 

2 AC Package Units 

Sutro FM 

FM Building 

600 Sutro Street Reno, NV 89S12 

1 Package Unit 

3 Reznor Heaters 

1 Swamp Cooler A 

6th Street 

Building 

1301 6th Street Reno, NV 89S02 

1 Package Unit 

1 Main Exhaust Fan 

Centennial Plaza 

Bus Station 

1421 Victorian Sparks, NV 89431 

aters (ma int building and generator building) 

· lator (maintenance building) 

4SS 

North Building 

South Building 

1 Boiler 

4 Circulation Pumps 

8 Heat Pumps 

lERV 

1 Cooling Tower 

2 Electric Heaters (mechanical room) 

6 Heat Pumps 

2 ERV's 

10 Baseboard Heaters (South building) 

Terminal 1105 Terminal Way Reno, NV 89S02 

Building 3 Boilers 

1 Cooling Tower 

lMAU 

65 Heat Pumps 

1 Roof Exhaust Fan 

4 Circulation Pumps 

1 Plate Heat Exchanger 

1 Liebert (IT Room) 

4 Console Units (Stairwells) 

2 Electric Heaters (Stairwell and Penthouse) 



Exhibit B - Pricing 

Price 

Year 1 of Agreement (Pro-rated until June 30, 2020) 

Monthly total 
Total Year One (Monthly total pro-rated for 9 months) 

$ 
$ 
$ 

57,730.00 

4,810.83 

43,297.47 

Year 2 of Agreement (July 2020 - June 2021) 

Monthly Total Year 2 
$ 
$ 

59,462.00 

4,955.17 

Year 3 of Agreement (July 2021 - June 2022) 

Monthly Total Year 3 
$ 
$ 

61,246.00 

5,103.83 

Preventative Maintenance Services - 3 Year Total $ 

Regular Time (Outside of PM) - Price Per Hour 
Mon - Fri 7am - 5pm 

100.00 

Emergency Services 

Peak Time - Price Per Hour 
Peak time (holidays or weekends) and/or outside of Mon 

200.00 

Time and a half (hours worked beyond te 

$ 150.00 

Material Pricing - Disco , List Price minus 30% 



INDEMNIFICATION AND INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
MAINTENANCE, OPERATIONS & SERVICE AGREEMENTS 

20 I 8-11-02 Version 

1. INTRODUCTION 

IT IS HIGHLY RECOMMENDED THAT BIDDERS ·coNFER WITH THEIR INSURANCE 
CARRIERS OR BROKERS TO DETERMINE THE AVAILABILITY OF THESE INSURANCE 
CERTIFICATES AND ENDORSEMENTS IN ADVANCE OF BID OR PROPOSAL 
SUBMISSION. IF THERE ARE ANY QUESTIONS REGARDING THESE INSURANCE 
REQUIREMENTS, IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE AG T/BROKER CONTACT 
RTC'S FINANCE DIRECTOR DIRECTLY AT (775) 348-0171. 

2. INDEMNIFICATION 

CONTRACTOR agrees to defend save and hold harmless and fully ify RTC, Washoe 
County, City of Reno, and City of Sparks, including · elected officia officers, employees, 
and agents (hereafter, "Indemnitees") from and aga· tan d all c s, proceedings, actions, 
liability and damages, including reasonable attorn , costs incurred in any action 
or proceeding (collectively "Damages") arisinn t of: 

A. Any breach of duty, neglect, or r, misstatement, misleading statement or 
omission committed in the conduc TOR'S profession by CONTRACTOR, 
its employees, agents, officers, dire at term is defined below) , or anyone 
else for which CONTRAC may ·esponsible: and 

B. ,'--1...,..,..,mployees, agents, officers, directors, subs, or 
egally responsible; and 

C. nm1:..01iroopyright resulting from the use by the Indemnitees of 
<lOllill·te• nent or other deliverable (including software) supplied by 

as a result of this Agreement, but excluding any infringement 

compon 
CONTR 

The Damages shall in , ut are not limited to, those resulting from personal injury to any 
person, including bodily injury, sickness, disease or death and injury to real property or personal 
property, tangible or intangible, and the loss of use of any of that property, whether or not it is 
physically injured. 

If the Indemnitees are involved in defending actions, CONTRACTOR shall reimburse the 
Indemnitees for the time spent by such personnel at the rate the Indemnitees pay for such services. 

If an Indemnitee is found to be liable in the proceeding, then CONTRACTOR'S obligation here 
under shall be limited to the proportional share of the liability attributed to CONTRACTOR. 



In determining whether a claim is subject to indemnification, the incident underlying the claim 
shall determine the nature of the claim. 

In the event of a violation or an infringement under paragraph 2.C above and the use is enjoined, 
CONTRACTOR, at its sole expense, shall either (1) secure for the Indemnitees the right to 
continue using the materials by suspension of any injunction or by procuring a license or licenses 
for the Indemnitees; or (2) modify the materials so that they become non-infringing. This covenant 
shall survive the termination of this Agreement. 

3. GENERAL REQUIREMENTS 

Prior to the start of any work on a R TC project, CONTRACTQ hall urchase and maintain 
insurance of the types and limits as described herein insuring ag t clai 
or damages to property which may arise from or in connection • ti 
hereunder by CONTRACTOR, its Subs, or their employees, agent 
of all such insurance shall be borne by CONTRACTOR. 

4. VERIFICATION OF COVERAGE 

CONTRACTOR shall furnish R TC with a ranee executed by a duly 
authorized representative of each insurer, sho • ,ance with the insurance requirements set 
forth herein, on forms acceptable to RTC 1bles and self-insured retentions requiring 
RTC approval shall be shown on the ce ertificates and endorsements are to be 
addressed to RTC's Finance Director an<i.?il,N fec, and approved by R TC before work 
commences. RTC reserves the rigl om certified copies of all required insurance 
policies, including all Subs' poNN.IL~.,.,~~ time. Copies of applicable policy forms or 
endorsements confirming required JOn ured waiver of subrogation and notice of 
cancellation provisions are ired to b vided with any certificate(s) evidencing the required 
coverage. 

Contractor or it i surer~ltia!J>Dr : de at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to RTC prior 
to the cancellatiu1,1~i.,»,•nl:lm-rene I of any insurance required under this Agreement. An exception 
may be included to provide east ten (I 0) days' written notice if cancellation is due to non-
payment of premium. ACTOR shall be responsible to provide prior written notice to RTC 
as soon as practicable upon receipt of any notice of cancellation, non-renewal, reduction m 
required limits or other material change in the insurance required under this Agreement. 

6. SUBCONTRACTORS & SUBCONSULTANTS 

CONTRACTOR shall include all subcontractors and subconsultants (referred to collectively as 
"Subs") as insureds under its liability policies OR it shall require its Subs to maintain separate 
liability coverages and limits of the same types specified herein. If any Subs maintain separate 
liability coverages and limits, each shall include the RTC, Washoe County, City of Reno and City 
of Sparks as additional insureds under its commercial general liability policy subject to the same 



requirements stated herein without requiring a written contract or agreement between each of the 
additional insureds and any sub-consultant or sub-contractor. Any separate coverage limits of 
liability maintained by Subs shall be at least be $1,000,000 per occurrence $1,000,000 for any 
applicable coverage aggregates for or the amount customarily carried by the Sub, whichever is 
GREATER. If any Subs provide their own insurance with limits less than required of the 
Contractor, Contractor shall include Subs in their coverage up to the full limits required of the 
Contractor. When requested by RTC, CONTRACTOR shall furnish copies of certificates of 
insurance evidencing coverage for each Sub. CONTRACTOR shall require its Subs provide 
appropriate certificates and endorsements from their own insurance carriers naming 
CONTRACTOR and the Indemnitees (see paragraph 2 above) as additional insureds. 

7. DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS 

Any deductibles or self-insured retentions that exceed $25,000 claim must be 
declared to and approved by RTC's Finance Director prior to sign in . RTC is entitled 
to request and receive additional documentation, financial or otherwise ~,m,•M giving its approval 
of the deductibles and self-insured retentions. Any c es to the de tibles or self-insured 
retentions made during the term of this Contract or dt ·· 0 olicy must be approved 
by RTC's Finance Director prior to the change ctor is responsible for any 
losses within deductibles or self-insured retent' 

8. ACCEPTABILITY OF INSURERS 

Insurance is to be placed with insurers with ·ati - f no less than A-VTI and acceptable to 
RTC. RTC may accept coverage w: vi wer Best's ratings upon review of financial 
information concerning CONT ranee carrier. RTC reserves the right to require 
that CONTRACTOR'S insurer be a ~fftlllffd-mitted insurer in the State of Nevada or meet 
any applicable state and fe =-..··-.:: lations for non-admitted insurance placements. 

9. MISCELLANEOUS C 

A. · ·ed certificate(s) or failure to maintain the required insurance 
may res his Agreement at RTC's option. 

B. -~~r,i; to furnish the required certificate or fails to maintain the required 
insurance as se - 1erein RTC shall have the right, but not the obligation, to purchase 
said insurance at CONTRACTOR's expense. 

C. Any waiver of CONTRACTOR's obligation to furnish such certificate or maintain such 
insurance must be in writing and signed by an authorized representative of RTC. Failure 
of RTC to demand such certificate or other evidence of full compliance with these 
insurance requirements or failure of RTC to identify a deficiency from evidence that is 
provided shall not be construed as a waiver of CONTRACTOR's obligation to maintain 
such insurance, or as a waiver as to the enforcement of any of these provisions at a later 
date. 



D. By requiring insurance herein, RTC does not represent that coverage and limits will 
necessarily be adequate to protect CONTRACTOR, and such coverage and limits shall not 
be deemed as a limitation on CONTRACTOR's liability under the indemnities granted to 
RTC in this contract. 

E. If CONTRACTOR'S liability policies do not contain the standard ISO separation of 
insureds condition, or a substantially similar clause, they shall be endorsed to provide 
cross-liability coverage. 

10. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain commercial general liability (C 
umbrella insurance with a limit ofnot less than $1,000,000 each 
contains a general aggregate limit, it shall be increased to equal tw1 occurrence limit 
or revised to apply separately to this project or location. 

CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence for 
providing equivalent coverage) and shall covev:· •,pil~~:t. 

products-completed operations, personal and a , rtisin 
insured contract (including the tort liability 06 other 

There shall be no endorsement or mod i CGL limiting the scope of coverage for 
liability arising from pollution, explosion, ~ .•UJ:j~ round property damage, or damage to 
the named insured's work. In ad ition ·a r xplosion, Collapse and Underground 
exposures (as applicable to the pr · flee din the insurance certificates. 

tion . INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement shall 
·ng ISO additional insured endorsement CG 20 10 

verage, and under the commercial umbrella, if any. 

mary insurance with respect to any other insurance or self
insurance progr or any other Indemnitees under this Agreement 

The status of R under a CGL obtained in compliance with this agreement shall 
not restrict coverage u.11"¥.f.,._'!>9"' CGL with respect to the escape of release of pollutants at or from 
a site owned or occupie or rented or loaned to RTC. 

CONTRACTOR waives all rights against RTC and any other Jndemnitees listed in section 2. 
INDEMNIFICATION of this Agreement for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are 
covered by the commercial general liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance maintained 
pursuant to this agreement. CONTRACTOR's insurer shall endorse CGL policy to waive 
subrogation against RTC with respect to any loss paid under the policy. 

Continuing Completed Operations Liability Insurance. CONTRACTOR shall maintain 
commercial general liability (CGL) and, if necessary, commercial umbrella liability insurance, 
both applicable to liability arising out of CONTRACTOR's completed operations, with a limit of 



not less than $1,000,000 each occurrence for at least 5 years following substantial completion of 
the work. 

a. Continuing CGL insurance shall be written on ISO occurrence form CG 00 0 I 04 13 
(or a substitute form providing equivalent coverage) and shall, at minimum, cover 
liability arising from products-completed operations and liability assumed under an 
insured contract 

b. Continuing CGL insurance shall have a products-completed operations aggregate of at 
least two times the each occurrence limit. 

c. Continuing commercial umbrella coverage, if any, sh 
damage to the insured's completed work equivalent 
CG 00 01. 

11. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain automobile liabil' commercial umbrella 
liability insurance with a limit of not less than ent. Such insurance shall 
cover liability arising out of any auto (inc ludin 

Coverage shall be written on ISO form :A 00 05, CA 00 25, or a substitute form 
providing equivalent liability coverage leased, hired (rented) and non-owned 
vehicles (as applicable). RTC may agree to •C ility for non-owned and hired (rented) 
vehicles under the CGL if CON TOR d n or operate any owned or leased vehicles. 

RT·~~b, ffi cers employees and volunteers for recovery 
covered by the automobile liability or commercial 

RACTOR pursuant to this Agreement. 

In lieu of a eparate o Liability Policy, RTC may agree to accept Auto Liability 
covered in the G,,_,;;,,.~ . .;r !icy, if CONTRACTOR does not have any owned or leased 
automobiles an , d auto liability coverage is included. 

If project involves · e transg of hazardous wastes or other materials that could be considered 
pollutants, CONTRA'-'!-,~·s,:.,• all maintain pollution liability coverage equivalent to that provided 
under the ISO pollution liability-broadened coverage for covered autos endorsement (CA 99 48) 
shall be provided, and, if applicable, the Motor Carrier Act endorsement (MCS 90) shall be 
attached . 

Waiver of Subrogation. CONTRACTOR waives all rights against RTC and its agents, officers, 
directors and employees for recovery of damages to the extent these damages are covered by the 
business auto liability or commercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by Contractor pursuant 
to this agreement. 



12. INDUSTRIAL (WORKER'S COMPENSATION AND EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY) 
INSURANCE 

It is understood and agreed that there shall be no Industrial (Worker's Compensation and 
Employer's Liability) Insurance coverage provided for CONTRACTOR or any Sub by RTC. 
CONTRACTOR, and any Subs, shall procure, pay for and maintain required coverages. 

CONTRACTOR shall maintain workers' compensation and employer's liability insurance 
meeting the statutory requirements of the State of Nevada, including but not limited to NRS 
616B.627 and NRS 617.210. The employer's liability limits shall not be less than $1,000,000 each 
accident for bodily injury by accident or $1,000,000 each employee bodily injury by disease. 

Should CONTRACTOR be self-funded for Industrial Insuranc CTOR shall so notify 
RTC in writing prior to the signing ofa Contract. RTC reserves or reject a self-
funded CONTRACTOR and to approve the amount of red retentions. 
CONTRACTOR agrees that RTC is entitled to obtain additional do1.,.;i, ...... ..,.ri'itation, financial or 
otherwise, for review prior to entering into a Contract the self-funde O TRACTOR. 

Upon completion of the project, CONTRACTO ~uotl.lA"ll' RTC, provide RTC with a 
Final Certificate for itself and each Sub s CTOR and each Sub had 
maintained Industrial Insurance by paying al due throughout the entire course of the 
project. 

If CONTRACTOR or Sub is a sole propriet ·age · the sole proprietor must be purchased 
and evidence of coverage must ap on the of Insurance and Final Certificate. 

CONTRACTOR waives all rights a=- . t its elected officials, officers, employees and 
agents. for recovery of d to t ent these damages are covered by the workers 
compensation and employ rnmercial umbrella liability insurance obtained by 
Tenant pursuant to this agree1 CTOR shall obtain an endorsement equivalent to WC 
00 03 13 to affect th i 

13.NETWO PRIVACY LIABILITY 

If CONSULT A cess to RTC computer or network systems for any reason and/or 
data including per ·on...,.1.._" .~:ff;._..,;;,ation (as defined in NRS 603A.040) or confidential information, ... ,,,_
CONSULTANT shall maintain network security and privacy liability insurance insuring against 
loss resulting from (I) privacy breaches [liability arising from the loss or disclosure of confidential 
information] (2) system breach (3) denial or loss of service (4) introduction, implantation, or 
spread of malicious software code (5) unauthorized access to or use of computer systems and (6) 
system failure. Coverage shall be provided with a limit of not less than $1,000,000 per claim and 
annual aggregate. 



14. CRIME INSURANCE 

If CONSULT ANT will have care, custody or control of RTC money, securities or other property, 
CONSULT ANT shall maintain crime insurance including coverage for the loss of money, 
securities and other property by employees or other parties with a limit not less than $1,000,000 
per occurrence. Coverage shall be endorsed to include coverage for loss ofRTC money, securities 
and other property in the care, custody or control of CONSULT ANT. 



,., 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.16 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Brian Stewart, P.E. 
Director of Engineering 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Cooperative (Highway Agreement) with the Nevada Department of 
Transportation (NDOT) for the Pyramid Highway/US 395 Connector Project 
(Phase 1) 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Cooperative Highway Agreement with the Nevada Department of Transportation 
(NDOT) for the final plans, specifications and costs estimates for Phase 1 of the Pyramid 
Highway/US 395 Connector Project (Phase 1) in the amount of $1,500,000; authorize the RTC 
Executive Director to execute the agreement. 

SUMMARY 

This agreement (see attachment A) defines the roles and responsibilities for the design of 
improvements proposed for the Pyramid Highway/US 395 Connector Project (Phase 1). The 
improvements will be identified as Phase 1 of Arterial Alternative 3 in accordance with the 
Environmental Impact Statement (EIS) Record of Decision issued by the Federal Highway 
Administration on December 7, 2018. Phase 1 of the project is proposed to include capacity and 
multimodal improvements on Pyramid from Queen Way to Golden View Drive. Pyramid will be 
widened to 6-lanes (three lanes in each direction) from Queen Way to Los Altos Parkway. 
Improvements north of Los Altos Parkway to Golden View will include safety, access 
management and multimodal. In this segment, Pyramid will remain 4-lanes (two lanes in each 
direction). Phase 1 also includes intersection improvements to accommodate the highway 
widening at Disc Drive and Los Altos Parkway. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The RTC will contribute fuel tax funds to the project for a not to exceed amount of $1,500,000 
total over four fiscal years. The following is a summary of the fiscal obligation of the RTC. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

on, AICP 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Pyramid Hwy/US 395 Connector Project (Phase I) 
Highway Agreement with NDOT 

RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 
Page2 

RTC Fuel Tax Funds 
Fiscal 
Year 

Payment Dates & Deliverables Total Amount 

FY 2020 FY Quarter 2 Payment upon delivery of 30% Design Plans $250,000 
FY 2021 FY Quarter 1 Payment upon delivery of 60% Design Plans $500,000 
FY 2022 FY Quarter 3 Payment upon delivery of 90% Design Plans $500,000 
FY 2023 FY Quarter 1 Payment upon delivery of Final PS&E $250,000 

TOTAL FUNDING FOR RTC CONTRIBUTION $1,500,000 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

January 18, 2019 Adopted the FY 2020 Fuel Tax Program of Projects that included Phase 1 
design 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

Through this Highway Agreement, NDOT will provide design services utilizing in house staff and 
supplement with consultants as needed. R TC staff will follow the progress and participate in 
design review. The administration and funding of right of way acquisition, utility relocation and 
construction of Phase 1 will be identified during the design phase and an amendment to this 
agreement or execution of a separate agreement will be necessary. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations regarding this agenda item. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

Agreement Number R544-19-015 

COOPERATIVE AGREEMENT 

This Agreement is made and entered into on , by and between the 
State of Nevada, acting by and through its Department of Transportation, hereinafter called the 
"DEPARTMENT", and the Regional Transportation Commission ofWahoe County, 1105 Terminal 
Way, Reno, Nevada 89502, hereinafter called the ''RTC". 

WITNESSETH: 

WHEREAS, a Cooperative Agreement is defined pursuant to Nevada Revised Statutes 
(NRS) 277.11 O as an agreement between two or more public agencies for the joint exercise of 
powers, privileges, and authority; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions contained in Chapter 408 of the Nevada Revised 
Statutes, the Director of the DEPARTMENT may enter into those agreements necessary to carry 
out the provisions of the Chapter; and 

WHEREAS, NRS 277.110 authorizes any two or more public agencies to enter into 
agreements for joint o-r cooperative action; and 

WHEREAS, the parties to this Agreement are public agencies and authorized to enter into 
agreements in accordance with NRS 277.080 to 277.110, inclusive; and 

WHEREAS, the Federal Highway Administration issued a record of decision on December 
7, 2018 for the Pyramid Highway/ US-395 Connector Project and the parties to this Agreement 
wish to proceed with the design of Phase 1 of Arterial Alternative 3 (Preferred Alternative) as 
described in the Final Environmental Impact Statement ("FEIS") dated June 2018; and 

WHEREAS, the purpose of this Agreement is to establish roles and responsibilities 
between the DEPARTMENT and the RTC with regard to completing the final design of Phase 1 
of the Pyramid Highway/ US-395 Connector Project as shown on Exhibit A, hereinafter called the 
"PROJECT"; and 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT is willing to provide all services necessary to prepare final 
plans, specifications, and cost estimates for the PROJECT, hereinafter called the "Final PS&E 
Package"; and 

WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT and the RTC desire to establish cost estimates for the 
PROJECT, identify funding for right-of-way acquisition, utilities, and construction funding, and 
determine construction roles and repsonsiblilities related to the PROJECT; and 

WHEREAS, it is anticipated that an amendment to this Agreement or a separate 
Agreement will be required for funding the right-of-way acquisitions, utility relocations, and 
construction of the PROJECT; and 

WHEREAS, the establishment of the roles and responsibilities to be provided under this 
Agreement will be of benefit to the DEPARTMENT, to the RTC, and to the people of the State of 
Nevada; and 

WHEREAS, the parties hereto are willi,:ig and able to perform the services described 
herein. 

1 R544-19-015 
NDOT 
Rev. 0512019 



NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and of the mutual covenants herein 
contained, it is agreed as follows : 

ARTICLE I - RTC AGREES 

1. To pay the DEPARTMENT up to One Million Five Hundred Thousand Dollars and 
No/100 ($1,500,000.00) for deliverables in connection with the 30% Design, 60% Design, 90% 
Design, and Final PS&E package at the following milestone amounts: 

30% Design Plans $250,000 
60% Design Reports, Plans, Specifications and Estimates $500,000 
90% Design Reports, Plans, Specifications and Estimates $500,000 
Final PS&E Package $250,000 

2. To review and provide written comments at 30% , 60% and 90% design levels to 
the DEPARTMENT within twenty-one (21) calendar days after receipt. 

3. To pay the DEPARTMENT within forty-five (45) calendar days after receipt of the 
DEPARTMENT's invoice. 

4. To assist the DEPARTMENT in obtaining the necessary permits, coordinating 
with other agencies, and conducting public outreach Ul)On the DEPARTMENT's request. 

ARTICLE II - DEPARTMENT AGREES 

1. To establish a project identification number by which to track all PROJECT costs. 

2. To provide the following deliverables within the anticipated timeframes to the RTC 
at a quality that meets DEPARTMENT design standards. 

30% Design Plans Q2 FY 2020 
60% Design Plans and Specifications and Estimates Q1 FY 2021 
90% Design Plans and Specifications and Estimates Q3 FY 2022 
Final PS&E Package Q1 FY 2023 

3. To invoice the RTC in the following amounts upon notice of RTC receipt and 
acceptance of the deliverables by the RTC: 

30% Design Plans $250,000 
60% Design Plans and Specifications $500,000 
90% Design Plans and Specifications $500,000 
Final PS&E Package $250,000 

4. To be responsible for one hundred percent (100%) of all costs necessary to 
complete each deliverable in excess of the amounts the RTC is required to pay for each 
deliverable. 

5. To perform, or have performed by consultants, all services necessary to complete 
the deliverables (including the development of the construction plans, specifications, estimates, 
and notes to specifications) in a manner that meets all permitting agencies' requirements and 
applicable design standards. 

2 R544-19-015 
NDOT 
Rev 0512019 

http:1,500,000.00


6. To monitor all PROJECT activities to ensure compliance with applicable 
environmental laws and regulations and in accordance with the US-395 Pyramid Connector 
Enivironmental Impact Statement. 

7. To maintain and update the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) major 
project management plan and the PROJECT financial plan for all elements of the PROJECT. 

8. To hold meetings with the RTC concerning those facilities for which the RTC 
represents regional roads of the PROJECT, including but not limited to, coordination meetings, 
field reviews, right-of-way settings, and review meetings. 

9. To provide the RTC with two (2) copies of the 30% design, 60% design, 90% 
design, and final PS&E plans and specifications for review and comment, and to invite the RTC 
to the specification review meeting to address said comments. 

ARTICLE Ill - IT IS MUTUALLY AGREED 

1. The improvements to be designed pursuant to this Agreement are generally 
described as Arterial Alternative Three (3) (Preferred Alternative) in the FEIS. Changes to the 
scope of the improvements that may occur may require an amendment( s) to this Agreement. The 
RTC's maximum funding responsibility is outlined herein unless the RTC requests additional 
improvements at which time the RTC will be responsible for all costs associated with any change 
order(s) they initiate. The RTC will request a cost estimate for the change order(s) to be 
performed by the DEPARTMENT's service provider or contractor and included in the PROJECT. 
In the event the RTC approves, in writing, the cost estimate for the additional improvements, an 
amendment(s) to this Agreement shall be executed by both parties prior to authorization of the 
change order and any additional contributions by the RTC in excess of the amount specified 
herein. In the event the RTC's governing body does not approve allocation of sufficient funds, 
the change order shall not be issued and such work shall not be completed. 

2. The term of this A!;)reement shall be from the date first written above through and 
including December 31, 2023. 

3. This Agreement may be terminated by either party prior to the date set forth above, 
provided that a termination shall not be effective until thirty (30) calendar days after a party has 
served written notice upon the other party. This Agreement may be terminated by mutual consent 
of both parties or unilaterally by either party without cause. The parties expressly agree that this 
greement shall be terminated immediately if for any reason Federal and/or State Legislature 
funding ability to satisfy this Agreement is withdrawn, limited, or impaired. 

4. All notices or other communications required or permitted to be given under this 
Agreement shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally 
in hand, by telephonic facsimile or electronic mail with simultaneous regular mail, or mailed 
certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid on the date posted, and addressed to the 
other party at the address set forth below: 

FOR DEPARTMENT: Kristina L. Swallow, P.E., Director 
Attn.: Sajid Sulahria,P.E. 
Nevada Department of Transportation 
Division: Project Managment 
1263 South Stewart Street 
Carson City, Nevada 89712 
Phone: 775-888-7742 

3 R544-19-015 
NDOT 
Rev. 05/2019 



Fax:775-888-7322 
Email:ssulahria@dot.nv.gov 

FOR RTC: Attn: Brian Stewart, P.E., Director of Engineering 
Regional Transportation Commission of Wahoe County 
1105 Terminal Way 
Reno, Nevada 89520 
Phone:775-335-1880 
Fax: 775-348-1051 
Email:bstewart@rtcwashoe.com 

5. Neither party shall be deemed to be in violation of this Agreement if it is prevented 
from performing any of its obligations hereunder due to strikes, failure of public transportation, 
civil or military authority, act of public enemy, accidents, fires, explosions, or acts of God, 
including, without limitations, earthquakes, floods, winds or storms. In such an event the 
intervening cause must not be through the fault of the party asserting such an excuse, and the 
excused party is obligated to promptly perform in accordance with the terms of the Agreement 
after the intervening cause ceases. 

6. To the fullest extent of NRS Chapter 41 liability limitations, each party shall 
indemnify, hold harmless and defend, not excluding the other's right to participate, the other from 
and against all liability, claims, actions, damages, losses, and expenses, including but not limited 
to reasonable attorneys' fees and costs, caused by the negligence, errors, omissions, 
recklessness, or intentional misconduct of its own officers, e'mployees, and agents. Such 
obligation shall not be construed to negate, abridge, or otherwise reduce any other right or 
obligation of indemnity which would otherwise exist as to any party or person described herein. 
This indemnification obligation is conditioned upon the performance of the duty of the party 
seeking indemnification (indemnified party), to serve the other party (indemnifying party) with 
written notice of an actual or pending claim, within thirty (30) calendar days of the indemnified 
party's notice of such actual or pending claim or cause of action. The indemnifying party shall not 
be liable for reimbursement of any-attorney's fees and costs incurred by the indemnified party due 
to said party exercising its right to participate with legal counsel. 

7. The parties do not waive and intend to assert available NRS Chapter 41 liability 
limitations in all cases. Agreement liability of both parties shall not be subject to punitive damages. 
Actual damages for any DEPARTMENT breach shall never exceed the amount of funds which 
have been appropriated for payment under this Agreement, but not yet paid, for the fiscal year 
budget in existence at the time of the breach. 

8. Failure to declare a breach or the actual waiver of any particular breach of this 
Agreement or any of its material or nonmaterial terms by either party shall not operate as a waiver 
by such party of any of its rights or remedies as to any other breach, including a breach of the 
same term. 

9. An alteration ordered by the DEPARTMENT, which substantially changes the 
services provided for by the expressed intent of this Agreement will be considered extra work and 
shall be specified in a written amendment which will set forth the nature and scope thereof. The 
method of payment for extra work shall be specified at the time the amendment is written. 

10. This Agreement and the rights and obligations of the parties hereto shall be 
governed by, and construed according to, the laws of the State of Nevada. The parties consent 
to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Nevada state district courts for enforcement of this Agreement. 

4 R544-19-015 
NDOT 
Rev. 0512019 

mailto:Email:bstewart@rtcwashoe.com
mailto:Email:ssulahria@dot.nv.gov


11. The illegality or invalidity of any provision or portion of this Agreement shall not 
affect the validity of the remainder of the Agreement, and this Agreement shall be construed as if 
such provision did not exist. The unenforceability of such provision shall not be held to render 
any other provision or provisions of this Agreement unenforceable. 

12. Except as otherwise expressly provided within this Agreement, all or any property 
presently owned by either party shall remain in such ownership upon termination of this 
Agreement, and there shall be no transfer of property between the parties during the course of 
this Agreement. 

13. It is specifically agreed between the parties executing this Agreement that it is not 
intended by any of the provisions of any part of this Agreement to create in the public or any 
member thereof a third party beneficiary status hereunder, or to authorize anyone not a party to 
this Agreement to maintain a suit for personal injuries or property damage pursuant to the terms 
or provisions of this Agreement. 

14. Each party agrees to keep and maintain under generally accepted accounting 
principles full, true, and complete records and documents pertaining to this Agreement and 
present, at any reasonable time, such information for inspection, examination, review, audit and 
copying at any office where such records and documentation are maintained. Such records and 
documentation shall be maintained for three (3) years after final payment is made. 

15. The parties are associated with each other only for the purposes and to the extent 
set forth in this Agreement. Each party is, and shall be., a public agency separate and distinct 
from the other party and shall have the right to supervise, manage, operate, control, and direct 
performance of the details incident to its duties under this Agreement. Nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall be deemed or construed to create a partnership or joint venture, to create 
relationships of an employer-employee or principal-agent, or to otherwise create any liability for 
one agency whatsoever with respect to the indebtedness, liabilities, and obligations of the other 
agency or any other party. 

16. In connection with the performance of work under this Agreement, the parties 
agree not to discriminate against amy employee or applicant for employment because of race, 
creed, color, national origin, sex, sexual orientation or age, including, without limitation, with 
regard to employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment or recruitment advertising 
layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, 
including, without limitation, apprenticeship. The parties further agree to insert this provision in 
all subcontracts hereunder, except subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or raw 
materials. 

17. Neither party shall assign, transfer or delegate any rights, obligations or duties 
under this Agreement without the prior written consent of the other party. 

18. The parties hereto represent and warrant that the person executing this Agreement 
on behalf of each party has full power and authority to enter into this Agreement and that the 
parties are authorized by law to engage in the cooperative action set forth herein. 

19. Pursuant to NRS 239.010, information or documents may be open to public 
inspection and copying. The parties will have the duty to disclose unless a particular record is 
confidential by law or a common law balancing of interests. 

5 R544-19-015 
NDOT 
Rev. 05/2019 



20. Each party shall keep confidential all information, in whatever form, produced, 
prepared, observed, or received by that party to the extent that such information is confidential by 
law or otherwise required to be kept confidential by this Agreement. 

21. This Agreement shall not become effective until and unless approved by 
appropriate official action of the governing body of each party. 

22. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement of the parties and such is 
intended as a complete and exclusive statement of the promises, representations, negotiations, 
discussions, and other agreements that may have been made in connection with the subject 
matter hereof. Unless an integrated attachment to this Agreement specifically displays a mutual 
intent to amend a particular part of this Agreement, general conflicts in language between any 
such attachment and this Agreement shall be construed consistent with the terms of this 
Agreement. Unless otherwise expressly authorized by the terms of this Agreement, no 
modification or amendment to this Agreement shall be binding upon the parties unless the same 
is in writing and signed by the respective parties hereto and approved by the Attorney General. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year 
first above written. 

Regional Transportation Commission, State of Nevada, acting by and through its 
Washoe County DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

Lee Gibson, Executive Director Director 

Approved as to Form: Approved as to Legality and Form: 

Dale Ferguson, RTC Chief Counsel Deputy Attorney General 

6 R544-19-015 
NDOT 
Rev 05/2019 



Exhibit A 

Project Description and Maps 

Pyramid Highway Improvements (Queen Way to Golden View Drive) Washoe County, Nevada 

Improvements to be in accordance with designated Phase 1 of Arterial Alternative 3 (Preferred 

Alternative) as described in the (June 2018) FEIS. Co'nstruct a 6-lane (3-lanes in each 

dtrection) high access control arterial from Queen Way to Los Altos Parkway. Intersection 

improvements at Disc Drive to accommodate both the future widening of Disc Drive and the 

future Disc Drive extension to the west. Intersection improvements at Los Altos Parkway. 

Sidewalk and bike lanes north of Disc Drive. Construct a 4-lane (2-lanes in each direction) high 

access control arterial north of Los Altos Parkway to Golden View Drive. 

7 R544-19-015 
NDOT 
Rev. 0512019 



Conceptual Phasing Plan 

Legend 

LJ Study Area 

' '. Ii 

0 

- Phases 1 
- Phase7 
c::::::J Phase 8 
- Phase9 

~ 

1 MIi.,. 

8 R544-19-01 S 
NDOT 
Rev 0512019 



I ---. -,. 

Legend 
0 Cross--Seclion Change 

Arterial Mainline Alignment 

Ramps and Local Roads 
./ Bridges/Slruclures 

CAllE DE lA PlATA 
I I I locolians al improvemenls a~ appraximalt!. 

_l'Jl.Ll. 
I \ 

/ 

. I,·, . . ,• I 

.·;(; , ~,,',,t' . :1 
I SIX-LANE ART RIA.L \lA 

'· i 
3 throOgh lanec1 
both d1rect10ns l 

l. I 

!, 
I 

\ 

D.S D I Mf11 

g R544-19-015 
NDOT 
Rev. 05/2019 



0 

;,i z ., � 
"0 
o--< 
;!; 

'° 

;:o 
C}1 

! 
-"" 

(0 

-'-
C}l 

PRELIMINARY 
.... etf'O.nmo• 

ROADWAY SECTION SEGMENTS 

£:_:L H iF"'.'.'-:-~ 
- ~Nn'tAM.~~ -

~TION QFIIIP'1t(WDl~:NT - ~R.u.aNCJLOCAL RQAOI, 
.~SECIION-A COIGll'I\IAl,.MIDOUlsnu::Tua::I "-T.I 

nRCALUCTIOIJf~ 

olllHI De9Glflffl!Dcr:a,1U90,on!l)Sl"a!DL.a.T1 JACOBS 

6 

http:De9Glflffl!Dcr:a,1U90,on!l)Sl"a!DL.a.T1


~{;/]}~ 
?J!§// 
- · C PYRAMID HIGHWAY AND 

US 395 CONNECTOR 
1 PHASE 1 

::>N - D 

11 R544-19-015 
NDOT 
Rev. 05/2019 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 3.17 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Dale Ferguson 
RTC Chief Legal Counsel 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Resolution of Condemnation for property rights related to APN 007-183-13, 
necessary to construct the Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit Extension Project 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve a Resolution of Condemnation authorizing RTC's legal counsel to commence 
condemnation proceedings to acquire the full fee acquisition of the parcel known as APN 007-183-13 
from JRK Investments, LLC, a Nevada limited liability company, necessary to construct the Virginia 
Street Bus Rapid Transit Extension Project. 

SUMMARY 

At the March 18, 2016, RTC Board Meeting, the Commission approved Amendment No. 1 to the 
Professional Services Agreement with Nichols Consulting Engineers ("NCE") for Final Design of 
the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Project (the "Project"). At the 
September 16, 2016, RTC Board Meeting, the Commission approved the Request for Proposals 
(RFP) for the selection of a firm to provide Right of Way Services for the Project. Paragon 
Partners, LTD ("Paragon") was selected as the firm to provide the right of way acquisition services 
at the November 18, 2016, RTC Board Meeting. Thereafter, Paragon initiated the process of 
acquiring the right of way for the Project. 

Through an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement with the City of Reno dated May 24, 2016, the RTC 
has been authorized to negotiate and/or initiate eminent domain proceeding for right-of-way 
acquisition when necessary for the Project. Paragon has been attempting to negotiate the purchase 
of property rights needed to construct the Project from the owners of APN 007-183-13. Those 
efforts have been unsuccessful to date. 

To ensure timely construction of the Project, the approval of this Resolution of Condemnation 
allows the RTC to initiate condemnation proceedings for these property rights. Proper notice of 
this agenda item has been provided to the property owner as required by the Nevada Revised 
Statutes. In order to minimize potential delays to the Project, the proposed resolution of 
condemnation (see Attachment A) is requested now so that legal counsel can seek a court ordered 
"right-of-entry" and/or order for immediate occupancy should negotiations with property owners 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

J_ 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit Extension Project 
Resolution of Condemnation - JRK Investments, LLC 

RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 
Page 2 

not result in the acquisition of the property rights through purchase. Every effort to reach 
satisfactory purchase agreements will continue to be made until a complaint in eminent domain is 
filed with the court. Thereafter, the RTC will continue to attempt to negotiate a resolution that is 
fair and equitable. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

The costs to acquire the subject property interests have been budgeted; however, the fiscal impact 
cannot be determined at this time. Aside from legal fees, there is the potential that the 
compensation to the property owner may increase as a result of legal settlement. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

November 18, 2016 Approved the staff recommendation of Paragon Partners LTD to 
provide the right of way acquisition services for the Project; authorize 
the Executive Director to negotiate and execute the final Professional 
Service Agreement (PSA). 

September 16, 2016 Approved the Request for Proposals (RFP) for the selection of a firm 
to provide Right of Way Services for the Project. 

March 18, 2016 Approved Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement 
with NCE for Final Design for the Project. 

October 16, 2015 Acknowledged receipt of an update on the Project and approve the 
local preferred alternative. 

October 17, 2014 Approved Selection of Nichols Consulting Engineers (NCE) for 
Preliminary Design & NEPA; authorize the RTC Executive Director 
to negotiate and execute a professional services agreement with NCE. 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

This project will complete the multi-modal transportation improvements on the corridor from 
Plumb Lane to Liberty Street and Maple Street to 15th Street/North Virginia Street. The NEPA 
process is complete. The roadway reconstruction and BRT project work in the South Virginia
Midtown segment of the project began in June 2019 after receipt of a Letter of No Prejudice from 
the FT A. Work in the North Virginia-UNR segment of the project is anticipated to begin in the 
spring of 2020. With these anticipated start dates, the roadway construction and BRT 
improvements are scheduled to be complete by the end of 2020. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations regarding this report. 

Attachment 



ATTACHMENT A 

RESOLUTION OF CONDEMNATION 

WHEREAS, it is necessary for the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County, 

hereinafter referred to as "RTC," to provide regional transportation facilities which are of a quality and 

standard necessary to satisfactorily meet the needs of the traveling public; and 

WHEREAS, in recognition of such needs, the RTC approved the Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit 

Extension Project, hereinafter referred to as "Project," as part of an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement 

("!CA") dated May 24, 2016; and 

WHEREAS, in the !CA dated May 24, 2016, the City of Reno authorized the RTC to initiate 

eminent domain proceedings on behalf of the City, if required, for the acquisition of right-of-way for the 

Project; and 

WHEREAS, Chapter 277A of Nevada Revised Statutes provides that the RTC may exercise the 

power of eminent domain, if the city or county which has jurisdiction over the property approves; and 

WHEREAS, the current owner ofrecord of the property interests to be acquired, insofar as is known 

to the RTC, is JRK Investments, LLC a Nevada limited liability company. 

NOW, THEREFORE, the members of the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County 

do hereby find: 

1. That proper notice of the RTC's intent to consider eminent domain action to acquire the 

relevant property interests of the above referenced owner(s) has been given as required by NRS 241.034. 

2. That RTC staff first contacted the landowner about the property interests for the full fee 

acquisition of the parcel known as APN 007-183-13, as described in Exhibit "A" and depicted on Exhibit 

"B," attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference, on or about July 2, 2019. While there have been 

discussions, proposals and offers made, all efforts to reach a mutually acceptable agreement for the 

acquisition of the property interests through purchase have been unsuccessful to date. 

3. That the property interests to be acquired in conjunction with the above referenced Project 

are to be applied to a public use, to wit, the Virginia Street Bus Rapid Transit Extension Project. 

4. That the property interests described herein are necessary to such public use. 



----------------------------------

Based on the aforementioned findings of fact, the RTC does hereby direct: 

1. That RTC's legal counsel initiate, if needed, eminent domain proceedings on behalf of the 

RTC in accordance with provisions of Chapters 37 and 277A of Nevada Revised Statutes to acquire the 

property interests described in Exhibit "A" and depicted on Exhibit "B". 

2. That said legal counsel shall commence and prosecute in the name of the RTC, eminent 

domain proceedings in the court having jurisdiction of the property interests described in Exhibit "A" and 

depicted on Exhibit "B." 

3. That said legal counsel is authorized to pursue all actions deemed appropriate for the 

successful prosecution of this case, including but not limited to, an application to the court for an order 

permitting the RTC to take immediate possession of said property interests for the construction of the Project, 

upon complying with conditions imposed by law. 

Upon motion of Commissioner ___ _, seconded by Commissioner ___ _, the foregoing 

Resolution was passed and adopted this 20th day of September 2019, by the following vote of the Regional 

Transportation Commission: 

AYES: ________________________ ___ _ 

NAYS: 

ABSTAJN: 

Approved this 20th day of September 2019. 

2 



REG1ONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
OF WASHOE COUNTY, STATE OF NEVADA 

BY ________________ _ 

BOB LUCEY, CHA IR 

STATE OF N'EVADA 
COUNTY OF WASHOE 

The above-instrument was acknowledged before me this 20th day of September 2019, by Bob Lucey, 

Chair of the Regional Transportation Commission. 

Notary Public 

3 



EXHIBIT A 

EXHIBIT "A" 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF RIGHT-OF-WAY 

APN: 007-183-13 

All that portion of land, situate within a portion of the South East 1/4 of Section 2, Township 19 North, 
Range 19 East, Mount Diablo Base and Meridian, City of Reno, County of Washoe, State of Nevada, 

• described in deed, recorded in the official records of Washoe County Recorder's Office on August 27, 2018, 
as Document File # 4844962 and more particularly described as follows; 

Beginning at a point of intersection with the southerly line of East 9th Street and the easterly line of North 
Virginia Street, thence South 13°00'35" East 220.00 feet along the easterly line of North Virginia Street to 
the true point of beginning; 

Thence departing the easterly line of North Virginia Street, North 76°59'25" East 140.00 feet to a point on 
the westerly line of a 20 foot wide alley; 

Thence South 13°00'35" East 50.00 feet along the westerly line of said 20 foot wide alley; 

Thence departing the westerly line of said 20 foot wide alley, South 76°59'25" West 140.00 feet to a point 
on the easterly line of North Virginia Street; 

Thence North 13°00'35" West 50.00 feet along the easterly line of North Virginia Street to the true point of 
beginning, containing 7,000 square feet, more or less. 

Basis of Bearings: NAO 83(94) Nevada State Plane Coordinate System, West Zone (2703). 

Grant R. Alexander, P.L.S. 19051 
Battle Born Ventures, LLC 
600 Gleeson Way 
Sparks, NV 89431 

Page 1 of2 



-- -- -- -- -- -- --

-- -- -- -- -- -- --

---- -----

\ 

EXHIBIT •a" 

SINGH FAMILY TRUST 
APN: 007-183-18 

\ 
~\ 
0 

-'6~ 

\ 

~ 

~ 
~ 
s. 
~ 
~ 
~ 
'> 
V\ 

~ 

\ 
Wi 

\ 

~ 

\ 

\ \ 

\ 
\ 
\ \ 
\ N \ 
\ \ \ \ 

\ 
\ \ 

JRK INVESMENTS LLC. 
APN: 007-183-13 

0££0 OOC. NO. 4844962 

RIGHT-OF-WAY 
AREA = 7,000 SQ. FT. +/-

ROSS RENTALS L7D. 
APN: 007-183-12 

BATTLE BORN VENTURES, 
600 GLEESON WAY 
SPARKS, NEVADA 89431 
www .battlebornventures.com 

LLC 
PHONE (775) 813-4934 
FAX (775) 359-4476 

Land Surveyors - Civil Engineers 

\ 
\ 
\ 

-- -\ 

W.O. #: 2016_ 152 
BY: GRA 

DATE: 09/10/2018 
SCALE: 1" = 30' 

Page 2 of2 



f !NCE 
18858 A...-.glonAv~ Sulle111 
Rttii,, Nell&da 89509 

1ru, ~ ·,•1m~~ 

' I 
wg..•$f'J 
N001P£Jl:Ml t• nu. 
fCOfllRM:.IOlt fO'OJ.CV/C',Ot.O'fq.1$ 
01 NOOT PERMIT 'MTHIN 'THESE UMITS! 

ACAG10up,lnc 
A �S-M •t • WEll31li 

1»)T .. f"(NIIW"1. ~"' 'tll 
Jti:no..,~ w..oJ~ UIJ 
(nSj.fJ0-677D 

VIRGINIA STREET BUS 
RAPID TRANSIT 

EXTENSION PROJECT 
PHASE 2 

,,......_ ltGIOW,l 
la]3 11,.SSl'ORlA TION 
....__, <i;MM!SSl()H 
1105TERM9CALWA.V, 
SUITE 108 RENO. NV 88502 
PHONE (775) 348-0171 

-
RIGHT OF WAY 

"N\f' 6+50 TO "NV' 11 +5 

® N.R1 
215 fl 332 c.a_ ... -....... -
Page I of2 



{ • 

VIRGINIA STREET BUS 
RAPID TRANSIT 

EXTENSION PROJECT 
PHASE 2 

~ REGIONAL 
L.:1.1."':1 TRANSPORTATION 
~ COMMISSION 

1105 TERMINAL WAY 
SUITE 10B RENO NV,89502 
PJ-IONE (nsi J.4B-Cl171 

JRC 

.jl; 

COA "' 01/>l/tt 
o,/ll/11 

f !NCE 
1885S.MnglonAve.Su,te111 
Rl!lno. Nev!kle 89508 
0'751 3.29-4955 • Fa~ j775J 329-5()9B 

CA Group. Inc -11::l5Temiina1Wey,Sulte1G6 
Reno Nevada 89502-21-1.:l 

0011"711; (7751 �70-STT0 

IIIJ.1:4 rF.:-,~;~1~s'1it~ ~'- !,f~OS. 
C':il R7-Dh 

Fa\111,A Pll(),>~fll!~l "~/RG"~~~(~ e•I ~ 'I.RCWA I -•- ." 
1\J\'((m) 

!l!)l- ' B/0/ 
B2~ N V-'Gq,1A it 

AUC(Cll'r'IIHlfNJ• • ~ I I 
•. r,::::-.1,·. 

• ... - II. 

!!!!!!!!!!.!!!! 

~ -I =- If 
; 

•:. 1=-I . • 

· . ... · I ' ·
i : - . 

' . 

RIGHT OF WAY 

"N\f' 11+50 TO "N\f' 16+5 

-- N.R2 
Coll_,.._ SHlll 216 Of- 332 

Page 2 of2 



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 4.1 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Amy Cummings, AICP/LEED AP 
Director of Planning, Deputy 
Executive Director Executive Director 

SUBJECT: FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program 

RECOMMENDATION 

Approve the resolution adopting the Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2020-2024 Regional 
Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) and the Self Certification for the metropolitan 
transportation planning process. 

SUMMARY 

The Regional Transportation Improvement Program (R TIP) provides documentation for 
multimodal transportation improvements and identified funding sources over a five-year period. 
Projects in the RTIP are moved forward from the 2040 Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). 

This RTIP will continue many of the standing projects/programs contained in the current 
document, including the trip reduction program, previously approved Transportation Alternative 
(TA) Set-Aside projects, the purchase of RIDE and ACCESS replacement vehicles, the Intelligent 
Transportation Systems (ITS) and traffic management programs, bicycle/pedestrian projects, the 
Safe Routes to School program, the pavement preservation program, and transit and paratransit 
operations. Projects such as the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit extension will also be carried 
forward. 

Other projects being considered for the FFY 2020-2024 RTIP are those identified through 
development of the adopted 2040 RTP. It is anticipated that funding will be programmed for the 
construction phase for' many of the corridor studies RTC has completed, including: Oddie 
Boulevard/Wells A venue, Sun Valley Boulevard, and Sparks Boulevard. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no fiscal impact with this Board action. The fiscal impact of individual projects is 
identified through the budgetary process. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno , NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


FFY 2020-2024 RTIP 
R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

The air quality conformity analyses that was developed for Amendment 1 to the 2040 RTP is also 
being used for this RTIP. The 2040 RTP analysis is acceptable for the FFY 2020-2024 RTIP, as 
all of the projects that are being programmed were included in the RTP analysis. 

A 21-day public comment period preceded this public hearing (August 30-September 19). It was 
posted on the agency website and notice of a 21-day public comment/public participation period 
was published in the Reno Gazette-Journal per the RTC Public Participation Plan. Following 
approval by the Board, the document will be submitted to the Nevada Department of 
Transportation (NDOT) for inclusion into the Statewide Transportation Improvement Program 
(STIP). 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE{S) RECOMMENDATION 

Both the Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee 
(CMAC) met on September 4th and recommended approval of the draft RTIP. 

Attachments 



FFY 2020-2024 RTIP 
Attachment A 

RESOLUTION 19-3 

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE ADOPTION OF THE FFY 2020-2024 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (RTIP) 
FOR THE RENO-SPARKS URBANIZED AREA. 

WHEREAS, Title 23 Code of Federal Regulations, Part 450, and Title 49 Code of 
Federal Regulations, Part 613, require the preparation of a Regional Transportation 
Improvement Program (RTIP) by the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) at least 
every four years; and 

WHEREAS, the Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County (RTC) 
has been designated by the Governor of the State of Nevada as the Metropolitan Planning 
Organization (MPO) for Washoe County; and 

WHEREAS, the RTC, through the conduct of a continuing, comprehensive and 
coordinated transportation planning process carried out in conjunction with the RTC member 
entities and the Nevada Department of Transportation and in conformance with all applicable 
federal requirements, prepared the FFY 2020-2024 RTIP which includes all federal and non
federal regionally significant transportation projects; and 

WHEREAS, the RTC finds the FY 2020-2024 RTIP in conformance with the 2040 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP); and 

WHEREAS, the RTC finds that pursuant to Title 40 of the Code of Federal 
Regulations, Part 93, this RTIP conforms with the intent of the State Air Quality 
Implementation Plan; and, 

WHEREAS, the RTC finds that current fiscal resources are adequate to develop, 
operate and maintain the transportation system, and finds that the FFY 2020-2024 RTIP is 
limited to projects for which funds are available or committed; and 

WHEREAS, the FFY 2020-2024 RTIP has been prepared through a process of 
community and agency coordination and participation in accordance with the RTC's adopted 
Public Participation Plan and all applicable federal requirements; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Regional 
Transportation Commission does hereby adopt and endorse the FFY 2020-2024 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program. 

1 



CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned, duly qualified Chairperson of the Regional Transportation 
Commission, certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a resolution adopted at 
a legally convened meeting held on September 20, 2019. 

Bob Lucey, Chair 
Regional Transportation Commission 

STATE OF NEVADA ) 
§ 

COUNTY OF WASHOE ) 

This instrument was acknowledged before me on September 20, 2019, by Bob Lucey, Chair 
of the Regional Transportation Commission. 

Notary Public 



FFY 2020-2024 RTIP 
Attachment B 

Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County 
MPO Self Certification and Federal Certification 

The Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County (RTC) certifies that the 
metropolitan planning process is being carried out in accordance with all applicable 
requirements including: 

1. 23 U.S.C. 134, 49 U.S.C. 5303, and 23 CFR Part 450; 
2. Sections 174, 176(c) and 176(d) of the Clean Air Act as amended (42 U.S.C. 7504, 

7506(c), 7506(d)), and 40 CFR Part 93; 
3. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 as amended (42 U.S.C. 2000d-l) and 49 CFR 

Part21; 
4. 49 U.S.C. 5332, prohibiting discrimination on the basis of race, color, creed, national 

origin, sex, or age in employment or business opportunity; 
5. Section 1 l0l(b) of the FAST Act (Pub. L. 112-141) and 49 CFR Part 26 regarding the 

involvement of disadvantaged business enterprises in USDOT funded projects; 
6. 23 CFR Part 230, regarding the implementation of an equal employment opportunity 

program on Federal and Federal-aid highway construction contracts; 
7. The provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. 12101 et 

seq.) and 49 CFR parts 27, 37, and 38; 
8. The Older Americans Act, as amended (42 U.S.C. 6101), prohibiting discrimination on 

the basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance; 
9. Section 324 of Title 23 U.S.C. regarding the prohibition of discrimination based on 

gender; 
10. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. 794) and 49 CFR Part 27 

regarding discrimination against individuals with disabilities; and 
11. Public notice of public involvement activities and time established for public review 

and comment on the Regional Transportation Improvement Program will satisfy the 
Program of Projects requirements of the Section 5307 Program. 

CERTIFICATE 

The undersigned, duly qualified Chairperson of the Regional Transportation 
Commission, certifies that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of a certification adopted at 
a legally convened meeting held on September 20, 2019. 

Bob Lucey, Chair 
Regional Transportation Commission 



Attachment C 
--·---=--~--= · 

SAFETY 
PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION 

COMPLETE STREETS 

Federal Fiscal Year 
2020- 2024 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION 
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM 

Yeur RTC. Our. Bommunity. 

rfcwashoe.aom 



Table of Contents 

CHAPTER 1: INTRODUCTION 

Overview of the Regional Transportation Improvement Program Process .......................... 1 
Conformity with the Clean Air Act Amendment of 1990 .................. .......... .. .. ....... ...... .......... 2 
Implementing the FAST Act and MAP-21 ....... ..... .. ... .. ...................................... .. ..... ........... ... 3 
Safety Performance Management ................... .. .................. ..... .. ..................... ............. .. ....... 5 
FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Summary ........ ...... ........... 6 

Freeway System and Multimodal Corridor Projects ........................... .......................... 7 
Transit Programs ... .............. ............................................................................... ......... .. 8 
Transportation System Management (TSM), Transportation 

Demand Management (TDM) and Other Projects ............. .. .. ... .... ...................... 8 
Other Regional TIP Conformities and Certifications ... ............ .. ......... .. ........... ....................... 8 

Conformity with the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) ..... ...... .. .. ................ ............. 8 
Financial Capacity ............................... ......... .... .......... .... ........ ........................ ............... 8 
Public Involvement Plan .............. ..... .. .......... .. .............. ............................... .................. 9 
Conformity Determination ............. .......... ... ......... ............................................ ........ .. .. 9 

CHAPTER 2: RTIP PLANNING PROCESS 

Regional Planning Process ........... .. .... .......... .. .. ... .. .... .... ................. .. .. ... .. .......... .......... 10 
Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency (TMRPA) ............. .. ..... .... .. ....... ... 10 
Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) ........................ ...... ...... ... ......... 10 
Washoe County Health District (WCHD) .. ....... ....... .. ......... ... .. .. ....... .... ............... 10 
Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority (RTAA) ...... ......................................................... 10 

RTC Planning Process ......................... .............. ....... .. ...... ........................ .......... ... ....... 11 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) ........ ... ........................... ..... ............. ... ...... .. 11 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) ........... ........................ . 11 

RTC Advisory Committees ...................... ..... .... ... ... ..................... ........ .............. ....... ... . 12 

CHAPTER 3: CURRENT AND FUTURE TRENDS 

Socioeconomic Trends .. ..... ..... .. ............................................................. ... ..... .... .. ...... .......... 14 
Travel Trends ........................... ..... ......... ........... ... .. ....... .............. .. .... ... .... .. ..... .... ............ .. .... 14 
Population and Employment Forecasts ........................................ ........... .. ..... .... ... ...... ........ 16 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Table of Contents 
September 20, 2019 Page i 



CHAPTER 4: FEDERAL TRANSPORTATION PROGRAMS 

Introduction ..................... ................. ................. ........... ..... .... ..... ............ ............ .. .. ... .......... 17 
National Highway Performance Program (NHPP) ............................................. 17 
Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG) ........................................ 17 

Congestion Mitigation Air Quality (CMAQ) ....... ...... .. .............. .. ........................ 17 
Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) .................. .. .... .... .. ..... ............... 18 
National Highway Freight Program (NHFP) ......................... ... ........ .... ............... 18 

FAST Act Planning Provisions ........................................................................ .. ...... ....... ........ 18 
Long-Range Plan ............................................................................................. .... 18 
Transportation Management Area (TMA) Designation and 

Requirement for Congestion Management Process (CMP) ........ ...... .... .. ... 18 
MPO-State Coordination in RTIP Development.. ...... .......... .... ...... ... .................. 18 

Project Prioritization and Financial Constraint .......... ....... .. ......... ...................... 18 
Functional Classification ................................................... ............. ............. ....... 19 
Certification ....................... .. .............................. ....... .......................................... 19 

CHAPTER 5: PUBLIC TRANSPORTATION CAPITAL AND OPERATING PLAN 

Introduction ............................................. ..................................................... .......... .. ........... 20 

RTC Public Transportation Services .......................... ........................................................... 20 
RTC RIDE ................................. ........... .. .. ........................................................... ........... 20 
RTC RAPID ........................ ..... ............. .... .... ....... ........ ......... ..... .................. ......... ......... 21 
RTC REGIONAL CONNECTOR .. ........................ ......... .............. .. ... ................................. 21 
RTC ACCESS ...................... ..... .................................................................. .................... 21 
Tahoe Area Regional Transit (TART) ......................... ...... .. .. ......... ..... ..................... ... .. 22 

Prioritization of Public Transportation Improvements .............................. .... ...................... 22 
Service and Capital Strategies .................................................................... .. .. ...................... 23 

CHAPTER 6: RTIP PROJECT PRIORITIZATION 

Project Prioritization ....... ...... ................... ....... .. ............ ... ........ .. ............ ................ .. ... ......... 24 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Table of Contents 
September 20, 2019 Page ii 



CHAPTER 7: FINANCIAL PLAN 

FAST Act Requirements ............. ..................................................... ...................................... 26 
Financial Assumptions Summary ............................................... .. ........................................ 26 

Local Fund Sources ............................ ............................................................ ... ............... .... . 26 
Fuel Taxes ............................... ............................................................................... .. ... . 27 
Transit Sales Tax ..................... ..... .... .... .............. ............ .................. .... ........................ 27 
Road Sales Tax ................................ .... ........... ......... .................. ........... ..... ..... ... .... .... ... 27 

Regional Road Impact Fees (RRIF) ................ ........................ ...... ...... .......................... 27 
State Funding Sources ........................ ........... ..... ........ ...... ............... ........ ............... .............. 27 
Federal Fund Sources ..... ............................................................... ... ........ ....... ........ ... ..... ..... 27 

National Highway Performance Program (NHPP) ...................................................... 28 

Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG) .. ........ ............................ ........... 28 
Congestion Mitigation Air Quality Funds (CMAQ) ................. ..................................... 28 
Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside Program (TA Set-Aside) .................. .. ...... ....... 29 
FTA Section 5307 ...... .................................................. .... ............................................. 29-
FTA Section 5339 ....... .................................................................. .. .............................. 29 

Financial Summary ............... ................................................................. .. .......... ....... ............ 29 

CHAPTER 8: AIR QUALITY ANALYSIS AND CONFORMITY DETERMINATION 

Meeting Federal Requirements ..... .............................................................. ..... ......... ..... .. ... 31 
Status of Air Quality Pollutants .......... ... .................................................................... .. ... ...... 32 
Travel Forecasting Model and MOVES Emission Model ...................... ........ ...... .................. 35 
Air Quality Analysis-Plan Requirements .... ........................................................................ 35 
Air Quality Analysis-Crediting Provisions .......................................................................... 35 

Traffic Signal Optimization/Timing Upgrade Program ................... ............................ 36 

Conversion of RTC ACCESS and RTC RIDE Fleets to Alternative or 
Cleaner Burning Fuels .................................................................................. 36 

Trip Reduction Programs ................................................................... .. ....................... 37 
RTC Travel Demand Model ............. .... ...... .... ..... ..... ....... ...... ...... ............. .. ...... ..................... 38 
Air Quality Analysis ........................ ...................................................... .... .................... .. ...... 38 

CO Analysis .............................. ..... .. ............ ....... .............. ......... ............ ....................... 39 
PM10Analysis .............................. ................................ ................................................. 39 

Summary ....... ................................ .................. ..... ..... ....... ... .. .... .... ......... .. ............. ....... ...... 39 
Air Quality Analysis Support Documentation ................................................................... ... 40 

APPENDIX A- FFY 2020-2024 PROJECT LISTING 

APPENDIX 8- RTIP AMENDMENTS/ ADMINISTRATIVE MODIFICATIONS 

APPENDIX C - ACRONYMS 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Table of Contents 
September 20, 2019 Page iii 



LIST OF TABLES 

Page 
Table 1-1 National Safety Performance Measures ....................................... ..... ......... ......... 4 

Table 1-2 National PM2 and PM3 Performance Measures ......... .......... ..... .......... ....... ........ 5 

Table 1-3 FFY 2020-2024 RTIP Summary ............................... .......... ......... ..... ...................... 7 

Table 3-1 2018 Consensus Forecast Totals ............... ......... .............................................. .. 16 

Table 5-1 2017 RTC RIDE System Performance Indicators ................................................ 21 

Table 8-1 Design Values and Attainment Status ................................. .... ..... .. .. ...... ....... .. .. 34 

Table 8-2 RTC VAN POOL Air Pollution Reductions ......... .. .......................... .. ..................... 38 

Table 8-3 CO Emissions Analysis ............................ ................................. ..... ... .................. . 39 

Table 8-4 PM10 Total Emissions ............................ ..... ..... .... .. .................. ..... ... .... ..... .. ........ 39 

Table 8-5 Emission Factors .. .. .... .... .. ... ... .... .... ................................... ................................. 40 

Table 8-6 VMT by Facility Type by Analysis Year ..... ................... .. ....... ..... .... ....... ... ..... ... ... 40 

Table 8-7 Emissions ......................................................... .. ... ..... .. .. ... ... ..... ........ ....... .... .. .. ... 41 

List of Figures 

Figure 2-1 Regional Transportation Commission Planning Process ................... ............... ....... ... 12 

Figure 3-1 Washoe County Employment and Population Growth ... .. ....... .................................. 14 

Figure 3-2 VMT and Population Trends .... ... .. ..... ....... .............. .. ...................... ..... .......... ...... ..... .. 15 

Figure 7-1 FFY 2020-2024 RTIP Expenditures & Revenues ............ ... .. .... ......... .... ........................ 30 

Figure 8-1 Reno/Sparks Hydrographic Area #87 ............ ..... .......... ... .......... .... .............................. 33 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Table of Contents 
September 20, 2019 Page iv 



Chapter 1: Introduction 

The State Legislature created the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) in 1979, combining 
the previous statutory authority of the Regional Street and Highway Commission, the Regional 
Transit Commission and the Washoe County Area Transportation Study Policy Committee. The 
responsibilities of the RTC include design and construction of major streets and highways and 
administration of public transportation systems serving Washoe County. 

The Regional Transportation Commission (RTC} of Washoe County was designated as the 
Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for the Reno-Sparks urbanized area pursuant to 
federal law (23 USC 134). In this capacity, RTC is responsible under the Code of Federal 
Regulations (23 CFR Part 450) for carrying out a "continuing, cooperative, and comprehensive" 
transportation planning process that results in plans and programs consistent with the planned 
development of the urbanized area. The RTC prepares short- and long-range transportation 
plans for the region, programs multi-modal transportation and safety improvements through 
the RTIP process, and develops and administers the Unified Planning Work Program (UPWP). 

Overview of the Regional Transportation Improvement Program Process 

The Federal Fiscal Year (FFY) 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) 
is a five-year plan of street and highway, transit, bicycle and pedestrian projects for Washoe 
County and is based on the federal fiscal year (October - September). The RTIP includes a 
summary of projects by federal fiscal year and shows the agency responsible for implementing 
the project, funding source and other related information. The RTIP represents a prioritized 
program directed at meeting Washoe County's growing transportation needs while improving 
the region's safety, air quality, transportation efficiency, and mobility. The RTIP is required by 
federal regulation and serves as a useful tool in planning and programming transportation 
system improvements. 

The RTIP assists in implementing the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) by advancing projects 
from the first five years of the long range plan. Projects in the RTIP further the RTC guiding 
principles of supporting: 

• Safe and healthy communities 

• Economic development and diversification 

• Sustainability, and 

• Increased travel choices. 

The initial federal legislation that established overall federal transportation program direction 
and authorized funding levels to the RTC as the Metropolitan Planning Organization (MPO) for 
Washoe County was included in the 1990 Clean Air Act Amendment (CAAA) and the lntermodal 
Surface Transportation Efficiency Act of 1991 (ISTEA). There have been several surface 
transportation funding and authorization bills since ISTEA, including the Moving Ahead for 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page 1 



Progress in the 21st Century (MAP-21) Act in 2012 and the current Fixing America's Surface 
Transportation (FAST) Act, which was signed into law on December 4, 2015. The passage of MAP-21 
established a streamlined, performance-based, and multimodal program to address the many 
challenges facing the U.S. transportation system. It signaled a transition to a performance and 
outcome-based program, and directed states and MPOs to invest resources in projects to achieve 
individual targets that collectively will make progress toward national goals. The FAST Act carries 
forward and expands the performance-based transportation planning framework established under 
MAP-21. 

Conformity with the Clean Air Act Amendment of 1990 

The commitment of Congress to promote and continue major reforms in the transportation 
planning process is shown with CAAA and all transportation legislation since ISTEA in 1991. The 
conformity provisions of the CAAA established important requirements that transportation 
plans, programs and projects conform to the purpose of the State Implementation Plan (SIP). 
The SIP establishes actions designed to improve air quality and meet National Ambient Air 
Quality Standards (NAAQS) for each criteria air pollutant, according to the schedules included in 
the CAAA, and is a formal submission of the region's air quality strategy to the federal 
government. 

The emissions from motor vehicles make a significant contribution to air pollution, therefore, 
CAAA requires that transportation officials make a commitment to programs and projects that 
will help achieve air quality goals. Examples of these air quality goals include providing for 
greater integration of the transportation and air quality process; ensuring that transportation 
plans, programs and projects conform with the Statewide Implementation Plan (SIP) and 
contribute to attainment of national standards; and reducing growth in vehicle miles traveled 
(VMT) and congestion in areas that have not attained the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency 
(EPA) air quality standards. The federal standards require that certain pollutants do not exceed 
specified levels. Areas that violate this standard for specified pollutants are designated as 
non-attainment areas. 

The core area of the Truckee Meadows is designated as Hydrographic Area #87 and is fully 
incorporated within the metropolitan planning area boundary. The hydrographic area is 
designated as in "attainment/maintenance" for both carbon monoxide (CO) and particulate 
matter of less than 10 microns (PM10). A regional emissions analysis must be performed for 
each pollutant that the area is determined to be in maintenance status for. The results from 
this analysis are shown in Chapter 8. 

Washoe County is currently designated as "attainment/unclassifiable" for the 2015 ozone 
NAAQS, however, the most recent certified ozone data indicates the Truckee Meadows is not 
meeting the standard. Violating the NAAQS could lead to EPA formally re-designating the urban 
area of southern Washoe County to "non-attainment." In 2016, the RTC Board adopted a 
resolution supporting the goals identified in the Washoe County Health District, Air Quality 
Management Division's (AQMD) Ozone Advance Path Forward. Ozone Advance encourages 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page2 



voluntary actions to proactively reduce VMT, improve air quality, and avoid a "non-attainment" 
designation. Some of the projects included in this RTIP that yield improvements to the region's 
air quality include: 

• Acquisition of Electric/Zero Emission Transit Buses 

• Implementation of Bicycle/Pedestrian Facilities 
• Traffic Flow/Intersection Improvements 
• Traffic Signal Operations Program 
• Trip Reduction Program 

Implementing the FAST Act and MAP-21 

In 2014, the Federal Highway Administration (FHWA) and Federal Transit Administration (FTA) 
sent a letter to the Executive Directors of the Metropolitan Planning Organizations (MPO) and 
the heads of the State Departments of Transportation (State DOT) encouraging them to give 
priority to the following emphasis areas: MAP-21 Implementation, Regional Models of 
Cooperation, and Ladders of Opportunity. These three priorities remain as strategic objectives 
for the Surface Transportation Program and have been integrated into the RTC planning work 
program and RTIP. 

MAP-21 established the following national performance goals for Federal highway programs, 
which were continued under the FAST Act: 

• Safety-To achieve a significant reduction in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all 
public roads. 

• Infrastructure condition-To maintain the highway infrastructure asset system in a state 
of good repair. 

• Congestion reduction-To achieve a significant reduction in congestion on the National 
Highway System (NHS). 

• System reliability-To improve the efficiency of the surface transportation system. 

• Freight movement and economic vitality-To improve the national freight network, 
strengthen the ability of rural communities to access national and international trade 
markets, and support regional economic development. 

• Environmental sustainability-To enhance the performance of the transportation 
system while protecting and enhancing the natural environment. 

• Reduced project delivery delays-To reduce project costs, promote jobs and the 
economy, and expedite the movement of people and goods by accelerating project 
completion through eliminating delays in the project development and delivery process, 
including reducing regulatory burdens and improving agencies' work practices. 

In MAP-21, the transportation planning process was enhanced to incorporate performance 
goals, measures, and targets in identifying needed transportation improvements and project 
selection. The RTP describes the performance measures and targets used in assessing system 
performance and identifies progress made in achieving the performance targets. The RTIP must 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page3 



also be developed to make progress toward established performance targets, and the projects 
identified in the FFY 2020-2024 RTIP support multiple national performance goals by offering 
measurable contributions toward those targets. 

Safety Performance Management 

Safety Performance Management (Safety PM) is part of the overall Transportation Performance 
Management (TPM) program, which FHWA defines as a strategic approach that uses system 
information to make investment and policy decision to achieve national performance goals. The 
Safety PM Final Rule supports the Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP), as it 
establishes safety performance measure requirements for the purpose of carrying out the HSIP 
and to assess fatalities and serious injuries on all public roads. 

The Safety PM Final Rule establishes five performance measures as five-year rolling averages to 
include: 

l. Number of Fatalities 
2. Rate of Fatalities per 100 million Vehicle Miles Traveled (VMT) 
3. Number of Serious Injuries 
4. Rate of Serious Injuries per 100 million VMT 
5. Number of Non-motorized Fatalities and Non-motorized Serious Injuries 

The RTC's aspirational vision is that zero fatalities on our region's roadways is the only 
acceptable goal and RTC recognizes that reaching that goal will require time and significant 
effort by all stakeholders. The annual safety performance targets identified in this document 
represent an important step in working toward the ultimate goal of eliminating traffic-related 
deaths and serious injuries. The safety performance targets are considered interim
performance levels that make progress toward the long-term goal of zero fatalities. This 
approach is consistent with guidance from the U.S. Department of Transportation as well as 
states and metropolitan planning organizations (MPOs) across the nation, including the Nevada 
Department of Transportation (NDOT). The RTC is also an active stakeholder in the Vision Zero 
Truckee Meadows Task Force. Table 1-1 shows the current targets and status of national 
measures. 

Table 1-1 
National Safety (PMl) Performance Measures 

Blr.P1Goal P:e~'ftt.e-lM:_~1.a·~s Pedormanee l'll:ll8at :lmP.erformance 
[~:e,Status 

2011 ~elitnb1tne,i! 
Target Status 

Improve 
Safety 

Number of fatal crashes 
(5-year average) 

8% annual reduction 
from previous year 
trend line (37 for year 
2017) 

37 Met 2017 goal and 
working towards 
aspirational goal of 
Zero Fatalities 

Number offatal crashes 
per 100 million VMT 
( 5-year average) 

1.01 for year 2017 
based on fatal crashes 
target 

1.00 Met 2017 goal and 
working towards 
aspirational goal of 
Zero Fatalities 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page4 



Number of serious injury Maintain existing 161 Met 2017 goal and 
crashes (5-year average) decreasing trend (172 working towards 

for year 2017) aspirational goal of 
Zero Fatalities 

Number of serious injury 4.80 base on serious 3.59 Met 2017 goal and 
crashes per 100 million injury crashes target working towards 
VMT (5-year average) based on serious aspirational goal of 

injury crashes target Zero Fatalities 
Number of non-motorized 8% annual reduction 13 Met 2017 goal and 
fatalities (5-year average) from previous year working towards 

trend line (13 for year aspirational goal of 
2017) Zero Fatalities 

Number of non-motorized Maintain existing 32 Met 2017 goal and 
serious injuries (5-year decreasing trend working towards 
average) (33 in 2017) aspirational goal of 

Zero Fatalities 

Note: 2017 crash data is the most recent data available at the time of this publication . 

Pavement and Bridge Condition and System/Freight/CMAQ Performance 

Management 

As part of the TPM program, MAP-21 established measures for assessing pavement and bridge 
condition for the National Highway Performance Program (known as PM2). It also established 
measures for travel time reliability on the Interstate and non-Interstate NHS for all vehicles as 
well as for truck traffic specifically (Interstate only), and the assessment of the Congestion 
Mitigation and Air Quality (CMAQ) Improvement Program through measurement of total 
emissions reduction of on-road mobile source emissions. These measures are known as PM3. 
The most recent RTC targets for these measures are shown in the table below. 

Table 1-2 
National PM2 and PM3 Performance Measures 

Performance Measure Target 
Percentage of pavements of the Interstate Adopt NDOT 4-year target of 74.7% 
system in good condition 
Percentage of pavements of the Interstate Adopt NDOT 4-year target of 1.4% 
system in poor condition 
Percentage of pavements of the non- Adopt NDOT 4-year target of 55.8% 
Interstate NHS in good condition 
Percentage of pavements of the non- Adopt NDOT 4-year target of 6.5% 
Interstate NHS in poor condition 
Percentage of NHS bridges classified as in good Adopt NDOT 4-year target of 35.0% 
condition 
Percentage of NHS bridges classified as in poor Adopt NDOT 4-year target of 7.0% 
condition 
Percentage of person-miles traveled on the Adopt NDOT 4-year target of 87.0% 
Interstate that are reliable 
Percentage of person-miles traveled on the Establish RTC 4-year target of 70% 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page5 



non-Interstate NHS that are reliable 
Truck Travel Time Reliability (TTTR) Index Adopt NDOT 4-year target of 1.26 
Total emission reduction of NOx for CMAQ 
funded projects 

Establish RTC 4-year target of 152.1 kg/day 

Total emission reduction of voe for CMAQ 
funded projects 

Establish RTC 4-year target of 266.9 kg/day 

Total emission reduction of PM10 for CMAQ 
funded projects 

Establish RTC 4-year target of 1.2 kg/day 

Total emission reduction of CO for CMAQ 
funded projects 

Establish RTC 4-year target of 2,019.2 kg/day 

The RTC chose to adopt NDOT targets for the pavement and bridge condition (PM2) measures 
as the RTC has minimal participation in the maintenance of the majority of the Interstate and 
non-Interstate NHS facilities. The RTC has adopted a local performance management target for 
the pavement condition of regional roads which is expressed as an overall Pavement Condition 
Index (PCI) of 80. 

Similarly, the RTC adopted the NDOT targets for the percentage of person-miles traveled on the 
Interstate that are reliable as well as the Truck Travel Time Reliability TTTR index, as these 
measures reflect conditions on the state-owned and operated portions of 1-80 and 1-580 in the 
Reno-Sparks area. Level of Travel Time Reliability (LOTTR) is defined as the ratio of the longer 
travel times (80th percentile) to a "normal" travel time (50th percentile), using data from 
FHWA's National Performance Management Research Data Set (NPMRDS) or equivalent. Data 
to reflect the users can include bus, auto, and truck occupancy levels. Conversely, there are 
several RTC projects and programs that can influence travel behavior on the regional roads. 
Therefore, the RTC established a target of 70% for the percentage of person-miles traveled on 
the non-Interstate NHS that are reliable. 

For similar reasons, the RTC established local targets for the emissions reduction in criteria 
pollutants of CMAQ-funded projects. The Reno-Sparks and Las Vegas urbanized areas are the 
only two areas in the state that are in maintenance or non-attainment of National Ambient Air 
Quality Standards (NAAQS) for criteria air pollutants. The state targets for these performance 
measures are simply the sum of the total emissions reductions for both Reno-Sparks and Las 
Vegas. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Summary 

The following table is a summary of the highway, transit capital and operating, bikeway and 
other projects in the RTIP. The 5-year program has a total cost of approximately $867 million. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 6 



Table 1-3 
FFV 2020-2024 RTIP Summary 

Project by Mode/Program Total Cost % of Total 
Program 

Multimodal Corridor Improvements $356,627,529 41.2% 
Freeway System Improvements $258,720,000 29.9% 
Pavement Preservation $91,000,000 10.5% 

Transit Operating and Capita l $85,704,525 9.9% 

Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements $38,702,202 4.5% 

Bridge Maintenance $15,950,000 1.8% 

Intelligent Transportation Systems 
(ITS)/Traffic Management 

$12,784,000 1.5% 

Other Projects/Programs* $7,040,912 0.8% 

TOTAL $866,529,168 100.0% 
* Includes Safe Routes to School, trip reduction, bicycle/pedestrian safety education programs, rail 

crossing improvements and maintenance agreements. 

The complete RTIP project listing is contained in Appendix A, and represents the status of 
projects at the time of the adoption of this document. The listing shows the project 
description, the project limits where applicable, the project phase (preliminary 
engineering/design, right-of-way, construction, or "other" - operations or equipment 
purchases), the year programmed, the project costs and the federal, state and/or local 
contributions to the project cost. Over the lifetime of the current RTIP, it is anticipated that 
there will be amendments or administrative modifications, as it is a living document. To ensure 
portrayal of the most current status of a given project, those interested are encouraged to 
search for projects in the electronic Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (eSTIP). 
The eSTIP can be accessed online at https://estip.nevadadot.com/default.asp, and contains a 
searchable/sortable database for projects within the entire State of Nevada. 

The individual projects in the RTIP were developed through coordination between the RTC, the 
Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT), Washoe County and the cities of Reno and 
Sparks and based on the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP), which was developed through 
extensive public outreach. The RTC Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) and Citizens 
Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC) also provided input. 

Freeway System and Multimodal Corridor Projects 

The RTIP programs approximately $615 million in freeway system and multimodal corridor 
projects. This funding typically comes from federal FAST Act programs, RTC Fuel Tax and state 
gas tax. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page 7 

https://estip.nevadadot.com/default.asp


Approximately $259 million is programmed by NDOT for freeway improvement projects, such 
as improvements to the Spaghetti Bowl and other projects on US 395 and 1-80. Major 
multimodal projects include design and construction of RTC improvements for the Pyramid 
Highway/US 395 Connector, Sparks Boulevard, Lemmon Drive, Mill Street/Terminal Way, 
Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT} Extension, Oddie Boulevard/Wells Avenue and Sun 
Valley Boulevard for a combined cost of roughly $357 million. In addition to the corridor 
improvements, RTC has programmed about $39 million for bicycle and pedestrian projects that 
have been identified in the Complete Streets Master Plan and Bicycle-Pedestrian Master Plan. 
Another $91 million is allocated to the ongoing RTC Pavement Preservation program to 
maximize the useful life of the regional road network. 

Transit Programs 

The RTIP programs approximately $86 million on public transportation projects during the five
year period. This includes the RTC RIDE fixed-route transit system (including RTC REGIONAL 
CONNECTOR} and the RTC ACCESS paratransit services system. Most capital outlays are federal 
funds from FTA Section 5307, Section 5339 and the Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality 
(CMAQ} program. The primary capital expenditures call for the replacement of RTC RIDE buses 
and RTC ACCESS vans. The RTC is systematically phasing out older diesel RIDE buses with new 
zero emission, electric buses in an effort to achieve its goal of a 100% electric fleet by 2040. 

Transportation Systems Management (TSM), Transportation Demand Management {TOM) 
and Other Projects 

Transportation system operations improvements maximize the capacity of existing roadways in 
a highly cost effective way. RTC conducts a traffic operations program cooperatively with 
Washoe County, the City of Reno and the City of Sparks. Over the next five years, roughly $13 
million is to be used for the traffic management program, intersection geometric 
improvements, and intersection capacity improvements. This amount also includes NDOT 
expenditures on similar projects. 

Other RTIP Conformities and Certifications 

Conformity with the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) 

The projects in the RTIP are developed from the project list and policies included in the 
Regional Transportation Plan (RTP}, and therefore conform to the RTP. The RTIP is the principal 
mechanism for implementing the transportation projects and programs contained in the RTP. 

Financial Capacity 

With federal programs, the RTC is required to evaluate the financial capacity of the agency to 
conduct and carry forward the financial requirements related to public transportation 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
PageB 



operations. The financial capacity analysis is prepared annually by the RTC Finance Department 
with the budget process. The RTC has the financial capacity to continue the street and highway 
and the public transportation programs through the five-year operating and capital financial 
model. 

Public Involvement Plan 

Federal legislation requires that each MPO formally adopt a proactive public involvement 
process. The intent of the process is an early and continuing involvement of the public in 
developing transportation plans and programs. The RTC most recently updated its Public 
Participation Plan in November 2017, which is compliant with federal regulations and is a 
comprehensive plan outlining the public involvement and education process. 

Conformity Determination 

The air quality and regulatory conformity determination associated with the RTIP is included as 
part of this document. A finding of conformity by the Regional Transportation Commission 
(RTC) is required before approval of federal program funding for individual projects included in 
the RTIP. The RTIP will be reviewed and updated every two to four years, allowing 
consideration and revision of project priorities. The resolution adopting this RTIP incorporates 
the required findings of conformance. Chapter 8 provides specific detail on the air quality and 
regulatory conformity analysis and determination. RTC works closely with the Washoe County 
Air Quality Management Division and other partner agencies involved in air quality analysis 
through periodic interagency consultation meetings. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page9 



Chapter 2: Planning Process 

The RTIP is developed with the assistance and cooperation of state and local governments, 
including public works and planning officials, who develop project proposals and review the 
project listing developed by RTC staff. 

Regional Planning Process 

As the MPO for the Reno-Sparks urbanized area, the RTC is responsible for carrying out a 
"continuing, cooperative, comprehensive" transportation planning process that results in plans 
and programs consistent with the planned development of the urbanized area. The RTC 
develops the RTP, RTIP, and other planning documents in close cooperation with several 
federal, state and local transportation and environmental agencies as described below. 

Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency (TMRPA) The TMRPA, created by state legislation 
in 1989, is responsible for preparation and implementation of the Truckee Meadows Regional 
Plan (referred to as the Regional Plan). The TMRPA is comprised of the Regional Planning 
Governing Board {RPGB), the Regional Planning Commission {RPC), and staff. The Regional Plan 
addresses regional urban form, natural resource management, infrastructure, and service 
provision within Washoe County. The agency implements the Regional Plan by ensuring that 
master plans of local governments and affected entities conform to adopted policies. The RTC is 
considered an affected entity and as such the RTP must be in conformance with the Regional 
Plan. 

Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) NDOT is responsible for planning, 
programming, construction, and maintenance activities involving federal aid and state gas tax 
funding. Planning and programming of these projects are coordinated with RTC through the 
RTIP and RTP processes. NDOT also provides funds to RTC for transportation planning and 
transit operations and provides technical data and analysis to support the regional 
transportation planning process. 

Washoe County Health District (WCHD) The WCHD has statutory responsibility for developing 
and implementing air quality plans and programs in Washoe County. The District is a strong 
partner with RTC in promoting a healthy community. The Air Quality Management Division 
(AQMD) and Chronic Disease Prevention Program actively support transportation investments 
that improve community health. 

Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority (RTAA) The RTAA, created in 1977 by the State Legislature, has 
responsibility for county-wide airport operations and planning. It is the owner and operator of 
the Reno-Tahoe International and Reno-Stead Airports. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 10 



RTC Planning Process 

The RTC planning process is intended to provide decision makers with plans and projects that 
effectively meet community needs. The measure of any planning program is the extent to 
which planned projects are implemented and the extent to which the desired objectives are 
achieved. Transportation planning in Washoe County has been successful due in large part to 
the unique structure of RTC as both a planning and an implementing agency. 

Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) The central component or foundation of the RTC planning 
process is the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP). The RTP includes transportation policies 
encompassing multimodal travel by vehicles, transit, bicycles, and pedestrians and also 
addresses transportation management strategies. The RTP identifies the facilities, services and 
programs necessary to meet increasing travel demands through a minimum of a 20-year 
planning horizon. 

The RTP includes guiding principles that are the overarching themes that recur throughout the 
plan and provide the basis for the goals and selection of transportation investments. The 
principles are: 

• Safe and Healthy Communities 

• Economic Development and Diversification 
• Sustainability 

• Increased Travel Choices 

The goals that were developed to support the guiding principles include: 

• Improve Safety 
• Integrate Land Use and Economic Development 

• Promote Healthy Communities and Sustainability 
• Manage Existing Systems Efficiently 

• Integrate All Types of Transportation 

• Focus on Regional Connectivity 

• Promote Equity and Environmental Justice 

• Improve Freight and Goods Movement 
• Invest Strategically 

The guiding principles and goals are discussed in detail in Chapter 1 of the Regional 
Transportation Plan. 

Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) The RTIP is a five-year, multimodal 
transportation plan for implementation of projects in Washoe County. It includes transit, 
paratransit, major street and highway capital projects and transportation system and demand 
management programs. The RTIP is the RTC's principal means of implementing long-term 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 11 



transportation planning objectives through annual programming of specific projects. Public 
transportation projects are incorporated into the RTIP. The implementation of the RTP guiding 
principles and goals occurs mainly through the RTIP, as shown in Figure 2-1. 

Figure 2-1 

Regional Transportation Commission 

Planning Process 

RTP 
RTC Long-Range 
Multimodal Plan 

RTIP 
RTC Short-Range 

5-year Multimodal Plan 

Statewide Transportation 
Improvement Program (STIP) 

NDOT Statewide 4-year 
Multimodal Plan 

I I 
NDOTANNUALPROGRAM RTC ANNUAL PROGRAM 

Project Implementation Pavement Preservation, 
Multimodal & Transit 

RTC Advisory Committees 

RTC has established two standing advisory committees that participate actively in the 
transportation planning process. The Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee (CMAC) is a 
self-governing committee that meets once a month and has responsibility for reviewing agency 
plans and projects, evaluating plan conclusions and recommendations and providing general 
public input into the planning process. The CMAC consists of citizens from various jurisdictions 
of Washoe County appointed by the RTC Board to provide public input to RTC staff in the 
conduct of transportation planning activities. CMAC membership is geographically diverse and 
maintains a balance of members with an interest in or experience with one of the following 
emphases: RTC RIDE (fixed route transit), RTC ACCESS (paratransit), bicycle/pedestrian, and 
general multimodal transportation; thus providing another forum for discussion of regional 
transportation issues. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page 12 



The Technical Advisory Committee (TAC) is composed of planning and public works personnel 
from each of the local governmental entities including the Cities of Reno and Sparks and 
Washoe County. In addition, representatives from the Nevada Department of Transportation 
(NDOT), Federal Highway Administration (FHWA), Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency 
(TMRPA), the Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority (RTAA), Washoe County Health District, Air Quality 
Management Division (WCHD-AQMD), Reno-Sparks Indian Colony (RSIC) and Washoe County 
School District (WCSD) provide input on transportation and air quality planning issues. It is the 
responsibility of this committee to review and comment on plans developed by RTC from a 
technical standpoint. It also advises and assists the RTC planning staff with methods and 
procedures and recommends technical standards. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 13 



Chapter 3: Current and Future Trends 

Socioeconomic Trends 

Between 2000 and 2017, the U.S. Census Bureau indicates that the county population increased 
from 341,389 to 457,333. During this same time, employment increased from 188,965 to 
219,548. While growth slowed during the national recession, employment has surpassed pre
recession levels, and long term projections indicate a 2040 population of about 560,000. 

Figure 3-1 

2000 - 2017 Washoe County Population and Employment 

500,000 

450,000 

400,000 

350,000 

300,000 

250,000 

200,000 

150,000 

100,000 

50,000 

2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 7.005 7.006 7.007 2008 2009 2010 }011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Population � Employment 

Travel Trends 

One of the goals of the RTC is to increase the share of trips made by walking, bicycling, and 
riding transit. A comprehensive program to document alternative mode use and monitor 
changes over time was initiated in 2013. A stated goal in the 2040 RTP is a 15% alternative 
mode share within the transit service area by 2040. The 2018 Annual Bicycle, Pedestrian, & 
Wheelchair Report indicates that the average total non-motorized mode share within the 
transit service area was 12.4%. A select number of count locations on the Virginia Street 
(Virginia Line) and 4th Street/Prater Way (Lincoln Line) BRT corridors help to measure 
performance against these criteria as well. The RTC has been collecting count data at several 
locations near major trip generators within these corridors, and a target of 40% alternative 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 14 



mode share for both corridors was established in the 2040 RTP. The average alternative mode 
share was 21.6% and 27.3% for the Virginia Street and 4th/Prater TOD corridors, respectively. 
It is important to note that some of the count locations within these corridors were significantly 
impacted by road construction during the last count cycle, and transit ridership on both Virginia 
Street and 4th Street/Prater Way was down. By comparison, the 2017 Annual Bicycle, 
Pedestrian, & Wheelchair Report indicated an average alternative mode share of 26.2% and 
35.0% for the Virginia Street and 4th/Prater corridors, respectively. However, ridership within 
the 4th Street/Prater Way corridor has been steadily increasing since the Lincoln Line opened in 
October 2018. As of June 2019, the combined ridership on the Lincoln Line and Route 11 (the 
local fixed route within the corridor) has increased 41% over the same month in the previous 
year. 

Annually, NDOT has tracked the growth in motor vehicle travel in Washoe County as part of the 
Highway Performance Monitoring System (HPMS). While population increased from 417,722 in 
2009 to 465,735 in 2018, the HPMS estimate of annual vehicle miles of travel (VMT) increased 
from about 3.2 billion in 2009 to more than 3.9 billion in 2018. Figure 3-2 shows the VMT and 
population growth trends during this period. The growth in VMT has significantly outpaced the 
rate of increase in the population, with an average annual growth rate of almost double that of 
the population. This current trend supports the need for more investment in alternative modes 
of transportation. 

Figure 3-2 

VMT and Population Trend 

500,000 

450,000 
417,722 421,958 424,000 427,452 431,223 436,493 442,728 450,142 457,333 465,735 

4.50 

4 .00 

400,000 3.80 3.80 
3.91 

3.50 

350,000 
3.22 3.24 3.23 

3.42 3,38 
3 .54 3.60 

3.00 

300,000 VI 
C Q) 
0 2.50 

'.µ ~ 
"' 250,000 C ::J --Population 
0.. 2.00 

.Q 
0 

Cl... --vMT In Billion i:i:i 200,000 

1.50 
150,000 

l.00 
100,000 

a.so 50,000 

2009 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 201 5 2016 2017 2018 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page 15 



Population and Employment Forecasts 

The Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency (TMRPA) develops the population and 
employment forecasts used in the regional travel demand model in partnership with RTC, 
NDOT, Washoe County, City of Reno, and City of Sparks. TMRPA uses an allocation based 
model to visually display a variety of population growth scenarios. As this RTIP is based on the 
2040 RTP amendment approved on August 17 2018, the 2016-2036 Washoe County Consensus 
Forecast was used to establish the long range total population projections for Reno, Sparks, and 
unincorporated Washoe County. Full documentation of the Consensus Forecasts is available on 
the TMRPA website. RTC works with TMRPA through a shared use program which includes 
support and collaboration in GIS analysis, data collection, online data access, and development 
of the Consensus Forecast. 

Table 3-1 
2016 Consensus Forecast Totals 

Households, Population and Employment 

Model Year 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Households 178,903 191,376 202,373 212,233 220,946 228,916 
Population 441,946 473,884 499,261 522,286 543,931 559,995 
Employees 265,878 293,907 311,935 327,798 344,119 365,354 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 16 



Chapter 4: Federal Transportation Programs 

Introduction 

The federal lntermodal Surface Transportation Efficiency Act (ISTEA) of 1991 established overall 
federal transportation program direction and, through the reauthorizations of the bill, a major 
portion of the FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program (RTIP) funding is 
provided. These programs were, for the most part, continued under TEA-21 and SAFETEA-LU 
transportation legislation. When MAP-21 was enacted, some of the core highway formula 
programs were restructured and carried through the FAST Act. A brief summary of each of the 
programs is provided below. 

National Highway Performance Program (NHPP} The NHPP combined former SAFETEA-LU 
programs including the National Highway System and Interstate Maintenance and Bridge 
Programs. The NHPP provides support to the condition and performance of the National 
Highway System (NHS) for the construction of new facilities on the NHS and to ensure that 
investments of Federal-aid funds in highway construction are directed to support progress 
toward the achievement of performance targets to be established in the states asset 
management plan. 

Surface Transportation Block Grant Program {STBG) The STBG program provides flexible 
funding that may be used for projects to preserve or improve conditions and performance on 
any Federal-aid highway; bridge projects on any public road; facilities for non-motorized 
transportation; transit capital and public bus terminals and facilities. These funds provide 
NDOT and RTC with the opportunity to program funds for new construction, maintenance, 
transit, ridesharing/employer trip reduction (ETR), centralized traffic signal control systems and 
traffic management programs. The STBG program is divided into STBG-Statewide and STBG 
Washoe County Urbanized Area (STBG-Local) funding categories. 

Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement Program (CMAQ) The CMAQ funding 
category is available to air quality non-attainment/maintenance areas and the majority of the 
Truckee Meadows is an air quality maintenance area for specific criteria pollutants identified 
under the CAAA. Funding from the CMAQ program can only be used for projects that will have 
substantial air quality benefits or the type of improvements identified in the State 
Implementation Plan (SIP). CMAQ cannot be used to fund projects that will result in the 
construction of new capacity available to single-occupancy vehicles (SOVs). Programs and 
projects that CMAQ can fund include programs to improve public transit, ETR programs, 
intersection improvements, traffic flow improvements that reduce emissions, 
bicycle/pedestrian facilities, park-and-ride facilities, and programs to restrict vehicle use in 
areas of emissions concentration. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 17 



Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) The HSIP is a core Federal-aid program with the 
purpose to achieve a significant reduction in traffic fatalities and serious injuries on all public 
roads, including locally (non-state)-owned roads and roads on tribal land. The HSIP requires a 
data-driven, strategic approach to improving highway safety on all public roads with a focus on 
performance. 

National Highway Freight Progra m (NHFP) The NHFP is a new funding program authorized 
through the FAST Act, which is focused on improving the efficient movement of freight on the 
National Highway Freight Network (NHFN). Funds are distributed to states by formula for 
eligible activities, such as construction, operational improvements, freight planning, and 
performance measurement. A_state must have a State Freight Plan approved by FHWA in order 
to obligate NHFP funds. The Nevada State Freight Plan was approved in September 2016. 

FAST Act Planning Provisions 

The passage of the FAST Act made no significant regulatory changes pertaining to 
transportation planning. The most important planning requirements that are included in the 
RTC planning process are summarized below. 

Long-Range Plan The MPO must prepare a long-range transportation plan that identifies 
transportation facilities for all modes necessary to serve a 20-year forecast period at a 
minimum. The long-range plan must include a financial plan that demonstrates how the long
range plan can be implemented, including all public and private revenue sources that are 
"reasonably expected to be made available to carry out the plan, and recommends any 
innovative financing techniques to finance needed projects and programs." 

Transportation Management Area (TMA) Designation and Requirement for Congestion 
Management Process (CMP} The Secretary of the Department of Transportation is required to 
designate all urbanized areas with more than 200,000 population as TMAs. Within a TMA, it is 
necessary to develop a Congestion Management Process (CMP) that provides for effective 
management of new and existing transportation facilities eligible for federal funding. The RTC 
developed a CMP that was updated in the 2040 RTP. 

MPO-State Coordination in RTIP Development Federal regulation states that all federally 
funded projects within the boundaries of a metropolitan planning area serving a TMA shall be 
selected for implementation from the approved RTIP by the MPO in consultation with the state. 
It specifies that the RTIP project selection is the responsibility of the MPO. 

Project Prioritization and Financial Constraint Federal regulation also requires that the RTIP 
prioritize all projects and have a financial plan that demonstrates that funding is available for 
the projects listed. These requirements are discussed in Chapter 6-Project Prioritization and 
Chapter 7-Financial Plan of this document. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 18 



Functional Classification NDOT is required to develop a functional classification of roads and 
streets and the designation of routes on the Federal-aid highway system "in cooperation with 
local and regional officials." Functional classification identifies and groups roadways by the 
character of the service they provide. It was necessary to designate the National Highway 
System (NHS) segments within Nevada by 1993. The NHS in Washoe County was updated in 
2016 through a cooperative effort with NDOT and the RTC. 

Certification The Secretary of the Department of Transportation is required to certify that each 
MPO is carrying out its responsibilities under the law. The first certification deadline was 
September 30, 1993. Recertification must occur every four years. The next scheduled 
recertification for the RTC is September 2019. Federal funding may be withheld if the MPO is 
not certified. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page 19 



Chapter 5: Public Transportation Capital and Operating Plan 

Introduction 

The FFY 2020-2024 Public Transportation Capital and Operating Plan provides an overview of 
the current status of public transportation and, more importantly, is a plan for future service 
delivery. Public transportation is a valuable community asset that helps reduce traffic 
congestion, improve air quality, and provide essential mobility. This service allows local 
residents to access jobs, education, and commercial activities. By providing transit service 
along Urban Corridors, public transportation also helps promote the higher density, mixed use, 
and walkable communities envisioned in the Truckee Meadows Regional Plan. 

RTC Public Transportation Services 

The RTC provides the following public transportation services to the residents of Washoe 
County: 

• RTC RIDE 

• RTC RAPID 
• RTC REGIONAL CONNECTOR 

• RTC ACCESS 
• Tahoe Area Regional Transit (TART) - RTC is a partner with Placer County, CA and the 

Tahoe Transportation District (TTD) 

RTC RIDE - RTC RIDE began operating public transportation services on September 18, 1978 
and is RTC's primary fixed-route public transportation system. RTC owns RTC RIDE facilities and 
equipment. RTC RIDE is operated by a private contractor under a turn-key contract. 

RTC RIDE is a public fixed-route transit service owned by RTC. Passage of a 1/4% sales tax 
referendum by the voters of Washoe County on September 14, 1982, provided the financial 
resources necessary to expand fixed-route and paratransit service. As federal transit funding 
steadily declined over the past several years, the sales tax funding has been critical to 
continued improvement in public transportation. As part of a larger transportation funding 
package, transit funding was increased by the adoption of an additional 1/8% sales tax effective 
July 1, 2003, half of which has generally been used for transit and the other half for roadways. 

The RTC RIDE system encompasses the Cities of Reno and Sparks and areas of Washoe County, 
using a fleet of approximately 70 buses on 26 fixed routes. The system operates in a 90 square
mile service area based on a ¾-mile distance from each fixed route (excluding RTC REGIONAL 
CON ECTOR). 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page 20 



RTC RAPID - On October 11, 2009, RTC RAPID was introduced. RTC RAPID is a Bus Rapid Transit 
(BRT) express service, known as the Virginia Line, which serves the Virginia Street corridor from 
downtown Reno to Meadowood Mall. RTC RAPID includes level-boarding stations with more 
amenities. The service includes technology that allows the buses to communicate with the 
traffic signals to extend the green time several seconds for the bus. Design improvements help 
vehicles move around other traffic. The RAPID currently operates between 4th STREET STATION 
and Meadowood Mall and runs seven days a week. Construction has begun to expand this 
service further north on Virginia Street to provide a stronger connection between the 
University of Nevada - Reno (UNR), downtown Reno, and the Midtown neighborhood. In 
addition, a second RAPID route, called the Lincoln Line, went into operation December 2018 
after the construction was completed to provide RTC RAPID service on the 4th Street/Prater 
Way corridor between CENTENIAL PLAZA STATION in Sparks and 4th STREET STATION in Reno to 
provide greater connectivity between downtown Reno and downtown Sparks. 

RTC REGIONAL CONNECTOR - RTC REGIONAL CONNECTOR provides a commuter service 
between Reno and Carson City. The service operates Monday through Friday through a 
partnership between RTC and Carson City. This premium service carries over 36,000 
passengers per year. This route is 33 miles each way and offers free WiFi. It runs three trips in 
the morning and three trips in the afternoon. 

Table 5-1 
FY 2017 RTC RIDE System Performance Indicators 

Total Number of Rides in FY 2017 7.4 million 

Average Number of Rides per Day 21,000 

Total Service Hours (Revenue Vehicle Hours) 253,381 

Average Passengers per Service Hour 30.0 

Route w/H ighest Passengers per Service Hour RAPID (44.1) 

Non-RAPID Route w/H ighest Passengers per Service Hour Route 11, 4th St/Prater Way (40.2) 

Total RTC RAPID Ridership 1,297,903 

RTC ACCESS - In 1988, RTC established RTC ACCESS and assumed direct responsibility for 
providing door-to-door transportation for people with disabilities in the Reno/Sparks urbanized 
area. RTC ACCESS operates 24 hours a day, 7 days a week, in compliance with Americans with 
Disabilities Act (ADA) regulations. RTC ACCESS services include vans and night taxis. In FY 
2017, 231,438 rides were provided, with an average of 2.7 rides per service hour. 
Approximately 4,500 individuals are certified as ADA paratransit eligible in Washoe County. 
The RTC ACCESS van fleet uses compressed natural gas (CNG), a cleaner burning fuel, for better 
air quality and lower emissions. 

RTC ACCESS also services some areas in the community beyond this geographic area (called the 
Non-ADA Zone). Funding assistance for trips in the Non-ADA Zone is provided by the Sierra 
Nevada Transportation Coalition (formerly CitiCare), a non-profit organization. Because RTC 
does not have the resources to provide fixed-route and paratransit service to all residences in 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page21 



Washoe County, the agency is pursuing partnerships with not-for-profit providers that can 
serve outlying areas and other specialized transportation needs. The Section 5310 Program, 
funded by the FTA, allows RTC to offer competitive grant funding to organizations that provide 
enhanced mobility for seniors and persons with disabilities. 

Tahoe Area Regional Transit (TART) - Tahoe Area Regional Transit (TART) began operation in 
February 1975 and is operated by Placer County, California. In 1985, RTC signed an interlocal 
cooperative agreement (ICA) with Placer County to fund the extension of the TART system into 
the Incline Village/Crystal Bay area, which has since been amended to include participation with 
the Tahoe Transportation District (TTD). TART provides fixed-route service to people living in 
the communities of Tahoma, Homewood, Tahoe City, Kings Beach, Truckee and Incline Village 
with four fixed routes daily. 

Prioritization of Public Transportation Improvements 

Federal legislation requires prioritization of projects in the RTIP. This requirement is consistent 
with existing RTC practices to evaluate the overall benefit of any public transportation project. 
The following issues are considered before changes in transit service are made: 

1. What is the intent of the project and why is it needed? 

2. What are the anticipated benefits? 
a. What user groups or area of the community will benefit from the project? 
b. What existing services or facilities are available to that group or area? 
c. Will the project improve productivity? 
d. Is the project self-sustaining after the initial funding? 

3. How will the project improve the availability of public transportation? 
a. Does the project enhance service level? 

4. Does the project improve overall level of service performance standards? 

5. Does the project provide air quality benefits? 

6. What is the overall cost effectiveness of the project? 

7. Does the project leverage other funding sources? 

The analysis of new or expanded service addresses current and future demand as well as the 
cost effectiveness of each service. Capital improvements are prioritized by the RTC for inclusion 
in the RTIP. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 22 



Service and Capital Strategies 

Transit is recognized as an essential part of the local economy that helps thousands of Washoe 
County residents get to work each day. Transit helps shape development patterns and is an 
economic development tool that supports local transit oriented development (TOD) zoning and 
land use policies. Transit also provides a critical public service to residents and visitors that do 
not drive or do not have an automobile. The environmental benefits of transit service are also 
well recognized - reducing the number of cars on the road reduces traffic congestion and air 
pollution. 

Attracting new riders and encouraging current riders to take more trips on public 
transportation requires improving the customers' total transportation experience. It is 
important not only to expand service to new areas of the community and to make existing 
service more frequent where passenger loads warrant, but also to consider other factors 
including: 

• How do passengers get to and from their bus stop? 
• What is the waiting environment like? 
• Do the buses run on-time? 
• Are the vehicles and passenger amenities clean? 
• Is sufficient information about bus stops, routes and schedules readily available to the 

public? 
• How long does it take to travel from origin to destination? 

RTC must formulate service and capital strategies based on these factors to attract new riders 
and encourage existing riders to take more trips while balancing financial projections for the 
system in the future . Because of this, the fiscally constrained transit program maintains the 
existing service with the following modifications planned for FFY 2020 through FFY 2024: 

• Extension of RTC RAPID to the University of Nevada, Reno 

• Reallocation of service hours to achieve greater efficiency 

• Increase subsidy and expand eligibility for taxi bucks/Washoe Senior Ride Program 
• Continuation of the FTA 5310 grant program to fund not-for profit transportation 

services. 

The public transportation improvements for FFY 2020-2024 are contained in the project listing 
in Appendix A. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page23 



Chapter 6: RTIP Project Prioritization 

The RTP process incorporated several project selection criteria, including safety, land use 
compatibility, level of multimodal connectivity and operational improvement, travel demand, 
and community input. Projects were identified for consideration in the RTP though a variety of 
ways: 

• Existing 2040 RTP 

• Corridor studies 
• Road Safety Assessments and Safety Management Plans 
• A call for projects that was made to the 2040 RTP Working Groups, the RTC Citizens 

Multimodal Advisory Committee, RTC Technical Advisory Committee, RTC Board, City 
Councils of Reno and Sparks, Washoe County Commission, and the Regional Planning 
Governing Board . 

All of the projects suggested for consideration in the RTP were evaluated based on the 
following factors: 

1. Safety: Because safety is a guiding principle and goal of the RTP, projects that 
addressed safety issues at high crash locations or deficiencies identified through Road 
Safety Assessments and Safety Management Plans were identified. All RTC projects are 
designed to appropriate safety design standards. For programmatic investments that 
include multiple projects, such as traffic signal upgrades and pavement preservation, 
some of these projects are located in high crash locations while others are not. 

2. Land Use Compatibility: The next level of screening was for land use compatibility. The 
Regional Plan and land use plans of Reno and Sparks contain policies that support the 
implementation of multimodal transportation improvements, compact development in 
areas where local zoning ordinances allow, and pedestrian-friendly design. Locations 
with school crossings or other areas of high transit and pedestrian activity were noted as 
being less suitable for roadway widenings. 

3. Multimodal Connectivity (Pedestrian & Bicycle) : Because improving travel choices 
through multimodal connectivity is another guiding principle of the RTP, projects were 
scored on the level of non-motorized capacity they would bring. The evaluation process 
identified which projects include bicycle or pedestrian components. 

4. Multimodal Connectivity (Transit): Similarly to the evaluation of projects based on non
motorized capacity, projects were also scored on the level of transit capacity and 
amenities they would bring. The evaluation process identified which projects include 
transit components. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page 24 



5. ITS/Operational Improvement: Operational improvements, such as traffic signal or 
fiber optic communication systems upgrades, are also important investments to 
improve traffic flow while minimizing the need for new vehicle capacity. The evaluation 
process identified which projects include an ITS or operational improvement 
component. 

6 . Community Input: The RTP process provided an opportunity for local residents to 
identify their top transportation priorities. A series of surveys was made available at 
public outreach events and on the RTP website to allow participants to select the 
projects in each of the time horizon periods that reflected their top three priorities. The 
results of the surveys were tabulated and included in the project selection process. 

7. Traffic Congestion: Results of the regional travel demand model were used to identify 
which projects address areas of high traffic congestion. The evaluation process 
identified which projects are located in areas with existing or forecast traffic congestion, 
defined as either Level of Service (LOS) E or F, on a scale of A-F (with A representing free 
flow traffic and F representing heavy congestion) in the travel demand model. 

Following the project screening, RTC staff developed a draft fiscally constrained project listing 
for review by the Agency Working Group and the RTC aqvisory committees. After incorporating 
feedback from these groups, the draft project listing was presented to the RTC Board for 
feedback in October 2016. All of the projects receiving more than one percent of the survey 
responses as a high priority project were included in the final project listing, in addition to 
others, which are contained in Appendix B of the 2040 RTP. 

The Congestion Mitigation and Air Quality Improvement (CMAQ) program is a federal funding 
program that requires specific analysis related to project selection. Only projects for which air 
quality benefits are demonstrated are eligible. All of the RTIP projects considered for CMAQ 
funding are identified in the 2040 RTP for the first five-year planning horizon of the plan. The 
RTP also identifies transit projects as a priority for CMAQ funding. The conversion of diesel 
buses to electric vehicles generates a proven reduction in air pollutants. CMAQ will be a source 
for funding the conversion of the RTC bus fleet to cleaner fuels. In addition, the expansion of 
the RTC Bus RAPID Transit system, which contains the highest ridership of all the fixed route 
operations, is a high priority for CMAQ funding. The Trip Reduction Program, which helps fund 
a portion of the RTC VANPOOL program, is also eligible for CMAQ funding. The RTC VAN POOL 
program is the RTC's fastest growing public transportation program. It reached over 100 
vanpools in December 2016. The program offers mobility options for people who may live or 
work outside of the RTC fixed-route service area. Projects that increase capacity for single
occupant vehicles are not eligible for CMAQ. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page25 



Chapter 7: Financial Plan 

FAST Act Requirements 

Federal transportation legislation (FAST Act) requires that the RTIP include a financial plan that 
demonstrates how the RTIP can be implemented and indicates the different sources that are 
reasonably expected to be made available over the term of the document. The program 
includes all modes of transportation, including transit (both operations and maintenance), 
street widenings, new streets, operations and maintenance of the street network, and bicycle 
and pedestrian facilities. 

The RTP identifies financial assumptions that were developed in a coordinated effort with the 
local jurisdictions, state and federal agencies and the other Metropolitan Planning 
Organizations (MPOs) in the state. Partners in the effort included: 

• Federal Highway Administration 

• Federal Transit Administration 

• Nevada Department of Transportation 

• Nevada Department of Motor Vehicles 

• City of Reno 
• City of Sparks 

• Washoe County 

• Carson Area MPO 

• Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 
• Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada 

Financial Assumptions Summary 

To comply with FAST Act requirements, RTC has prepared the following FFY 2020-2024 RTIP 
financial assumptions summary. This summary is intended to establish and document the 
levels of funding anticipated to be made available for the implementation of this improvement 
program with each fund source addressed separately. 

Local Fund Sources 

There were several initiatives that made additional local funding available to the RTC. In 1982, 
voters approved of a 1/4% sales tax dedicated to public transportation. In 2003 with the 
approval of Washoe County ballot question WC-2, an 1/8% sales tax was added to implement 
road and transit projects and fuel tax indexing was implemented based on the Consumer Price 
Index (CPI). The 1/8% sales tax was split evenly between road and transit projects. In 2008, 
with the approval of Washoe County ballot question RTC-5, the CPI indexing was discontinued 
for implementation of new indexing provisions calculated on the Producer Price Index (PPI). 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page26 



Fuel Tax - Following passage of RTC-5, legislation was approved in 2009 to index fuel to PPI and 
additional bases were added including Federal, State, Diesel and alternative fuels. Eligible uses 
for fuel tax include overlays, reconstruction and new construction for regional streets included 
in the Regional Road System. RTC dedicates a portion of this funding source to preservation of 
the existing regional network. 

Transit Sales Tax - The single most important funding source for transit in Washoe County 
continues to be the dedicated 5/16 cent sales tax (comprised of the 1/4% and half of the 1/8% 
sales tax provisions). The revenue generated by this tax provided more than half the funds 
necessary for RTC to operate RTC RIDE and RTC ACCESS and to contribute to the TART service. 
Based on historic trends, revenue is expected to grow at an annual rate of 5% for the base year 
of 2016. The amount of available sales tax revenue will greatly affect the level of public transit 
service RTC can provide. 

Road Sales Tax - The other half of the 1/8% sales tax eligible for road projects. This funding 
source has been used for the pavement preservation program. 

Regional Road Impact Fees (RRIF) - Impact fees are levied on new development to offset the 
cost of providing specific infrastructure improvements necessary to serve that new 
development. New development can be required to improve and add facilities necessary to 
maintain an established policy level of service (LOS). Impact fees are calculated and levied on 
the new development based on the degree that they contribute to the need for identified 
improvements. The Regional Road Impact Fee (RRIF) was implemented in October 1995 with 
the 6th Edition anticipated to be implemented late 2017/early 2020. With the current growth in 
development that the Truckee Meadows is experiencing, the revenue generated by this 
program is anticipated to be more robust than in recent years. 

State Funding Sources 

State funding sources include gas tax, special fuel (diesel) tax, vehicle registration fees, motor 
carrier fees, driver's license fees and petroleum cleanup funds. For the purposes of this 
document, funding is generally from State Gas Tax and accounts for roughly $770,000 in 
funding for FFY 2020-2024. 

Federal Fund Sources 

Federal funds for transportation are collected nationally and allocated back to the states 
through a series of formulas and grants under the existing transportation legislation (FAST Act). 
The Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act, or "FAST Act," was signed into law on 
December 4, 2015. It is the first law enacted in over ten years that provides long-term funding 
certainty for surface transportation. Overall, the FAST Act largely maintains the program 
structures and funding shares between highways and transit that were introduced under MAP-

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page27 



21. Federal funding programs require a state or local contribution of funds toward the cost of a 
project which is referred to as matching funds. The typical match for street and highway 
programs is five percent and for transit programs it is 20 percent. 

FAST Act programs generally available to the RTC and assumed in this document include: 

National Highway Performance Program (NHPP) - funds are to support the condition and 
performance of the National Highway System (NHS), for the construction of new facilities on 
the NHS and to ensure that investments of Federal-aid funds in highway construction are 
directed to support progress toward the achievement of performance targets to be established 
in the state asset management plan. 

Within the Truckee Meadows, NDOT has directed NHPP funding to a variety of projects and 
programs in the 1-80 and I-580/US Highway 395 corridors. For planning and programming 
purposes, the RTIP shows projects totaling $10.1 million in NHPP funding for FFY 2020-2024. 

Surface Transportation Block Grant Program (STBG) - flexible funding that may be used for 
projects to preserve or improve conditions and performance on any Federal-aid highway, 
bridge projects on any public road, facilities for non-motorized transportation, transit capital 
and public bus terminals and facilities. These funds provide NDOT and RTC with the 
opportunity to program funds for new construction, maintenance, transit, 
ridesharing/employer trip reduction (ETR), centralized traffic signal control systems and traffic 
management programs. The RTIP includes STBG-Statewide and STBG Washoe County 
Urbanized Area (STBG-Local) funding categories. STBG-Local funds being allocated to the 
region in the FFY 2020-2024 time period are approximately $34.9 million, while STBG-Statewide 
is slightly over $1 million. There are additional funds being allocated within Washoe County in 
the form of HSIP (safety) of roughly $2.8 million. 

Congestion M itigation Air Quality Program (CMAQ) - flexible funding for transportation 
projects and programs to help meet the requirements of the Clean Air Act; to reduce 
congestion and improve air quality for the region. To support those requirements the following 
projects are being funded in the RTIP: 

1. Traffic Management Program 
2. Replacement of the public transit (RTC RIDE, RTC ACCESS) fleets 
3. Intersection Improvement Program 
4. Trip Reduction Programs 

CMAQ funds can only be expended in areas identified by the U.S. Environmental Protection 
Agency (U.S. EPA) as in non-attainment of a national air quality standard or in maintenance 
areas, which subsequently receive an attainment designation from EPA. Within Nevada, these 
funds are divided between Clark County and Washoe County based upon an approved formula 
that considers population and the severity of the area's carbon monoxide and ozone air 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 28 



pollution problems. CMAQ funding cannot be used for projects that result in new capacity for 
single-occupant vehicles. For programming purposes, it has been assumed that CMAQ funding 
will be a little over $7 million per year. 

Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside Program (TA Set-Aside} - funds are for a variety of 
alternative transportation projects such as bicycle or pedestrian improvements and safe routes 
to schools programs. This RTIP assumes approximately $378,000 per year for the local 
program. 

Federal Transit Administration (FTA} Section 5307 - provides grants to urbanized areas with a 
population of 50,000 or more to support public transportation. The program remained largely 
unchanged under the FAST Act. The funds projected to be available each year for urbanized 
areas with populations more than 200,000 are based on a formula that considers the 
population and density of the region as well as revenue vehicle miles of service. The federal 
contribution is up to 80% in capital expenditures with a required local match of at least 20%. 

FTA Section 5339 - with the passage of MAP-21, Section 5339 was converted from a 
discretionary funded program to a formula-based program, and has remained formula-based 
under the FAST Act. Section 5339 provides funding to replace, rehabilitate and purchase buses 
and related equipment, and to construct bus-related facilities. 

Financial Summary 

Figure 7-1 represents a summary of revenues and expenditures for the FFY 2020-2024 RTIP. 
Expenditures are divided into the transportation mode or program in which the funds are to be 
expended. Revenues are categorized by the funding source including STBG Statewide and 
Local, CMAQ, NHPP, HSIP, FTA (5307, 5310, 5339), TA Set-Aside funding, Discretionary Funds 
(TIGER, FTA Small Starts), RTC Funds, State Funds, and Other. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page29 



Figure 7-1 
FFY 2020-2024 RTIP Revenues and Expenditures 

,--------- ----------, 
FFV 2020-2024 Revenues - $866.SM 

Potential Grant, 
$25.0 

CMAQ, $31.6 

FTA 
5307 /5310/5339, 

$35.1 

FFV 2020-2024 Expenditures - $866.SM 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page30 



Chapter 8: Air Quality Analysis and Conformity Determination 

Meeting Federal Requirements 

The Clean Air Act Amendments (CAAA) of 1990 require that each state environmental agency 
develop a State Implementation Plan (SIP). The SIP establishes actions designed to improve air 
quality and meet National Ambient Air Quality Standards (NAAQS) for each criteria air 
pollutant, according to the schedules included in the CAAA. 

Since emissions from motor vehicles make a significant contribution to air pollution, the CAAA 
also requires that transportation officials make a commitment to programs and projects that 
will help achieve air quality goals including: 

• Providing for greater integration of the transportation and air quality process 
• Ensuring that transportation plans, programs and projects conform with the SIP 

• Reduction in the growth in vehicle miles traveled (VMT) and congestion in areas that 
have not attained the Environmental Protection Agency's (EPA) air quality standards. 

Conformity for the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and this RTIP is demonstrated when 
projected regional emissions generated by the plan and RTIP do not exceed the region's motor 
vehicle emissions budgets as established by the SIP. While the MPO is ultimately responsible 
for making sure a conformity determination is made, the conformity process depends on 
federal, state and local transportation and air quality agencies working together to meet the 
transportation conformity requirements. The roles and responsibilities of the partner agencies 
involved in the air quality conformity analysis are defined in the Washoe County Transportation 
Conformity Plan. The plan was adopted by RTC and the Washoe County District Board of Health 
in January 2013. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page31 



Transportation Conformity 

Transportation Plan/TIP 

t 

Emissions below motor vehicle budget in SIP 

Yes --~-~-~-1 
t 

Provide for timely i01plementatmn of 
transpertation control measures 

Yes 

t 

Proceed 

Status of Air Quality Pollutants 

Criteria pollutants are considered on a county-wide basis if actual pollutant levels are exceeded 
outside of the core area of the Truckee Meadows. The core area of the Truckee Meadows is 
designated as the Hydrographic Area #87 (HA87) as shown in Figure 8-1. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page32 



Figure 8-1 
Reno/Sparks Hydrographic Area #87 

0 I 2 --

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page33 



Table 8.1 summarizes Washoe County's current design values. Design values are the statistic 
used to compare ambient air monitoring data against the NAAQS to determine designations for 
each NAAQS. 

Table 8-1 
Design Values and Attainment Status (as of December 31, 2018) 

NAAQS 
Design Value 

Designations 

Pollutant 
(Averaging Time) 

Level 
Unclassifiable/ 
Attainment, or 
Maintenance 

Non-
Attainment 
(classification) 

0 3 
(8-hou r) 0.070 ppm 0.071 ppm All HA's ---

PM2.s 
(24-hour) 35 µg/m3 25 µg/m3 All HA's ---

PM2.s 
(Annual) 

12.0 µg/m 3 7.6 µg/m 3 All HA's --

PM10 
(24-hour) 150 µg/m 3 0.0 Expected 

Exceedances 
All HA's ... 

co 
(l -hour) 35 ppm 2.7 ppm All HA's ---

co 
(8-hour) 9 ppm 2.2 ppm All HA's -

NO2 
(1-hour) 100 ppb 48 ppb All HA's -

NO2 
(Annual Mean) 53 ppb 12 ppb All HA's - · 

SO2 
(1-hour) 75 ppb 5 ppb All HA's ... 

Pb (Rolling 3-month 
average) 

0.1 5 µg/m 3 n/a All HA's ·--

Source: 2009-18 Washoe County, Nevada Air Quality Trends Report 

In 2015, EPA strengthened the 8-hour ozone standard from 75 to 70 ppb. The State of Nevada 
recommended that Washoe County be designated as attainment of the standard based on 
recent air monitoring data (2013-15) and EPA's exclusion of several wildfire-related ozone 
exceptional events. 

Regional emissions analyses were performed for each pollutant to document conformity with 
the CAAA as part of the RTP. The Regional Transportation Commission, in collaboration with 
the local agencies, has also been implementing programs that reduce motor vehicle emissions 
in the region. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page 34 



Travel Forecasting Model and MOVES Emission Model 

The RTC's travel demand model was developed on the TransCAD platform. The model uses the 
2016 Consensus Forecast population and employment provided by the Truckee Meadows 
Regional Planning Agency. The RTC conducts air quality analysis in close coordination with the 
Washoe County Health District-Air Quality Management Division (WCHD-AQMD), using MOVES 
2014a. 

Air Quality Analysis - Plan Requirements 

Federal regulations are specific in defining the level of air quality analysis necessary for 
incorporation into the RTP. Section 93, Title 40 of Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) dated 
August 15, 1997 (effective September 15, 1997), pertains to the criteria and procedures 
necessary to analyze the air quality impacts of the RTP. For the purposes of an air quality 
determination, the analysis years are 2015, 2020, 2025, 2030, 2035 and 2040. No air quality 
analysis is required for the street and highway projects identified as unfunded needs. A 
summary of requirements is listed below: 

A. The RTP must contribute to emission reductions in CO non-attainment/maintenance areas. 
B. Air quality analysis years must be no more than 10 years apart. 
C. In PM10 and CO non-attainment/maintenance areas, analyses must be performed for both 
pollutants. 
D. The last year of the RTP shall also be an analysis year. 
E. An analysis must be performed for each year contained in the motor vehicle emission 
budget (MVEB) for the Hydrographic Area #87 for both CO and PM10, as budgets have been 
established for these pollutants. 
F. For both CO and PM10, the analysis of emissions for the required years cannot exceed the 
MVEB. 

This RTIP utilizes the air quality analysis performed for the RTP. In order to use that analysis, 
criteria from 40 CFR 93.122(g) must be met. This RTIP includes the first five years of projects 
from the RTP that were included in the transportation modeling for the conformity 
determination received on the RTP. None of the projects have been changed with regard to 
start date nor have they been altered in scope. 

Air Quality Analysis - Crediting Provisions 

Federal regulations also allow for crediting procedures over the life of the RTP for the 
implementation of Transportation Control Measures (TCMs) in which emissions reductions can 
be quantified. These TCMs are critical to areas such as Washoe County that have experienced 
significant growth in population and VMT, and are expected to continue to do so. Several 
specific TCM measures are in progress or planned in Washoe County that will have quantifiable 
emissions reductions. These include: 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 

Page35 



A. Traffic signal optimization program. 
B. Conversion of the public transit fleet cleaner fuels. 
C. Implementation of trip reduction programs. 

These TCMs have been the focus of studies to quantify the air quality benefit of each. The 
TCMs are described below. The RTC is not currently taking any credit for reduced emissions 
associated with these TCMs but may choose to take credit in the future, if conditions warrant. 

A. Traffic Signal Optimization/Timing Upgrade Program 

Traffic signal coordination and improvements seek to achieve two primary objectives: 1) 
improved traffic flow resulting in improved level of service and 2) mobile source emission 
reductions through decreased delay, fewer accelerations/decelerations and a decreased 
number of stops. The RTC has reviewed several studies and federally accepted models to 
quantify the reduction of mobile emissions from signal coordination programs. These include 
signal coordination studies conducted by several cities in Southern California and the California 
Department of Transportation (CALTRANS). A comparison of before and after field studies was 
conducted and the improvements in all three peak periods were noted. Examples included a 
statewide average reduction of 14 seconds in stop delay and a 12% reduction in the number of 
stops per mile in the afternoon peak period. Several methodologies were used to take the 
results of studies to quantify the emission reductions from signal coordination programs. 

The pollution reduction results (tons/per day or percentage reduction) from each model vary as 
some models focus on corridor specific reductions while the others are more of an area-wide 
reduction projection. Pollutant reductions ranged from 11% along specific corridors to 3% to 
4% on a regional level. 

The RTC has initiated a region-wide traffic signal optimization and improvements program to 
enhance the capacity of the existing system and reduce traffic congestion in the region. This is 
an ongoing program that will allow nearly 400 intersections in the Truckee Meadows to be 
coordinated. 

B. Conversion of RTC ACCESS and RTC RIDE Fleets to Alternative or Cleaner Burning Fuels 

Over 7.7 million annual passengers, with 2.9 million miles of trips, are provided by the RTC RIDE 
public transit and RTC ACCESS paratransit services. While this is a small percentage of total 
daily travel, it is important in terms of air quality. All RTC RIDE buses are comprised of electric, 
hybrid diesel-electric and bio-diesel vehicles. All RTC ACCESS vehicles are fueled by Compressed 
Natural Gas (CNG). These vehicles can reduce mobile emission totals. Estimates by the 
California Air Resources Board between standard urban diesel and biodiesel or CNG determined 
that NOx emissions from vehicles with CNG or cleaner burning diesels were reduced 
approximately 60%. This relationship was augmented from a study entitled Public 
Transportation Alternative Fuels done in June of 1992 by Boaz-Allen and Hamilton. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 36 



RTC received a $5.1 million TIGGER grant for 4 zero emissions (electric) fixed-route buses and 
charging stations. RTC purchased 17 additional electric buses and built more charging stations 
to serve the expanded electric fleet. These buses the will help to further reduce emissions and 
the charging stations will provide infrastructure for RTC to move towards a 100% zero emission 
fleet. 

C. Trip Reduction Programs 

The RTC's trip reduction program, RTC SMART TRIPS, encourages the use of sustainable travel 
modes and trip reductions strategies such as telecommuting, compressed work weeks, and trip 
chaining. Major components of the program include a bus pass subsidy program in which the 
RTC matches an employer's contribution to their employees' 31-day transit passes up to 20%; a 
subsidized vanpool program, RTC VANPOOL; and an on-line trip matching program, RTC TRIP 
MATCH, that makes it quick, easy, and convenient to look for carpool partners as well as bus, 
bike, and walking buddies for either recurring or one time trips. One of the most common 
deterrents to ridesharing is the fear of being "stranded." Consequently, people who either 
carpool or vanpool to work can sign up for the Guaranteed Ride Home program and be 
reimbursed for a taxi ride home up to four times a year if an unexpected event prevents normal 
ridesharing arrangements from working. Making trips safely on foot and by bicycle are also 
promoted by the RTC SMART TRIPS program throughout the year. 

The goals of these programs are to promote trip reduction on a region-wide level, improve air 
quality, and reduce vehicle miles of travel and traffic congestion. During Federal Fiscal Year 
2017 (October 2016 through September 2017), the air quality benefits of the program were 
substantial. Over 283,000 pounds of carbon monoxide and over 11.4 million pounds of carbon 
dioxide were reduced due to participation in the vanpool program. In calculating the emission 
reductions, monthly data for each of the RTC's existing vanpools were collected. The data 
included the number of people in each vanpool and the average daily trip mileage. The air 
pollution calculation was obtained by multiplying the number of passenger trips for each 
vanpool per month by the average daily trip mileage for each vanpool per month and totaling 
those results to estimate the total VMT eliminated through the program due to the vanpool 
passengers not driving alone to work. The reduction in VMT was then multiplied by the 
pollutant factors per mile with those results outlined in the chart below. The emissions factors 
per mile for each pollutant were provided by WCHD-AQMD. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page37 



Table 8-2 

RTC VANPOOL Air Pollution Reductions 
Volatile organic compounds 
(VOC) 38,045 lbs 

Nitrogen Oxide (NO.) 21,374 lbs 

Carbon Monoxide (CO) 283,203 lbs 

Particulate Matter (PM10) 152 lbs 

Particulate Matter (PM2.s) 142 lbs 

Carbon Dioxide (CO2) 11,408,316 lbs 

RTC SMART TRIPS program continues to grow and add more participants. In FY 2018 RTC TRIP 
MATCH, a web-based carpool, bike, bus and walking buddy matching service increased by 20% 
to 2,268 active users and the RTC VANPOOL program saw a 20% increase over FY 2017. Shared 
rides through the program eliminated 12.1 million vehicle miles of travel. 

RTC Travel Demand Model 

Model networks were established for the analysis years of 2015, 2020, 2025, 2030, 2035 and 
2040 for the 2040 RTP air quality analysis. The 2015 network consists of the current roadway 
and transit networks. Each of the subsequent networks are comprised of the previous model 
year network with any capacity-related projects and transit service changes included in the RTP. 

Air Quality Analysis 

An emission test on both CO and PMlO must be successfully completed to make a finding of 
conformity. The area of analysis for these pollutants is the Hydrographic Area #87. As stated 
previously, the CO and PMlO emissions for the required analysis years cannot exceed the 
established motor vehicle emissions budget. Analysis is performed for 2015, 2020, 2025, 2030, 
2035 and 2040 for both pollutants. 

To initiate the air quality conformity determination, the emission levels for the pollutants in 
each analysis year are generated. The VMT for each facility type is derived from the RTC's 
travel demand model. Many local roads are approximated as centroid connectors in the model 
network. Since centroid connectors are not actual roads, the VMT for local roads is estimated 
as 11.36% of the total VMT based on NDOT's 2015 Annual Vehicle Miles of Travel Report 
(September 2016). Average speed by facility type from RTC's travel demand model is provided 
as an input to the MOVES model. Total emissions for each facility type are then added to get a 
daily emission total for the roadway system in the analysis area. Emission totals are shown in 
pounds per day (lbs. /day). The lnteragency Air Quality Consultation Team recommended 
approval of the air quality analysis on April 17th, 2017. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page38 



CO Analysis 

The MVEB for carbon monoxide (CO), effective October 31, 2016, is shown in Table 8-2, which 
also includes the CO emissions for all analysis years of the RTP. All RTP analysis years are within 
the MVEB. The tables supporting this analysis are contained at the end of this chapter. 

Table 8-3 
CO Emissions Analysis 

(lbs/day) 

Analysis Year MVEB RTP Analysis 

2015 172,336 73,274 
2020 172,670 54,331 
2025 171,509 42,308 
2030 169,959 33,721 
2035 169,959 29,587 
2040 169,959 28,354 

PM10 Analysis 

The MVEB for PMlO, effective January 6, 2016, is shown in Table 8-3, which also includes the 
PM10 emissions for all analysis years of the RTP. All RTP analysis years are within the MVEB. 
The tables supporting this analysis are contained at the end of this chapter. 

Table 8-4 
PM10 Total Emissions 

(lbs/day) 

Analysis Year MVEB RTP Analysis 

2015 5,638 4,071 
2020 6,088 4,395 
2025 6,473 4,695 
2030 6,927 4,955 
2035 6,927 5,339 
2040 6,927 5,681 

Summary 

A strong commitment to fund and implement feasible TCM measures must be made if 
acceptable air quality standards are to be sustained. The local jurisdictions and NDOT, through 
the RTP process, have made the commitment to fund TCMs such as ridesharing, traffic flow 
improvements, signal coordination, and conversion of public transit fleet to cleaner burning 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page39 



fuels. The RTP includes significant investments in bicycle and pedestrian infrastructure, 
consistent with the Complete Streets Master Plan adopted by RTC in 2016. Based on existing 
and planned commitments, the air quality analysis conducted in this chapter demonstrates that 
the required air quality conformity determination can be made and the RTP shown to be in 
conformance with federal air quality regulations. 

Air Quality Analysis Support Documentation 

Table 8-5 
Emission Factor (lbs./VMT) for Paved Road Fugitives PM10 

Facility Type 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Local 0.00081 0.00080 0.00080 0.00080 0.00080 0.00080 

Collector 0.00081 0.00080 0.00080 0.00080 0.00080 0.00080 

Minor 0.00033 0.00033 0.00033 0.00033 0.00033 0.00033 

Major 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 

Freeway 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 

Ramps 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 0.00012 

NOTES: 
• Emission factors for Paved Roads PM10 are calculated from an equation in EPA's AP42, 

Section 13.2.1, 1/11. The 2015 emission factors are calculated based on actual 2015 climatic 
data for Reno, whereas the 2020 to 2040 emission factors are calculated based on the 30-
year Normal Climate data for Reno from 1981 to 2010. 

• Emission factors for On-Road CO and PM10 are not available, they are calculated in MOVES 
2014a and the output is generated as total emissions. 

Table 8-6 
VMT by Facility Type by Analysis Vear (Hydrographic Area #87) 

Facility Type 2015 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040 

Local 638,992 682,012 716,763 757,082 786,302 815,778 

Collector 210,322 223,128 232,348 236,342 243,186 248,072 

Minor 698,575 747,067 788,370 833,160 859,981 891,318 

Major 1,317,781 1,484,768 1,563,816 1,582,074 1,652,137 1,716,468 

Freeway 2,308,412 2,395,702 2,517,715 2,737,759 2,847,243 2,964,986 

Ramps 449,826 469,855 489,370 516,828 531,565 543,216 

Total 5,623,909 6,002,532 6,308,382 6,663,244 6,920,414 7,179,839 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page 40 



Table 8-7 
Emissions (lbs./day) 

Analysis 
Year 

co 
On-Road 
Vehicles 

PM10 

Diesel 
Idling 
PM10 

Paved 
Road 

F~gitive 
PM10 

Wnpaved 
Read 

Fugitives 
PM10 

Road 
Construction 

PMlo 

Total PM10 
Emissions 

2015 73,274 1,111 26 1,320 1,423 191 4,071 
2020 54,331 945 19 1,493 1,733 206 4,395 
2025 42,308 839 14 1,608 2,019 215 4,695 
2030 33,721 789 11 1,622 2,310 223 4,955 
2035 29,587 791 10 1,712 2,597 229 5,339 
2040 28,354 819 10 1,731 2,886 235 5,681 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program September 20, 2019 
Page41 



Appendix A: FFV 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program Project Listing 

The FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program {RTIP) project listing is 
provided on the following pages. The list has been sorted by project type and shows the 
project description, the project limits (where applicable), and includes the funding source by 
project phase (engineering/design, right-of-way, construction, or "other" for capital 
acquisition), the federal fiscal year each phase has been programmed, and the total project cost 
as well as the federal, state or local contributions. Projects were identified through outreach 
and coordination with the public and agency stakeholders through the development of the RTP. 

Project Cost Estimates 

Project cost estimates were derived from the Regional Transportation Plan (RTP) and the FY 
2020 RTC Street and Highway Program of Projects. Planning level estimates are developed for 
each project based on the type of improvement to be implemented. As a project progresses 
into the design phase, a more detailed cost estimate is prepared to ensure adequate funding is 
available to construct the project. 

Project Listing Quick Reference 
PROJECT TITLE TYPE LEAD AGENCY PROJECT 

LISTING 
PAGE# 

Bicycle, Pedestrian, and ADA 
Improvements 

Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 1 

California Avenue Sidewalk Bicycle & Pedestrian City of Reno 1 

Center Street Cycle Track Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 2 

Forest Street Bike Facility Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 2 

Mill Street Bicycle and Pedestrian 
Improvements 

Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 3 

Oddie Blvd/Wells Ave Corridor Package 2 Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 3 

Peckham Lane Pedestrian Improvements Bicycle & Pedestrian City of Reno 4 

Purchase Multiuse Path Maintenance 
Equipment 

Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 4 

Regional Trail Rehabilitation Bicycle & Pedestrian City of Sparks 5 

Reno Bike Project - Major Taylor Program Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 5 

Sierra Street Multimodal Improvements Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 6 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Appendix A 
September 20, 2019 Page A-1 



South River Path Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 6 

Sun Valley Boulevard Corridor - Package 2 Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 7 

Sun Valley Boulevard Corridor 
Improvements - Package 3 

Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 7 

Vassar Street Bike Lanes Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 8 

Victorian Avenue Bike Lanes Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 8 

Vine Street Bike Lanes Bicycle & Pedestrian RTC Washoe 9 

Washoe County Safe Routes to School 
Non-Infrastructure Program 

Bicycle & Pedestrian Washoe County 
School District 

9 

West 4th Street (Reno) Improvements Bicycle & Pedestrian RTCWashoe 10 

Arlington Avenue Bridge Replacement -
Package 1 (NEPA) 

Bridge - New/replace RTCWashoe 10 

I 80 Bridge Seismic Retrofit Near 
Wadsworth 

Bridge - New/replace Nevada DOT 11 

Keystone Avenue Improvements -
Package 1 (NEPA) 

Bridge - New/replace RTC Washoe 11 

US 395 Parr-Dandini Interchange Bridge - New/replace Nevada DOT 12 

ITS Network Program - Construction of 
Package 2B 

ITS/system Efficiency RTC Washoe 12 

Traffic Management Program - Annual 
Traffic Signal Operations Review 

ITS/system Efficiency RTC Washoe 13 

US 395 / I 580 / I 80 Freeway Service Patrol ITS/system Efficiency Nevada DOT 13 

SR 659 Construct Roundabout McCarran 
Blvd 

Other Misc. Nevada DOT 14 

SR 659 Intersection Safety Improvements 
McCarran Blvd WASHOE COUNTY, 
MCCARRAN BLVD (GREG TO PRATER WAY) 

Other Misc. Nevada DOT 14 

Safe Routes to School Other Misc. RTC Washoe 15 

South East Connector - Wetlands Other Misc. RTC Washoe 15 

Bus Shelter Solar Lighting Pedestrian RTC Washoe 16 

Bus Stop Solar Lighting Pedestrian RTC Washoe 16 

Center Street Sidewalk Improvements Pedestrian RTC Washoe 17 

SR 447 Install Pedestrian and Safety 
Improvements Pyramid Lake Paiute 
Community Of Wadsworth 

Pedestrian Nevada DOT 17 

Golden Valley Road Railroad Crossing Rail Nevada DOT 18 

Highland Avenue Railroad Crossing Rail Nevada DOT 18 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Appendix A 
September 20, 2019 PageA-2 



Silver Lake Drive Railroad Crossing Rail Nevada DOT 19 

Lemmon Drive Widening - Package 1 

(NEPA) 

Rd Expansion RTC Washoe 19 

Lemmon Drive Widening - Package 2 Rd Expansion RTC Washoe 20 

Mill Street/Terminal Way Corridor -

Package 1 (NEPA) 

Rd Expansion RTC Washoe 20 

Mill Street/Terminal Way Corridor -

Package 2 

Rd Expansion RTC Washoe 21 

Pyramid Highway/US 395 Connector -

Package 2 

Rd Expansion RTCWashoe 21 

Sky Vista Parkway Widening Rd Expansion RTC Washoe 22 

Sparks Boulevard Corridor - Package 2 Rd Expansion RTCWashoe 22 

Sparks Boulevard Corridor Package 1 
(NEPA) 

Rd Expansion RTC Washoe 23 

I 580 Improvements South of Spaghetti 

Bowl 

Rd Improvement Nevada DOT 23 

South Virginia Street Complete Streets 

Improvements 

Rd Improvement RTCWashoe 24 

North Valleys Improvements Project -

Package 3B 

Rd Interchange/ 

Intersection 

RTC Washoe 24 

US 395, NORTH OF RENO, FROM 

MCCARRAN TO GOLDEN VALLEY 
STRUCTURE, MP WA 27.064 TO WA 32.580 

Rd New Construction Nevada DOT 25 

Preventive Maintenance Rd Recons/Rehab/Resurf RTC Washoe 25 

Roadway Reconstruction Projects Rd Recons/Rehab/Resurf RTC Washoe 26 

Traffic Calming Improvements Rd Sign/Signal City of Reno 26 

Traffic Calming Improvements Rd Sign/Signal City of Sparks 27 

Traffic Calming Improvements Rd Sign/Signal Washoe County 27 

Trip Reduction Program TOM RTC Washoe 28 

ACCESS Capital - Sutro Transit-Capital & Rehab RTC Washoe 29 

ACCESS Replacement Vehicles Transit-Capital & Rehab RTC Washoe 30 

RIDE Capital - Bldg. Renovations Transit-Capital & Rehab RTCWashoe 31 

RIDE Capital - Communication/Computer 

Equipment 

Transit-Capital & Rehab RTC Washoe 32 

RIDE Capital - Equipment Transit-Capital & Rehab RTC Washoe 33 

RIDE Capital - Shelters Transit-Capital & Rehab RTC Washoe 34 

RIDE Capital - Support Vehicles/Equipment Transit-Capital & Rehab RTC Washoe 35 

RIDE Replacement Vehicles Transit-Capital & Rehab RTC Washoe 36 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Appendix A 

September 20, 2019 PageA-3 



Virginia Street, Bus RAPID Transit 
Extension 

Transit-Capital & Rehab RTCWashoe 37 

Virginia Street @ Parklane Northbound 
BRT station 

Transit-Capital & Rehab RTCWashoe 38 

Virginia Street @ Peppermill Northbound 
BRT Station 

Transit-Capital & Rehab RTCWashoe 38 

ACCESS Capital - Facilities Transit-Maintenance RTCWashoe 39 

RTC RIDE and ACCESS - PM Transit-Maintenance RTCWashoe 40 

ACCESS Operations - ADA Transit - Other RTC Washoe 41 

Access to Healthcare Network - Non-
Emergency Medical Related 
Transportation Direct Services 

Transit - Other RTCWashoe 42 

Bus Stop ADA Signage/ldentification 
Markers for the Visually Impaired 

Transit - Other RTC Washoe 42 

Meadowood Mall Transfer Station 
Relocation 

Transit - Other RTCWashoe 43 

Sanford Center for Aging - Senior Outreach 
Services 

Transit - Other RTCWashoe 43 

Seniors in Service - Senior Companion 
Program 

Transit - Other RTCWashoe 44 

Sierra Nevada Transportation Coalition -
SNTC Bucks Program/N4 Accessible Rides 
Program 

Transit - Other RTCWashoe 44 

U-Pass Start-up Program Transit - Other RTC Washoe 45 

Washoe County Human Services Agency -
Enhanced Mobility Services for the Elderly 
& Disabled 

Transit - Other RTC Washoe 45 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Appendix A 
September 20, 2019 PageA-4 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20110314 (Ver7l 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Bicycle, Pedestrian, and ADA Improvements 

Description : Implementation of prioritized bus stop improvements, bicycle and pedestrian projects from the Bicycle-Pedestrian Master Plan and ADA improvement 
projects from the ADA Transition Plan - Annual Program 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM : Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $2,000,000 $0 $2,000,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $2,000,000 $0 $2,000,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $2,000,000 $0 $2,000,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $2,000,000 $0 $2,000,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $2,000,000 $0 $2,000,000 

<2020 Prior $400,000 $0 $5,600,000 $0 $6,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $10,000,000 $0 $10,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $400,000 $0 $15,600,000 $0 $16,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20180049 ever 2l 20-oo FEDERAL 
Title: California Avenue Sidewalk 
Description: Install sidewalk, curb, and gutter. 
Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : From Westfield Ave to Mayberry Dr of Distance (mile) 1.1 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $6,250 $0 $6,250 

2020 TAPWASTBG $0 $0 $118,750 $0 $118,750 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $125,000 $0 $125,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $125,000 $0 $125,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency City of Reno 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 1 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20170123 (Ver4) 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Center Street Cycle Track 
Description: Construct two-way cycle track on the west side of Center Street and spot sidewalk improvements. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : From S. Virgin ia Street to 1-80 of Distance (mile) 1.4 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2020 Local Fund $1,080,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,080,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $4,320,000 $0 $4,320,000 
2020-2024 TOTAL $1,080,000 $0 $4,320,000 $0 $5,400,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $1,080,000 $0 $4,320,000 $0 $5,400,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20170124 cver3J 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Forest Street Bike Facility 
Description: Construct bike facilities. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Air Qua lity - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM : Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From California Avenue to Mt. Rose Street of Distance (mile) 0.75 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2021 Local Fund $820,000 $0 $0 $0 $820,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $3,280,000 $0 $3,280,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $820,000 $0 $3,280,000 $0 $4,100,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $820,000 $0 $3,280,000 $0 $4,100,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 2 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20190039 (Ver 1> 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Mill Street Bicycle and Pedestrian Improvements 
Description: Sidewalk improvements and bike lanes. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : From Terminal Way to McCarran Blvd of Distance (mile) 1.8 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $250,000 $0 $2,750,000 $0 $3,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $250,000 $0 $2,750,000 $0 $3,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAl $250,000 $0 $2,750,000 $0 $3,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20170135 (Ver3l 20-00 LOCAL 
Title : Oddie Blvd/Wells Ave Corridor Package 2 

Description: Construct multimodal improvements to include separated pedestrian and bicycle facilities, streetscape amenities, transit improvements and intersection 
improvements. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM : Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : From 1-80 to Pyramid Highway of Distance (mile) 3.2 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $41,615,000 $0 $41,615,000 

<2020 Prior $3,000,000 $300,000 $0 $0 $3,300,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $41,615,000 $0 $41,615,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAl $3,000,000 $300,000 $41,615,000 $0 $44,915,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 3 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20160087 (Ver si 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title : Peckham Lane Pedestrian Improvements 
Description: Install sidewalk, curb, and gutter. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facili ties. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : From Airway Dr to Longely Ln of Distance (mile) 0.53 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $12,632 $0 $12,632 

2020 TAPWASTBG $0 $0 $240,000 $0 $240,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $252,632 $0 $252,632 

ALL YEARS TOTAl $0 $0 $252,632 $0 $252,632 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency City of Reno 

WA20190030 (Ver 1J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Titl e: Purchase Multiuse Path Maintenance Equipment 

Description: Purchase multiuse path maintenance equipment for each of the local jurisdictions (Washoe County and the Cities of Reno and Sparks) to remove debris 

and snow on multiuse/offstreet paths throughout the region . 
Project Type Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Other - Non construction related activities. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $30,000 $30,000 

2020 STBG WA $0 $0 $0 $570,000 $570,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $600,000 $600,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $600,000 $600,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 4 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20180044 ever 2) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Regional Trail Rehabilitation 
Description: Replace damaged/displaced pavers with concrete . 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

county: Washoe Limits: Regional Trail from Kiley Pkwy to Panama Dr of Distance (mile} .3 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $15,000 $0 $15,000 

2020 TAP WASTBG $0 $0 $285,000 $0 $285 ,000 
2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $300,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $300,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency City of Sparks 

WA201 80047 cver2J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Reno Bike Project - Major Taylor Program 
Description: Cycling physical education and safety program. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $4,396 $4,396 

2020 TAPWASTBG $0 $0 $0 $83,519 $83,519 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $61,983 $61,983 
2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $87,915 $87,915 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $149,898 $149,898 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 5 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20170125 (Ver3l 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Sierra Street Multimodal Improvements 
Description: Stripe bike lanes and spot sidewalk improvements. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM:Yes ND0T: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From Cal ifornia Avenue to 9th Street of Distance (mile) 1.2 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2D20 Local Fund $880,000 $0 $0 $0 $880,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $3,520,000 $0 $3,520,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $880,000 $0 $3,520,000 $0 $4,400,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $880,000 $0 $3,520,000 $0 $4,400,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20150003 (Ver6} 2D-00 FEDERAL 
Title: South River Path 
Description: Construct Pathway 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Truckee River Shared Use Path from John Champion Memorial Park to East side of the US 395/IR580 overpass of Distance 
(mile) .25 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $564,700 $0 $0 $564,700 

2021 State Match - Nv $0 $0 $1 $0 $1 

<2020 Prior $212,754 $0 $0 $0 $212,754 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $564,700 $1 $0 $564,701 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $212,754 $564,700 $1 $0 $n7,455 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

Note: It is anticipated that this project will be constructed by the Nevada Department of Transportation as part of the Spaghetti Bowl Express 
(SBX) project. 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 6 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20170116 (Ver4l 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Sun Valley Boulevard Corridor - Package 2 

Description: Multimodal improvements in the Sun Valley Boulevard corridor. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: Yes ND0T: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From 7th Avenue to Highland Ranch Parkway of Distance (mile) 1.4 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $600,000 $600,000 $0 $0 $1,200,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $7,537,633 $0 $7,537,633 

2020-2024 TOTAL $600,000 $600,000 $7,537,633 $0 $8,737,633 

ALL YEARS TOTAl $600,000 $600,000 $7,537,633 $0 $8,737,633 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20190042 (Ver 1l 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Sun Valley Boulevard Corridor Improvements - Package 3 
Description: Multimodal improvements along the Sun Valley Boulevard corridor. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: No ND0T: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From Scottsdale Road to 7th Avenue of Distance (mile) 2.6 Milepost begins at 1 ends at 3.6 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $30,000,000 $0 $30,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $30,000,000 $0 $30,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAl $0 $0 $30,000,000 $0 $30,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 7 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA201 70126 <Ver 3l 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Vassar Street Bike Lanes 
Description: Stripe bike lanes. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM :Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From Holcomb Avenue to Terminal Way of Distance (mile) 1.5 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2021 Local Fund $860,000 $0 $0 $0 $860,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $3,440,000 $0 $3,440,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $860,000 $0 $3,440,000 $0 $4,300,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $860,000 $0 $3,440,000 $0 $4,300,000 

MPO RTC Washoe LeadAgency RTC Washoe 

WA20170127 (Ver3l 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Victorian Avenue Bike Lanes 
Description: Stripe bike lanes. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From 16th Street to Pyramid Way of Distance (mile) 0.60 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2023 Local Fund $460,000 $0 $0 $0 $460,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $1,840,000 $0 $1,840,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $460,000 $0 $1,840,000 $0 $2,300,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $460,000 $0 $1,840,000 $0 $2,300,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 8 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20170128 cver3) 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Vine Street Bike Lanes 
Description: Stripe bike lanes. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From Riverside Drive to University Terrace of Distance (mile) 0.85 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2021 Local Fund $640,000 $0 $0 $0 $640,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $2,560,000 $0 $2 ,560,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $640,000 $0 $2,560,000 $0 $3,200,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $640,000 $0 $2,560,000 $0 $3,200,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20180048 (Ver2J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Washoe County Safe Routes to School Non-Infrastructure Program 

Description : Bicycle education program for elementary and middle schools (K-8), pedestrian education programs including the production of safety/education videos, 
supporting school safety patrols that includes the distribution of school safety items and incentives, providing guest speakers for school assemblies, and 
providing school champion stipends to schools who demonstrate a need to institute a specialized SRTS program in their own schools. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO : Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $4,406 $4,406 

2020 TAP WASTBG $0 $0 $0 $40,591 $40,591 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $51 ,061 $51,061 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $44,997 $44,997 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $96,058 $96,058 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Washoe County School District 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 9 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20180059 <Ver 3l 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: West 4th Street (Reno) Improvements 
Description: Construct enhanced sidewalks, bus/bike lanes, and intersection improvements. 

Project Type: Bicycle & Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM : No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From Keystone Ave to Evans Ave of Distance (mile) .95 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2021 Local Fund $1,660,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,660,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $1,660,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,660,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $1,660,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,660,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA201 70122 (Ver3l 20-00 LOCAL 
Title : Arlington Avenue Bridge Replacement - Package 1 (NEPA) 
Description: Replace the Arlington Avenue Bridges at the Truckee River - NEPA 
Project Type: Bridge - New/replace AO: Exempt, Safety - Non capacity widening or bridge reconstruction . TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Bridge#: 81531, 81532 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 10 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20160050 (Vers> 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: I 80 Bridge Seismic Retrofit Near Wadsworth 
Description: Bridge seismic retrofit and rehabilitation 
Project Type: Bridge - New/replace AQ: Exempt, Safety - Non capacity widening or bridge reconstruction . TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Bridge#: 1-700 E/W 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 NHPP $0 $0 $902,500 $0 $902,500 

2020 State Match - Nv $0 $0 $47,500 $0 $47,500 

<2020 Prior $50,000 $0 $0 $0 $50,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $950,000 $0 $950,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $50,000 $0 $950,000 $0 $1,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

WA20190044 (Ver 1) 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Keystone Avenue Improvements - Package 1 (NEPA) 
Description: Multimodal improvements and Truckee River bridge replacement. 

Project Type: Bridge - New/replace AO: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : From 1-80 to California Avenue of Distance (mile) 1 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2024 Local Fund $5,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $5 ,000 ,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $5,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $5,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $5,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 11 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20190045 <Ver 1) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: US 395 Parr-Dandini Interchange 
Description: Remove and Replace Bridge Structure 
Project Type: Bridge - New/replace AO: Exempt, Safety - Non capacity widening or bridge reconstruction. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Bridge #: 1-1306 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 NHPP $0 $0 $8,550,000 $0 $8,550,000 

2020 State Match - Nv $0 $0 $450 ,000 $0 $450,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $9,000,000 so $9,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $9,000,000 $0 $9,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

WA20150072 (Ver 7l 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: ITS Network Program - Construction of Package 28 
Description: Construction of package 28 - includes installation of fiber optic cable and purchase and installation of equipment 
Project Type: ITS/system Efficiency AO: Exempt, Other - Traffic signal synchronization projects. TCM : No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $1 ,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $1,000,000 $0 $1,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 12 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20110215 (Ver9l 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Traffic Management Program - Annual Traffic Signal Operations Review & Traffic Engineering Improvements 

Description : Ongoing cycle of retiming of 1/3 of the regional traffic signals - approximately 150 per year, traffic engineering spot/intersection improvements, Intelligent 
Transportation Systems (ITS) operations. 

Project Type: ITS/system Efficiency AQ: Exempt, Other - Traffic signal synchronization projects. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $1 ,500,000 $1 ,500,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $1,500,000 $1,500,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $1 ,500,000 $1,500,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $1 ,000,000 $1,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $7,500,000 $7,500,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $8,500,000 $8,500,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA2012128 cver6J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: US 395 / I 580 / I 80 Freeway Service Patrol 
Description : Freeway Service Patrol 

Project Type : ITS/system Efficiency AQ: Exempt TCM: No NDOT: District 2 
County: Washoe Limits : Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2024 NHPP $0 $0 $0 $364,800 $364,800 

2024 State Match - Nv $0 $0 $0 $19,200 $19 ,200 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $3,703,357 $3,703,357 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $384,000 $384,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $4,087,357 $4,087,357 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 13 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20180096 (Ver2) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: SR 659 Construct Roundabout McCarran Blvd 
Description: Construct roundabout 
Project Type: Other Misc. AO: Exempt TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Primary Crossstreet: McCarran Blvd, Secondary Crossstreet: Baring Blvd 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 HSIP $0 $0 $2,850,000 $0 $2,850,000 

2020 State Match - Nv $0 $0 $150,000 $0 $150,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $3,000,000 $0 $3,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

WA20180097 ever 2) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: SR 659 Intersection Safety Improvements McCarran Blvd WASHOE COUNTY, MCCARRAN BLVD (GREG TO PRATER WAY) 
Description: INTERSECTION, SLIP LANES, AND PEDESTRIAN SAFETY IMPROVEMENTS 
Project Type: Other Misc. AO: Exempt, All Projects - Intersection channelization projects. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Primary Crossstreet: Greg, Secondary Crossstreet: Prater Way 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 S2,058,000 $0 $2,058,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $2,058,000 $0 $2,058,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 14 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20140044 <Ver 7J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Safe Routes to School 
Description : County wide safe routes to school program 
Project Type: Other Misc. AQ: Exempt, Other - Transportation enhancement activities. TCM : No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $12,800 $12,800 

2020 STBG WA $0 $0 $0 $243,200 $243,200 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $12,800 $12,800 

2021 STBGWA $0 $0 $0 $243,200 $243,200 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $12,800 $12,800 

2022 STBGWA $0 $0 $0 $243,200 $243,200 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $499,000 $499,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $768,000 $768,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $1,267,000 $1,267,000 

MPO RTC Washoe LeadAgency RTC Washoe 

WA20150067 (Ver4) 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: SouthEast Connector - Wetlands 
Description: Annual Maintenance Program for Wetlands within the SouthEast Connector Corridor 

Project Type: Other Misc. AQ: Exempt, Other - Non construction related activities. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50 ,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $160,000 $150,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $350,000 $350,000 

MP O RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 15 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 

Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20170129 (Ver 4l 20-00 

Title: Bus Shelter Solar Lighting 

Description: Purchase of solar powered lighting for bus shelters 

Project Type: Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Safety - Lighting improvements. 

County: Washoe Limits : Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW 
2020 Local Fund $0 $0 

2020 TAP FLEX STBG $0 $0 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 

CON 

$17,500 

$332,500 

$350,000 

$350,000 

OTHER 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

FEDERAL 

TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

TOTAL 
$17,500 

$332,500 

$350,000 

$350,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA201 60081 (Ver 5) 20-00 

Title: Bus Stop Solar Lighting 

Description: Purchase solar lighting for various bus stop locations 

Project Type: Pedestrian AO: Exempt, Safety - Lighting improvements. 

County: Washoe Limits: Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 

2020 TAPWASTBG $0 $0 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 

CON 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

OTHER 

$12,253 

$110,277 

$122,530 

$122,530 

FEDERAL 

TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

TOTAL 
$12,253 

$110,277 

$122,530 

$122,530 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 16 of45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20190036 ever 1) 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Center Street Sidewalk Improvements 
Description: ADA sidewalk improvments. 

Project Type: Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Air Quality - Bicycle and pedestrian facilities. TCM :No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From S. Virginia Street to 1-80 of Distance (mile) 1.4 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2021 Local Fund $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $2,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $2,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $2,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $2,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA201 80098 cve,2) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: SR 447 Install Pedestrian and Safety Improvements Pyramid Lake Paiute Community Of Wadsworth 
Description: Install pedestrian and safety improvements 

Project Type: Pedestrian AQ: Exempt, Safety - Safety Improvement Program. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Nearest Crossstreet: Wadsworth 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2020 HSIP $50,000 $0 $0 $500,000 $550,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $475,000 $475,000 

2020 State Match - Nv $2,500 $0 $0 $25,000 $27,500 

2020-2024 TOTAL $52,500 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $1,052,500 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $52,500 $0 $0 $1,000,000 $1,052,500 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 17 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA201701 31 (Ver 3) 20-00 

Title: Golden Valley Road Railroad Crossing 
Description: Install crossing surface improvements 
Project Type: Rail AQ: Exempt, Safety - Railroad/highway crossing. 

County: Washoe Limits: Nearest Crossstreet: Golden Valley Road 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 

2020 RAIL $0 $0 

2020 State Match - Nv $0 $0 

<2020 Prior $11,106 $0 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $11,106 $0 

CON 

$135,000 

$139,750 

$250 

$0 

$275,000 

$275,000 

OTHER 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

TOTAL 

$135,000 

$139,750 

$250 

$11,106 

$275,000 

$286,106 

FEDERAL 

TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

WA201 70130 (Ver3) 20-00 

Title : Highland Avenue Railroad Crossing 
Description: Install crossing surface improvements and adjustment to crossing signal arms 
Project Type: Rail AQ: Exempt, Safety - Railroad/highway crossing. 

County: Washoe Limits: Nearest Crossstreet: Highland Avenue 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 

2020 RAIL $0 $0 

2020 State Match - Nv $0 $0 

<2020 Prior $28,950 $0 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $28,950 $0 

CON 

$150,000 

$154,750 

$250 

$0 

$305,000 

$305,000 

OTHER 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

FEDERAL 

TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

TOTAL 

$150,000 

$154,750 

$250 

$28,950 

$305,000 

$333,950 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 18 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20170132 (Ver 3J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Silver Lake Drive Railroad Crossing 

Description: Install crossing signal and crossing surface improvements 

Project Type: Rail AQ: Exempt, Safety - Railroad/hwy crossing warning devices. TCM : No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Nearest Crossstreet: Silver Lake Drive 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $155 ,000 $0 $155,000 

2020 RAIL $0 $0 $254,750 $0 $254,750 

2020 State Match - Nv $0 $0 $250 $0 $250 

<2020 Prior $17,000 $0 $0 $0 $17,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $410,000 $0 $410,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $17,000 $0 $410,000 $0 $427,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

WA20170133 (Ver 3> 20-oo LOCAL 
Title: Lemmon Drive Widening - Package 1 (NEPA) 

Description: Widen Lemmon Drive from 2 to 4 lanes, and from 4 to 6 lanes. 

Project Type: Rd Expansion AQ: Non-Exempt TCM: Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From US 395 to Military Drive of Distance (mile) 0.9, from Fleetwood Drive to Chickadee Drive (mile) 1.8 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2021 Local Fund $3,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $3,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $3,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 19 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20190037 (Ver 1J 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Lemmon Drive Widening - Package 2 
Description: Roadway widening from 4 to 6 lanes and from 2 to 4 lanes and stormwater improvements. 

Project Type: Rd Expansion AO: Non-Exempt TCM: No NDOT: District 2 
county: Washoe Limits: From US 395 to Military Road of Distance (mile) .9, from Fleetwood Drive to Chickadee Drive (mile) 1.8 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2022 Local Fund $6,000,000 $0 $24,000,000 $0 $30,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $6,000,000 $0 $24,000,000 $0 $30,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $6,000,000 $0 $24,000,000 $0 $30,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20150064 (Ver 4) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Mill Street!Terminal Way Corridor - Package 1 (NEPA) 
Description: Multimodal, operational, and capacity improvements. 

Project Type: Rd Expansion AO: Exempt, Other - Engineering studies. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : From Kietzke Lane to Terminal Way of Distance (mile) 1.5 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2021 Local Fund $77,500 $0 $0 $0 $77,500 

2021 STBG WA $1,472.500 $0 $0 $0 $1 ,472,500 

2020-2024 TOTAL $1,550,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,550,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $1,550,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,550,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 20 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20190038 ever 1J 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Mill Street!Terminal Way Corridor - Package 2 
Description: Multimodal, operational, and capacity improvements. 
Project Type: Rd Expansion AO: Non-Exempt TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From Kietzke Lane to Terminal Way of Distance (mile) 1.5 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2022 Local Fund $3,500,000 $10,000,000 $0 $0 $13,500,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $14,000,000 $0 $14,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $3,500,000 $10,000,000 $14,000,000 $0 $27,500,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $3,500,000 $10,000,000 $14,000,000 $0 $27,500,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20190040 cv er1 J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Pyramid Highway/US 395 Connector - Package 2 
Description: Widen the roadway from 4 to 6 lanes, construct mulitimodal , operational , stormwater management, and traffic safety improvements. 
Project Type: Rd Expansion AO: Non-Exempt TCM: No NDOT: District 2 
county: Washoe Limits: From Queen Way to Golden View Drive of Distance (mile) 1.4 Milepost begins at 1 ends at 2.4 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $1 ,360,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,360,000 

2020 STBGWA $1,360,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,360,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $3,000,000 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

2021 STBG WA $0 $3,000,000 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

2022 FHWAGrant $0 $0 $25,000,000 $0 $25,000,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $9,740,000 $0 $9,740,000 

2022 STBGWA $0 $0 $5,640,000 $0 $5,640,000 

2022 State Match - Nv $0 $0 $5,000,000 $0 $5,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $2,720,000 $6,000,000 $45,380,000 $0 $54,100,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $2,720,000 $6,000,000 $45,380,000 $0 $54,100,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 21 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20190043 (Ver 1J 20-00 

Title: Sky Vista Parkway Widening 
Description: Widen roadway from 2 to 4 lanes. 
Project Type: Rd Expansion AO: Non-Exempt 

County: Washoe Limits: From Lem mon Drive to Silver Lake Road of Distance (mile) 1.5 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW 

2021 Local Fund $1,800,000 $0 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 

2020-2024 TOTAL $1,800,000 $0 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $1,800,000 $0 

CON 

$0 

$7,200,000 

$7,200,000 

$7,200,000 

OTHER 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

LOCAL 

TCM :No NDOT: District 2 

TOTAL 

$1,800,000 

$7,200,000 

$9,000,000 

$9,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20190041 (Ver 1J 20-00 

Title: Sparks Boulevard Corridor - Package 2 
Description: Widen roadway from 4 to 6 lanes and construct multimodal improvements. 

Project Type: Rd Expansion AO: Non-Exempt 

County: Washoe Limits : From Greg Street to Baring Boulevard of Distance (mile) 2.2 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW 

2022 Local Fund $11,000,000 $0 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 

2020-2024 TOTAL $11,000,000 $0 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $11,000,000 $0 

CON 

$0 

$43,800,000 

$43,800,000 

$43,800,000 

OTHER 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

LOCAL 

TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

TOTAL 

$11,000,000 

$43,800,000 

$54,800,000 

$54,800,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 22 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 

Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20150065 (Ver4l 20-00 

Title: Sparks Boulevard Corridor Package 1 (NEPA) 

Description : Multimodal improvements and widening . 

Project Type: Rd Expansion AO: Exempt, Other - Engineering studies. 

County: Washoe Limits: From Greg Street to Baring Boulevard of Distance (mile) 2.2 

LOCAL 

TCM : No NDOT: District 2 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $3,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $3,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $3,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $3,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe LeadAgency RTC Washoe 

WA20180043 ever 2l 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: I 580 Improvements South of Spaghetti Bowl 

Description: Reconfigure Wells Ave Entrance to EB I 80. Widen EB I 80 to SB I 580 Ramp to 2 lanes. Widen I 580 SB to 3 lanes. Rehab/Replace 7 Bridges. Add 

sound walls. 

Project Type: Rd Improvement AQ: Non-Exempt TCM:Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: From I 80 to Mill Street Interchange of Distance (mile) 1.27 Milepost begins at 24.47 ends at 25.74 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 State Gas Tax $5,000,000 $7,000,000 $0 $0 $12,000,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $30,000,000 $0 $30,000,000 

2021 NHPP $0 $0 $7,363,426 $0 $7,363,426 

2021 NHPPAC $0 $0 $81,136,574 $0 $81,136,574 

2021 STBG State-Wide $0 $0 $11,000,000 $0 $11,000,000 

2021 STBG State-Wide AC $0 $0 $14,500,000 $0 $14,500,000 

2021 State Match - Nv $0 $0 $6,000,000 $0 $6,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $5,000,000 $7,000,000 $150,000,000 $0 $162,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $5,000,000 $7,000,000 $150,000,000 $0 $162,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 23 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20180060 (Ver2l 20-00 STATE 
Title: South Virginia Street Complete Streets Improvements 
Description : Safety and multimodal improvements including new traffic signal and median. 
Project Type : Rd Improvement AQ: Exempt, Safety - Safety Improvement Program. TCM : No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : From Arrowcreek Pkwy to 1-580 Interchange of Distance (mile) 0 Milepost begins at 0 ends at 0 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $1,000,000 $0 $0 $0 $1 ,000,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $1,500,000 $0 $1,500,000 

2021 State Gas Tax $0 $0 $2,500,000 $0 $2,500,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $1,000,000 $0 $4,000,000 $0 $5,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $1,000,000 $0 $4,000,000 $0 $5,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20190031 (Ver 1) 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: North Valleys Improvements Project - Package 3B 
Description: lntersecton improvements. Bus stop and connectivity improvements with associated drainage improvements. 

Project Type: Rd Interchange/ lntersec AQ: Exempt, All Projects - Intersection channelization projects. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Primary Interchange: Business 395, Secondary Interchange: N. Virginia Street 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $900,000 $0 $900,000 

<2020 Prior $150,000 $0 $0 $0 $150,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $900,000 $0 $900,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $150,000 so $900,000 $0 $1,050,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 24 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 20 19 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20170146 <Ver4J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: US 395, NORTH OF RENO, FROM MCCARRAN TO GOLDEN VALLEY STRUCTURE, MP WA 27.064 TO WA 32.580 

Description: RUBBELIZE EXISTING CONCRETE WITH 6" PBS, CONSTRUCT AUX LANE NB AND SB, CONSTRUCT TRAVEL LANE SB, CONSTRUCT NEW 
BRAIDED RAMP AT PANTHER VALLEY INTERCHANGE 

Project Type: Rd New Construction AO: Non-Exempt TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : From McCarran to Golden Valley of Distance (mile) 5.52 Milepost begins at 27.06 ends at 32.58 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2021 State Gas Tax $0 $130,000 $0 $0 $130,000 

2023 NHPP $0 $0 $60,940,125 $0 $60,940,125 

2023 STBG State-Wide $0 $0 $30,820,375 $0 $30,820,375 

2023 State Match - Nv $0 $0 $4,829,500 $0 $4,829,500 

<2020 Prior $1 ,230,000 $0 $0 $0 $1,230,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $130,000 $96,590,000 $0 $96,720,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $1,230,000 $130,000 $96,590,000 $0 $97,950,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Nevada DOT 

WA20150011 <VersJ 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Preventive Maintenance 
Description: Preventive Maintenance 

Project Type: Rd Recons/Rehab/Resur AQ: Exempt, Safety - Pavement resurfacing and/or rehabilitation . TCM: No NDOT: District 2 
County: Washoe Limits : Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $7,000,000 $0 $7,000,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $7,000,000 $0 $7,000,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $7 ,000,000 $0 $7,000,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $7,000,000 $0 $7,000,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $7,000,000 $0 $7,000,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $9,600,000 $0 $9,600,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $35,000,000 $0 $35,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $44,600,000 $0 $44,600,000 

M P O RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 25 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA201 50061 (Ver4J 20-00 LOCAL 
Title: Roadway Reconstruction Projects 
Description : Annual Pavement Preservation Program - Roadway Reconstruction 

Project Type: Rd Recons/Rehab/Resur AO: Exempt, Safety - Pavement resurfacing and/or rehabilitation. TCM : No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $12,000,000 $0 $12,000,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $11,000,000 $0 $11,000,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $D $11,0DD,DD0 $0 $11,000,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $11,000,000 $0 $11,000,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $11,000,000 $0 $11,000,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $18,000,000 $0 $18,000,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $56,000,000 $0 $56,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $74,000,000 $0 $74,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA201 90033 (Ver 1i 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Traffic Calming Improvements 
Description : Install speed radar signs and Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFBs). 
Project Type: Rd Sign/Signal AO: Exempt, Safety - Non signalization traffic control and operating_ TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Lim its : Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $350 $0 $0 $0 $350 

2020 TAP WASTBG $6,650 $0 $0 $D $6,650 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $1 ,440 $0 $1,440 

2021 TAPWASTBG $0 $D $27,350 $0 $27,350 

2020-2024 TOTAL $7,000 $0 $28,790 $0 $35,790 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $7,000 $0 $28,790 $0 $35,790 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency City of Reno 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 26 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 

Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA201 90034 ever 1J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Traffic Calming Improvements 

Description: Install speed radar signs and Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFBs). 

Project Type: Rd Sign/Signal AQ: Exempt, Safety - Non signalization traffic control and operating. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $1,790 $0 $1 ,790 

2020 STBG WA $0 $0 $34,000 $0 $34,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $35,790 $0 $35,790 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $35,790 $0 $35,790 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency City of Sparks 

WA20190035 ever 11 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Traffic Calming Improvements 

Description: Install speed radar signs and Rectangular Rapid Flashing Beacons (RRFBs). 

Project Type: Rd Sign/Signal AO: Exempt, Safety - Non signalization traffic control and operating. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2020 Local Fund $350 $0 $0 $0 $350 

2020 TAP WA STBG $6,650 $0 $0 $0 $6 ,650 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $1,440 $0 $1,440 

2021 TAP WA STBG $0 $0 $27,350 $0 $27,350 

2020-2024 TOTAL $7,000 $0 $28,790 $0 $35,790 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $7,000 $0 $28,790 $0 $35,790 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency Washoe County 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 27 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA2012101 <Ver 9l 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Trip Reduction Program 
Description: Administrative Activities and Vanpool Program 
Project Type: TDM AO : Exempt, Air Quality - Ride-sharing and van-pooling program. TCM:No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $190,000 $190,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2020 STBGWA $0 $0 $0 $760,000 $760,000 

2021 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $190,000 $190,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2021 STBG WA $0 $0 $0 $760,000 $760,000 

2022 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $190,000 $190,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2022 STBGWA $0 $0 $0 $760,000 $760,000 

2023 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $190,000 $190,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2023 STBGWA $0 $0 $0 $760,000 $760,000 

2024 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $190,000 $190,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2024 STBGWA $0 $0 $0 $760,000 $760,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $3,700,000 $3,700,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $5,000,000 $5,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $8,700,000 $8,700,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 28 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

NV20110312 <Ver 6l 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: ACCESS Capital - Sutro 
Description : Facilities (Operations & Maintenance)/Equipment - ACCESS Buildings at Sutro Street 
Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AQ: Exempt, Mass Transit - Reconstruction or renovation of transit structures. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Nearest Crossstreet: 600 Sutro Street 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FT A 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $64,000 $64,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $16,000 

2021 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $64,000 $64,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $16,000 

2022 FT A 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $64,000 $64,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $16,000 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $64,000 $64,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $16,000 

2024 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $64,000 $64,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $16,000 $16,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $350,000 $350,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $400,000 $400,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $750,000 $750,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 29 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20140046 <Ver7l 20-00 

Title: ACCESS Replacement Vehicles 
Description : Purchase ACCESS Replacement Vehicles - Ongoing Vehicle Replacement Schedule 

FEDERAL 

Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AO: Exempt, Mass Transit - Purchase new buses and rail cars to replace existinQ vehicles or TTCM: Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $105,000 $105,000 

2020 STBGWA $0 $0 $0 $1 ,995,000 $1,995,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $78,947 $78,947 

2021 STBG WA $0 $0 $0 $1 ,500,000 $1,500,000 

2022 FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $250,000 $250,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $157,237 $157,237 

2022 STBG WA $0 $0 $0 $1 ,800,000 $1,800,000 

2023 FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $155,000 $155,000 

2023 STBG WA $0 $0 $0 $1,995,000 $1,995,000 

2024 FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $4,201,000 $4,201,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $8,486,184 $8,486,184 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $12,687,184 $12,687,184 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 30 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

NV20110309 cver6J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: RIDE Capital - Bldg. Renovations 
Description : Building Renovations and Upgrades - Annual Program 
Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AQ : Exempt, Mass Transit - Reconstruction or renovation of transit structures. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $974,500 $0 $974,500 

2020 FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $200,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $293,625 $0 $293,625 

2021 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $200,000 

2021 FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $200,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $196,053 $0 $196,053 

2021 STBG WA $0 $0 $1,625,000 $0 $1,625,000 

2022 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $200,000 

2022 FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $200,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $173,664 $0 $173,664 

2022 STBGWA $0 $0 $1,400,000 $0 $1,400,000 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $90,000 $0 $90,000 

2023 FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $90,000 $0 $90,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $45,000 

2024 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $90,000 $0 $90,000 

2024 FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $90,000 $0 $90,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $45,000 $0 $45,000 
<2020 Prior $0 $0 $6,050,000 $0 $6,050,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $6,312,862 $0 $6,312,862 

AU YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $12,362,862 $0 $12,362,862 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 31 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 

Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

NV20110307 (Ver Sl 20-00 

Title: RIDE Capital - Communication/Computer Equipment 

Description : Purchase Vehicle/Communication/Computer Equipment - Annual Program 

FEDERAL 

Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AQ: Exempt, Mass Transit - Purchase of office, shop and operating equipment for existing faciTCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2020 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2021 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $430,000 $430,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $107,500 $107,500 

2022 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $430,000 $430,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $107,500 $107,500 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $430,000 $430,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $107,500 $107,500 

2024 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $430,000 $430,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $107,500 $107,500 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $926,000 $926,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $2,400,000 $2,400,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAl $0 $0 $0 $3,326,000 $3,326,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 32 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 

Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

NV20110305 (Ver 6J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: RIDE Capital - Equipment 

Description: Purchase Shop Equipment/Other Equipment - Annual Program 

Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AQ: Exempt, Mass Transit - Purchase of office, shop and operating equipment for existing faciTCM: No ND0T: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $376,000 $376,000 

2020 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $106,500 $106,500 

2021 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2021 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $62,500 $62,500 

2022 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2022 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $62,500 $62,500 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $62,500 $62,500 

2024 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2024 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $50,000 $50,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $62,500 $62,500 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $850,000 $850,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $1,782,500 $1,782,500 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $2,632,500 $2,632,500 

MPO RTCWashoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 33 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

NV20110303 cver6l 20-00 

Title: RIDE Capital - Shelters 
Description: Transit Enhancements/Shelters 

FEDERAL 

Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AO: Exempt, Mass Transit - Reconstruction or renovation of transit structures. TCM :No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $1,463,220 $1,463,220 

2020 FT A 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $67,200 $67,200 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $382,605 $382,605 

2021 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $370,000 $370,000 

2021 FT A 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $67,200 $67,200 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $109,300 $109,300 

2022 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2022 FT A 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $67,200 $67,200 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $66,800 $66,800 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $67,200 $67,200 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $66,800 $66,800 

2024 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $200,000 $200,000 

2024 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $67,200 $67,200 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $66,800 $66,800 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $437,000 $437,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $3,461,525 $3,461,525 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $3,898,525 $3,898,525 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 34 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 

Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

NV20110304 (Ver 6) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: RIDE Capital - Support Vehicles/Equipment 

Description: Purchase Support Vehicles/Equipment (RTC Administration) - Annual Program 

Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AO: Exempt, Mass Transit - Purchase of support vehicles. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 
2021 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $48,000 $48,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $12,000 $12,000 

2024 FT A 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $60,000 $60,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $15,000 $15,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $370,000 $370,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $135,000 $135,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $505,000 $505,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 35 of45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20130078 <Vere) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: RIDE Replacement Vehicles 
Description: Purchase RIDE replacement vehicles. Ongoing vehicle replacement schedule. FHWA funds to be transferred to FTA. 
Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AO: Exempt, Mass Transit - Purchase new buses and rail cars to replace existing vehicles or rTCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $7,750,000 $7,750,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $407,895 $407,895 

2021 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $210,526 $210,526 

2022 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $5,500,000 $5,500,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $380,000 $380,000 

2023 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $7,000,000 $7,000,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $368,421 $368,421 

2024 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $210,526 $210,526 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $34,546,853 $34,546,853 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $29,827,368 $29,827,368 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $64,374,221 $64,374,221 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 36 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20150060 (VersJ 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Virginia Street, Bus RAPID Transit Extension 

Description: Bus RAPID transit extension from the RTC 4th STREET STATION in downtown Reno to the University of Nevada, Reno; improves safety, traffic/bus 
operations, constructs 3 RAPID stations, adds bus-only lane segment, widens/constructs sidewalks and corrects ADA sidewalk deficiencies in the 
corridor from Plumb Lane to Liberty Street (within the total project corridor of Plumb Lane to 15th Street). FHWA funding will to be transferred to FTA. A 
request to enter project development under the FTA Small Starts Program has been submitted and accepted. Funding programmed in the "other" phase 
is for the acquisition of transit capital such as buses, bus shelters, etc. 

Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AO: Exempt, Mass Transit - Construction of small passenger shelters and information kiosks. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

county: Washoe Limits: From Plumb Lane to 15th Street of Distance (mile) 2.9 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 CMAQ Transfer to FTA $0 $0 $279,906 $0 $279,906 

2020 FT A 5309 Small Starts $0 $0 $30,126,621 $0 $30,126,621 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $31,473,603 $0 $31,473,603 

2020 STBGWA $0 $0 $177,315 $0 $177,315 

2021 CMAQ Transfer to FTA $0 $0 $0 $2,000,000 $2,000,000 

2021 FT A 5309 Small Starts $0 $0 $0 $1,145,500 $1,145,500 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $18,461,951 $18,461,951 

<2020 Prior $10,542,1 42 $20,670,629 $0 $0 $31,212,771 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $62,057,445 $21,607,451 $83,664,896 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $10,542,142 $20,670,629 $62,057,445 $21,607,451 $114,877,667 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 37 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA201 90029 <Ver 1l 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Virginia Street@ Parklane Northbound BRT station 
Description : Construct a northbound RTC RIDE (Virginia Line) full Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) station on Virgina Street at Parklane. 

Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AO: Exempt, Mass Transit - Reconstruction or renovation of transit structures. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Nearest Crossstreet: Virgina Street 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2022 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $200,000 $0 $200,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $300,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $500,000 $0 $500,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAl $0 $0 $500,000 $0 $500,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20 190028 (Ver 1i 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Virginia Street@ Peppermill Northbound BRT Station 

Description : Construct northbound RTC RIDE (Virginia Line) full Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) station across from the Peppermill Resort & Casino and extend BRT travel 
lane. 

Project Type: Transit-Capital & Rehab AO: Exempt, Mass Transit - Reconstruction or renovation of transit structures. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Nearest Crossstreet: Virginia Street 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2022 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $80,000 $0 $0 $0 $80,000 

2022 Local Fund $20,000 $0 $0 $0 $20,000 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $480,000 $0 $480,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $120,000 $0 $120,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $100,000 $0 $600,000 $0 $700,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAl $100,000 $0 $600,000 $0 $700,000 

MPO RTC Washoe LeadAgency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 38 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 

WA20150006 (Ver5l 20--00 

Title: ACCESS Capital - Facilities 
Description: Annual Facilities (Operations and Maintenance) Program 
Project Type: Transit-Maintenance 

County: Washoe 
FED FY 

2020 

2020 

2021 

2021 

2022 

2022 

2023 

2023 

2024 

2024 

<2020 

MPO RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 

AQ: Exempt 

Limits : Not Location Specific 

Revenue Source PE 

FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

FTA 5339 Bus/Fae Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

Prior 

2020-2024 TOTAL 

ALL YEARS TOTAL 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

77 Projects Listed 

FEDERAL 

TCM:No NDOT: District 2 

ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

$0 $0 $40,000 $40,000 

$0 $0 $10,000 $10,000 

$0 $0 $40,000 $40,000 

$0 $0 $10,000 $10,000 

$0 $0 $40,000 $40,000 

$0 $0 $10,000 $10,000 

$0 $0 $40,000 $40,000 

$0 $0 $10,000 $10,000 

$0 $0 $40,000 $40,000 

$0 $0 $10,000 $10,000 

$0 $0 $150,000 $150,000 

$0 $0 $250,000 $250,000 

$0 $0 $400,000 $400,000 

Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

Page 39 of 45 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 

NV2011 0301 cver Sl 20-00 

Title: RTC RIDE and ACCESS - PM 
Description: Preventive Maintenance - Mechanical 
Project Type: Transit-Maintenance 

County: Washoe 
FED FY 

2020 

2020 

2021 

2021 

2022 

2022 

2023 

2023 

2024 

2024 

<2020 

MPO RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 

AQ : Exempt 

Limits : Not Location Specific 

Revenue Source 

FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

FT A 5307 Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital 

Local Fund 

Prior 

2020-2024 TOTAL 

ALL YEARS TOTAL 

PE ROW 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

$0 $0 

77 Projects Listed 

FEDERAL 

TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

CON OTHER TOTAL 

$0 $3,200,000 $3,200,000 

$0 $800,000 $800,000 

$0 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

$0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 

$0 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

$0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 

$0 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

$0 $1 ,000,000 $1,000,000 

$0 $4,000,000 $4,000,000 

$0 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 

$0 $16,000,000 $16,000,000 

$0 $24,000,000 $24,000,000 

$0 $40,000,000 $40,000,000 

Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

Page 40 of 45 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

NV20110311 cver5J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: ACCESS Operations - ADA 
Description: ADA-related operating expenses 

Project Type: Transit - Other AQ: Exempt, Mass Transit - Transit operating assistance. TCM: Yes NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FT A 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $670,000 $670,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $167,600 $167,600 

2021 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $700,000 $700,000 

2021 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $175,000 $175,000 

2022 FT A 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $700,000 $700,000 

2022 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $175,000 $175,000 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $700,000 $700,000 

2023 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $175,000 $175,000 

2024 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $700,000 $700,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $175,000 $175,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $3,113,000 $3,113,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $4,337,600 $4,337,600 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $7,450,600 $7,450,600 

MPO RTCWashoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 41 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA201 50032 (Ver 6) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Access to Healthcare Network - Non-Emergency Medical Related Transportation Direct Services 

Description : Provision of direct services for non-emergency medical related transportation services for low income seniors, individuals with disabilities and other low 
income underserved populations. Includes project administration costs to support a Dispatcher position to continue the Sierra Nevada Transportation 
Help Line operated by AHN. 

Project Type: Transit - Other AQ : Exempt TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Admin $0 $0 $0 $7,034 $7,034 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $42,218 $42,218 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $44, 185 $44,185 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $54,740 $54,740 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $852,857 $852,857 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $148,1n $148,177 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $1,001,034 $1,001,034 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20190032 <Ver 1) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Bus Stop ADA Signage/ldentification Markers for the Visually Impaired 
Description: Installation of ADA-accessible information placards on bus stop poles to inform riders of the NextBus app. Placards would also act as markers to inform 

visually impaired riders that the poles are bus stop poles. 
Project Type: Transit - Other AQ: Exempt, Mass Transit - Construction of small passenger shelters and information kiosks. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Various Locations 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $1,790 $1,790 

2020 TAPWASTBG $0 $0 $0 $34,000 $34,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $35,790 $35,790 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $35,790 $35,790 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 42 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20190027 (Ver 1i 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Meadowood Mall Transfer Station Relocation 

Description: Reloctate the RTC RIDE Meadowood Mall Transfer Station within the Meadowood Mall property and implement potential FTA joint development with 
affordable housing and possible retail. 

Project Type : Transit - Other AQ: Exempt, Mass Transit - Reconstruction or renovation of transit structures. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Nearest Crossstreet: 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2023 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $400,000 $0 $0 $0 $400,000 

2023 Local Fund $100,000 $0 $0 $0 $100,000 

2024 FTA 5307 Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $1,200,000 $0 $1 ,200,000 

2024 Local Fund $0 $0 $300,000 $0 $300,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $500,000 $0 $1,500,000 $0 $2,000,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $500,000 $0 $1,500,000 $0 $2,000,000 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20150053 (Ver6) 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Sanford Center for Aging - Senior Outreach Services 
Description : Participant support for direct service volunteer outreach program. 
Project Type: Transit - Other AQ: Exempt TCM :No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Admin $0 $0 $0 $7,035 $7,035 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $25,000 $25,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $189,846 $189,846 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $57,035 $57,035 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $246,881 $246,881 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 43 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20150027 <Ver6l 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Seniors in Service - Senior Companion Program 
Description : Provision of transportation support for senior community living outside the RTC ADA area 
Project Type: Transit - Other AO: Exempt TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits : Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Admin $0 $0 $0 $7,034 $7,034 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $43,980 $43,980 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $43,980 $43,980 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $248,641 $248,641 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $94,994 $94,994 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $343,635 $343,635 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

WA20180051 (Ver2J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Sierra Nevada Transportation Coalition - SNTC Bucks Program/N4 Accessible Rides Program 

Description : Capital to purchase a wheelchair accessible vehicle to serve seniors and people with disabilities; user-side subsidy program to provide vouchers (800 in 
Year 1, 875 in Year 2) to disabled individuals applied directly to a participant's Lyft or Uber account. This project will provide an estimated 4,160 trips, 
annually. 

ProjectType: Transit - Other AQ: Exempt, Mass Transit - Transit operating assistance. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Admin $0 $0 $0 $7,034 $7,034 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $123,549 $123,549 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $30,887 $30,887 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $118,443 $118,443 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $161,470 $161,470 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $279,913 $279,913 

MPO RTC Washoe LeadAgency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing Page 44 of 45 
Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Amendment 20-00 RTC Washoe 
Regional Transportation Improvement Program FFY 2020-2024 77 Projects Listed 

WA20190002 (Ver 2J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: U-Pass Start-up Program 

Description : Seed money to establish a Universal Access Transit Pass (U-Pass) program with the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR) to provide unlimited access to 
RTC RIDE transit routes. 

Project Type : Transit - Other AO: Exempt, Mass Transit - Transit operating assistance. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 CMAQ - Washoe County $0 $0 $0 $76,000 $76,000 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $4,000 $4,000 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $80,000 $80,000 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $80,000 $80,000 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $160,000 $160,000 

MPO RTC Washoe LeadAgency RTC Washoe 

WA20180050 (Ver 2J 20-00 FEDERAL 
Title: Washoe County Human Services Agency - Enhanced Mobility Services for the Elderly & Disabled 
Description : Capital to purchase 3 wheelchair accessible vehicles plus operating funds to provide 6,300 trip annually. 
Project Type: Transit - Other AO: Exempt, Mass Transit - Transit operating assistance. TCM: No NDOT: District 2 

County: Washoe Limits: Not Location Specific 

FED FY Revenue Source PE ROW CON OTHER TOTAL 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Admin $0 $0 $0 $7,034 $7,034 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Capital $0 $0 $0 $27,672 $27,672 

2020 FTA 5310 Elderly/Disabled Lrg Urb Operating $0 $0 $0 $9,933 $9,933 

2020 Local Fund $0 $0 $0 $16,851 $16,851 

<2020 Prior $0 $0 $0 $94,061 $94,061 

2020-2024 TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $61,490 $61,490 

ALL YEARS TOTAL $0 $0 $0 $155,551 $155,551 

MPO RTC Washoe Lead Agency RTC Washoe 

RTC Washoe Project Listing 
Page 45 of 45 

Printed on Thursday, September 5, 2019 



Appendix B: FFV 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement 
Program Project Location Map 

A project location map for the FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program 
(RTIP) is provided on the following page. It should be noted that many of the projects in the 
RTIP are not able to be mapped, such as the purchase of vehicles or equipment and the 
administration of programs or operation of services. However, detailed information, including 
a map for location-based projects, can be found online for any of the projects through the 
electronic Statewide Transportation Improvement Program (eSTIP) at 
https://estip .nevadadot.com. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Appendix B 
September 20, 2019 Page 8-1 

http:https://estip.nevadadot.com


FFY 2020-2024 RTIP Projects 

Wadsworth .... 

V. ss r Street 

e Bicycle & Pedestrian 

e Bridge Maintenance 

0 Intersection/Signal 

@) Multimodal 
N 

A 
e Railroad Crossing 

e Transit 

- Bicycle/Pedestrian 

Freeway System Improvements 

- Multimodal Corridor 1 Inch = 2 miles 
- Tranisl 
DMafflor, mqnopn:dilr.tlu,lldeal'l)I._ eren~Odkir 
~~or-iy.lc:hew l'IO(.lw,t beenp:c-..dodO!tthia 
webt~e for legal engmeemg or sUJVeytng puipo!85 



Appendix C: RTIP Amendments/ Administrative Modifications 

The RTIP is required to be updated at least every four years. There are changes that occur 
during the course of the document such as adjustments in project schedules, funding 
amounts/sources or project descriptions. These changes require either an amendment or an . 
administrative modification. Any changes in the RTIP must be included in the RTP. 

Amendments 

Amendments are major or substantive changes to the RTIP and must follow the requirements 
contained in the RTC's Public Participation Plan and the Washoe County Transportation 
Conformity Plan (for air quality analysis if necessary). Amendments are applicable when: 

• There is a significant change in the design or scope of an existing project 

• A project is added or deleted 
• There is a significant change in a funding category that alters the overall financial 

reasonableness of the RTIP 
• When there is an increase in the estimated cost of a project by more than $5 million and 

greater than 40% of the total estimated project cost 

Administrative Modifications 

Administrative Modifications are non-substantive changes to the RTIP and include the 
following: 

• Moving a project in the document to an earlier or later year 

• Increasing the estimated cost of a project by less than $5 million or by more than $5 
million if the amount is less than 40% of the total estimated project cost 

Administrative modifications are typically processed through letter or email between the 
Nevada Department of Transportation and RTC. 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program AppendixC 
September 20, 2019 Page C-1 



Appendix D: Acronyms 

AADT-Annual Average Daily Traffic 

ADA-Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 

ADT-Average daily trips 

BLM-Bureau of Land Management 

BRT-Bus rapid transit 

CMAC-Citizens Multimodal Advisory Committee 

CALTRANS-California Department of Transportation 

CAMPO-Carson Area Metropolitan Planning Organization 

CCRTC-Carson City Regional Transportation Commission 

CEA- Critical Emphasis Areas 

CFR-Code of Federal Regulations 

CMAQ-Congestion Mitigation/Air Quality 

CMP-Congestion Management Process 

CNG-Compressed natural gas 

CO-Carbon monoxide 

CPI-Consumer Price Index 

EPA-Environmental Protection Agency 

ETR-Employer Trip Reduction 

FAA-Federal Aviation Administration 

FAST Act-Fixing America's Surface Transportation Act 

FHWA-Federal Highway Administration 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Appendix D 
September 20, 2019 Page D-1 



FRR-Farebox Recovery Ratio 

FTA-Federal Transit Administration 

GHG-Greenhouse gas 

HA87-Hydrographic Area #87 

HOV-High occupancy vehicle 

HSIP-Highway Safety Improvement Program 

ITS-Intelligent Transportation Systems 

LOS-Level of service 

MAP-21-Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st Century Act 

MOVES-Air quality model 

MPO-Metropolitan Planning Organization 

MUTCD-Manual of Uniform Traffic Control Devices 

MVEB-Motor vehicle emission budget 

NAAQS-National Ambient Air Quality Standards 

NDOT-Nevada Department of Transportation 

NEPA-National Environmental Policy Act 

NHPP-National Highway Performance Program 

NHS-National Highway System 

NOx-Nitrogen oxides 

NRS-Nevada Revised Statutes 

PCI-Pavement condition index 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Appendix D 
September 20, 2019 Page D-2 



PD&E-Project development and environmental activities 

PSAP- Pedestrian Safety Action Plan 

PM2.5-Particulate matter of less than 2.5 microns 

PM10-Particulate matter of less than 10 microns 

PMS-Pavement management system 

POP-Program of projects 

PPP-Public Participation Plan 

ROW-Right-of-way 

RRIF-Regional Road Impact Fee 

RRIF CIP-Regional Road Impact Fee Capital Improvements Plan 

RRS-Regional Road System 

RSA-Road Safety Assessment 

RTAA-Reno-Tahoe Airport Authority 

RTC-Regional Transportation Commission of Washoe County 

RTIP-Regional Transportation Improvement Program 

RTP-Regional Transportation Plan 

SEC-SouthEast Connector 

SGR-State of Good Repair 

SHSP-Strategic Highway Safety Plan 

SIP-State Implementation Plan 

SOV-Single occupancy vehicle 

SRTP-Short Range Transit Plan 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program AppendixD 
September 20, 2019 Page D-3 



SRTS-Safe Routes to School 

STB-State Transportation Board 

STIP-State Transportation Improvement Program 

STBG-Surface Transportation Block Grant Program 

TAC-RTC Technical Advisory Committee 

TA Set-Aside - Transportation Alternatives Set-Aside Program 

TART-Tahoe Area Regional Transit 

TAZ-Traffic Analysis Zone 

TCM-Transportation Control Measure 

TDM-Transportation Demand Management 

TMA-Transportation Management Association 

TMC-Traffic/transportation management center 

TMRP-Truckee Meadows Regional Plan 

TMRPA-Truckee Meadows Regional Planning Agency 

TMWA-Truckee Meadows Water Authority 

TOD-Transit-oriented development 

TRI-Center-Tahoe Reno Industrial Center 

TRPA-Tahoe Regional Planning Agency 

TSM-Transportation System Management 

TSP-Transit signal priority 

TTD-Tahoe Transportation District 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Appendix D 

September 20, 2019 Page D-4 



UNR-University of Nevada, Reno 

UPRR-Union Pacific Railroad 

UPWP-Unified Planning Work Program 

USDA-U.S. Department of Agriculture 

USDOT-U.S. Department of Transportation 

V/C Ratio-Volume to Capacity Ratio 

VHD-Vehicle hours of delay 

VHT-Vehicle hours of travel 

VMT-Vehicle Miles Traveled 

voe-Volatile organic compounds 

WCHD-AQMD-Washoe County Health District-Air Quality Management Division 

YOE-Year of Expenditure 

FFY 2020-2024 Regional Transportation Improvement Program Appendix D 
September 20, 2019 Page D-5 



~ REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction l;iCal 
Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

'----.... -~ ... 
September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 5.1 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Lee G. Gibson, AICP 
Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Director's Report 

Monthly verbal update/messages from RTC Executive Director Lee G. Gibson - no action will be 
taken on this item. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 5.2 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Lee G. Gibson, AICP 
Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Federal Report 

Monthly update/messages from RTC Executive Director Lee G. Gibson - no action will be taken 
on this item. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe .com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Federal Update for RTC of Washoe County 
Prepared by Cardinal Infrastructure and Thompson Coburn 
September 20, 2019 Board Meeting 

Appropriations 
Senate Majority Leader McConnell said the Senate will work to pass as many Fiscal Year (FY) 2020 
appropriation bills as possible before September 30th; then pass a continuing resolution {CR) for any 
remaining bills. The Senate Appropriations Committee intends to mark-up four bills each week. 

It's unlikely all bills will get across the finish line, with a CR for Transportation-HUD appropriations all the 
more possible. House Majority Leader Steny Hoyer announced plans to take up a CR that could extend 
current funding levels potentially through late November. 

The House marked up all 12 appropriations measures, passing 10 before the budget agreement was 
reached. According to Congressional Quarterly, due to the House levels used by appropriators, the House 
will "need to cut about $15 billion in spending from [non-defense] accounts and increase defense 
discretionary spending ... by $5 billion." This will be done in conference. If Transportation-HUD receives 
cuts, it will still produce funding levels at or above FAST Act levels. Since the budget agreement prohibits 
policy riders (some of which are directed at DOT and FTA on their implementation of the CIG program) 
that will also present issues in conference. 

NEPA and One Federal Decision Process 
The U.S. Department of Transportation published in the Federal Register a notice of availability and 
request for comments on Interim Policies on Page Limits for National Environmental Policy Act Documents 
and the Application of the One Federal Decision Process to DOT Projects. Comments are due by 
September 23. 

Page Limits for National Environmental Policy Act Documents and Focused Analyses 
• Limits text of draft and final environmental impact statements to 150 pages, unless they are of an 

unusual scope or complexity, then limit to 300 pages. 
• Recommends environmental assessments not exceed 75 pages. 
• Quarterly Performance Management Review must include number of EIS and EA documents 

completed, amount exceeding page limit, and reason for doing so. 
• Recommends best practices to comply with page limitation (eg., pre-scoping and scoping, 

annotated outlines, tiering, and more) 

Interim Policy on One Federal Decision Implementation 

• One Federal Decision policy only applies to major infrastructure projects for which the initial 
Notice of Intent was published after August 15, 2017. 

• Factors a U.S. DOT Operating Administration should consider when determining whether the 
project sponsor has identified the reasonable availability of funds sufficient to complete the 
project. 

• Exceptions to the One Federal Decision policy for major infrastructure projects. 
• Responsibilities of an Originating Agency and lead U.S. DOT Agency. 
• Permitting timetable. 
• Pre-scoping and project initiations. 

Page 1 of 3 



Project Management Oversight 
A notice of proposed rulemaking and request for comment on Project Management Oversight was 
published by FTA in the Federal Register. Comments must be received by October 25, 2019. The proposed 
rulemaking would: 

• Change applicability of the regulation by shifting the definition of a "major capital project" from 
one based on the type of project or total project cost to one based on both the amount of Federal 
financial assistance and the total project cost. 

• Raises the total project cost threshold to $300 million or more and requires that the project 
receive $100 million or more in Federal investment to be subject to project management 
oversight (in effect exempting projects under these thresholds from project management 
oversight). 

• Limit project management oversight to quarterly reviews (which currently occur monthly), absent 
a finding by FTA that a recipient requires more frequent oversight. 

• Permits FTA to deem a project that does not meet the dollar-amount thresholds for the level of 
Federal investment and total project cost as a "major capital project" under certain circumstances 
(thus capturing them under the project management oversight requirement). 

• Add three additional minimum elements to the Project Management Plan: periodic updates of 
the plan, the recipient's commitment to submit a quarterly project budget and schedule, and 
safety and security management. 

• Add the management of risks, contingencies, and insurance as an element of the Project 
Management Plan. 

Budget and Debt Limit 
On August 2nd

, President Trump signed a $2 .7 trillion budget agreement that increases the discretionary 
budget caps for FY 2020 and 2021, as well as suspends the debt ceiling until July 31, 2021. This agreement 
prevents cuts in non-defense discretionary spending, which otherwise would have been cut by 
approximately $54 billion; instead, the now law increases the non-defense budget cap by $24.5 billion to 
$621.5 billion in FY 2020, and by $5 billion to $626.5 billion for FY 2021. As mentioned, the FY 20 
appropriations bills being worked on by Congress need to comply with this agreement. 

FAST Electricity Act 
Senator Cantwell (D-WA) is working on introducing the FAST Electricity Act. The bill is likely to be 
introduced next month once a Republican cosponsor is on board. The goal of the legislation is to 
"accelerate electrification of the entire U.S. transportation system" and "boost pioneering U.S. 
companies." The bill does three things: (1) creates a 30% tax credit for electric vehicles that are not 
passenger vehicles (e.g., trucks, buses); (2) provides a 30% federal tax credit for recharging and hydrogen 
refueling stations; and (3) provides loan guarantees to support capital investment in domestic 
manufacturing capacity. 

Page 2 of 3 



GAO Report 
The Government Accountability Office issued a report titled, "Federal Transit Administration Could 
Improve Information on Estimating Project Costs." The report examines stakeholders' views on factors 
that affect rail transit project costs; including, project design decisions, legal requirements, community 
and political environment, general and local market conditions, site characteristics, and project execution. 
The report also examines approaches used to manage costs. Though tailored to rail projects, much of this 
information can be used for bus and road projects. 

Personnel 
Felicia James is now Associate Administrator for FTA's Office of Planning and Environment, overseeing 
transit and transportation planning and environmental activities and the CIG program, among other 
responsibilities. Ms. James previously worked as the Leader of the Program and Policy Development Team 
and Manager in the Office of Project Development and Environmental Review at FHWA. 

U.S. DOT General Counsel Steven Bradbury has been named Acting Deputy in addition to his current 
duties. Senior Counselor for Regulatory Reform Christina Aizcorbe has been named Deputy General 
Counsel of U.S. DOT. 

Page 3 of 3 



,,,, 
REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 5.3 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Kristina Swallow, Director NDOT 

SUBJECT: Nevada Department of Transportation 

Monthly verbal update/messages from NDOT Director Kristina Swallow - no action will be 
taken on this item. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

~--'--u(_ 
ibson, AICP 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 6.1 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Mark Maloney 
Director of Public Transportation 
and Operations Executive Director 

SUBJECT: RTC RIDE Service Expansion Discussion 

RECOMMENDATION 

Acknowledge receipt of the report on RTC RIDE Service Expansion Discussions; direct Staff 
accordingly. 

SUMMARY 

The Truckee Meadows is experiencing strong economic growth driven by the recent influx of new 
technology and other types of businesses to the region. This influx of jobs has increased the demand 
for housing, services and other support businesses (retail, automotive, health, and other related 
businesses). Areas of the Truckee Meadows are growing rapidly, such as Spanish Springs, 
Stead/Cold Springs (North Valleys) and South Reno. This population growth increases demand for 
additional transportation products like streets, sidewalks, bikeways, and public transportation. 

At the RTC Board meeting on June 20, 2019, Commissioners Hartung and Smith pointed out the 
economic growth and need for more public transit services. They further requested that staff review 
adding public transit services to other areas of Truckee Meadows, specifically Spanish Springs. The 
purpose of this report is to provide additional information on this request, as well as identify various 
other requests for service throughout the region. This analysis includes the requirements for 
effective and efficient public transit service and the costs to serve these areas, as well as the return 
on investment. 

The following table summarizes new service alternatives detailed in the "Additional Background" 
section of this report. The table shows the alternate number, brief description, the proposed 
headway, one-way or bi-directional (two-way) loop, operating cost, capital cost, ADA service (RTC 
ACCESS) cost, total cost, population, and demographics as percentages of population for elderly, 
youth, and zero vehicle (no car). 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


RTC RIDE Service Expansion Discussion 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 2 

One/Two [---·-·-· ·-·---- - ~os! ____ _ __ _ 

Alternative: Short Description: 

ADA Service: ' 
Headway Way Loop: 1

1 
Operating: Capital: Total: ! Population 

(RTC ACCESS) 

60-min One 1 $ 300,000 $ 850,000 S 86,000 $1,236,000 ' 

Alternate 
1 

Hartung Proposed - t--60_-m_i_n -1--T_w_o_~$~ 60_0_.o_oo---+-$~l,_70~0,~000--t~S __ 86~,o_oo--+-S~2-,3_86~,ooo---1 
Fixed-Route 30-mi n One I $ 600,000 S 1, 700,000 $ 86,000 $2,386,000 

Alternate 2 
Concentrated -

Fixed-Route 

30-Min Two 1 $1,200,000 $ 3,400,000 $ 86,000 $4,686,000 I 
60-Min One $ 542,000 $ 1,700,000 $ 156,000 $2,398,000 

60-Min Two I $1,084,000 $ 3,400,000 $ 156,000 $4,640,000 

30-Min One I $1,084, 000 $ 3,400,000 $ 156,000 $4,640,000 

30-Min Two $2,168,000 S 6,800,000 $ 156,000 $9,124,000 

10,902 

8,188 

__ Percent.age of Population. 

Elderly: Youth: No Car: 

13.90% 22.00% 3.10% 

12.90% 23.40% 1.80% 

I ADA Service: 

(RTC ACCESS) 

· -- ~ -- .~. - - T ·r 
tL:.~--::..·-· ~t::......~- ~I 

Alternate 31 Microtransit 

Headway: No. ofVeh.l Operating: 

Demand 2- Vehicles1 $ 507,000 

Demand 3-Vehiclesl $ 760,500 

Demand 4- Vehicles I $1,014,000 

$ 
$ 

$ 

Capital: 

280,000 

420,000 
560,000 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Total: 

$ 787,000 ! 
- $1,180,500 I 
- $1,574,000 

8,188 ! 12.90% 23.40% 1.80% 
I 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Fiscal impact is at the discretion of the Board based on direction to staff. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

There has been no previous Board action or direction on this matter. 

ADDITIONAL BACKGROUND 

Population expansion typically begs the question "why isn't there public transit service in outlying 
areas like Spanish Springs?" There are several reasons why expansion of public transit service has 
not occurred in the outlying communities of Truckee Meadows, such as Spanish Springs. Following 
are some of the reasons: 

� Funding is limited; 
� Distance from other existing transit service, which increases cost; 
� Low Density development; 
� Area demographics (minority, poverty, no cars, etc.); 
� Street network that lacks connectivity and is more challenging to serve with fixed-route; and 
� Availability of equipment (i.e. buses) to supply the proposed service. 

There is also the added cost to provide the federally required Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) 
complementary paratransit service (RTC ACCESS) to any expansion service within¾ mile of that 
service. Based on the adopted FY 2020 budget, the cost to operate the RTC ACCESS service is 
28.65% of the RTC RJDE fixed-route service cost. 

For additional information regarding these factors, see Attachment 1. 



RTC RIDE Service Expansion Discussion 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 3 

Transit Service Alternatives 

Alternate 1 - Fixed-route Bus Loop Route: 

The Proposed Route and specified line-of-route (as suggested by Commissioner Hartung): 

Baring Blvd. - Down Sparks Blvd. - East on Disc Drive - North on Vista (past the DaVita) -
West on Los Altos - Down to Galleria Pkwy. - Turn South again on Galleria - East again on 
Disc Drive - Back to Sparks Blvd - Back to Baring Blvd. 

This route considers a one-way loop. One-way loops are undesirable for passengers because they 
increase passenger wait times and increase pedestrian travel distances to return to their origin. 

Following are the operating assumptions for the Alternate 1 service: 

� 6 am to 7 pm Weekdays, 
8 am to 7 pm Saturday, and 
8 am to 7 pm Sunday; 

� 60-minute Headways every day; 
� Requires I-vehicle (valued at $850,000) for 60-minute headway. 

The table below outlines the cost for a 60-minute headway service, as well as other options to 
enhance the service to make it more desirable to the passenger: 

Alternate 1: 60-Minute Headway 

One Bus Required 

One, One-Way Loop 

60-Minute Headway 

Two Buses Required 

Bi-Directional Loops 

30-Minute Headway 

Two Buses Required 

One, One-Way Loop 

30-Minute Headway 

Four buses Required 

Bi-Directional Loops 

Estimate Operating Cost: $ 300,000 $ 600,000 $ 600,000 $ 1,200,000 

Required ACCESS Service Cost: $ 86,000 $ 86,000 $ 86,000 $ 86,000 

Total Operational Service Cost: - - ---- - ----
Bus requirement is one: 

$ 386,000 --------· ' 

$ 850,000 

J ___ 686,0_00 

$ 1,700,000 

$ 686,000 - --- - -- -
$ 1,700,000 

$ --- 1,286,000_ 

$ 3,400,000 

Gross Overall Cost: s 1,236,000 s 2,386,000 $ 2,386,000 s 4,686,000 

Based on the demographics noted above for those having a propensity to use public transit service, 
population is about 10,902, 13.9% are elderly, 22.0% are youth, and 3.1 % are zero vehicle 
households based on a one-quarter mile distance from the transit line. The Federal Transit 
Administration (FTA) uses the one-quarter mile distance as the catchment area for comparing 
changes in service for those classified as disadvantaged under Title VI requirements. 

I 

By comparison, the demographics for Route 19 ( a similar route length to Alternate 1 ), include 
population equal to 12,822, 12.7% elderly, 19.3% youth, and 27.3% with no vehicles. 

Route 19 carries 166 passengers on a typical weekday which equates to a productivity (passengers 
per revenue hour) of 20.48. The key demographic is the 'No Vehicle' percentage that is nearly 9 
times that of Alternate 1. Based on this data and comparison to other routes, the estimated 



RTC RIDE Service Expansion Discussion 
R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 4 

productivity is between 8 and 12. The 'cost per passenger' for Route 19 is approximately $5.44 on 
an average weekday, where Alternate 1 would be approximately $10.50 - more than double. For a 
more detailed report, please see Attachment 2-"New Route Analysis." 

Alternate 2: 

Spanish Springs Concentrated Route: 

In an effort to supply some level of fixed-route service to the Spanish Springs area a shorter route 
could be considered to serve some of the multi-family, higher density projects and connect with the 
areas of retail and service. The Alternate 2 route could serve the following: Walmart, Galleria 
Parkway, Vineyards at Galleria, Verona Apartments, Caviata at Kiley Ranch, Waterstone at Kiley 
Ranch, and The Trails at Pioneer Meadows; all of which are major points of interest in Spanish 
Springs. 

The proposed route may follow these streets: 

� Pyramid Highway from Los Altos Parkway to 
� Kiley Parkway to 
� Sparks Boulevard to 
� Henry Orr Parkway to 
� Vista Del Rancho Parkway to 
� Vista Boulevard to Wingfield Hills Road 
� Rolling Meadows Drive to 
� The roundabout at The Trails at Pioneer Meadows to 
� Rolling Meadows Drive to 
� Wingfield Hills Road to 
� Vista Boulevard to 
� Disc Drive to 
� Galleria Parkway to 
� Los Altos Parkway to 
� Pyramid Highway (south) into the Kohl's/ Walmart parking 

To maintain a 60-minute headway, this route would require two buses for one direction of the loop. 

Alternate 2: 60-Minute HE!_adway 
Two Buses Required 

One, One-Way Loop 

60-Minute Headway 

Four Buses Required 
Bi-Directional Loops 

31)..Minute Headway 

Four Buses Required 

One, One-Way Loop 

3C>:'.Minute Headway 
Eight buses Required 

Bi-Directional Loops 

Estimate Operating Cost: $ 542,000 $ 1,084,000 $ 1,084,000 $ 2,168,000 

Required ACCESS Service Cost: $ 156,000 $ 156,000 $ 156,000 $ 156,000 

Total Operational Service Cost: --------- -----
Bus requirement is one: 

$ 698,000 -- ---------- -
$ 1,700,000 

$ ----- 1,240,000 
$ 3,400,000 

$ 1,240,000 --------- -
$ 3,400,000 

$ -- 2,324,000 _ 

$ 6,800,000 

Gross Overall Cost: $ 2,398,000 $ 4,640,000 $ 4,640,000 $ 9,124,000 



RTC RIDE Service Expansion Discussion 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 5 

The demographics served for this particular route are 8,188 in population, 12.9% elderly, 23.4% 
youth, and 1.8% with no vehicles. Therefore, considering the demographic of 'no vehicles,' this is 
half of that percentage presented under Alternate 1. This would suggest the potential for productivity 
to be less than Alternate 1. Staff is estimating productivity between 6 and 8 passengers per hour. 

The resulting cost per passenger would be between approximately $13.50 and $27.00, not including 
the cost of the buses. 

Alternate 3: 

Spanish Springs Microtransit: 

This option proposes to serve the area noted in 'Alternate 2' with FlexRIDE. In this option, the 
proposed service area is very similar to that of the Sparks FlexRIDE service scheduled for 
implementation in November 2019. Since the FlexRIDE service utilizes ADA equipped vans and 
operates curb-to-curb service, FlexRIDE does not require a complementary ADA service expansion. 

The following table outlines the cost for this alternative: 

Alternate 3: On-Demand Service 

Two Vans Required 

Curb-to-Curb 

On-Demand Service 

Third Van Required 

Curb-to-Curb 

On-Demand Service 
Fourth Van Required 

Curb-to-Curb 

Estimate Operating Cost: $ 507,000 $ 760,500 $ 1,014,000 

Required ACCESS Service Cost: $ - $ - $ -

Total Operational Service Cost: 
,- ------ ------------

Bus requirement is one: 

$ 507,000 ~------------
$ 280,000 

_ $ ------- 760,500 
$ 420,000 

$ ---- 1,014,000 
$ 560,000 

Gross Overall Cost: $ 787,000 $ 1,180,500 $ 1,574,000 

With the percentage of those with 'no vehicles' being half of what the Sparks FlexRIDE area is, 
without a formal analysis staff estimates for this area the ridership per day to be less than 100, about 
half of what is being estimated for the Sparks FlexRIDE service. 

Other Areas fm- Expansion Consideration: 

Following is a list of areas the RTC has received requests/comments for service expansion: 

� Stead/Lemmon Valley - Rated "Medium" on the "Residential Transit Oriented Index" 
(RTOI) Map 

� Red Rock/Cold Springs -Rated "Low" to "None" on the RTOI Map 
� South Reno -Rated "Low" on the RTOI Map 
� Somersett-Rated "Low" on the RTOI Map 
� Mogul-Rated "Medium" on the RTOI Map 
� Verdi-Rated "None" on the RTOI Map 
� Washoe Valley-Rated "Low" to "None" on the RTOI Map 



RTC RIDE Service·Expansion-Discussion 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 6 

The RTC has also received many requests to expand existing service to later in the evening on 
weekdays and weekends, higher frequency service on the weekends and more cross-town routes to 
shorten travel times. These requests come from those working at casinos and warehouses within the 
current service area, as employee shifts tend to end/begin just after the RIDE service ends. 

Another alternative is to consider enhancing service to some of the existing routes that RTC cut 
during the 2007 recession. Examples include: 

� Route 5 - extending service further into Sun Valley pre-recession, Washoe County School 
Districts new middle school - Desert Skies; 

� Route 7 - earlier and later service for warehouse workers, as well as serving other 
warehouse facilities recently constructed; 

� Route 18 - provide service in current service 'gap' and increase span on weekends for those 
working the swing and graveyard shifts at the Sparks industrial parks; 

� Route 3CL - earlier and later service to accommodate shift workers; 
� Route 3CC - increase service to complement Route 3CL that would provide the full service 

bi-directional loop, which would enhance ridership on both services. 

See Attachment 3 showing the performance metrics for the routes listed above and their associated 
demographics. 

• Route 5 and Route 3CL rank in the top ten for 'Productivity;' 
• Route 7 and Route 18 rank in the middle for 'Productivity; and 
• Route 3CC ranks at the bottom for 'Productivity.' 

Route 5 serves a residential population that works at casinos and warehouses. Route 18 serves the 
Sparks industrial area and a mobile home park, which tends to have a higher percentage of 'no 
vehicle' population. Routes 3CL and 3CC serve a residential area in which many work in Reno and 
Sparks. The possible reason for the poor performance of Route 3CC is the fact that it does not 
complement Route 3CL by operating during the same span of day as Route 3CL to offer the full bi
directional looped route service. Route 7 serves the warehouses in Stead where there are many who 
ride Route 7 to work at these warehouses, as well as a large population of students going to Truckee 
Meadows Community College (TMCC) and the University of Nevada, Reno (UNR). 

The following table provides the associated cost to improve the services noted in this discussion of 
local routes that would benefit from enhanced service. 



RTC RIDE Service Expansion Discussion 
RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 

Page 7 

Route: 
~ < - - -

Route 5: 

DeJcr!Pt!on_: ----- ----
Extend service to Desert Skies 

and return portion of route cut 

during 2007 recession. 

Operational 
Cost ---~-

$ 300,000 

Additional 

Bus ~eq~d 

Yes 

Expected 
Performance 

Ch~ng_e --- ----
Maintain or increase 

current high 

productivity 

Route 7: Increase Span of Service $ 100,000 No 

Maintain or increase 

current medium 

productivity 

Route 18: 
Increase Span of Service and fill 

in service 'gap' 
$ 115,000 No 

Maintain or increase 

current high 

productivity 

Route 3CL: Increase Span of Service $ 98,000 No 

Maintain or increase 

current medium 

productivity 

Route 3CC: 

Increase Span of Service and 

follow Span of Route 3CL to 

provide full bi-directional 

service: 

$ 685,000 No 

Maintain or increase 

current low 

productivity 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 

Attachments 



ATTACHMENT 1 

Funding: 

The recession ofFY2007 greatly affected the public transit budget - some routes were reduced, some 
routes were cut, and service was pulled back to accommodate the available funding. Since that time, 
sales tax revenue has increased allowing R TC for the past several years to maintain the existing 
level-of-service. However, with the improved economy there have been some challenges to the 
operation of public transportation. One of the challenges has been driver/operator retention and 
hiring. As previously reported, driver/operator wages were not keeping pace with the prevailing 
wages in the community. Therefore, RTC had to work with the operations contractor to improve 
the wages for the drivers/operators. The result has been an increase in the operating costs of public 
transportation. Farebox recovery from passengers is at 23% while RTC funds about 77% of the 
operating costs through sales tax revenue. 

A new operations contract and contractor have been in place since July 1, 2019. The new contracted 
resulted in an annual increase of about 28% to the operating budget over last year (in large part due 
to higher wages for bus operators). 

Distance from Existing Public Transit Service: 

A big challenge to transit planning and transit service delivery is urban sprawl. Urban sprawl is the 
residential growth outside the urban core. Urban sprawl puts new residential, multi-use, commercial, 
and industrial properties further away from existing services, including public transit services. This 
inherently drives the cost of public transit service up because any new service needs to connect to 
the existing public transit service. Yes, for some areas it is possible to create local service; however, 
and inevitably the request comes to connect the outlying service with the existing urban core service. 
Additionally, for some of the outlying areas there are 'gaps' in which public transit service would 
be inefficient and unproductive. These 'gaps' in service are due to long segments in which there 
would be no boardings or alightings. 

Density: 

The most effective public transit services in the world typically have one common theme: they serve 
dense populations. Density is the number of people per an area - when this value is high, the 
effectiveness and efficiency of public transit service is high. Examples include New York City, 
Chicago, Los Angeles, and other similarly sized cities. Density is created by projects that cause 
people to live in close proximity to one another, like housing divisions that have little land between 
them, multi-family facilities like apartments or condos, and high-rise residential projects. 

For areas with spacious land housing projects, density is reduced. The more density is reduced, 
typically, the more inefficient and ineffective public transit service becomes. Public Transportation 
and Operations planning staff uses a tool known as the "Residential Transit Oriented Index" or RTOI 
for short, to help understand what areas in this community would tend to have an efficient and 
effective public transit service. One of the elements in this 'Index' is density, amongst four other 
demographics (population, elderly, youth, and zero vehicle). Please refer to the "Residential Transit 
Oriented Index" document below for more details. 



Area demographics (minority, poverty. no cars, etc.): 

The demographics of an area provide insight into how well a public transit service is utilized by the 
community. The demographics that have a propensity for using public transit services are: 

� Population (part of the 'Density' discussion above); 
� Zero Vehicle Households 
� Elderly Population (65 years and older) 
� Youth Population (under 18 years) 
� Residential Density (Population per square mile) 

As previous noted, 'Density' is a large component of public transit service use and is tied to 
population, and represented as the number of people per square mile. The next component is the 
'Zero Vehicle Household' population followed by the 'Elderly Population.' The elderly are less 
likely to drive and in some cases cannot afford to drive at all. Next is the 'Youth Population,' a 
unique demographic in which many rely on other means of transportation. Those able to drive are 
not compelled to drive or choose not to own an automobile for various reasons. For the remainder, 
they must rely on other means, including public transit. To ensure an effective and efficient public 
transit service, you must consider all of these contributing factors. 

Street Network: 

Urban planning tends to deter public transit ridership. Communities like Spanish Springs were and 
are designed to be esthetically pleasing. However, the features making these communities 
esthetically pleasing are the same features preventing public transit ridership. Below is a brief list 
of features preventing public transit ridership: 

� Circuitous street networks; 
� Meandering sidewalks; 
� Sound walls; and 
� Gated communities; 

Public transit passengers prefer straighter lines of travel; therefore, the circuitous street networks 
make for longer ride times and meandering sidewalks tend to increase the distance a pedestrian must 
travel. Furthermore, if those sidewalks follow the circuitous street network, the pedestrian is subject 
to a longer walk and forces public transit to stay on the main arterials. Sound walls and gated 
communities further impede a pedestrian's walk and cause a pedestrian to walk significantly more 
to obtain a path leading outside the neighborhood to the main arterial to access the nearest transit 
line. Combining these factors tends to lead to poor public transit access and; therefore, poor transit 
ridership. 

Availability of Buses to supply any proposed service: 

Currently, the RTC RIDE fleet is adequately sized to operate all current routes and service. Service 
expansion will require additional buses to provide the new service. Service expansion can be as 
simple as adding additional route length to an existing route or implementing an entirely new service. 
Under either circumstance, additional buses are required. Each new bus costs approximately 
$850,000 and takes roughly 18 months from start of order to delivery. Therefore, if a service 
expansion requires two buses the resulting cost could be approximately $1. 7 million with a later 
2021 vehicle delivery. 



Residential Transit Oriented Index 
(From the 2018 - 2022 Short Range Transit Plan (SR TP)) 

The RTOI compares census block groups within a given geographic area to one another with respect 
to five key demographics related to propensity to use transit. The data source for all variables is the 
2014 American Community Survey five-year data: 

• Population in poverty, as measured by the Census Bureau 
• Zero vehicle households 
• Elderly population (age 65 and over) 
• Youthful population (under age 18) 
• Residential density (population per square mile) 

For each demographic variable, a score is assigned to each census block group within the County 
based upon how that demographic variable compares to the countywide average. The score is 
derived using a comparative probability estimation method. Population in poverty, zero vehicle 
household, and population density scores are weighted by a factor of two, reflecting their importance 
in terms of transit ridership. A composite score is then obtained for each census block group by 
summing the scores for each of the five individual variables. These composite scores are then ranked 
and assigned to one of five transit orientation groups (very high, high, moderate, low, and other) 
based upon how each compares to the average score for the service area as a whole. 

The RTOI provides an effective tool to identify residential areas with a high propensity to use transit. 
When used in conjunction with operating and service-related data, it can assist in evaluating unmet 
needs within the study area. 

When the RTOI is presented as a map, as shown in Figure 1 below, including RTC routes for Washoe 
County, it is clear that RTC serves the region appropriately. Dark blue areas represent a 'very-high' 
orientation toward transit. Neighborhoods with high transit orientation (shown in light blue) are also 
well served. These areas are either adjacent to or within a short walk of one or more RTC RIDE 
routes. Most of the areas in the central portion of Reno between Keystone Avenue and 1-580 show 
high or very high transit orientation. 

The results of the RTOI indicate that RTC does a good job of serving all of the highly transit oriented 
areas in Reno and Washoe County. RTC RIDE transit service is available directly or within a short 
walking distance in all transit-oriented neighborhoods within its service area. Experience with this 
tool at other transit systems has shown that routes serving neighborhoods with high or very high 
transit orientation have high ridership and strong productivity while routes in neighborhoods with 
medium or low transit orientation struggle to attract and retain ridership. 



Figure 4.1 
Washoe County Residential Transit Orientation Index 

Residental Transit 
RTC ACCESS Service Area Bound a Orientation Index (RTOI) 

Cold 
Springs Low - High 

Washoe County 

-- RTC RIDE Routes 

Washoe 
Counly 

I 
,;;, 

Lemmon Valley 
Golden Valley 

Medium - Very High 

Spanish 
Springs 

Storey 
County 

Washoe 
County 



Attachment 2 

New Route Analysis 

Northern Sparks/Spanish Springs 

June 26, 2019 

Prepared by: Michael Dulude, Transit Planner/ Scheduler 



Purpose: 

This analysis was prepare based on RTC Board member items from the June 

20, 2019 Board meeting. In which both Commissioner Smith and 

Commission Hartung requested staff to look into supplying public transit 

service to other areas and specifically called out Spanish Springs. 

Additionally, Commissioner Hartung called out a specific line-of-route from 

Sparks Boulevard and Baring Drive to Vista Drive, Los Altos Parkway, and 

Galleria Drive via Disc Drive. 

Background: 

Over the years the northern Sparks area, otherwise known as Spanish Springs 

has grown immensely and recently has grown even more as the Tahoe-Reno 

Industrial Center continues to expand. With that expansion comes the 

question as to "why isn't there public transit service in Spanish Springs?" 

There are several different reasons why expansion of public transit service 

has not occurred to the Spanish Springs community as well as to other 

communities in the Truckee Meadows. These are some of the reasons: 

� Funding is first and foremost; 

� Distance from other existing transit service, which increases cost; 

� Density; 

� Area demographics (Minority, Poverty, No Cars, etc.); 

� Urban planning (street network, community layout); and 

� Availability of equipment to supply any proposed service. 

There is of course the added cost to provide the Americans with Disabilities 

Act (ADA) complementary paratransit service (RTC ACCESS) to the area. 

Generally, based on the adopted FY 2020 budget, there is an add-on of 

28.65% to any new fixed route service to account for the cost to operate RTC 

ACCESS for the same area. 



The recession of FY 2007 affected the public transit budget greatly some 

routes were reduced, some routes were cut, and service was pulled back to 

accommodate the available funding. Since that time the sales tax revenue 

has increased and the RTC has been able to maintain the level-of-service for 

several years. However, with the improved economy there have been some 

pitfalls to the operations of public transportation. One of the pitfalls has 

been driver/operator retention and hiring. As was previously noted to the 

Board the current driver/operator wages were not keeping pace with the 

prevailing wages in the community. Therefore, the RTC had to work with the 

operations contractor to improve the wages to the drivers/operators. The 

result has been an increase in operating costs of public transportation. 

Furthermore, a new operations contract and contractor has been put into 

place as of July 1, 2019. The result of this event (mostly due to the higher 

staff wages) is an annual increase of about 28% to the operating budget over 

last year. 

This is just a brief overview of what has stood in the way of expanding service 

to other areas in the Truckee Meadows. 

The Proposed Route (as indicated by Commissioner Hartung): 

Per Commission Hartung's proposed route, he indicated this specific line

of-route: 

"Baring Blvd. - Down Sparks Blvd. - East on Disc Drive - North on Vista (past 

the DaVita) - West on Los Altos - Down to Galleria Pkwy. - Turn South again 

on Galleria - East again on Disc Drive - Back to Sparks Blvd - Back to Baring 

Blvd." 

Following are operating assumptions: 

� 6 am to 7 pm Weekdays, 

8 am to 7 pm Saturday, and 

8 am to 7 pm Sunday; 

� 60-minute Headways every day; 

� Requires 1-vehicle (valued at $800,000) for 60-minute headway. 



Based on these operating parameters the estimated annual cost for the 

fixed-route bus service would be approximately $300,000 (60-minute 

Headways). Please note if 30-minute headway service is desired, the 

operating cost will double and there will be a need for one more bus. Add 

the one-way loop discussion and costing here additionally based on the 

ancillary cost of RTC ACCESS, there will be an add-on of about $86,000 

(28.65% of $300,000) annually for RTC ACCESS. 

Below is a map of the proposed route with route statistics regarding 

operations and associated demographics: 

8.14 miles 

1 vehicle - Bus 

$295.8k / year 

2,958 hours/ year· 
Oise Dr 

Disc Dr 39,792 miles/ year 

35 stops. 1,234 ft apart 

Wedekind 
R~lonal Parl< 

10,902 popuiation 

2,117 jobs 

1 8:1 % ir1 pove.,:ty 

Shadow Ln 32.0% 111ir~ority 

,an Way 

W;,y 

y 

,y 

, Way 

P St 

ae Dr 

c, 

E Queen Way 
z 

1 n 
7', 
Ill 

"' r 
::, 

NI\?, 
"c-

"-';-. 

~ 
OJ EYorkWay < 
0.. 0 

>-. -~ 
0 "' s: It> 

Q u 
:a 

..c e 
n 

d 
PairnvPJ> 

Baring Blvd 

Q' 
,J-,i> 

<3-<:! 

Shadow Mount..in 
Sports Complex 

"" 0 
"' ,. 
3 ~-"' ~ < i>ot:,,_ S;l 

~ ½. 
0 ::, 

~· 

0 
:s. 
~ 

5 
E 
0 
"' "' " ai 

] 
i'.Il 

"' t, 
5 

u' 
I!, 

fr 
"'-:, 
0 

~ 

,.._ 

1 

' 

13.9% seniar:s (65+) 

22.0% YOl!th ( i 8-) 

3.5% limited English 

9.2% with disabilities 

3.1 % 1,v1U1 no vehicles 

4,056 households 2015 



Following are maps of the demographics noted in the table above : 

" 
Q. Search places. lln more X 

Population X 

People living per square mile. American 
Commun ity Survey, 2017 • 

• > 20,000 

• 12,000 - 20,000 

• 6,000 - 12,000 

4 3,000 - 6,000 

• 1,500 - 3,000 

500 - 1.500 

,, 500 pt'O I 

2000 ft • + 



Q. Search places, llnes & more X 

Jobs X 
:: 

Jobs per square mi le byTAZ. CTPP data 
based 011 American Community Survey, 
2016 . 

• > 7,500 Jobs 

• 3,200 - 7,500 Jobs. 

~ 1.500 - 3,200 1obs 

• 800 - 1.500 Jobs 

400 - 800 JObs 

200 - '100 Job 

< 200 JOO, 

,. 

1apbo,: ,9 OpepStreetl&p Improve this map 



0. Sedrch pla~~. lines more X 

Poverty X 

People per square mile fa lling below the 
nation-wide poverty level. American 
Community Surve\', 20 17 • 

, 5,000 • • 2,000 - 5,000 

, ,:ti"' 

1 •on•~ 

® 1.000 - 2,000 Jl 'JC f 

fj 500 - 1,000 p 1..•t,1~1,,. 

250 - 500 fl"C";11f~ 

100-250 P,:':'lll~ 

., 100 pr1,. Ir, 

2000h t J. + 



X 
Spanish Springs - He 

1 li ne :'. 1 vehicle 

$295.8k ,; ea:-

2,958 hou rs 1 \•Ci. , 

39,792 miles 1 :/e:, ,· 

35 stops, 1,234 ft apart 

10,902 popu1ac1on 

2,1 17 JOtJ<., 

8.1% ,n po,;e1T: 

32.0% 1111norny 

13.9% 52:1101S ,b':>~1 

22.0% )'OUlil (1,3-) 

3.5% l tnlll ~U cl1_!21t ~n 

9.2% 'NJU1 c: 1sa !J1l:u2s 

3.1% ,;,1cn rw ,.,e•1:c1es 

4,056 llOU5el,o icis 20 l .5 i.""' 

,-" . .,.,, 

,,s•. 
© Mapbox © OpenStr.....Map Improve this map 

Q.. Search p laces, lines & more X 

Minority 

People per square mile who are non
White or of Hispanic origin. American 
Community Survey, 2017 . 

• > 10,000 peopl-2 

• 5,000-10,000 pe op le 

• 2,000 - 5,000 ;;1:::c1ple 

• 1,000 - 2,000 peop le 

~) 500-1,000 aeri0li=: 

100 - 500 ;Jeop le 

< 100 p~ r:,p lf 

2000 ft i A + 



0... Sea1·ch pl aces . lin es & more X 

Senior X 

People per square mile who are 65 years 
or older. Amer ican Community Survey, 
2017 . 

• > 1,800 

• 900 -1 ,800 

• 600 - 900 

• 400 - 600 

'-; 200 - 400 

50 - 200 

< 50 

2000ft i A + 



Q_ Sea rch places. lines & rno re X 

Youth X 

People per square mile who are 1 B years 
or younger. American Community Survey. 
2017 . 

• > 3,000 

• 1,500 - 3.000 l).;_'{_lf . .'11~ 

• 1.000-1.500 

® 700-1.000 

350- 700 

100-350 

< 100 

2000ft A + 



0. Sea1ch pl.aces. line!. more X 

Limited English X 

Households per square mile with limited 
English speaking status. American 
Community survey. 2017 . 

• , 1.200 r HJ ·holtl~ 

• 900 - 1,200 ._.ht>' I 

• 450-900 ,,,"S~m,d 

,, (~5 150 - 450 M\JY 

50 - 150 111.rr•h1!.LJ 

25 - so t r11,~.,,u,ir1 

< 25 I ('.I , ... •1n~c. 

2000ft t A + 

http:111.rr�h1!.LJ


X 

l•"IJPI 

Spanish Springs - H2 
Disabled 

People per square mile who have a 
disability. American Community Survey. 
2017 . 

• > 1.500 

• 900 - 1.500 

• 600 -900 

• 300- 600 

~) 150 - 300 

50 - 150 

< 50 
1 line & 1 vehicle 

$295.8k / year 

2,958 hours I year 

39.792 miles/ year 

35 stops, 1,234 ft apart 
ti•l'ICl'JtM- ... ., 
;p..,,,, :J!'I p1l'• 

10,902 popularion 

2,117 JOOS 

8.1 % 1n poveny 

32.0% n1inority 

13.9% se111or, (65 

22.0% youtt' [ 18-) 

3.5% lirnired English 

9.2% \'✓ l[h OISilhilities 

3.1 % •:,1t11 no ve•o1cles 
2000ft j. + 

4,056 households 20·1 s 



~ Search plae£5, fin . Jllllre X 

Car Free X 

Households per square miie with no 
vehicle available. American Community 
Survey, 2017 , 

• > 1,000 hotJ<-""h "Jl 

• 300- 1.000 I Ot1-setrn· 

$ 150 - 300 t'\,IJt,.. ... ,• 

• 90 - 150 l·QU•.e t111kl> 

45 -90 hou PI\Q1t1 

15 - 45 to11~('-fVJ ) 

< 15 Mu~,\'Jr1H 

2000 ft t A. + 



Q. Search places, lllles & more X 

Spanish Springs - He 
Households 2015 X 

s 
Households per square mile . 

• > 3000 

• 2000 - 3000 

• 1500 - 2000 

• 1000-1500 t ,Uli'.:,'21 \Ci((j ~ 

@t 500 - 1000 

150-500 

< 150 : •• _I \., • .._ r'\(.- •~ -• 

1 line & 1 vehicle 

$295.Sk / yc~r 

2,958 hours I year 

39,792 miles; ye,,1 

35 scops, 1,234 ft ai::art 

10,902 po pulat1o r, 

2,117 JO l)S 

8.1 % 111 poven:y 

32.0% llllll OJ"IC/ 

13.9% sen io rs (G :>' I 

22.0% vou,i· ( 3-) 

3.5% lllnllCU Engl1 sl1 
• I 11-_ 

• I :-· ."' - • I -
3.1 % ,,val1 110 vet11clc:s I ., -~- .. . -.--. --- A 4,056 i1ousel1olc:s 201 5 

l t + 
•• I o O ~ •• '"' 



Route Comparison to Estimate Ridership and Performance: 

A typical method used in public transit route planning is to compare any new 

potential route with an existing route in the system that closely compares to 

the proposed route's population, jobs, and household demographics. 

For this comparison, staff believes that Route 19 closely compares to the 

proposed route. This route is not the only route that closely compares; 
Route 26 in Sparks is another. Route 19 has the following line-of-route: 

Lake Street to Liberty/Ryland Streets to Wells Avenue, to South Virginia 

Street, to Plumb, circulating through the Reno-Tahoe International Airport, 

to north on Terminal Way, west on Vassar Street, to south on Harvard, back 

to Plumb, where the route returns to 4TH STREET STATION via South Virginia 

Street, to Wells, to Ryland/Liberty Streets, to Lake. 

Route 19 is a currently well-established route and is currently one of RTC 

RIDE services with poor performance, ranking near the bottom of all RTC 

RIDE local services. Route 19 currently operates Monday through Friday at 

60-minute headways from 6:45 am to 6:35 pm. There is no Saturday or 

Sunday service. 

Following is a map of Route 19 statistics regarding operations and associated 

demographics: 



<. 

~ ,. 
! 9.18 miles C ~ North St 

Reno , 
1 vehicle -- Bus 

St 

z 
0 
::I $255.7k / year 
-::,-
/;, vi 

.:i_, 
5-" Cl 

C 
0 

2,557 hours / year ~ 0 77 7<: 
Ryland St iii ' 0:: ~ 

l:f :, 
~ 

., 
,., 
" ~ 28,152 miles / year ¾,;Sr 
i;-

u' J 
~ .0 Moran St 39 stops, 1,307 ft apart 
~- E 

bon,; St ~-., u 
0 

u' 0 
on•oSt <>· 

0 Within 0.25 rn1 of stops: 
'?<i 

'P ::r: ~ 
~ ey St !!. "' ~ CM 
~ "' ..c 

a. E' 'P 
~ 77 "' -< 12,822 popu lat ion Taylor St E ;:; !f Q ~ ~ cr- .,, 0 n Ave 6. c 0 >2 " 0 i :r l<i n St "' a· t ., t ~ a. g ~ 3 " Crompl g C 

:, 
0 "' ~ ~ '& ..J it ~ 18,046 jobs !!' !!' s: !!' 

~ Bums St a. ~ >- ~ 
0 ¼' t t ' 
j Ave r.> :E :;; " "' ~ ii:i 29.6% in poveny Wct'ld I St ilker Ave 

r 50.3% minority 0 
n WArro)10St C: 
!<I 

W Pueblo St !!I 12.7% seniors (65+) 

19.3% youth {18-) 

[ 
,>< 

12.1 % lirnitecf English .. · --=--- E-f'lumb l---- + IN Plumb Ln e-Ptombbi r
:, , RNO 17.9% v.1ith disabil ities 

Hillcrest Dr 
I 

/ 27.3% with no vehicles 

5,617 households 201 '> 
E Grove St 



Following are maps of the demographics noted in the table above: 

-t-
11 '0 

0, search places.111,es & rnorc X 

Population X 

People living per square mile. American 
Community Survey. 20 17 • 

• > 20,000 PffPlt-

• 12,000 - 20.000 J ~opk 

® 6,000 - 12.000 re-c,r1~ 

• 3,000 - 6.000 ll!Mlllh~ 

• 1,500 - 3.000 pet,ple 

500 - 1,500 ~e~pl, 

< 500 P•-•Ople 

1000 ft f A. + 



Rr-JO 

~ ~-~ecbox ~) OpenS:ree!:·.iap lmpro"ve this map 

Q_ 

Jobs 

2016 . 

• • 

< 200 

1000 ft 

Search place. lines , niore X 

X 

Jobs per square mile byTAZ. CTPP data 
based on American Community Survey, 

> 7.500 Cb 

3,200 - 7.500 1"" 
1.500 - 3.200 1~v. 

800 - 1.500 !Cb' 

400 - 800 lij0' 

200-400 JQb! 



Q. Search pl.ices. l111es morE' X 

Poverty X 

People per square mHc falling below the 
nation.wide poverty level. American 
Community Survey. 2017 . 

• > 5.000 n,;oul 

• 2.000 - 5.000 P~lll!f 

~ 1,000 - 2.000 oe-i:;1r,1e 

• 500 - 1,000 r>~w•e 

250 - 500 pcop' 

100- 250 (IN,j,I~ 

<1 00 r, ... r,,1,. 

1000 ~ A + t 



Q, Search pine~. lines rnort! X 

Minority X 

People per squa re mile who are non. 
White or of Hispanic origtn. American 
Community Survey, 2017 . 

• ,. 10.000 

• 5,000 - ,0,000 

@ 2,000 - 5.000 

• 1,000 - 2.000 

• 500 - 1.000 

100 - 500 

<100 P- r 

n + t 



Q._ Search pli!Ce$. lln!!'i & more X 

Senior X 

People: per square miie who are 65 years 
rn aide, . American Community SurJey, 
20 17 • 

• ·, 1,800 Pi' 'Ip 

-~ 900 - 1,800 c-oh: 

• 600 - 900 r•'O~I 

• 400 - 600 1n1.-

200 - lQ0 11c-c1ril1 

so - 200 p•",pre 

., so ll® 

1000 ft t A + 



Youth X 

People per square mile who are 18 years 
or younger. American Community Survey. 
2017 • 

• > 3,000 

• 1,500-3,000 

@ 1.000- 1,500 

700- 1,000 

350 - 700 

100 - 350 

< 100 

1000 ft t • + 



X 

.... 
RNO 

~ J.1.tp~ C- O;tcoS~e,::tl.tOp lms,rovc this map 

Q. Se rrh pla,es. lines ?, rnr:irc 

Limited English 

Households per squar ~ mile with limited 
English speaking status, American 
Commun ,ty Survey, 2017, 

• > 1.200 flO\ llq'd 

• 900 - 1.200 hntJ~• tn!rl 

, .. .,,,.•,J• 450 - 900 • 
if 150-450 ho• ~'?flt'~, 

so - 1 so h6,,~no~d\ 

25 - 50 f~r,?'111 •ff• 

< 25 t,ouY,:ltQl,1'. 

1000ft t A + 



~ + 0 ... 

1905 Service 

1 - -~ -=-:-:·1 ·= 
1-- -~ --'. --•-

, 

1 line & 1 vehicle 

$255.7k / year 

2,557 hours / year ::. 

28,152 miles/ year 

38 stops, 1.256 ft apart 

<,) Within 0.25 m, of stops: 

12,822 population 

18,046 jobs 

29.6% in poverty 

50.3% minority 

12.7% seniors (65+) 

19.3% youth (18-) 

12.1% limited English 

17.9% with disabilities 

27.3% with no vehicles 

5,617 households 2015 

C\ Sea1 th pl~ces. line, & more X 

Disabled X 

People per square mile \.vho have a 
clisabTlrty. American Community Su rvey. 
2017 • 

• :..- 1.500 P~ODIC 

® 900 - 1.500 rt-11oct,., 

{i; 600 - 900 f)tcplu 

• 300 - 600 flt'Ol)f" 

• 150 - 300 /l opl~ 

50 - 1 so l'H'C"OrF> 

., 50 tP-"Oll'C' 

1000 ft t ... + 



~ ~.1 ap to-::: Cp!:>:,S:r~~:Mop lmprol'e thh :nap '-----------~------....!lio----.l&.----.J 

Q.. S rch pldte>. I ries & mnre X 

Car Free X 

Households per sq uare mile with no 
vehtc le a11ailable. Arnen::::an Community 
Survey, 2017, 

• ;J, 1.000 ,..-t1o'd1 

lit' 300- 1.000 to• • I 1~d• 

• 150 - 300 lh)t. ~ ~, 
• 90 - 150 hPIZ$<:11 I• 

l5 - 90 tl0t1<;,:•ti"":11• 

15 - LS 

< '5 tvw ho;,J~ 

1000 ft f Ji. + 



1905 Service 

1 line S, 1 vehicle 

$255.7k , ,'(:ill 

2.557 liours / ,-ecir 

28. 152 miles / ye,i r 

38 stops. 1.256 ft apart 

12,822 p:,pulat ion 

18,046 J0lJ5 

29.6% in µovercy 

50.3% fl ll llO rlt y 

12.7% sernor~ (,.,S · i 

19. 3% youti, ( 1 H-) 

12 1% 11111 ,tcd :: ngli sli 

17.9% -.·J1th d1satJ1l1t1cs 

27.3% ·:,irh no vch1C l0~ 

5,617 11o u scllo lcis 201 S .,-.. 

Q_ Search plac<:>s, lines & more X 

Households 2015 X 

Households per square mile . 

• > 3000 I ,nu~ Phr::ric:-

• 2000 - 3000 !".n 1.:;~ t-:11 :ct'a 

e 1500 - 2000 , ;,:,t>se! ,c!do 

• 1000- 1500 l,OIJ:>{'.110iC1~ 

• 500-1000 ,,,,u:0 1,,_,i,J', 

1000 ft >. + 



Side-by-Side Statistics Comparison: 

Below offers a more detailed comparison of the route proposed by 

Commissioner Hartung and Route 19. The following table will indicate the 

various demographics noted above with a ranking when compared to 

demographics of all RTC RIDE routes: 

Proposed Route: Route 19: 

Demog_ra12.hic: Value: Rank: Value: Rank: 
Population: 10,902 19th 12,822 14th 

Jobs: 2,117 Last 18,046 gth 

Poverty: 8.1% Last 26.9% 7th 

Minority: 32.0% 23rd 20.3% 11th 

Seniors: 13.9% 10th 12.7% 18th 

Youth: 22.0% gth 19.3% 12th 

LEP11l: 3.5% 24th 12.1% 2nd 

with Disabilities: 9.2% Last 17.9% gth 

No Vehicle: 3.1% Last 27.3% 6th 
(1) Limited English Proficiency 

Based on the foregoing, the proposed route ranks below Route 19 on 
demographics that have a propensity for generating ridership like "No 
Vehicle," "with Disabilities," "Poverty," and "Jobs." Route 19 ranks overall, 
oddly enough, 19th of all the RTC RIDE local routes. However, it ranks 27th for 
ridership (166 average weekday) and ranks 25th for productivity (passengers 
per revenue hour) of 20.48. Based on this information on some of the 
bottom ranked ridership generating demographics, the productivity may be 
between 8 and 12. 

Then there is the consideration of the cost per passenger. For Route 19, the 
cost per passenger is $5.44 for an average weekday. The system average 
cost per passenger for an average weekday is $1.67. Therefore, based on the 
expected productivity noted above, the potential cost per passenger would 
fall around $10.50. Please note that RTC's share is about 77% from sales tax 
revenue and the passengers pay 23% at the farebox. 

Finally as mentioned briefly above, the urban planning aspect tends to deter 
public transit ridership. The communities served by this proposed route in 



Spanish Springs are designed to be very esthetically pleasing. However, the 
features that make these communities esthetically pleasing are the same 
features that prevent public transit ridership. Below is a brief list of features 
preventing public transit ridership: 

� Circuitous street networks; 
� Meandering sidewalks; 
� Sound walls; and 
� Gated communities; 

Conclusion: 

As transit planning can be more of an art than science, the best estimation is 

that Commissioner Hartung's proposed route from Baring Drive and Sparks 

Boulevard into Spanish Springs has a high probability of being unproductive. 

If this route proves unproductive, it would be up first for elimination during 

an economic downturn. Furthermore, based on the demographics there 

would have to be additional justification for service to this area versus other 

areas that have demographics that require public transit service. 



Attachment 3 

Route Performance Compared to Demographics of Each Route: 

The design of the table below is to show the ranking of certain selected routes to various 
metrics: 

� Overall Route Ranking - Takes into account all performance measures 
� Total Daily Ridership 
� Rank for each route by Ridership 
� Productivity (Passengers or Ridership per hour) 
� Rank for each route by Productivity 
� Level-of-Service offered on each route for peak service 
� Population Level 
� Rank for each route by Population 
� Percent of population that are Elderly (seniors, 65 years old and older) 
� Rank for each route by percentage of Elderly 
� Percent of population that are Youth (less than 18 years old) 
� Rank for each route considering percentage of Youth 
� Percent of population with 'No Vehicles' 
� Rank for each route by Population without vehicles 

High rankings are marked in green highlight and the lowest rankings are marked in yellow 
highlight. Routes not shown are ranked somewhere between the highest and lowest 
rankings. 

Upon review, the Virginia Line -RAPID has the highest daily ridership; however, the most 
productive service is Route 11 at a productivity level of 72.6, which gives it a first place 
ranking in that category. Upon review of the demographics for Route 11, it also has the 
highest percentage of population without a vehicle at 31.0%, ranked first for that 
demographic. 

Whereas, Route 999 (UNR - Midtown Direct), ranked last overall for performance metrics 
and for productivity, and Route 3CC is ranked last for daily ridership. Staff cautions making 
any judgement about the UNR - Midtown Direct service, as it has only been in service for a 
very short time. 

In conclusion, the highest determining factor leading to productive service and ridership is the 
percentage of population without vehicles. This would suggest that service in Spanish Springs 
would not be productive. However, other routes with high percentages of 'no vehicles' could 
benefit by increasing their level of service. 



 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Attachment 3 Continued - Rank by Productivity and Comparative Demographics 

Route 
Name 

Overall 
Ranking 

Total Daily 
Ridership 

Ridership 
Ranking 

Productivity 
(Pass/Rev. Hr) 

Prod 
Ranking 

Level-of-Serv 
Service [Peak] (min) 

Population Pop 
Rank 

Seniors 
(65+) 

Sen 
Rank 

Youth 
(18-) 

Yout 
Rank 

With No 
Vehicles 

No Veh 
Rank 

VRGN 1 3,317 1 62.9 
72.6 
47.6 
49.4 
52.9 
40.2 
51.2 
39.1 
35.8 
36.9 
26.1 
28.9 
12.3 

2 
1 

10 
8 
4 

14 
5 

16 
19 
18 
25 
24 
27 

12 
30 
30 
30 
60 
30 
60 

15(1) 

30 
30(2) 

60(4) 

60(3) 

30 
60 

11,533 
7,724 

12,720 
16,744 

7,886 
4,475 

21,334 
26,676 
16,174 

5,069 
12,822 
21,429 
12,939 
10,902 

18 
25 
16 
6 

24 
29 
3 
1 
7 

28 
15 
2 

14 
20 

11.5% 
13.4% 

9.4% 
10.7% 

22 
11 
28 
27 

20.0% 
16.4% 

10 
22 

22.3% 12 
11 2 1,285 8 31.0% 1 
12 
5 

16 
18 
3CL 

2 
7 

14 
19 

5 
6 
9 

10 
11 
12 
14 
18 
25 

1,724 
1,546 
406 
966 
722 

1,754 
1,732 
679 
238 
156 
298 

4 
7 

21 
11 
15 
2 
3 

17 
26 
27 
25 

27.1% 1 22.9% 
18.2% 
20.4% 
28.2% 
13.1% 

9 
18 
14 
4 

21 

26.4% 
10.5% 
11.6% 
17.8% 

2 
29 
27 
17 

20.6% 1 
15.8% 
13.1% 

8 
13 

13.1% 13 24.8% 5 18.4% 16 
9.0% 29 19.0% 13 12.6% 22 

17.1% 6 10.6% 28 29.3% 3 
12.7% 
12.9% 
11.3% 
13.9% 

17 
15 
24 
10 

19.3% 
17.8% 
11.8% 
22.0% 

12 
17 
26 
8 

27.3% 
12.6% 
25.1% 

3.1% 

5 
22 
7 

29 

3CC 26 
999 

SS Route 
27 

(1) 
(2) 
(3) 
(4) 

15-min service for two-thirds of the route from 4TH STREET STATION to Rock Blvd. 
AM/PM Peak service 
Limited weekday service 6:45 am to 9:36 am and 2:45 pm to 6:36 pm. 
Weekday service only 

Highest Rank 
Lowest Rank 
Route 19 used in Board Report for comparison 



Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 7.1 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: Jeff Wilbrecht, P.E. 
Engineer II 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Monthly Progress Update -
Plumb to Liberty & Maple to 15th 

RECOMMENDATION 

Acknowledge receipt of the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit (BRT) Extension monthly progress 
report. 

SUMMARY 

Federal Grant Process: 
The project team continues to work towards receipt of Small Starts Capital Investments Grant from 
the Federal Transit Administration. The grant application package is currently under review with 
the grant execution anticipated for early Fall of this year. RTC met with FTA representatives to 
discuss grant readiness and provide updates on construction activities within the Midtown segment 
of the project. 

Early Work Utility Project: 
Construction activities associated with the utility relocations within the South Virginia-Midtown 
segment of the project is complete. 

The project team is in the process of closing out this stage of the project. 

Roadway Reconstruction and BRT Project: 
Construction is well underway in the South Virginia-Midtown segment of the project. Work has 
focused in the area south of Mt Rose Street and side streets in the northern portion of this segment. 
The contractor paved the bottom two lifts of asphalt on the east side of the road and completed 
concrete curb, gutter, and sidewalk elements. This allows traffic to operate on this side of the road 
while work occurs on the west side. Through the month of August, the contractor removed the old 
concrete and asphalt on the west side of Virginia Street, between Mt. Rose Street and Plumb Lane, 
and has begun the reconstruction process to place new curb, gutter, sidewalk, asphalt roadway, and 
associated amenities. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


Virginia Street BRT Extension 
Monthly Progress Update 

RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 
Page 2 

In addition, significant progress has occurred on side streets. Tahoe Street and St. Lawrence 
Avenue, Moran Street, and East Taylor Street are all nearly complete. Work is occurring on 
Arroyo Street, Cheney Street, and Martin Street. Work started at the end of August on Caliente 
Street and Stewart Street. 

Although early into the construction scope of work, the project is progressing well and is on 
schedule. 

Outreach Activities: 
During the month of August the robust outreach effort continued. 

The project team has continued its communications efforts as part of our strategic approach to keep 
stakeholders informed of construction activity, project updates, and listen to and address concerns 
and questions they may have. 

Press releases were shared with stakeholders regarding major work activities on both mainline 
South Virginia Street and side streets. 

The Project Information Office located north of the Z-Bar on South Virginia Street was open 
during the month of August; however, after recommendations from key stakeholders and the 
public, the project office closed on September 6, 2019. This information has been and 
disseminated to stakeholders. One successful element of the project office is the large billboard
banner that provides key items of information about the project such as schedule, contact 
information, etc. A similar billboard-banner will be placed in the area of the Project Information 
Office. 

The RTC has also continued the weekly project-update videos that started in March to provide the 
public with visual information in a new format. The videos are posted on social media sites, 
Y ouTube, the project website and in our weekly stakeholder updates. 

The community is encouraged to continue to share their positive Midtown experiences on social 
media using the hashtag #VirginiaStreetProject for an opportunity to receive a gift card to a 
participating Midtown business. 

Supporting the project team's goal of strong and extensive outreach and community awareness, 
there have been a number of media stories published and broadcast about the project that illustrate 
the accessibility to Midtown and progress of construction. Much of the coverage has been positive 
underscoring construction is not as bad as was expected by many of the businesses, and in some 
cases business has increased or remained steady. Additionally, the Lyft 50 percent discount up to 
$10 has helped transport visitors to Midtown. 
Project information continues to be communicated weekly through the Project Stakeholder Update 
that is electronically distributed to subscribers. 



Virginia Street BRT Extension 
Monthly Progress Update 

R TC Staff Report September 20, 2019 
Page 3 

FISCAL IMP ACT 

Funding for work tasks associated with the utility phase of the project have been approved with the 
FY 2019 Program of Projects and is included in the current approved RTC budget. There is no 
additional cost in connection with this agenda item. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

May 20, 2019 

May 20, 2019 

March 15, 2019 

July 20, 2018 

June 15, 2018 

May 21, 2018 

June 17, 2016 

March 18, 2016 

Approved the Construction Agreement between RTC and SNC (CMAR) for 
Phase 2 of the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Project 

Approved the Professional Services Agreement between RTC and Atkins 
North America (Atkins) for Construction Support Services on Phase 2 of the 
Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Project. 

Approved Interlocal Corporative Agreement between RTC and City of Reno 
to transfer funds to the City of Reno for the selection, procurement, and 
installation of benches and bike racks in Midtown. 

Approved a Professional Services Agreement with Atkins for the 
Construction Management Services for the utility construction phase. 
Approved an Agreement with SNC for the construction of the early work 
utility construction phase. Authorized the finalization and execution of five 
utility relocation and reimbursement agreements into the agreement for early 
construction work. 

Approved an Amendment to the CMAR Pre-Construction Agreement 
between the RTC and SNC for the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Extension 
Project 

Approved a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Construction Services for the 
Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Project. 

Approved the Final Rankings of the Proposers and Selection of a Contractor 
for Construction Manager at Risk (CMAR) for Pre-Construction Services 
and authorized the Executive Director to execute a Pre-Construction 
Services Agreement with SNC for the Virginia Street RAPID Extension 
Project. 

Approved the RFP for the CMAR method of project delivery for the 
Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Project. 



March 18, 2016 

October 16, 2015 

August 21, 2015 

October 17, 2014 

July 25, 2014 

Virginia Street BRT Extension 
Monthly Progress Update 

RTC Staff Report September 20, 2019 
Page 4 

Approved Amendment No. 1 to the Professional Services Agreement with 
NCE for Final Design for the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension 
Project. 

Acknowledged receipt of an update on the Virginia Street Bus RAPID 
Transit Extension Project and approve the local preferred alternative. 

Acknowledged receipt of an update and provided direction on the alternative 
selection for the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Project. 

Approved the selection of NCE for Preliminary Engineering and 
Environmental services for the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit 
Extension Project. 

Approved the RFP for Preliminary Engineering and Environmental services 
for the Virginia Street Bus RAPID Transit Extension Project. 

ADVISORY COMMITTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 



Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 8.1 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

. son AICP 
FROM: Brian Stewart, P.E. 

Director of Engineering 
Executive Director 

SUBJECT: NDOT Spaghetti Bowl Express (SBX) Project Update 

RECOMMENDATION 

Acknowledge receipt of the NDOT Spaghetti Bowl Project monthly progress report and provide 
input accordingly. 

SUMMARY 

Receive a report from the Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT) regarding design 
progress of the SBX. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

There is no R TC cost in connection with this agenda item. 

PREVIOUS ACTIONS BY BOARD 

August 16, 2019 Received report on the Spaghetti Bowl Project. 

October 22, 2018 Acknowledged receipt of an update on the project 

ADVISORY COMNilTTEE(S) RECOMMENDATION 

There are no advisory committee recommendations pertaining to this agenda item. 

RTC Board: Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 
Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 9.1 

TO: 

FROM: 
for Lee G. Gi son, AICP 
Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Legal Counsel Report 

The monthly Regional Transportation Commission (RTC) agenda includes a standing item for 
staff and legal counsel to provide information on any legal issues facing the R TC. This allows the 
Board to discuss such issues and provide direction to staff or take action as necessary. 

The RTC may, consistent with Chapter 241 of NRS, decide to interrupt the public meeting at any 
time to conduct a closed session to confer with legal counsel and possibly deliberate on legal 
issues. Any action on pending legal matters will be made when the public meeting is reconvened. 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com


REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Metropolitan Planning • Public Transportation & Operations • Engineering & Construction 

Metropolitan Planning Organization of Washoe County, Nevada 

September 20, 2019 AGENDA ITEM 10 

TO: Regional Transportation Commission 

FROM: 
ibson, AICP 

Executive Director 

SUBJECT: Public Input 

This agenda item allows the public the opportunity to provide information on topics within 
the jurisdiction of the Regional Transportation Commission (RTC). Any person wishing to 
wait to provide public comment on a specific agenda item should indicate that item number 
on the "comment" card. The R TC Chair reserves the right to take all public comment during 
Public Input. Individuals addressing the Board during the Public Input portion of the 
meeting will be limited to three minutes total. However, an individual acting as a 
spokesperson for a group of individuals may request additional time. Individuals are 
expected to provide public input in a professional and constructive manner. 

LGG/dt 

RTC Board Bob Lucey (Chairman) · Neoma Jardon (Vice Chair) · Vaughn Hartung · Oscar Delgado · Ron Smith 

PO Box 30002, Reno, NV 89520 · 1105 Terminal Way, Reno, NV 89502 · 775-348-0400 · rtcwashoe.com 

http:rtcwashoe.com

	Item 6.1Attach 3.pdf
	Weekday Condensed




